
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Highway 
Management 
 

Thursday, 23 March 2023 at 10.00 am 

Council Chamber - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 
If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link.  

However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting. 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 

overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on Thursday 30th March unless called 

in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 

 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
Martin Reeves 
Chief Executive 

March 2023 
 

Committee Officer: Committees - Democratic Services 
E-Mail: committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Note:  Date of next meeting: 27 April 2023 
 
 

 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

https://oxon.cc/DDCMHM23032023


Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declaration of Interest  
 

2. Questions from County Councillors  

 

Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 
days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet 
Member’s delegated powers. 

 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 

limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting) 
and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at 
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a 

written response. 
 

Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 
the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of further 

debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before 
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, 

together with any written response which is available at that time 
 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

 
Members of the public who wish to speak at this meeting can attend the meeting in 

person or ‘virtually’ through an online connection. 
 
Requests to speak must be submitted by no later than 9am four working days before the 

meeting.  Requests to speak should be sent to 
committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk . 

 
If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to 
ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into account. A 

written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 am 2 working days before 
the meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet.  

 

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 32) 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2023 to be signed by the 
Chair as a correct record.  

mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 3  
 

 

 
 

5. Witney Local Cycling and Walking Plan (LCWIP) (Pages 33 - 382) 

 

Cabinet Member: Highway Management 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/134 
Contact: Odele Parsons, Senior Transport Planner. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 5). 

 
To seek approval of the Witney Local Cycling and Walking Plan.  
 

6. Wantage - Market Place west - proposed permanent amendment 
to vehicle access and parking places (Pages 383 - 418) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/018 

Contact: Lee Turner, Principal Engineer, Traffic and Road Safety. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 6). 

 
To consider proposed amendments to parking places and the permanent prohibition of 

vehicles.  
 

7. Witney: The Leys proposed traffic calming measures  

(Pages 419 - 438) 
 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/144 
Contact: Mike Wasley, Principal Officer – Traffic and Road Safety Team (North). 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 7). 

 

To consider proposed traffic calming measures. 
 

8. Charlbury - B4022 The Slade proposed zebra crossing and B4026 
Spelsbury Road proposed extension of 30mph speed limit (Pages 

439 - 468) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/016 

Contact: James Wright , Technical Officer Traffic and Road Safety Team. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 8). 

 
To consider proposed zebra crossing at the B4022 The Slade and an extension of the 

30mph speed limit on the B4026 Spelsbury Road. 



Page 4  
 

 

 

9. Sutton Courtenay - B4016 Drayton Road - proposed traffic 
calming measures and extension of 30mph speed limit  
(Pages 469 - 482) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/013 

Contact: Lee Turner, Principal Engineer, Traffic and Road Safety. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 9). 

 
To consider proposed traffic calming measures and extension of 30mph speed limit. 

 

10. Buckland - Buckland Road at Buckland Marsh - proposed 40mph 
speed limit (Pages 483 - 488) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/017 

Contact: Lee Turner , Principal Engineer, Traffic and Road Safety. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 10). 

 
To consider proposed 40mph speed limits.  

 

11. Benson: Proposed 20mph and 50mph Speed Limits  

(Pages 489 - 526) 
 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/209 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 11). 

 
To consider proposed 20mph and 50mph speed limits.  

 

12. Charlbury: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits (Pages 527 - 552) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/011 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 12). 

 
To consider proposed 20mph speed limits.  
 

13. North Aston: Proposed 20mph and 50mph Speed Limits  

(Pages 553 - 566) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/010 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 13). 

 
To consider proposed 20mph and 50mph speed limits.  
 



Page 5  
 

 

14. Sydenham: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits (Pages 567 - 574) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2023/012 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 14). 

 

To consider proposed 20mph speed limits.  
 

15. Uffington: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits (Pages 575 - 584) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2023/026 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 15). 

 

To consider proposed 20mph speed limits.  
 

16. Watlington: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limit (Pages 585 - 596) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/023 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 16). 

 
To consider proposed 20mph speed limits.  

 

17. West Challow: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits (Pages 597 - 602) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2023/019 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 17). 

 

To consider proposed 20mph speed limits.  
 

18. West Hanney: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits (Pages 603 - 612) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/022 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 18). 

 
To consider proposed 20mph speed limits.  



Page 6  
 

 

 

19. East Hanney: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits (Pages 613 - 626) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/205 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 19). 

 
To consider proposed 20mph speed limits.  

 

20. Woodcote: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits (Pages 627 - 646) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2023/021 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Developer Schemes Coordinator and 20 Limits Project Manager. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 20). 

 
To consider proposed 20mph speed limits.  



Page 2  
 

 

 

Councillors declaring interests  
 

General duty  

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 

on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to 

you.  

 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?  

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for 

expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 

election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the 

Council’s area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be 

recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the 

Council’s website.  

 

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member 

her or himself but also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with 

as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 

Declaring an interest  

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 

meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature 

as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after 

having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the 

item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception  

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and 

that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 

questioned’.  

 

Members Code – Other registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an  interest. 

You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from 

the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness; 

anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or 

negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing. 

Other registrable interests include:  

a) Any unpaid directorships 



Page 3  
 

 

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority. 

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable 

purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management. 

 

Members Code – Non-registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 

wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial 

interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.  

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 

a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 

wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the 

interest.  

 

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your 

interest the following test should be applied:  

Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:  

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;  

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest. 

 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. 



 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY 
MANAGEMENT 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 23 February 2023 commencing at 10.00 

am and finishing at 12.51 pm 
 
Present: 

 
 

   – in the Chair 

 
 Councillor Andrew Gant 

 
 

27/23 DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
(Agenda No. 1) 

 
There were none. 
 

28/23 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS  
(Agenda No. 2) 

 

There were no questions from County Councillors.  
 

29/23 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda No. 3) 

 
The following speakers addressed the meeting:  
 

(All speakers on all the items have 3 minutes except for County Councillors 
representing the relevant division who have 5 minutes). 

 
Statements submitted for 23rd February 2023  

 

 

Item 
 

 

Speakers 

5. Abingdon Local Cycling and 

Walking Infrastructure Plan  
 
 

 Patrick Chaizy (3 mins, MS Teams)  

 Robin Tucker – Co-Chair – CoHSAT and 
Chair - OCN (3 mins, in person) 

 Nadine Matough – Liveable Cities and Towns 
Coordinator (3 mins, MS Teams)  

 Cllr Nathan Ley (5 mins, TBC) 

6. Abingdon – B4017 Wootton Road 
– proposed toucan crossing 
 

 Cllr Nathan Ley (5 mins, in person) 

7. Radley - Kennington Road and 
Whites Lane – proposed pedestrian 
and cycle crossings and shared use 

footway / cycle track 
 

 Robin Tucker – Co-Chair – CoHSAT and 
Chair - OCN (3 mins, in person) 

 Peter Barnett (3 mins, in person)  

 Danny Yee – Oxfordshire Liveable Streets (3 
mins, in person) 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



3 

  Nadine Matough – Liveable Cities and Towns 
Coordinator (3 mins, MS Teams)  

 Cllr Nathan Ley (5 mins, in person) 

8. Bicester - Dunkins Close - 
proposed residents permit parking 

scheme 
 

 Cllr Michael Waine (5 mins, MS Teams) 

 
10. Long Hanborough - Regent 

Drive 
 

 Cllr Liam Walker (5 mins, MS Teams)  

 Cllr Sam Newman – Parish Councillor (3 

mins, MS Teams)  

 
12.Abingdon – proposed 20mph and 

30mph speed limits 
 

 Robin Tucker – Co-Chair – CoHSAT and 

Chair - OCN (3 mins, in person) 

 Cllr Andy Foulsham – Mayor of Abingdon-on-
Thames, Vale of White Horse District Council 

(written statement) 

 Cllr Nathan Ley (5 mins, in person) 

13. Chilton: 20mph speed limit 

 
 

 Cllr Sally Povolotsky (5 mins, MS Teams) 

14.Cumnor (including Farmoor): 

proposed 20mph and 30mph speed 
limits 
 

 

 Giles Edward (written submission)  

 Cllr Judy Roberts (written submission)  

 Cllr Tom Christophers – Parish Chairman, on 

behalf of Cumnor Parish Council (written 
submission)  

15. Faringdon- proposed 20mph 
speed limit 

 

 Cllr Bethia Thomas (written submission) 

16.Hanborough: Church 
Hanborough- Proposed 20 mph 

Speed Limits 
 

 Cllr Liam Walker (5 mins, in person)  

18.Kingston Lisle and Fawler – 

proposed 20mph speed limit 
 

 Cllr Johnnie Graham – Kingston Lisle Parish 

Councillor (3 mins, in person) 
 

 Cllr Yvonne Constance (written statement)  

20.North Hinksey – proposed 20mph 
speed limit 
 

 Cllr Alistair Bastin – Chair of the Environment 
and Wellbeing Committee, North Hinksey 
Parish Council (3 mins, in person) 

 Cllr Judy Roberts (written submission) 

23.South Leigh - proposed 20mph 
Speed limit  

 Dick Pears – South Leigh and High Cogges 

Page 2



3 

 Parish Council (written submission) 

 Cllr Dan Levy (5 mins, in person)  

26. Steventon- proposed 20mph 

speed limit  
 

 Cllr Sally Povolotsky (5 mins, MS Teams)  

 

NOTE: At this point Cabinet Member informed the meeting that he would first 
consider the following items on the agenda:  
 

Item 5 - Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
Item 12 - Abingdon – proposed 20mph and 30mph speed limits 

Item 14 - Cumnor (including Farmoor): proposed 20mph and 30mph speed limits 
Item 18 - Kingston Lisle and Fawler – proposed 20mph speed limit 
Item 22 - Shrivenham – proposed 20mph speed limit 

Item 26 - Steventon- proposed 20mph speed limit;  
 

The Cabinet Member added that remaining items would be considered in order as 
per agenda. 
 
Statements submitted for 23rd February 2023  

 

30/23 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
(Agenda No. 4) 

 
Cllr Andrew Gant approved the minutes of the meeting from 26th January 2023.  

 

31/23 ABINGDON LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 

(LCWIP)  
(Agenda No. 5) 

 

This report presented the fourth Local Cycling Walking and Infrastructure Plan 
(LCWIP) to be considered for approval by the County Council. The Abingdon LCWIP 
was called for in Oxfordshire County Council’s (OCC) adopted Local Transport and 

Connectivity Plan (LTCP). The report and annexes presented a network of walking 
and cycling routes in and around Abingdon and set out high level proposals for 

improvements to the walking and cycling infrastructure. The improvements were 
intended for development over a ten-year period to 2032, enabling a model shift to 
sustainable and active modes of travel.    

 
The LCWIP was also well aligned with the County Council’s nine priorities as outlined 

in the Strategic Plan 2022-2025.  
 
The Chair, Cllr Gant – Cabinet Member for Highway Management, invited speakers 

to address the meeting and responded to the points made in their statements.  
 

The Chair agreed that it was important to make cyclists aware of the existence of 
cycle paths and to understand why some cyclists opted instead to cycle on 
carriageways.  

 

Page 3



3 

The Chair reiterated that the actions in the LCWIP were iterative and could be 
brought forward in synergy with other things such as funding opportunities from 

Government or developers.  
 

The Chair observed that some proposals set out in the LCWIP could risk a negative 
impact on air quality in the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) by increasing 
vehicular queueing. The report suggested that these proposals may be deferred until 

such a time as local air quality was less problematic in central Abingdon. The Chair 
invited officers to elaborate on this point.  

 
Officers explained that the latest Air Quality Annual Status Report from the Vale of 
White Horse suggested that in the following 12 months consideration may soon be 

given to revoking the AQMA in Abingdon. If designated pollution levels were 
consistently below a certain level then an AQMA was not required.  

 
The Chair noted that travel to school data for private schools was not held at this 
time.  

 
Officers explained that data on travel patterns to state schools was available in a 

readily available format via an online tool developed by the Department for Transport 
for estimating demand for cycling in an area. Data for private schools was not 
provided through that platform and there was not sufficient officer capacity to engage 

individually with private schools. The Chair asked officers to look at how the Council 
could encourage private schools to provide travel patterns data.   

 
The Chair commended the ambition of the LCWIP and thanked officers for the work 
they had undertaken on this proposal.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the Abingdon Local 

Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan.  
 

32/23 ABINGDON - B4017 WOOTTON ROAD - PROPOSED TOUCAN CROSSING  
(Agenda No. 6) 

 
The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
installation of a toucan crossing on the B4017 Wootton Road at Abingdon. The 

provision of this crossing was a planning condition in respect of the approved 
development of adjacent land for a food retail business.  

 
The Chair invited Cllr Nathan Ley to address the meeting. The importance of 
adequate maintenance of the cycle provision was raised and the new vehicle access 

to the store and the junction layout was queried.  
 

In response, Officers confirmed that it was safe, and access would be installed in line 
with the planning approved layout. The impact of overgrowth was reviewed during the 
planning process, and it was determined that the hedgerow was to be retained.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED a toucan crossing on 

the B4017 Wootton Road at Abingdon as advertised. 
 

Page 4



3 

33/23 RADLEY - KENNINGTON ROAD AND WHITES LANE - PROPOSED 

PEDESTRIAN AND CYCLE CROSSINGS AND SHARED USE FOOTWAY / 

CYCLE TRACK  
(Agenda No. 7) 

 

The report presented responses to a consultation on a proposal to introduce a 
number of pedestrian and pedal cycle improvements on Kennington Road and 
Whites Lane in order to provide safe and convenient facilities for pedestrians and 

cyclists.  
 

The measures were being funded by the developers of housing on adjacent land with 
particular focus of encouraging active travel by occupants of this development, the 
measures would also benefit the many existing pedestrian and cyclists including 

through the provision of a convenient link through the development of the Sustrans 
Route 5 linking Abingdon and Oxford  

 
The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements.  

 
Cllr Ley asked what the likely timescale for this plan was. Officers explained that the 

legal process was still underway, and proposals were early on in the design stage. 
They hoped that work would start a year from now at the latest.   
 

A key theme throughout the speakers’ statements was the request for engagement 
and a coproduction approach to outstanding matters of design. The Chair reiterated 

the importance of a collaborative coproduction approach with Cyclox, CoHSAT and 
local councillors.  
 

The Chair was pleased that the scheme would be connected further to the south and 
addressed the current missing link for cyclists travelling between Abingdon and 

Oxford.  
 
There was concern that this scheme would have a negative impact on biodiversity, 

with the loss of verges on the eastern side to facilitate the cycleway/footway. The 
hedges would not be lost but two highway trees needed to be removed to facilitate 

the works. The Chair asked that the project meet the County Council’s commitment to 
biodiversity net gain.  
 

The Chair commended the scheme and its elements of co-production.  
The need for developments to deliver benefits for the site itself and its neighbouring 

areas was always a challenge, but the Chair felt this scheme achieved that.   
 
The Cabinet Member APPROVED the following measures as advertised:  

a) A new zebra crossing on Kennington Road  

b) A new raised parallel crossing on Kennington Road  

c) A new non-raised parallel crossing on Whites Lane  

Page 5



3 

d) A new shared-use footway/cycle track (to be approximately 3 meters wide) on 
the east side of Kennington road, and the west side of whites lane  

 

34/23 BICESTER - DUNKINS CLOSE - PROPOSED RESIDENTS PERMIT 

PARKING SCHEME  
(Agenda No. 8) 

 

Following the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement across Cherwell, South 
Oxfordshire and The Vale of the White Horse districts in November 2021, many 

requests were received to review existing parking restrictions, including for Dunkin’s 
Close which suffers from an overspill of non-resident parking from the nearby town 
center and multi-storey car park. The local Member for Bicester North asked that this 

request be progressed and the report presents the consultation responses to the 
advertise Traffic Regulation Order for a proposed scheme.  

 
The Chair reflected on the responses received through the consultation and agreed 
with officers’ observations and their responses.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the following proposals 

as advertised  

a) ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ (Double Yellow Lines) restrictions on St. Johns Street 
(Dunkin’s Close), 

b) Introduce permit holders only parking spaces on St.Johns Street (Dunkin’s 
Close), and 

c) Make changes to permit charges and rules in Cherwell District, including limits 
on permits per resident/property, visitor permit allocation, and charges of £66 
per permit per annum. 

 

35/23 LITTLEMORE - OXFORD ROAD - PROPOSED BUS STOP CLEARWAY  
(Agenda No. 9) 

 

Following concerns being received from Littlemore Parish Council about the 
obstruction by parked vehicles for buses seeking to use the existing bus stop layby 

approximately 30 meters north of dudgeon drive, it is proposed to introduce a bus 
stop clearway.  
 

The Chair observed officers’ responses to objections and agreed that it was important 
that buses could pull in close and parallel to kerbs at bus stops and depart easily 

without being impeded by other parked motor vehicles.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED as advertised a bus 

stop clearway on Oxford Road approximately 30 metres north of Dudgeon Drive at 
Littlemore. 

 

36/23 LONG HANBOROUGH - REGENT DRIVE  
(Agenda No. 10) 

 

Page 6



3 

Following concerns raised by the local County Councillor and local residents about 
excessive and obstructive overspill parking from commuters using Hanborough rail 

station and the adjacent commercial business park, waiting restrictions have been 
proposed between 11am and noon Monday to Fridays, applying on both sides of all 

roads within the Hanborough Park residential development.  
 
The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 

in their statements.  
 

The Chair noted that in the report the overall balance of opinion was not supportive of 
the proposals, but most respondents did acknowledge that the current parking 
problems caused by rail users did require action. Despite the proposals limited time 

of operation, one of the grounds for concern was the inconvenience caused to 
residents and their visitors. A number of responses suggested that a resident permit 

parking scheme would be appropriate. Some of those supportive of the scheme 
expressed a preference for the proposal over a residents permit parking scheme.  
 

Cllr Liam Walker considered the proposals a good first step which should be 
monitored and reviewed at a later date after which a residents permit parking scheme 

could be adopted; he was hesitant about the cost to residents. The Chair agreed and 
emphasised the importance of local engagement on this issue.  
 

The Chair asked that officers progress the proposals for extending the existing no 
waiting at any time restrictions further into Regents Drive in a timely manner.  

 
The Chair noted comments and objections but overall deemed this a good scheme 
which was a proportionate response to local circumstances.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to  

a) approve the proposed waiting restrictions at Regent Drive area (Hanborough 

Park) Long Hanborough.  

b) instruct officers to prepare a plan for an extended length of no waiting at any 
time restrictions to be prepared and consulted on. 

 

37/23 BANBURY - BRETCH HILL - PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND 

20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 11) 

 

In accordance with approved policy that all roads within new residential 
developments in the county will have a 20mph speed limit order, a consultation was 

carried out on a proposed 20mph speed limit on the roads within a development to 
the west of the existing Bretch Hill residential area in Banbury. Additionally, to avoid 
the potential obstruction and road safety hazards arising from parking, the proposals 

also included no waiting at any time restrictions on Wilson and Longley Crescent as 
shown in Annex 2. 

 
The Chair noted that there was more support for the 20mph speed limit scheme than 
the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions (3 objections and 15 objections, 

Page 7



3 

respectively).  It was accepted that there was risk of some displacement, but the 
current parking was judged to be obstructive.  

 
It was suggested that, in the longer term, a residents permit parking scheme might be 

more appropriate to manage parking provision more effectively and equitably in this 
area. The Chair asked officers to keep this under review.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED as advertised the 

following:  

a) A 20mph speed limit on Bailey Road, Bennett Drive, Fivash Close, Davies 
Road, George Parish Road, Hall Close, Harris Close, Longley Crescent, Tony 
Humphries Road, Upton Close and Wilson Road.  

b) ‘No waiting at any time’ parking restrictions (double yellow lines) at Wilson 
Road & Longley Crescent. 

 

38/23 ABINGDON - PROPOSED 20MPH AND 30MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 12) 

 

This report presented responses received to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
induction of 20mph and 30mph speed limits in Abingdon. This was a revised report, 

having been previously presented to and subsequently deferred by the Cabinet 
Member for Highway Management at the 17 November 2022 meeting.  
 

The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements.  
 

The Chair reiterated the Council’s commitment to the benefits of active travel, the 
hierarchy of road users and road safety. The Council was committed to delivering the 

benefits of the 20 is plenty campaign.   
 
The Chair thanked bus services for their engagement with and responses to the 

consultation but was dismayed to have received a late submission on the morning of 
the meeting from the Oxford Bus Company. This submission expressed discontent 

with the proposed speed limits in Abingdon and stated that, if agreed, they would 
cause a reduction in bus services. The letter included a detailed list of service 
reductions that would ensue following adoption of this plan.   

 
The Chair expressed disappointment that they were asked to factor in this information 

hours before the decision was due to be made. Nevertheless, the submission was 
relevant for decision making. The Chair was mindful of putting the Council in a 
position which would subject it to negative consequences and associated publicity.  

 
While the Chair did not question the expertise of the bus companies, they believed 

the bus companies’ submissions were lacking evidence.  
 
The Chair felt it would be irresponsible to approve this proposal given the feedback 

from Oxford Bus Company and informed the meeting that he would defer a decision 
on this matter.  

 

Page 8



3 

The conditions of this deferral were:  

 further serious engagement with bus companies  

 submission of evidence from bus companies so the decision could be made 
based on evidence  

 deferral to 23 March 2023 meeting.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management DEFERRED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph and 30mph speed limits in Abingdon as advertised. 
 

39/23 CHILTON: 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 13) 

 

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Chilton.  
 

Cllr Povolotksy agreed with the recommendation but asked why the link road had not 
been reduced from 40mph to 30mph. The Member also queried why the new parts of 

Chilton were not included in this proposal.  
 
Officers explained that the 40mph reflected the open environment the road passed 

through and the function of enabling efficient progress in connecting the village to the 
A34 link road. This was officers’ judgement and would be kept under review.  

 
Officers acknowledged that the new area of Chilton was not included in the proposals 
and would look into this.  

 
The Chair agreed with officers’ responses to the objections but asked that the 40mph 

road and new Chilton be considered and kept under review.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

40/23 CUMNOR (INCLUDING FARMOOR): PROPOSED 20MPH AND 30MPH 

SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 14) 

 
The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in Cumnor and Farmoor and a 30mph speed limit 
on the B4044 Eynsham Road in Farmoor.  
 

The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements.  

 
The Chair noted the detailed response from Thames Travel and asked how much 
difference a change of speed limit would make on the roads referred to. Officers 

explained that these roads represented a small area thus could not see speeds 
exceeding 20mph anyway.  

 
The nature of the Thames Travel objection suggested that it should be considered 
carefully. Whilst the Chair was committed to the democratically agreed policy to 

Page 9



3 

promote 20mph speed limits in communities, it was not obvious whether the effect on 
bus companies justified changing or accepting the scheme and more evidence was 

needed before a decision could be made. Thus, the Chair informed the meeting that 
he would defer a decision on this matter.  

 
The Chair informed the meeting that recommendation would be amended to read: 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management agreed to DEFER a decision to 

approve the following proposals as advertised, pending further discussions to assess 

the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the needs of all parties:  

a) 20mph speed limit in Cumnor,  

b) 20mph speed limit in Farmoor, and  

c) 30mph speed limit on the B4044 Eynsham Road in Farmoor. 

  

 

41/23 FARINGDON - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 15) 

 

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Faringdon, and the extension of the existing 

50mph speed limit on the A4095 Radcot Road by 40 metres in order to help facilitate 
the 20mph proposals, 
 

The Chair noted that Stagecoach and Thames Travel bus companies objected to 
recommendations and provided detailed responses. The Stagecoach submission was 
particularly comprehensive and merited close study. Generally, bus companies 

considered the proposals to be unduly extensive with safety benefits not equally 
achieved over the extent of the proposed order. Stagecoach advised that if 20mph 

limits were applied to other communities along the A420 corridor they would serve 
the notice to withdraw the service entirely from High Street Watchfield and the loop 
around Faringdon Town Centre.  

 
The Chair thanked bus companies for their detailed response to the consultation but 

stated that evidence and data was lacking. The nature of the bus operators’ 
objections suggested that they should be considered carefully especially given the 
risk of a reduction in service. The Chair stressed the importance of improving road 

safety and encouraging greater use of active travel by reducing speeds but further 
discussion and provision of evidence from Bus Companies was needed before a 

decision could be made. Thus, the Chair informed the meeting that he would defer a 
decision on this matter.  
 

The Chair informed the meeting that recommendation would be amended to read: 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management agreed to DEFER a decision to 

approve the following proposals as advertised pending further discussions to assess 
the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the needs of all parties:  

Page 10



3 

a) New 20mph speed limit for Faringdon, and  

b) Extended 50mph speed limit on the A4095 Radcot Road. 

 

42/23 HANBOROUGH: CHURCH HANBOROUGH - PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED 

LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 16) 

 

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Church Hanborough. 

 
Cllr Liam Walker informed the meeting that they had undertaken an informal 
consultation with eight parishes across the division and confirmed that there was 

overall support of this scheme.   
 

The Chair noted some of the objections, but felt they were comparable to those 
expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes and were not seen as 
warranting a change in the proposals. The Chair suggested that some traffic calming 

measures may be considered where there is risk of people not observing the 20mph 
signs. The aim of reducing speed limits was to change drivers’ mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes of 
travel more attractive.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 

 

43/23 KIDLINGTON - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 17) 

 

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph and 30 mph speed limits in Kidlington and Gosford & Water 
Eaton. 

 
Cyclox supported the proposals but wanted to see a 20mph limit placed along the 

A4260 Oxford and Banbury roads. Four out of five online responses expressed 
support. The objector routinely objected to 20mph limits and raised no pertinent 
points and challenged the philosophy being the democratically agreed policy to 

promote 20mph speed limits in communities.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED as advertised the 

following proposals: 

a) 20mph speed limit in Kidlington, and Gosford & Water Eaton, 

b) 30mph speed limits on the A4260 Banbury Road & Oxford Road. 

 

44/23 KINGSTON LISLE AND FAWLER - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 18) 

 

Page 11



3 

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Kingston Lisle and Fawler. 

 
The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responses to the points made 

in their statements.  
 
The Parish Council had no objections but asked that the section of road between the 

main village and Fawler be reduced to 20mph rather than remain at 30mph. They 
also sought 30mph buffer limits on each approach.  

 
Officers explained that the 30mph stretch of road had not been reduced to 20mph 
because there were no active frontages and they had tried to keep the speed 

appropriate for the area. Given the comments from the Parish Council, officers said 
they could review this as part of a phase 2 where they may also consider some 

additional calming measures due to the layout of the road.  
 
Regarding the buffer zone, that had been considered at the outset of the Council’s 

20mph project but it was concluded only to be necessary where it enhanced the 
effectiveness of the 20mph limits. Officers believed that, due to the rural environment, 

there was no strong reason or tangible benefit for introducing buffer zones.  
 
The Chair acknowledged the points made by the Parish Council and suggested that 

they make a representation on those issues they wished to do so.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 
 

45/23 MILTON UNDER WYCHWOOD - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 19) 

 
The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in Milton Under Wychwood.  
 

The Chair noted the responses in the report. A single objection was received, and 
this member of the public routinely objected to 20mph limits and raised no pertinent 
points and challenged the philosophy being the democratically agreed policy to 

promote 20mph speed limits in communities. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 
 

46/23 NORTH HINKSEY - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 20) 

 

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in North Hinksey. 
 

The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responses to the points made 
in their statements.  

 

Page 12



3 

The Chair highlighted some of the objections to the proposals which focused on the 
usual concerns. One objection raised no new pertinent points and others were 

comparable to those expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes.  
 

The Chair reminded the meeting of the Council’s countywide programme of works 
that sought to deliver a safer place with a safer pace. Funding for these schemes was 
a budget decision taken by the Council to allocate resource to improve road safety 

i.e. the money allocated would not be otherwise available for other things.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED proposals for 20mph 

speed limits in North Hinksey as advertised. 
 

47/23 OXFORD: BINSEY LANE - PROPOSED EXTENSION OF 20MPH SPEED 

LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 21) 

 
The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of a 20mph speed limit along Oxford’s Binsey Lane 
 

The Chair noted the high level of response to the consultation and agreed with officer 
responses to the objections to this scheme.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 

 

48/23 SHRIVENHAM  - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 22) 

 

The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Shrivenham 
 

The Chair noted that Stagecoach Bus Company objected to the proposals and 
submitted extensive and detailed comments regarding the locations where the 

proposals were likely to jeopardise their service viability. Stagecoach did consider a 
20mph limit appropriate in most areas but stated that if the approach taken to 
applying 20mph limits in Shirvenham was as broadly pursued in Faringdon, 

Watchfield and Kingston Bagpuize then Stagecoach would serve notice to re-route. 
The Chair noted that the OCC Public Transport Development Team’s viewpoint 

aligned closely with that of Stagecoach.  
 
The Chair reiterated the Council’s commitment to improving road safety but felt that 

the submission from Stagecoach needed further careful consideration.  The Chair felt 
that evidence was lacking from Stagecoach’s submission so thus was unable to 

make a decision. Further discussion was needed to with the bus operator and the 
local council and member. The Chair informed the meeting that he would defer a 
decision on this matter.  

 
The Cabinet Member informed the meeting that recommendation would be amended 

to read: 
 

Page 13



3 

The Cabinet Member for Highway Management agreed to DEFER a decision to 

approve the introduction of 20mph speed limits in Shrivenham as advertised pending 

further discussions to assess the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the 
needs of all parties 

 

49/23 SOUTH LEIGH - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 23) 

 

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in South Leigh. 

 
The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements.  

 
Cllr Dan Levy thanked officers for their work on the proposal and welcomed the 

20mph zone. He felt it was vital to ensure the safety of residents and would enable 
them to walk, cycle, and drive safely. The Member stated that he would also welcome 
a review of the weight limits on those roads.  

 
The Chair noted the objections received through the consultation, but they were not 

seen as warranting a change in the proposals given the clear intention of the County 
Council’s 20mph speed limit policy.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 
 

50/23 SOUTH MORETON - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 24) 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 
 

51/23 SPARSHOLT AND WESTCOT - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 25) 

 
The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in Sparsholt and Westcot. 
 

A single objection was received but raised no new pertinent points and challenged 
the philosophy behind the Council’s 20mph speed limits in communities. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is APPROVED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised 

 

52/23 STEVENTON - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 26) 

 

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed and 40mph in Steventon. The existing 20mph and 
40mph speed limits on the b4017 high street were brought in due to ongoing 

Page 14



3 

structural issues with the bridge are proposed to be incorporated into the wider 
proposals as a permanent measure.  

 
The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 

in their statements. 
 
The Chair noted that the Oxford Bus Company objected to the proposals. 

Stagecoach did not operate services in Steventon but also suggested areas where 
they did not consider 20mph to be appropriate.  

 
The objections and concerns from members of the public were comparable to those 
expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes and were not seen as 

warranting a change in those previous proposals. However, the nature of the bus 
companies’ objections and concerns needed to be considered carefully. The Chair 

also felt that evidence from the bus companies’ submissions was lacking and thus a 
decision could not be made. The Chair informed the meeting that he would defer a 
decision on this matter.  

 
The Cabinet Member informed the meeting that recommendation would be amended 

to read: 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to defer a decision to 

approve the following proposals as advertised pending further discussions to assess 
the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the needs of all parties:  

a) Village wide 20mph speed limit, and  

b) 40mph on the B4017 High Street 

 

53/23 STRATTON AUDLEY - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 27) 

 
The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in Stratton Audley. 
 

The Chair considered this a good scheme that applied county policy in a sensible and 
proportionate way and agreed with officer responses to objections received in the 
consultation.  

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 
 
 
 in the Chair 

  

Date of signing   

 
 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT 

23 FEBRUARY 2023 

SPEAKERS 

WRITTEN SPEECHES RECEIVED 

 

Statements received:  

 

ITEM 5 - Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 

 
Patrick Chaizy  

 

Laudably, the County Council has made, and is still making, substantial efforts to 

develop infrastructures aiming at improving the safety and comfort of pedestrians 

and cyclists. Such a development is appreciated as demonstrated, for instance, by 

the number of cyclists using cycle paths (me and my family included). However, it is 

regrettable that some cyclists, for some reasons, still use carriageways while only a 

few meters away from well maintained, broad and often empty cycle paths. 

As it is not possible to prohibit cyclists from using the carriageway where there is an 

off-carriageway facility present, the promotion to cyclists of the use of cycle paths 

can offer a good value for money way of optimising the return on investment of the 

County Council and support Rule 61 of the Highway Code that recommends that 

cyclists: 

“Use facilities such as cycle lanes and tracks, advanced stop lines and toucan 

crossings (see Rules 62 and 73) where they make (their) journey safer and easier.” 

In practice, such an incentive could include road signs at the entrance of the cycle 

paths highlighting, for instance, that carrying on cycling on a carriageway creates an 

unnecessary opportunity for serious accidents (for all road users, i.e. not only for 

cyclists), defeats the purpose of the millions of pounds invested in cycle paths and/or 

contributes to the pollution by slowing the traffic down... 

In addition, polls could be conducted (e.g. by the police if technically and legally 

possible) both to make the cyclists aware of the existence of the cycle paths and of 

their benefits as well as to understand the reasons why some cyclists do not want to 

use them (to try to solve their potential concerns). 

However, currently, the LCWIP considers infrastructures but does not seem to 

mention the promotion of their use (apologies if it does). 

Therefore, would the Council consider the implementation of means to promote to 

cyclists the existence and the use of cycle paths? As part or in parallel to the 

LCWIP? 

Thank you. 

Page 1

Minute Annex 

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/the-highway-code/rules-for-cyclists-59-to-82#rule62


 
 

Robin Tucker - Co-Chair – CoHSAT and Chair - OCN 
 

An LCWIP is a key document to aid the walking, wheeling and cycling development 
of a town. It identifies the schemes that will be candidates for funding from DfT, 
developers the council or other sources.  

 
Sam Larkin, the main author of the Abingdon LCWIP had some tough acts to follow 

with the Abingdon LCWIP. The Council’s own LCWIPs for Oxford and Bicester, 
written by Patrick Lingwood, a man with decades experience of active travel. And our 
own Abingdon Liveable Streets Cycling and Walking Plan, developed with less 

experience, but with the input and enthusiasm of 40 people over partial lockdown 
during 2020. He’s done an excellent job. 

We were particularly impressed by the way he engaged with the community, inviting 
us to several workshops, joining our own meetings, and touring the streets of 
Abingdon to measure and record the current lie of the land. 

 
Nowhere in Abingdon is more than 1.5 miles from the centre. That’s 30 minutes’ 

walk, or 10 minutes by bike. We already have neighbourhood centres that are within 
15 minutes’ walk or 5 minutes’ cycle of every resident, but need improvements to 
routes and facilities. This plan shows how Abingdon can develop a transport network 

that will save us all money, benefit health and help the climate into the future.  It 
contains 108 prioritised infrastructure improvements for walking and cycling that 

would transform movement in Abingdon.  
 
We’d love them to be implemented tomorrow. In fact, on the strength of this plan, we 

think Abingdon should be the next mini-Holland bid. But failing that, we think a ten-
year plan would be about right.  

 
In summary, we support the Abingdon LCWIP, and hope you approve it and 
implement it. 
 
 

Nadine Matough – Liveable Cities and Towns Coordinator 
 

I am here today to make an address in support of the proposed draft Abingdon Local 

Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan.   
 

I am speaking on behalf of Sustrans, the charity making it easier for people to walk 
and cycle, where Oxfordshire is a priority area with most of our work focused on 
Abingdon. 

 
We supported the development of this plan as a key stakeholder, and we welcome 

the full Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan publication including both the 
report and accompanying appendices. The LCWIP should be a technical exercise to 
identify walking, wheeling, and cycling networks based on guidance published by the 

Department for Transport in 2017. It is Sustrans’ view that Oxfordshire County 
Council has delivered on the suggested outputs that will help local authority to 

identify improvements for future investment, ensure priority is given to active travel in 

Page 2Page 18



local policy and strategy and make the case for future funding for good quality 
walking and cycling infrastructure for all. It is an ambitious set of proposals that also 

supports the communities of Abingdon as well as the aims and objectives of the 
Cycling and Walking Investment strategy.  

 
The technical guidance suggests that ‘authorities should prioritise areas which have 
the greatest potential for growing cycling and walking trips’ of which Abingdon is 

such an area. Alongside raised ambition for active travel in the town as well as more 
behaviour change and community activation projects being delivered, this plan will 

build on local opportunities as it has developed a package of individual schemes that 
will be beneficial to walking and cycling in the local context. 
 

All maps and the network plan are legible, and it is clear what is being prioritised and 
why and how all the schemes fit into the wider network is well done. The programme 

of infrastructure improvements does set out to meet a certain good quality standard 
with reference to LTN1/20, Cycling Level of Service throughout and other key 
national policy and guidance.   

 
Sustrans are in support of the proposed regular review of this first version of the 

LCWIP and suggest the commitment to refreshing the plan within the next 5 years to 
match growth in the area and maximise on developer contribution opportunities to 
ensure delivery of schemes proposed.  

 
This LCWIP feels like one step forward – we now have detail for schemes in 

Abingdon which places the area in a better position to direct revenue funding to work 
up the detail to strategic outline business case stage. 
 

 
 

ITEM 7 – Radley - Kennington Road and Whites Lane – proposed pedestrian 
and cycle crossings and shared use footway / cycle track 

 

 
Robin Tucker - Co-Chair – CoHSAT and Chair - OCN 

I’m not great athlete and I’m closer to 60 than I’d like to admit, but I cycle the 7 miles 

from Abingdon to Oxford in under 40 minutes, county hall to county hall. There’s a 2 

mile section on the road or inadequate path that can be intimidating depending on 

the traffic. 

This proposed cycletrack, with other sections that link it to the railside track at 

Sandford Lane, and the off-road track at Radley Road will provide a complete, 

coherent, traffic-free route from Abingdon centre to Oxford centre – the first such 

route in the county.  

Already, many people cycle this route each day, but you need a certain confidence. 

Two thirds of British adults think the roads are not safe to cycle. Cycletracks like this 

change that. They open cycling up to anyone, and I really do mean practically 

Page 3Page 19



anyone because the entry price is less than a tank of fuel, and more people can 

cycle than can drive. 

There are some minor design issues, and it’s good to see them noted. We’d like to 

pick them up in the spirit of co-production following the meeting. We hope to see the 

other sections approved and implemented soon also as per the Pye Homes planning 

permissions. Please monitor the cycling numbers before and after. 

Make no mistake, this route will be a game-changer for thousands of people for 

travel between Oxford and its closest market town. We strongly support it. 

 
 
Peter Barnett  

 

I would like to make a specific point on this agenda item then lead on to related 

general points on Vision Zero and co-production going forward; both related to 
process. Cyclox supports the overall scheme but some defects of the design have 
been well covered in the Cyclox response. 

 
First the specific: the report says that the detailed response from Cyclox “will be 

considered by the designers.” Can Cyclox meet with the designers as they review 
and consider this? 
 

This further review should ensure that there is appropriate feedback on these 
recommendations that either supports them or explains why they are not being taken 

forward. In the past, Cyclox almost never got reasons why reasonable and not 
extravagant design tweaks were not taken up. Occasionally, we got answers when 
asked in person at a later meeting. 

 
Second, leading on to process: for the council’s Vison Zero Programme to succeed, 

working practices and culture must change such that there is effective co-production 
with stakeholder groups from the start of any highway project, including with 
Transport Development Control in pre-application reviews with developers. There 

are good signs that this will happen, the latest Parkway design changes; the 
recognition that engagement over the Kidlington Roundabout should have been 

better, and the proposal by Councillor Enright that a co-production handbook be 
created for highway projects; this proposal is very welcome. 
 

But we don’t need to wait for a handbook to make these changes; they can happen 
now. But they have to be driven from the top of the council organisation: As the 

social care co-production manual says, the first step in co-production is to (and I 
quote) “get agreement from senior leaders to champion co-production.” This means 
that senior leaders - officers and councillors - must drive this personally; it is not a 

task that can be delegated. 
 

As the council is realising, too often in the past, we have seen inadequate and, to be 
frank, poor designs being put forward for initial consultation, such that much time, 
effort and money is wasted on making revisions; if indeed such revisions are even 

possible. Examples are the Oxford North A40 and A44 corridors and the first attempt 

Page 4Page 20



at the Kidlington Roundabout. With an effective co-production process going forward, 
money can be saved; with current budget pressures, this is essential. 

 
The Oxfordshire Fair Deal Alliance is doing good things, yourself Councillor Gant 

especially; Cyclox can help you to do this. Use us effectively. 
 
https://www.scie.org.uk/co-production/what-how/ 
 
 

Danny Yee – Oxfordshire Liveable Streets  

 
Oxfordshire Liveable Streets welcomes the new crossings on Kennington 

Rd and Whites Lane and the creation of a foot-cycle track along 
that route.  But we have concerns about some of the design details. 

 
There are stretches where the track width is substandard or 
buffering from the road is absent or deficient.  In most places 

this is unavoidable given the physical constraints, but there are 
stretches where the road widens to more than 6 metres -- the extra 

space here should instead be used to provide a buffer between the 
road and the track. 
 

The plans attached to this item are very poor quality, and lack 
key vertical cross-sections.  In particular, it is impossible to 

see what is proposed where the track crosses side entries. 
 
The track should have clear priority over driveways and similar 

entries. It should be completely continuous and stay flat, with 
proper entrance kerbs used and give way lines for motor traffic 

marked as necessary.  The alternative treatment, where the track 
dips down and up, gives the wrong idea about priority -- and 
inconveniences hundreds or even thousands of people walking or 

cycling at the expense of what might be two or four car movements 
a day. 

 
This also holds for the entry to the Sports Centre.  There will 
be more traffic here, but slowing that traffic and making it 

clear that people walking and cycling have priority is essential. 
As well as foot-cycle track continuity being maintained, the entry 

should be squared off and the turning radii tightened; occasional 
longer vehicles can wait for a gap in the traffic and use both 
lanes to turn. 

 
 
Nadine Matough – Liveable Cities and Towns Coordinator 
 

I am here today to make an address in support of the proposed Radley, Kennington 

Road and Whites Lane proposed crossings and shared-use footway/cycle track. 
 

Page 5Page 21



I am speaking on behalf of Sustrans, the charity making it easier for people to walk 
and cycle, where Oxfordshire is a priority area with most of our work focused on 

Abingdon. 
 

This proposal is on a stretch of National Cycle Route 5 from church road junction 
and along Kennington RD to the Redrow development of which Sustrans are 
custodians of. This proposal ties in well with out network development plan to make 

more of the National Cycle Network traffic free and will contribute to making cycling 
between Oxford and Abingdon almost entirely traffic free. We support that this 

proposal will support and encourage those in the new developments or Redrow and 
Pye homes.  
 

The width proposed in the plans is an ok width for there to be minimal conflict 
occurring between users. There is no separation techniques proposed at the 

moment, but we believe this may need to change in future as the rate of modal shift 
hopefully increases and with greater growth to mean the path use would be greater 
and require some form of separation to enable users to interact in a manner that 

does not detract from quality of experience.  
 

The proposal fits with the desire lines of current users particularly cyclists and will 
allow for more protection on a 40mph road on both sides in addition to the current 
shared use path. In terms of inclusivity for vulnerable users and accessibility for all, 

especially being close to Radley schools, the proposal has good width for those in 
trikes, wheelchairs and prams etc, however the gradient upon approaching junctions 

and also the general camber of the path needs to be better considered. Crossing 
Church RD and the Sports Centre entrance should prioritise cyclists and pedestrians 
more, but all other proposed crossings clearly prioritise active travel and vulnerable 

users.  
 

There are some concerns over reduction of biodiversity due to the retraction of the 
verge in some places and also on the materials used which should consider porous 
material such as flexi pave that is easily maintainable and provides longevity.  

 
However, Sustrans are predominantly in support of this proposal especially if it is 

delivered in parallel with behaviour change initiatives that will increase the use of the 
route. 
 

  

Page 6Page 22



ITEM 10 – Long Hanborough - Regent Drive 
 

 
Cllr Sam Newman - Parish Councillor 

 

My name is Sam Newman.  My partner and I are residents of Regent Drive and I am 

a Parish Councillor. 

Having read all the documentation, I have questions that directly follow from 

statements made there by Bill Cotton.  These include numerous promises, with no 

clarity or commitment over who, or when, or how things will be done. 

Point 4 says there are “no implications in respect of equalities or inclusion” 

 How has this decision been arrived at?   

 Response 6 flags concerns about residents with health issues.  Response 7 
flags concerns about people providing services for the elderly.  And response 
25 flags these specific residents are elderly and receive regular visits, 

requiring parking.   

 Those three specific concerns relate to equality and inclusion – what 

consideration to provision for these needs was given (e.g. permit scheme for 
those providing care)? 

 

Point 15 says “it is recommended that the proposals are approved and then 

monitored with a view to reviewing at a later date, including the scope for introducing 

a residents permit parking scheme.”   

 What process will be put in place for monitoring the impact of the 

recommended measures on both badly parked cars and local residents?   

 How and when will views of residents be collected?   

 The original proposal made no mention of a residents parking scheme, yet 
there was considerable call for one.  When will scope for this be reviewed, as 
per the commitment in the recommendations, and a proposal be presented to 

residents? 

 

Point 16 effectively recommends a consultation on extending the double yellow lines 

at the entrance to the estate. 

 This recommendation was not in the original proposal but there was 
considerable call for it from residents.  It is not just an inconvenience, but a 

safety issue.  When will this proceed to consultation? 
 

As a resident and Parish Councillor, I am concerned there are lots of promises from 

OCC to do things in the future, but no clarity or commitment over who, or when, or 

how things will be done. 

  

Page 7Page 23



ITEM 12 – Abingdon – proposed 20mph and 30mph speed limits 
 

 
Robin Tucker - Co-Chair – CoHSAT and Chair - OCN 

The private motor vehicle has brought great convenience to people who can afford it, 

but only those directly affected stop to think about the social costs.  Five people 

every day are killed by motor vehicle collisions in the UK, and 50 seriously injured.  

This sits on top of a bigger, less visible toll from air pollution and physical inactivity.  

The benefits of using a private vehicle are to its user, but the damage affects all 

society, so reducing that damage is a basic act of fairness. 

Reducing speed limits is one way that a Transport Authority can reduce the damage 

caused by traffic, and we are pleased that Oxfordshire has established itself as a 

leader in England’s move to safer speed limits. Since I last spoke in favour of 

reduced speed limits, TfL has released results of its 20mph programme. Collisions 

resulting in death of serious injury are down 25%; collisions involving vulnerable road 

users are down 36%, and collisions involving people walking are down 63%. Lower 

speeds make people safer1. 

In addition, research by Future Transport shows that emissions from cars are lowest 

at 15 to 20mph, so lower limits are good for lungs as well as bodies2. We are keen to 

maintain a good bus service, but we’ve been reassured by measuring this and 

finding buses spend most of their time under 20, and the centre to ring road impact 

was from 1 to 27 seconds. 

We are very pleased that you have listened to consultation feedback, and the input 

from the Town Council which made the proposal, and put residents first by 

recommending the scheme consulted on. We want Abingdon to be a great town for 

people to get around in, but it can feel like it’s under siege from fast-moving metal 

boxes.  Lower limits will improve our air, make it safer for us to walk, wheel and 

cycle, and to live healthier, happier lives. 

We urge you to approve these speed limit reductions for Abingdon, and, although I 

won’t bore you with similar speeches, for the other communities that have requested 

them. 

 
 
Cllr Andy Foulsham - Mayor of Abingdon-on-Thames 2022-23 

                                                                 
1 https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/media/press-releases/2023/february/new-data-shows-significant-improvements-
in-road-safety-in-london-since-introduction-of-20mph-speed-limits  
2 https://futuretransport.info/urban-traffic-research/  

Page 8Page 24

https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/media/press-releases/2023/february/new-data-shows-significant-improvements-in-road-safety-in-london-since-introduction-of-20mph-speed-limits
https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/media/press-releases/2023/february/new-data-shows-significant-improvements-in-road-safety-in-london-since-introduction-of-20mph-speed-limits
https://futuretransport.info/urban-traffic-research/


When the County Council first raised the prospect of a 20mph zone in towns and 

villages across Oxfordshire, this was met with great support by Abingdon Town 

Council, and we were determined to make a thoroughly researched response to your 

call for proposals. A working group was convened under a very experienced Town 

Councillor and the result was one of the most thorough reports that I have had the 

pleasure to read. This was the basis of our submission. 

However, the Council was surprised and dismayed to see the scheme proposed by 

OCC officers last year to be different from that consulted upon, with major routes 

taken out of the scheme at the behest of the Oxford Bus Company, and it is this that 

I wish to address now, with particular reference to the route that I know best as it 

runs through my ward and is one that I travel on every work day, the section from the 

Vineyard up Oxford Road. A simple calculation shows that the impact of reducing a 

vehicle’s speed from 30mph to 20mph for this distance (approx 1.3 miles) should 

take an additional 1 minute 18 seconds – and that is without the impact of the 5 bus 

stops and 3 sets of traffic lights and a roundabout which would have the same effect 

whatever the speed limit.  The layover periods at terminus stops in Oxford and at the 

far end of each service are normally for quite enough time to absorb any slight 

increase in journey time. 

In no way am I “anti-bus”! I travel to work on the bus and have held an annual 

season ticket for many years, and know that delays are not due to speed restrictions 

but are far more likely the result of traffic congestion, accidents or the problems of 

recruiting drivers. 

For this reason, I urge you to approve the Abingdon scheme for 20mph within the 

ring road and 30mph along the ring road as originally proposed and put out for 

consultation. It will make the town a much better place for all road users, as 

explained in the Town Council submission, without detriment to bus users. 

 

Cllr Andy Foulsham 
Dunmore Ward, Abingdon TC & Abingdon Dunmore Ward, Vale of White Horse DC 
Mayor of Abingdon-on-Thames 2022-23 

 
 

ITEM 14 – Cumnor (including Farmoor): proposed 20mph and 30mph speed 

limits 

 

Giles Edward  

 

I am a resident in Farmoor within the current 40 mph speed limit area in the village.  
 
A proposal has been made to make a proportion of the residential area of Cumnor 

Road (B4017) in Farmoor a 20-mph limit.  

Page 9Page 25



Cumnor Rd is currently a 40 mph area from the B4044 junction, southwards for 
approximately 400m from the B4044 junction up to the southerly edge of the village. 

At this point the speed limit becomes National Speed Limit.  
 

The proposal for consultation makes the northern 200m of this road a 20 mph limit, 
but the remaining southern 200m will remain 40mph.  
 

My request is that the committee consider extending the 20 mph limit to cover the full 
400m of Cumnor Rd to the edge of the village, for three reasons:  

 The residential area of Farmoor Rd includes the full 400m length. There are a 
number of residences exiting onto Cumnor Rd: in Oakes lane, Valley Farm 
and Valley Farm Barns, as well as a small office complex at Farmoor Court.  

 The current proposal creates a complex speed limit regime in a 400m length 
of road. Starting at: national speed limit on Cumnor Rd (B4017) > to 40 mph > 

to 20 mph > to 30 mph on the B4044.  

 This southern part of Cumnor Rd in Farmoor already has difficulties with 

drivers using it to accelerate up to (and decelerate down from) the national 
speed limit while in the village 40 mph area, rather than outside it. The 
effectiveness of traffic calming through the village would be significantly 

improved by clearly signalling the boundary of the residential area through 
making all 400m of the Cumnor road inside the national speed limit boundary 

a 20 mph zone.  

 
Thank you for considering my points. 
 
 

Cllr Judy Roberts  

 

20 mph in Cumnor 

The objective of reducing the speed limit in the proposed areas is to improve road 

safety and encourage walking and cycling. There have been points raised by 

Thames Travel but my view is that these points are where there are frequent bus 

stops and the bus is rarely travelling at the current speed limit owing to the number 

of stops. 

On the Eynsham Road in the Dean Court area it is important to reduce speeds here 

as the proposed Community path would run along here. It is quite narrow at some 

places and buses frequently cross here so for cyclists to feel safe more care is 

needed in overtaking and at 20mph there would be less opportunity for overtaking. 

20 mph in Farmoor 

These cover residential areas and if the current proposals for 2 Solar Farms are 

approved, Cumnor Road South will become the access route for the construction of 

the farms and an electricity sub station. It will be very important that the HGV’s pass 

through this area slowly. 

30 mph on the B4044 

Page 10Page 26



The traffic along this section of the B4044 travels in  an unusual manner owing to the 

taking of the toll fee at Swinford Bridge. By the time it reaches this stretch of houses, 

there is a constant space between each vehicle. The County Council school bus has 

been removed for the local children which means they have to cross the traffic in the 

morning and the evening. The gaps are so close that children are tempted to cross 

when it isn’t really safe and reducing the speed limit would make the crossing so 

much safer. 

 
 
Tom Christophers – Parish Chair  
 

Dear Chair, 
 
I write to you on behalf of Cumnor Parish Council in support of Agenda Item 14 in 

general but would like to make specific mention of the reduction in speed proposal in 
Cumnor village from 30mph to 20mph. 

 
We as a council note the overwhelming support for the 20mph Cumnor proposal 
from the online consultation. 74% in support confirms what we as a parish council 

have been hearing from our community for a number of years now and also reflects 
the views and support from our District and County Councillors (Cllrs Jenner, 

Roberts and Ash). 
 
We were a little concerned to see the recommendation to defer a decision pending 

further discussions to assess the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the 
needs of all parties from the Corporate Director, Environment and Place. 

 
We say this as the only real objection as such comes from Thames Travel regarding 
the stretch of road running Abingdon Road (at the A420 exit / entry points), Glebe 

Road and Oxford Road before the A420 flyover bridge. 
 

To quote from the supporting papers, the objection is around: 
 
"It is important that buses are able to make progress where it is safe for them to do 

so. Unlike a private motorist that may typically go along the road once in each 
direction in a day, buses operate along the above roads up to 67 times a day in each 

direction and so the impact is that much greater. Slowing journeys makes bus 
services less attractive to passengers and would serve to encourage negative modal 
shift from public transport to private motor vehicles, which is contrary to the council's 

policies. Ultimately if journey times become too great, either, extra bus and driver 
resource needs to be added to maintain the same level of service (i.e. increased cost 

for no increased revenue) or alternatively timetables need to be trimmed so that they 
can be operated with the existing resource (i.e. reduced revenue from the same 
operating cost). This could lead to services becoming financially unsustainable and 

so could lead to service reductions." 
 

and from the Corporate Director, Environment and Place that the proposal should:  
 
"...meet the needs of the bus operator and pose no threat to the operational viability 

of services."  

Page 11Page 27



I think what has been missed here is that this stretch of road only corresponds to 0.3 
miles (or 0.4 miles for one bus route from Besselsleigh). 

 
The Abingdon Road stretch from A420 slip road entry and exit to the Glebe flyover 

bridge is 0.4 miles coming off the A420 from Rockley; and, 0.3 miles from the flyover 
to the exit to the A420 heading to Oxford (and vice versa). Both these journeys for 
the S9 and 33 buses going to and from Oxford at the current 30mph in perfect 

driving conditions with no stopping for passengers would take: 
 

S9 coming from Rockley to Oxford - 48 seconds 
S9 going to Besselsleigh from Oxford - 36 seconds 
33 going to Oxford from Wootton - 36 seconds 

33 going to Wootton from Oxford - 36 seconds 
 

By moving to 20mph the times would change to: 
 
S9 coming from Rockley to Oxford - 72 seconds (an increase of 24 seconds) 

S9 going to Besselsleigh from Oxford - 54 seconds (an increase of 18 seconds) 
33 going to Oxford from Wootton - 54 seconds (an increase of 18 seconds) 

33 going to Wootton from Oxford - 54 seconds (an increase of 18 seconds) 
 
I'm not sure the brevity of the distance was taken into account by either bus 

company or Corporate Director and thus the implication that services would become 
potentially unviable may have been wrongly arrived at. 

 
We don’t believe the concerns are valid when put against a bus journey increase of 
18 seconds and 24 seconds respectively across the entirety of each bus journey 

from their starting and end points in Wantage, Oxford and Wallingford that are in 
total 111 minutes (Oxford - Wallingford and Wallingford - Oxford) and 52 minutes 

(Oxford - Wantage and Wantage to Oxford). 
 
We hope that provides better clarity and that we can highlight the oddity of seeking 

to defer (and potentially stop) a motion to reduce speed for safety and environmental 
reasons over 18 to 24 second increases in bus routes that represent in reality 0.3% 

of the total journey time for the 33 bus and 0.8% of the total journey time for the S9 
bus. 
 

This is something that our community has been fighting for and lobbying us (and our 
District and County Councillors) to support, for a good while. The prospect that it 

might be pushed back would be a difficult message to send back and may cause a 
loss in faith in democratic processes from the constituents who we all serve. 
 

Yours sincerely 
 

Tom Christophers 
Parish Chair 
 

 
 

ITEM 15 - Faringdon- proposed 20mph speed limit 

Page 12Page 28



 
 
Cllr Bethia Thomas  

 

I am writing to you as I am aware that the decision to lower the speed limit in 
Faringdon is coming before you at your delegated decisions meeting on the 23rd of 
February. 

 
I would like to express my full support for the scheme. The small area that has 

already dropped to 20MPH under a separate scheme has already brought benefits to 
the town centre, and I believe Faringdon Town Council approve of the extension of 
the reduction, and I have copied in Sally Thurston, Town Clerk for her information. 

 
 
 

ITEM 18 – Kingston Lisle and Fawler – proposed 20mph speed limit 
 

 
Cllr Johnnie Graham – Parish Councillor, Kingston Lisle and Fawler Parish 

Council  

 
The Kingston Lisle & Fawler Parish Council (PC) strongly supports the proposal 

(Ref: CM/12.6.269) to introduce a 20mph limit to Kingston Lisle and Fawler.  
 

There are two points, however, where we disagree with the final recommendation by 
the Corporate Director, Environment and Place.  
 

1. We strongly request that the 20mph limit covers the 120m gap between the 

Kingston Lisle (KL) and Fawler village signs.  

a. Near the KL village sign, pedestrians have to cross the road at a blind 
corner to continue on a well-used pavement between the villages, and 

to access a popular footpath at that point. Allowing vehicles to speed 
up between the two village signs will not enhance, but rather reduce, 

safety.  

b. We feel that safety considerations should over-ride other policy 

principles in this particular instance, because:  

i. The 120m gap can barely be described as a “wholly rural area”.  

ii. The requirement to “make each village distinct” is hardly 
relevant in this case as the two villages share the same Parish 

Council, pub, village hall, cemetery and children’s playground, 

so are close to being one entity.  

2. The second point of disagreement with the Director’s recommendation 
concerns the request to have a 30mph buffer zone on the road out of KL 

towards Baulking.  

a. Firstly, we do recognise that this request is not connected with slowing 

down traffic before reaching the 20mph sign on entering the village.  

Page 13Page 29



b. Rather, it is about correcting a dangerous situation on this downhill 
600m stretch of road, at an opportune time when speed limits are 

changing and new signs are being erected.  

c. KL has a thriving racehorse training industry (c.80 horses and 
supporting many equine related local businesses) and other 
recreational horse riders. They use this road to access gallops adjacent 

to the foot of this hill and also to ride onwards to Baulking. 

d. Because of a sharp bend and a hedge, vehicle drivers, speeding up 

after leaving the village, can be legitimately travelling at 60mph to 
within 10-15m of a horse and rider before seeing it, setting up a very 

dangerous situation.  

e. This stretch of road is also well used by cyclists.  

 

The Kingston Lisle and Fawler Parish Council respectfully request, in light of the 
above information and the safety concerns outlined, that the Cabinet Member for 
Highway Management decides that:  

 The new 20mph limit is continued along the 120m gap between Kingston Lisle 
and Fawler.  

 A 30mph limit buffer zone is implemented on the 600m stretch of road from 
the North of Kingston Lisle towards Baulking.  

 

 
Cllr Yvonne Constance  

 
I write as County Councillor for the Shrivenham Division, which includes the Parish 
of Kingston Lisle & Fawler, to support the submission of the Parish Council emailed 

today 20 February 2023 by Cllr Johnnie Graham.   I serve also on the Kingston lisle 
Parish Council, so am fully aware of their awareness of a better decision to change 

to 20 mph for the whole distance from KL to Fawler. 
 
As 20mph speed limit is to be installed in the village, the Parish Council has applied 

for that limit to be extended 120m from the Kingston Lisle signs to meet the Fawler 
signs down the hill. 

 
Though officers have responded that this is ‘wholly rural’ and does not qualify, it is 
important to note that the hamlet of Fawler is part of the Parish and part of life in the 

village, and there is no need to ‘keep both villages distinct’ as they are one Parrish 
and function as one village, sharing the pub, the church, the playground and the 

village hall. 
There is no point in permitting a different speed limit for 120 m.   It will require 
signage which will clutter the space and gain nothing in terms of journey time or 

lessen motorists tendency to ignore.    The new 20 mph speed limit should run from 
KL to and through Fawler. 

 
The Parish Council makes the relevant point that there is a pedestrian pavement 
between the villages which requires walkers to cross the road near the KL sign, 

Page 14Page 30



which is on a blind corner.   It will not increase safety if motorists are encouraged to 
speed up to 30mph ( or more) at this point. 

 
It makes sense and reduces unnecessary signage to install 20 mph from Kl to 

Fawler. 
 
The separate concern about reducing the approach speed on the western side of the 

village to 30 mph is as valid and important,  but I suspect would require a separate 
consideration which the KLPC will surely undertake.   I will support that application 

as well. 
 
Cllr Yvonne Constance 

 
 

 
ITEM 20 – North Hinksey – proposed 20mph speed limit 

 

Cllr Alistair Bastin – North Hinksey Parish Council, Chair of the Environment 
and Wellbeing Committee  

 

Good [morning/afternoon], Cllr Gant. 
 

I'm Cllr Alistair Bastin, of North Hinksey Parish Council. 
 

I chair the Environment and Wellbeing Committee. 
 
Thank you for having me. 

 
Two key issues in our Committee's remit are air quality, and road safety. 

 
The proposal before you today will improve both air quality and road safety within the 
parish at minimal cost. 

 
Your recent consultation, also before you today, revealed a substantial majority of 

public support. 
 
And the Annual Parish Meeting of North Hinksey Parish in March 2021, which was 

held online with almost 100 attendees, considered the question "Should North 
Hinksey Parish be a 20mph zone?" The poll taken at that meeting showed over 90% 

of attendees in favour of the proposition. 
 
Now speaking personally, one day I'd like to see the whole parish as a 20mph zone. 

 
But I accept that West Way is a wide thoroughfare, so the proposals before you 

make a good and reasonable compromise. 
 
Therefore I actively encourage you to accept the officers' 

recommendations, and approve the proposals as advertised. 
 

Thank you. 

Page 15Page 31



 
 
Cllr Judy Roberts  
 

This consultation had a 66% support from the consultation which was reflected in the 

70% support it received in a Parish vote a few years before. The officer’s 

recommend approval and I agree with them. Many of my residents that live upon the 

areas of Cumnor Hill constantly complain that people speed downhill through these 

residential areas. Reducing the speed limit to 20 will make people more aware of the 

speeds their vehicles are achieving whilst progressing down the hillside. 

 

 

ITEM 23 - South Leigh - proposed 20mph Speed limit 

 
Dick Pears - South Leigh and High Cogges Parish Council 

 

Dear Cllr Gant, 

Please treat this as the written submission for Thursday's meeting from  

South Leigh and High Cogges Parish Council in support of the provision  

of the 20mph scheme within the parish of South Leigh and High Cogges. 

The three roads in and out of the village are all single track twisting  

roads with no pavements or cycle lanes. 

 

The Parish Council has read the report (Agenda Item 23 page 581) and the  

summary of objections and we agree with the officers that the scheme  

should be implemented to "improve road safety and encourage greater use  

of active Travel by reducing speeds" 

 

Regards 

Dick Pears 

 

 

Page 16Page 32



 

Divisions Affected – Witney South & Central, Witney North & East, 
Witney West & Bampton, Hanborough & Minster Lovell, Eynsham, 
Burford & Carterton North. 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT 

23 MARCH 2023 
 

WITNEY LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
 

Report by Corporate Director of Environment and Place  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve the Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP). 

 

Executive Summary 

 

2. A strategic Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan has been produced 
for Witney (see Annex A) in order to fulfil the County Council’s adopted Local 

Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP) Policy 3a, which states that the County 
Council will “[develop] Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) 
for all main urban settlements (over 10,000 inhabitants) across the county by 

2025, according to national guidance and best practice with the aim of 
increasing walking and cycling activity.” 
 

3. The LCWIP identifies a network of walking and cycling routes in and around 
Witney (including potential future routes) and sets out high level proposals for 

improvements to the walking and cycling infrastructure which makes up this 
network. These infrastructure improvements are intended for development over 

a ten year period to 2033 and will help to enable modal shift from private vehicle 
use to active and sustainable modes of travel.  
 

4. Adopting the Witney LCWIP will help to provide local policy backing to maximise 
the County Council’s ability to secure funding for development and delivery of 

walking and cycling infrastructure in the Witney area. Funding is likely to come 
from central government and through planning obligations from development 
sites within Witney and the surrounding villages.  

Introduction 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



5. Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) are a strategic 
approach to identifying cycling and walking improvements required at the local 
level. They enable a long-term approach to developing local cycling and walking 

networks, ideally over a 10 year period, and form a vital part of the 
Government’s strategy to increase the number of trips made on foot or by cycle.  

 
6. The Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan is the first LCWIP 

plan for the West Oxfordshire district area to be developed. Central Government 

are encouraging Local Authorities to adopt LCWIPs to assist in: 

(a) demonstrating a prioritised list of active travel infrastructure schemes for 

an area 

(b) demonstrating where funding is required, and the benefits investment will 
bring  

(c) meeting targets to increase active travel which may also benefit health 
inequalities, air quality and climate change objectives 

(d) guide developers and developer funding to invest in active travel 
measures. 

 

Local Policy 

7. Production of the Witney plan delivers Local Transport and Connectivity Plan 

Policy 3, which states: 
 

We will:  

(a) Develop Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) for all 
main urban settlements (over 10,000 inhabitants) across the county by 

2025, according to national guidance and best practice with the aim of 
increasing walking and cycling activity.  

(b) Implement local cycling and walking networks in line with LCWIP 

proposals as funding opportunities arise to achieve a step change in the 
use of cycling and walking in line with local and national targets.  

(c) Support rural areas and smaller settlements to develop their own walking 
and cycling plans.  

 

8. The approved LCWIP will inform the forthcoming Witney Area Travel Plan, as 
one of the area travel plans being developed to show how LTCP policy is to be 

delivered at the local level.  
 
9. Once schemes in the LCWIP begin being delivered this will contribute to the 

following LTCP targets: 
 

By 2030 our targets are to: 
 • Replace or remove 1 out of every 4 current car trips in Oxfordshire 
 • Increase the number of cycle trips in Oxfordshire from 600,000 to 1 

million cycle trips per week  
• Reduce road fatalities or life changing injuries by 50%  

 

Page 34



By 2040 our targets are to:  
• Deliver a net-zero transport network  
• Replace or remove an additional 1 out of 3 car trips in Oxfordshire  

 
By 2050 our targets are to:  

• Deliver a transport network that contributes to a climate positive future  
• Have zero, or as close as possible, road fatalities or life-changing 
injuries. 

 

Corporate Policies and Priorities 

 
10. Of the 9 priorities in the Oxfordshire Strategic Plan 2022-2025 the LCWIP 

directly supports priority 5 and contributes to priorities 1, 2, 3, 6, 7. The 9 

priorities are: 

1. Put action to address the climate emergency at the heart of our work. 
2. Tackle inequalities in Oxfordshire. 

3. Prioritise the health and wellbeing of residents. 
4. Support carers and the social care system. 
5. Invest in an inclusive, integrated and sustainable transport network. 

6. Preserve and improve access to nature and green spaces. 
7. Create opportunities for children and young people to reach their full 

potential. 
8. Play our part in a vibrant and participatory local democracy. 
9. Work with local businesses and partners for environmental, economic 

and social benefit. 

Financial Implications 

 

11. The LCWIP will help the County Council to negotiate with developers for 
funding and direct delivery of infrastructure for active travel. It will also help 

with preparation of bids for government funding, as demonstrated by the 
recent Active Travel Fund bid processes.  
 

12. Development of any new schemes proposed in the LCWIP (except those to be 
directly delivered by developers) will need to be considered through the 

County Council’s capital programme governance and budget setting process 
as funding becomes available.  
 

13. Any new cycling and walking infrastructure will have revenue implications due 
to pressures on staff resources, which will be either funded within current base 

budgets or bid for through Active Travel Fund (or similar) bids. Ongoing 
maintenance for each scheme would be identified during the early stages of 
that scheme. Where possible, commuted sums to fund ongoing maintenance 

of new infrastructure related to new developments would also be identified and 
secured to minimise the revenue impact of the new infrastructure. Any 

revenue pressure after this would be considered as part of the Council’s 
Budget Strategy process.  

 

Page 35



Comments checked by: Rob Finlayson 
 
Rob Finlayson, Finance Business Partner rob.finlayson@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Legal Implications 

 
14. The LCWIP is a requirement of the County Council’s adopted Local Transport 

and Connectivity Plan, which is a statutory document, required under the 

Transport Act 2000. Delivering the LCWIP is likely to require the County 
Council to exercise its powers to make traffic orders to regulate traffic in the 

Witney area. The appropriate statutory consultation will take place as and 
when any orders are promoted, together with compliance with any relevant 
statutory duty applicable at the time. 
 

Comments checked by: Jennifer Crouch 

 
Jennifer Crouch, Principal Solicitor (Environment Team, Legal) 

Jennifer.Crouch@Oxfordshire.gov.uk  
 

Staff Implications 

 
15. Individual schemes within the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan will 

require development and delivery which will only take place once capital funding 
is awarded. Staff funded via the annual revenue budgets will be involved in 
progressing funding bids and staffing implications for scheme development and 

delivery will be included in the capital bid/award.  
 

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 
16. An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) is available in Annex B.  

 
17. Development and implementation of LCWIPs for all the main urban settlements 

in Oxfordshire (LTCP Policy 3a) is one of Oxfordshire County Council's 
commitments to move towards the vision set out in the LTCP for "an inclusive 

and safe net-zero Oxfordshire transport system that enables all parts of the 
county to thrive".1 
 

18. Whilst no negative equalities impacts have been identified which could arise as 
a direct result of approving the Witney LCWIP, there is a significant opportunity 

to tackle inequality. 
 

                                                 
1 Oxfordshire County Council, Local Transport and Connectivity Plan, July 2022, p5, available at: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-
oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf 

 

Page 36

mailto:Jennifer.Crouch@Oxfordshire.gov.uk
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf


19. Investment in cycling and walking measures improves travel choice and 
encourages active, healthy lifestyles. Once implemented, the Local Cycling and 
Walking Infrastructure Plan will make a positive contribution to improving 

connectivity throughout the Witney area by improving access to cycling and 
walking infrastructure for all socio-economic groups and those with protected 

characteristics. Having the right infrastructure for cycling and walking in the right 
places, will enable greater take up of active travel and could help to reduce 
inequalities in health. Improved cycle and walking routes will help accessibility 

between the more deprived areas in Witney and the rest of the town. 
 

20. All individual highways schemes may result in unintended negative equalities 
impacts. This risk will be considered in detail on a scheme-by-scheme basis 
(using scheme-specific EIAs as appropriate) when the individual schemes 

promoted in the LCWIP are developed. 
 

Sustainability Implications 

 
21. Development and implementation of LCWIPs for all the main urban settlements 

in Oxfordshire (LTCP Policy 3a) is one of Oxfordshire County Council's 
commitments to move towards the vision set out in the LTCP for "an inclusive 

and safe net-zero Oxfordshire transport system that enables all parts of the 
county to thrive". 

 
22. A Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) is available in Annex C. The CIA for the 

plan is overwhelmingly positive, recognising the significant potential for 

improvements across the following climate impact categories:  
 

a) Transport and Connectivity (by supporting a shift to active travel)  

b) Buildings (by promoting sustainable development)  
c) Procurement and Investment (by investing in climate action)  

d) People and Organization (by driving behaviour change with enabling 
infrastructure) 

e) Just Transition (by promoting health and wellbeing through active travel, 

promoting engagement and coproduction, and reducing inequality). 
 

Risk Management 

 
23. No significant risks have been identified which will arise as a direct result of 

approving the LCWIP.  
 

24. Risks of negative side effects associated with individual schemes which are 
promoted in the LCWIP may arise in future as and when those schemes are 
funded and progressed.  

 
25. These scheme-specific risks will be identified in the relevant scheme’s risk 

register during the early stages of that scheme’s development, in order to 
ensure that an informed decision can be made on each scheme.  
 

Page 37



26. There are several risks associated with a decision not to approve the LCWIP:  
 
(a) Risk of failure to achieve the goal set out in LTCP Policy 3a due both to 

the resulting delay to the Witney LCWIP programme and to the potential 
knock-on delays to the development of other LCWIPs  

(b) Risk of failure to secure future funding for active travel infrastructure in 
the Witney area from central government (due to the Department for 
Transport and Active Travel England’s stated preferences for funding 

schemes which are identified in LCWIPs)  
(c) Risk of failure to secure adequate provision of active travel infrastructure 

from local developments (for which the LCWIP provides additional local 
policy backing), notably including the nearby local plan allocations at: 
(1) East Witney Strategic Development Area (450 dwellings allocated 

in the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 20312) 
(2) North Witney Strategic Development Area (1400 dwellings 

allocated in the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 20313).  
 

Consultation and Engagement 

 
27. The Witney LCWIP was developed with the guidance of a Steering Group which 

was formed from Local councillors from County, District and Town councils, 
local interest groups in walking and cycling, and key local stakeholder 
organisations.  

 
28. The role of the steering group was to: 

(a) Work with OCC officers with the tasks and stages of developing the 
Witney LCWIP, including reviewing completed tasks and provide 
refinement where necessary throughout the development of the LCWIP 

(b) Provide local and/or specialist knowledge in the development of the 
Witney LCWIP 

(c) Consider, and represent, the needs of all walking and cycling users in 
development of the Witney LCWIP. 

 

29. The Draft Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan was consulted 
on from 5th December 2022 to 20th January 2023. A consultation report is 
available in Annex D.  

 
30. A total of 67 people completed the online questionnaire and a further 9 

responded in writing (by email), these were mainly from organisations.   
 

31. Of those who completed the questionnaire 56% thought the proposed cycling 
improvements were ‘ambitious’ or ‘adequate’ and 64% thought the proposed 
walking improvements were ‘ambitious’ or ‘adequate’.  

 
32. The plan is supported by West Oxfordshire District Council, welcomed by 

Witney Town Council, and Windrush Bike Project is ‘delighted’ Witney will have 

                                                 
2 https://westoxon.gov.uk/media/feyjmpen/local -plan.pdf 
3 https://westoxon.gov.uk/media/feyjmpen/local -plan.pdf 

Page 38

https://westoxon.gov.uk/media/feyjmpen/local-plan.pdf
https://westoxon.gov.uk/media/feyjmpen/local-plan.pdf


an LCWIP. The North Witney Strategic Development Area Consortium is in 
agreement with an approach that seeks to prioritise sustainable modes and in 
this regard is in approval to the vision and general approach as put forward 

within the LCWIP. 
 

33. A number of detailed comments were received. The Witney LCWIP 
Consultation Report (Annex D) responds to many of these and the LCWIP has 
been amended, where possible, to reflect the comments received to ensure the 

LCWIP meets the needs of local residents. The changes include an update to 
the Vision, clarity over a number of proposals, and changes to the figures where 

proposals were incorrectly shown.  
 

34. A further set of suggestions has been taken on board for consideration 

through the LCWIP review process and these are listed in the LCWIP. These 
are suggestions which require substantial further investigation and auditing 

before inclusion in the LCWIP list of prioritised improvements. 
 
 
Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director of Environment and Place 

 
Annex: Annex A. Witney LCWIP  
 Annex B. Equalities Impact Assessment 

 Annex C. Climate Impact Assessment 
 Annex D. Witney LCWIP Consultation Report 
 

Background papers: Nil   
 

Other Documents: Nil  
 
Contact Officer: Odele Parsons, Senior Transport Planner, 

odele.parsons@oxfordshire.gov.uk  
 

March 2023  
 

Page 39

mailto:odele.parsons@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Witney Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan 

 
March 2023 

 
 

 
Enquiries: activetravelcherwellandwest@Oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

            

Page 41



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

2 

 

Contents 

Figures ................................................................................................................................. 4 

Tables .................................................................................................................................. 6 

Contents of Appendices ....................................................................................................... 7 

Acknowledgements .............................................................................................................. 8 

Executive summary ............................................................................................................. 9 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................. 11 

1.1. What is the Witney LCWIP? ................................................................................. 11 

1.2. Developing the Witney LCWIP ............................................................................. 11 

1.3. Why are cycling and walking important?    ............................................................ 13 

1.4. Why is the LCWIP important for Witney now? ...................................................... 14 

1.5. Vision .................................................................................................................... 14 

1.6. Targets ................................................................................................................. 15 

2. Background ................................................................................................................. 16 

2.1. Local geography ................................................................................................... 16 

2.2. LCWIP study area ................................................................................................. 16 

2.3. Policy context........................................................................................................ 19 

2.4. Demographics....................................................................................................... 20 

2.5. Environment.......................................................................................................... 20 

2.6. Travel and transport  ............................................................................................. 21 

3. Network plan for cycling .............................................................................................. 23 

3.1. Methodology ......................................................................................................... 23 

3.2. Proposed cycling improvements ........................................................................... 29 

3.3. Complementary measures .................................................................................... 45 

4. Network Map for Walking ............................................................................................ 47 

4.1. Methodology ......................................................................................................... 47 

4.2. Proposed walking improvements .......................................................................... 52 

4.3. Complementary measures .................................................................................... 61 

5. Prioritisation of improvements and Packaging of improvements ................................. 63 

5.1. Prioritisation of improvements............................................................................... 63 

5.2. Packages of Improvements .................................................................................. 86 

5.3. Additional Schemes for Evaluation ....................................................................... 89 

5.4. Appraisal ............................................................................................................... 90 

6. Integration and Application .......................................................................................... 91 

6.1. Embedding the Witney LCWIP ............................................................................. 91 

Page 42



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

3 

 

6.2. Reviewing the Witney LCWIP ............................................................................... 93 

7. Glossary ...................................................................................................................... 95 

 

  

Page 43



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

4 

 

Figures 

Figure 1: Witney LCWIP geographic scope 18 

Figure 2: Cycle desire line classification – Witney and surrounding areas 24 

Figure 3: Cycle desire line classification – Witney 25 

Figure 4: 5km and 10km cycling catchments 26 

Figure 5: Types of improvements 29 

Figure 6: Full cycling network (existing and proposed) - Witney 31 

Figure 7: Full cycling network (existing and proposed) – Witney and surrounding areas 32 

Figure 8: Proposed cycling improvements - Witney 33 

Figure 9: Proposed cycling improvements - South 34 

Figure 10: Proposed cycling improvements - East 35 

Figure 11: Proposed cycling improvements - North 36 

Figure 12: Proposed cycling improvements - West 37 

Figure 13: Roundabout with protected space for cycling at Fiveways Roundabout 43 

Figure 14: Woodstock Road segregated cycle track 44 

Figure 15: 2km walking catchment 47 

Figure 16: Walking network map with route hierarchy 50 

Figure 17: Types of walking improvements 52 

Figure 18: Proposed walking improvements - Witney 53 

Figure 19: Proposed walking improvements – West Witney 54 

Figure 20: Proposed walking improvements – East Witney 55 

Figure 21: Cost adjusted delivery timescales 66 

Figure 22: Proposed improvements by short, medium and long term delivery timescale - 
Witney 84 

Figure 23: Proposed improvements by short, medium and long term delivery timescale – 
Witney and surrounding area 85 

Page 44

https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401744
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401745
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401747
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401749
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401750
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401751
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401752
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401753
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401754
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401755
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401756
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401757
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401758
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401761
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401762
https://oxfordshirecountycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/OG-WitneyLCWIP/Shared%20Documents/General/Draft%20LCWIP/LCWIP%20and%20associated%20documents/Witney%20LCWIP%20rev.2..docx#_Toc128401763


Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

5 

 

Figure 24: Delivery packages 86 

Figure 25: East Witney delivery packages 87 

Figure 26: West Witney delivery packages 88 

Figure 27: Linkages between LTCP and Witney LCWIP 91 

 

 

 

Page 45



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

6 

 

Tables 

Table 1: Key policies, strategies, and guidance ................................................................ 19 

Table 2: List of all proposed cycling improvements ........................................................... 38 

Table 3: List of all proposed walking improvements .......................................................... 56 

Table 4: Prioritisation criteria ............................................................................................. 64 

Table 5: Prioritised improvements in ranked order ............................................................ 67 

Table 6: Total cost of packages ........................................................................................ 89 

Table 7: Proposed improvements with funding secured .................................................... 92 

 

 

Page 46



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

7 

 

Contents of Appendices 

Appendix A: Background information 

1. Policy context detail 

2. Deprivation  

3. Health 

4. Conservation area  

5. Air Quality Management Area 

6. Flood risk  

7. Current travel patterns 

8. Traffic flows 

9. Collision statistics  

10. Propensity to Cycle Tool 

11. Trip generators  

12. Future development and transport schemes 

13. Let’s Talk consultation findings  

 

Appendix B: Audit output report    

Appendix C: Scheme drawings  

Appendix D: Detailed package table 

Appendix E: Witney Cycle Parking Report 2023 

 

 

 

Page 47



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

8 

 

Acknowledgements 

Special thanks go to all those who have been involved in developing the plan, in particular 
the volunteers who sit on the Steering Group. Your local knowledge and dedication to 
developing the plan has been invaluable. Special thanks also go to those who gave up their 
time to participate in the walking and cycling audits. These were long days, but your help in 
assessing the whole Witney area by foot and bike has led to a well-informed Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plan.  
 

Page 48



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

9 

 

Executive summary 

The climate emergency, health inequalities and economic uncertainty are some of the key 
challenges facing us. National and local policy have set ambitious targets to reduce pollution 
levels and create healthier and happier communities - cycling and walking are important in 
facilitating this.  
 
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) provide a prioritised list of 
improvements to the cycling and walking experience of a place, which support more people 
to cycle and walk (including wheeled users) for short journeys or as part of longer journeys. 
LCWIPs are a policy requirement as established in Oxfordshire’s Local Transport and 
Connectivity Plan (LTCP) and supporting Active Travel Strategy. LCWIPs are also an 
important component of the Area Travel Plans, which apply policies in LTCP locally. In 
addition, the Witney LCWIP will help to inform West Oxfordshire District Council’s Local Plan 
update to 2041.  
 
The Witney LCWIP was developed in collaboration with stakeholders to ensure local views 
are reflected. Department for Transport (DfT) technical guidance for producing LCWIPs, and 
national and local policies were also followed.  
 
The vision is that ‘by 2041, Witney will have safe, convenient, and well-connected walking 
(including wheeling) and cycling networks that are accessible for people of all abilities, ages 
and backgrounds. These networks will connect people to where they want to go, including 
excellent routes to access public transport. 

Walking and cycling will become the everyday choice for short journeys or as part of longer 
journeys combined with using public transport in Witney and beyond. A culture of walking 
and cycling will be achieved. This will create a thriving, healthy, inclusive and climate 
sensitive community, where improvements preserve and enhance the natural and historic 
environment and make Witney a great place to live, work and visit.’ 
 
This LCWIP includes a network of cycling routes (categorised as primary, secondary, and 
local) and a network of walking routes (categorised as prestige/primary, secondary, link 
footways, and local access footways) in Witney. The existing cycling and walking provision 
across these networks have been audited to determine what improvements are needed to 
make cycling and walking a more coherent, direct, safe, limited gradient and comfortable 
experience for everyone.  
 
A prioritised list of improvements has been produced following the audit process and based 
on a range of factors, including whether road safety will be improved and the environmental 
impact. Improvements prioritised highly include provision of crossings, segregated cycle 
tracks, lighting, and footway widening. In addition, major schemes, such as the provision of 
protected space for cycling at Fiveways Roundabout, have been proposed. Alongside this, 
most individual improvements have been grouped into eleven packages to create cycling 
and walking routes, including a package of 8 improvements along Woodstock Road. 
 

Page 49



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

10 

 

The prioritised list of improvements will guide the funding that is sought by Oxfordshire 
County Council (OCC) and where funding is spent, so that local needs are met. Funding 
comes from a variety of sources, including developer contributions and central government 
bids. 
 
The Witney LCWIP will be reviewed approximately every two years to ensure that it remains 
aligned with policy and reflects local needs. The level of change in cycling and walking 
numbers will be monitored as part of this process, to understand the effectiveness of the 
LCWIP and the progress that is being made in achieving the vision for cycling and walking 
in Witney. Modifications to the Witney LCWIP will be made if necessary.  

Page 50



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

11 

 

1. Introduction  

This chapter will explain what the Witney LCWIP is and why cycling and walking are 
important. The vision for cycling and walking in Witney and targets to measure the success 
of this are also set out.   

1.1. What is the Witney LCWIP? 

The Witney LCWIP is an evidence-based plan for improving the cycling and walking 
experience in Witney and to surrounding towns and villages for everyone. This LCWIP 
includes a list of prioritised improvements. When implemented, these improvements will 
make it easier for people to choose cycling (by all bike types) and walking (including wheeled 
users such as those who use wheelchairs, mobility scooters and pushchairs) for all or part 
of their journeys in the area. This is an evolving plan that will guide spending of future 
funding. 

1.2. Developing the Witney LCWIP 

This plan has been developed in consultation with local stakeholders to reflect local views. 
DfT technical guidance on producing LCWIPs has also been followed.1 This approach 
ensures this LCWIP aligns with national and local ambitions, as set out in DfT’s Gear 
Change vision document and Oxfordshire’s LTCP (2022).2, 3 These aim to address the 
climate emergency and transform our streets by making cycling and walking the natural 
choice for short journeys or as part of longer journeys. 

 

 

 

 

1 Department for Transport, Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans Technical Guidance for Local 
Authorities, 2017, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908535/cy
cling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance-document.pdf  

2 Department for Transport, Gear Change, A bold vision for cycling and walking, 2020, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/g
ear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf  

3 Oxfordshire County Council Local Transport and Connectivity Plan 2022 – 2050, 2022, 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-
oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf  

Page 51

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908535/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance-document.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908535/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance-document.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf


Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

12 

 

DfT guidance  

There are six stages to the development of an LCWIP, as set out by DfT in their technical 
guidance for writing LCWIPs.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Steering group 

The Witney LCWIP was produced in collaboration with local stakeholders, including: 

• OCC councillors for the Witney area  

• West Oxfordshire District Council (WODC) officers 

• Witney Town Council councillors 

• Windrush Bike Project  

• Sustrans 

A steering group was formed with local stakeholders and meetings took place approximately 
every six weeks. Key aspects of the project, such as the geographic scope and network 
mapping, were discussed. The purpose of the steering group was to ensue local concerns 
and ideas are reflected in the LCWIP. 

 

 

4 Department for Transport (see notation 1) 

1. Determining Scope - including deciding the geographic extent and 
producing a stakeholder engagement plan 

2. Gathering information - including reviewing the demographics, 
environment, and existing travel patterns of the area   

3. Network plan for cycling – identifying where people travel, creating 
a network of cycling routes and suggesting improvements    

4. Network plan for walking – identifying where people travel, creating 
a network of walking routes and suggesting improvements    

5. Prioritising improvements – deciding which improvements to 
deliver first when funding becomes available    

6. Integration and application – outlining how the LCWIP will be 
applied to and included in policies and strategies     

Page 52



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

13 

 

Public engagement  

An online public engagement activity took place between November 2021 – January 2022, 
titled ‘Suggest walking and cycling improvements in Witney’. This asked people to identify 
where improvements are needed in Witney to make cycling and walking safer and more 
accessible, and what these improvements should be. Respondents could mark their 
thoughts on a map and leave comments. Responses were analysed and included in the 
network auditing stage. Details of the analysis can be found in Appendix A, section 13. 

Consultant support 

Consultants Pell Frischmann supported the development of this LCWIP and led on stages 
3-5 detailed above. 

1.3. Why are cycling and walking important? 5, 6, 7  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 Gear Change, A bold vision for cycling and walking, Department for Transport, 2020 

6 Oxfordshire County Council Healthy Place Making - https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/social-and-
health-care/public-health-and-wellbeing/healthy-place-shaping  

7 Sustrans, Walking, cycling and e-biking can help to mitigate climate change, 2021, 
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/our-blog/opinion/2021/february/walking-cycling-and-e-biking-can-help-to-
mitigate-climate-
change#:~:text=What%20does%20the%20study%20tell,per%20capita%20CO2%20emissions. 

Health: Cycling and walking can improve physical and mental health and 
reduce the likelihood of many illnesses and disabilities. Physical inactivity 
results in 1 in 6 deaths in the UK for example (DfT, 2020). 

 
Environment: Cycling and walking rather than travelling by car help to 
reduce carbon emissions. It has been found that those who cycle emit 84% 
less CO2 emissions from daily travel compared to those who do not cycle. 
This can improve air quality, which can prevent 8,300 premature deaths per 
year (DfT, 2020).  

Healthy Place shaping: Cycling and walking can reduce noise, air pollution 
and severance caused by busy roads and create more thriving communities 
for everyone by addressing inequalities and increasing community 
coherence and thus sense of belonging.  

Economic: Cycling and walking incur lower personal costs. Physical 
inactivity costs the NHS over £8 billion per year, whilst cycling contributes 
over £5 billion to the economy every year (DfT, 2020). 

Page 53

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/social-and-health-care/public-health-and-wellbeing/healthy-place-shaping
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/social-and-health-care/public-health-and-wellbeing/healthy-place-shaping


Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

14 

 

1.4. Why is the LCWIP important for Witney now? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.5. Vision  

The vision for cycling and walking in Witney (which the LCWIP will help to deliver), was 
developed in collaboration with stakeholders and reflects their aspirations for Witney.  

 

Vision for cycling and walking in Witney 

By 2041, Witney will have safe, convenient, and well-connected walking (including 
wheeling) and cycling networks that are accessible for people of all abilities, ages 
and backgrounds. These networks will connect people to where they want to go, 
including excellent routes to access public transport. 

Walking and cycling will become the everyday choice for short journeys or as part 
of longer journeys combined with using public transport in Witney and beyond. A 
culture of walking and cycling will be achieved. This will create a thriving, healthy, 
inclusive and climate sensitive community, where improvements preserve and 
enhance the natural and historic environment and make Witney a great place to 
live, work and visit. 

 
 

 
High car usage in Witney for short 

journeys  

 

 

Health and wellbeing benefits for 
Witney’s population 

 
Poor air quality in Witney  

 

 

Climate emergency  

 

 

Compact size of Witney suitable for 
cycling and walking 

 

 

Key component of the Witney Area 
Travel Plan and LTCP  

 

Page 54



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

15 

 

1.6. Targets 

To measure the success of the Witney LCWIP and ensure the vision is achieved, the 
following targets have been set.   

 

 

These targets reflect those in Oxfordshire’s LTCP and Active Travel Strategy.  

*Target 2 data was calculated from Sport England’s 2015-17 Active Lives Survey, which is 
a national survey that asks people in England about their participation in physical activity.8   

 

8 Active Lives Survey, Sport England, https://www.sportengland.org/research-and-data/data/active-lives  

1. Zero deaths/injuries to people cycling and walking in Witney and routes 
between surrounding towns and villages by 2050 

 

2. Increase cycle trips from a baseline of 50,000 to 100,000 cycle trips per 
week in West Oxfordshire by 2031*  

 

Page 55

https://www.sportengland.org/research-and-data/data/active-lives


Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

16 

 

2. Background 

This chapter will summarise the data and knowledge that has informed the decision-making 
in this LCWIP and includes defining the geographic scope and a review of policy, 
demographics, health, environment, travel and transport, and current travel patterns. Full 
details can be found in Appendix A. 

2.1. Local geography 

Witney is the largest town in West Oxfordshire (with a population of 29,600) and is a service 
centre for the surrounding rural area (Census, 2021).9 This rural area includes the villages 
of Ducklington, South Leigh, Crawley, Hailey, New Yatt, North Leigh, Long Hanborough, 
Curbridge, Brize Norton and Minster Lovell, which together have a population of over 13,000 
(Census, 2021).10  

Witney is situated north of the A40 (a strategic road connecting Witney to Oxford), west of 
the M40, and east of the M5 and Cheltenham. Witney is bisected by the A4095, A415 and 
B4022, which are important connections to the surrounding area.  

Witney is connected by frequent bus services to Oxford (Stagecoach S1, S2 and H1), and 
many Oxfordshire towns including Carterton (Stagecoach S1 and H1 and Pulham’s Coaches 
19); Woodstock, Burford and Long Hanborough (Stagecoach 233); Abingdon (Pulham’s 
Coaches 15). There are also community services connecting local communities to Witney 
town centre.  

There is no direct train service for Witney. The closest stations are Hanborough Station, 
approximately 9km northeast of Witney High Street. This provides regular services between 
Worcester, Oxford, and London. There is also Charlbury Station approximately 13km north 
of Witney High Street.  

2.2. LCWIP study area 

The geographic scope of the Witney LCWIP was decided in consultation with local 
stakeholders. The aim of the Witney LCWIP is to cover the area defined as Witney and the 
key connections to and from Witney (by considering aspects such as employment, 
schooling, and public transport). This is not an exhaustive list of connections, however. 
Future iterations of the Witney LCWIP will consider whether additional connections should 
be included in the geographic scope. Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) are currently 
developing a Strategic Active Travel Network, which will identify improvements to additional 
connecting routes within Oxfordshire, some of which will benefit Witney. There are also other 
OCC led projects that will improve connections between Witney and surrounding 

 

9Census, 2021, Build a custom area profile - Census 2021, ONS 

10 Census 2021 (see notation 9) 

Page 56

https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/


Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

17 

 

settlements, including the connection to Eynsham. Therefore, the geographic scope of the 
Witney LCWIP (where improvements are focused) covers: 

• Witney town - including the existing built-up area and proposed and approved 
residential and employment areas in north, east and west Witney 

• Key cycle connections beyond Witney including: 

o School trips - villages within the catchment area of Wood Green and The 
Henry Box secondary schools and Abingdon and Witney College 

o Witney to Hanborough Station – supporting sustainable longer journeys by 
multiple transport modes 

o Witney to Brize Norton/Carterton – supporting commutes to RAF Brize 
Norton 

o Connections to strategic routes – including to the A40 and onwards towards 
Eynsham and the proposed B4044 Eynsham to Botley cycle path 

Page 57



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

18 

 

 
Figure 1: Witney LCWIP geographic scope 

 1: Witney LCWIP geographic scope 

Source: Open Street Map, 2021 

P
age 58



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

19 

 

2.3. Policy context  

Policy informs decision making by presenting evidence based best practice and targets. 
There are national and local policies that apply to this LCWIP. A summary of key relevant 
policies is provided below. 

Table 1: Key policies, strategies, and guidance 

Policy/Strategy/Guidance Purpose 

National   

Cycling and Walking Investment 
Strategy, Department for Transport 
(2017) 

Outlines steps for making cycling and walking 
the natural choice of travel for journeys.  

Gear Change: A bold vision for cycling 
and walking, Department for Transport 
(2020) 

Sets actions and design principles to support 
an increase in cycling and walking. 

Cycle Infrastructure Design, Local 
Transport Note 1/20, Department for 
Transport (2020) 

Guidance for the design of cycle infrastructure 
that is coherent, direct, safe, comfortable, and 
attractive for everyone.  

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 
Plans – Technical Guidance for Local 
Authorities, Department for Transport 
(2017) 

Guidance for producing LCWIPs. This 
recommends an approach that follows six 
stages. 

Local  

Local Transport and Connectivity Plan 5 
(LTCP) 2022 –2050, Oxfordshire County 
Council (2022)  

Sets the long-term ambition for transport in 
Oxfordshire, including a ‘safe, net-zero 
Oxfordshire transport system’ - cycling and 
walking is a key component of this. LTCP will 
be supported by area travel plans, which 
LCWIPs will inform, and additional studies 
covering transport hubs and public transport. 

Oxfordshire Cycling Design Standards, 
Oxfordshire County Council (2017) 

Guidance on the design of inclusive cycling 
infrastructure. 

Oxfordshire Walking Design Standards, 
Oxfordshire County Council (2017) 

Guidance on the design of inclusive walking 
infrastructure. 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, 
West Oxfordshire District Council (2018) 

Sets the transport vision for West Oxfordshire, 
which includes less traffic congestion and 
improved air quality and journey times by 
encouraging cycling, walking, and public 
transport use. The Witney LCWIP will be used 
to inform the update to this plan - West 
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2041, which is 
currently in production.  

Page 59



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

20 

 

Pathways to a zero carbon Oxfordshire, 
University of Oxford and Bioregional, 
(2021)11 

A report funded by a consortium of 
stakeholders including Oxfordshire County 
Council and all Oxfordshire district councils 
and City Council. This report explores how 
Oxfordshire can achieve net-zero emissions 
and highlights the importance of accelerating 
high quality cycling and walking infrastructure 
to achieving this.  

2.4. Demographics 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.5. Environment12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11 Pathways to a zero carbon Oxfordshire, 2021, https://www.eci.ox.ac.uk/publications/downloads/PazCo-

final.pdf 

12Place based carbon calculator, https://www.carbon.place/#13.39/51.78839/-1.48604 

Deprivation 

Areas of deprivation in Central, East 
and South Witney wards and within 
the surrounding rural area. Improved 
cycling and walking connections can 
help to reduce the level of deprivation. 

 

 

 

 

 

Health  

High levels of physical activity in most 
areas of Witney. This presents an 
opportunity for more trips to be made 
by cycling and walking.  

 

 

 

Conservation 

Much of Witney town centre and the 
Windrush Valley are important for 
their historical and natural 
environment. Any change in the area 
needs to be undertaken sensitively. 

 

 

 

Carbon emissions and air quality 

Most areas of Witney have higher 
carbon emission levels than the 
national average for car driving. This 
has contributed to poor air quality on 
A4095 Bridge Street and resulted in 
its classification as an Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA). This 
negatively impacts people’s health.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.6. Travel and transport 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13 Census Data, Local Area Reports, Office for National Statistics, 2011, 

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/localarea 

 

Flooding 

Witney is located next to the River 
Windrush and its floodplain. Flooding 
can impact services, amenities, and 
infrastructure. 

 

 

Rurality  

The area surrounding Witney is 
largely rural. This makes cycling and 
walking challenging due to distance, 
lack of safe, designated cycling and 
walking routes, and topography.  

 

 

 

Compact town  

Witney has a built-up area of less than 
5km east to west and 3km north to 
south. A wide range of trips can be 
satisfied within a short travel distance, 
providing an opportunity for 
increasing cycling and walking. 

 

 

 

High car dependency 

There is a preference in Witney for 
private vehicle travel, particularly for 
commuting. In Witney only 18% of 
commutes less than 2km were cycled 
or walked pre-Covid (Census, 2011). 

 

 

 

Congestion 

Congestion is an issue in Witney, 
particularly during peak periods 
around schools and employment 
sites. This can interrupt cycle 
journeys and cause delays to buses. 

 

 

 

Collisions 

Collisions involving people cycling 
and walking have occurred in Witney. 
Many have taken place at junctions, 
including the Fiveways roundabout 
(Tower Hill/Welch Way/Corn Street/ 
Ducklington Lane/Curbridge Road). 
This deters people from cycling and 
walking.  

 

 

 

 

Page 61

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/localarea


Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Existing cycling and walking 
networks 

There is a comprehensive cycling and 
walking network in Witney. However, 
some routes are poor quality, 
(including no crossings and uneven 
surfaces), which discourages people 
from cycling and walking.  

 

 

Propensity to cycle 

Cycling is more common on certain 
routes in Witney and the surrounding 
area. There is the potential to 
increase the number of people cycling 
with infrastructure improvements and 
electric bikes. 

 

 
Trip generators  

Witney provides many services and 
amenities, including shops, parks, 
schools and a hospital. It is important 
that people can travel to these by 
cycling and walking; this improves a 
person’s health and lowers their 
carbon impact.  

 

Future development and transport 
schemes  

Witney’s population will grow with the 
allocation of two housing sites (in the 
east and north). New development is 
required to deliver necessary 
infrastructure schemes such as 
cycling and walking improvements.  

 

20mph speed limit 

Many of the roads in Witney are 
20mph. This creates a safer 
environment for people to cycle and 
walk and makes streets more 
accessible for all. 

 
20 

Page 62



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

23 

 

3. Network plan for cycling 

This chapter explains the methodology used to develop the network plan for cycling and 
associated proposed improvements in Witney and the surrounding area.  

The development of the cycle network has been an iterative process, combining the analysis 
of data collected in Stage 2, site audits and stakeholder engagement.  

An understanding of where people want to travel was first established by identifying trip 
generators (places people go to and from) and cycle desire lines (the routes people use) to 
connect people to these trip generators. Routes that were deemed important were then 
audited using the Route Selection Tool (RST) and local knowledge. A total of three site 
audits were undertaken for cycling in Witney and the surrounding area. The Audit Output 
Report can be found in Appendix B.  This resulted in the identification of a network that was 
suitable for cycling, either currently or with improvements.  

3.1. Methodology 

Identifying trip generators 

Trip generators have been identified and geographically clustered to understand where 
people want to cycle to and from. Trip generators largely relate to main residential areas 
and places such as the town centre, supermarkets, leisure centres, schools and transport 
hubs. Future proposed developments in east and north Witney have also been incorporated 
within this. Appendix A section 11 shows trip generators in Witney and the surrounding 
area.  

Identifying cycle desire lines 

Following the identification of trip generators, a cycle desire line network in Witney and the 
surrounding area was developed using the Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) (which uses 2011 
Census journey to work data) and local knowledge. The cycle desire line network shows the 
routes people want to cycle regardless of whether they are currently suitable for cycling. 
Figure 2 and Figure 3 illustrate this cycle desire line network. 

The PCT classifies these routes as:  

• Primary – high flows of people cycling are forecast along desire lines that link 
large residential areas to places such as the town centre 

• Secondary – medium flows of people cycling are forecast along desire lines that 
link to places such as schools, colleges and employment sites 

• Local – lower flows of people cycling are forecast along desire lines that cater for 
local cycle trips, often providing links to primary or secondary desire lines 

The primary inter-urban routes include the connection between Carterton and Witney and 
between Hanborough Station and Witney. Within Witney, Fiveways roundabout (Welch 
Way/Corn Street/Ducklington Lane/Curbridge Road/Tower Hill) is a key part of the network 

Page 63



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

24 

 

desired by people cycling due to its connections across Witney town centre. The secondary 
routes include most main roads, connecting schools and employment sites. 

The suitability of these desire line routes for inclusion in the final cycle network is determined 
through the subsequent auditing process. 

 
Figure 2: Cycle desire line classification – Witney and surrounding areas 

Page 64



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

25 

 

 
Figure 3: Cycle desire line classification – Witney 

To add further context to the cycle desire line network, a 5km and 10km catchment area 
was calculated to show the reasonable distance people would cycle for local trips, although 
it is noted that some people will travel further. This includes destination clusters, which are 
areas with multiple destinations that people travel to. This has been overlayed on the desire 
lines to show potential cycling trips and therefore areas to consider improvements, as shown 

Page 65



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

26 

 

in Figure 4. Most desire lines between trip generators within Witney fall within the 5km 
catchment, roughly equivalent to a 15-minute cycle.  

 

 

Identifying cycling network improvements 

The improvements to cycling routes and infrastructure in Witney and the surrounding area 
have been designed to achieve the core design outcomes – directness, gradient, safety, 
connectivity and comfort. 

• Directness – compares the length of the cycle route against the shortest motor 
vehicle route length 

• Gradient – identifies the maximum gradient and maximum slope of the cycle route 
with the length at which it is climbed 

• Safety – assesses the vehicle speed and volume and the degree of separation 
between people and general traffic 

• Connectivity – identifies the number of side roads or accesses to the section of route 
which are barrier free and suitable for cycling 

• Comfort – the available space for cycling and the quality of the surface material 

Figure 4: 5km and 10km cycling catchments 

Page 66



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

27 

 

The improvements have been identified through the analysis of the data gathered (see 
Section 2 Background and Appendix A), consultation feedback from ‘Let’s Talk 
Oxfordshire’ and stakeholder engagement. 

A Route Selection Tool (RST) assessment was carried out to assess the suitability of a route 
in its existing condition against the core design outcomes, to identify where improvements 
are needed. The RST scored each link between 0 (being the lowest) and 5 (being the 
highest) against the core design outcomes - directness, gradient, safety, connectivity and 
comfort. Attractiveness (how visibly appealing the route is) is not included within the 
assessment tool as it is subjective and not deemed to be a significant deciding factor 
between routes for most journey types. 

The improvements identified are high-level proposals, which will require further feasibility 
and design work, along with public consultation before being implemented.  

  

Page 67



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

28 

 

Types of improvements 

Below is a summary of some of the possible cycling improvements that have been 
proposed in and around Witney. 

 

Contraflow cycle lane – a cycle lane which allows people 
cycling to travel in the opposite direction to other traffic. Often 
used on one-way roads to allow people cycling a direct 
passage along the road.14 

 

Cycle parking – a fixed location people can leave their bike. 
There are many different types of cycle parking. The most 
common form of cycle parking is a ‘Sheffield’ stand, which is 
an inverted ‘U’ shape and supports the whole bike. Other types 
of cycle parking include two-tier cycle racks, cycle-hubs and 
wall racks.  
 

 

Roundabouts with protected space for cycling (also 
known as a Dutch-style roundabout) – as the name 
suggests, this type of roundabout has been inspired by the 
Dutch, with a priority lane for people cycling around the outside 
of the roundabout and controlled crossings on each arm of the 
junction for people walking. Vehicles are expected to give way 
to people cycling and walking crossing at the entry/exit arms of 
the roundabout. 

 

Toucan crossing – a signal-controlled crossing that allows 
people cycling and walking to cross together. Toucan 
crossings are usually wider than standard pedestrian crossings 
to accommodate people cycling safely.   

 

Tiger crossing15 (Parallel crossing) – a tiger crossing consists 
of a zebra crossing with a parallel priority space for people 
cycling to cross.  

 

14 Photo credit: TSRGD 2016, Diagram 960.2 

15 Tiger crossing image – Google Maps, Ferry Hinksey Road Oxford, June 2022 

Page 68



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

29 

 

 

Sparrow crossing – a sparrow crossing is the same as a tiger 
crossing; however, it is at a signal-controlled junction.16  

 

Shared use footway/cycleway – shared use paths allow 
people cycling and walking to share the space, although 
people walking have priority. These paths are identified by a 
blue circle with a white symbol of people walking and a bike.17  

 

Segregated shared footway/cycleway – a footway that 
legally allows cycling, with separate spaces for people cycling 
and walking. Segregation is usually light and consists of 
signage and markings. 

 

Segregated cycle track (one or two way) – a cycle facility 
physically segregated from vehicles and people walking.  

 

Wayfinding – signage to support people cycling and walking 
navigate their way around a place. 

Figure 5: Types of improvements 

3.2. Proposed cycling improvements  

The existing cycle network has been mapped to help identify gaps in current cycle provision. 
It is proposed that these gaps be filled by the improvements outlined in this LCWIP to create 

 

16 Photo credit: https://www.stockport.gov.uk/news/stockports-first-bee-network-scheme-which-will-be-part-
of-greater 

17 Photo credit: TSRGD 2016, Diagram 956 

Page 69



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

30 

 

a coherent, direct, safe, limited gradient, and comfortable cycle network in Witney and the 
surrounding area.  

The existing and proposed cycle network is shown in Figure 6 and Figure 7.  

The location and type of proposed cycling improvement is shown in Figure 8, Figure 9, 
Figure 10, Figure 11 and Figure 12.  

Detail of the proposed improvements referenced in the above figures is provided in Table 
2. 

Page 70



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

31 

 

 
 Figure 6: Full cycling network (existing and proposed) - Witney 

P
age 71



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

32 

 

 

 

Figure 7: Full cycling network (existing and proposed) – Witney and surrounding areas 

P
age 72



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

33 

 

 
Figure 8: Proposed cycling improvements - Witney 

P
age 73



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

34 

 

 

 

Figure 9: Proposed cycling improvements - South 

 

P
age 74



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

35 

 

 
Figure 10: Proposed cycling improvements - East 

 

P
age 75



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

36 

 

 

 
Figure 11: Proposed cycling improvements - North 

 

P
age 76



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

37 

 

 
Figure 12: Proposed cycling improvements - West 

P
age 77



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

38 

 

Table 2 below outlines each of the improvements proposed. Those that benefit cycling only 
are shaded blue, and those that benefit both cycling and walking are shaded green. 
Improvements that benefit walking only are shown in Section 3.3. 

Table 2: List of all proposed cycling improvements 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 

1 
Walking & 

Cycling 
A4095 Woodgreen 

A formal pedestrian crossing within the vicinity of 
Holy Trinity Church 

2a Cycling 
Woodstock Road between 
Woodgreen and Wood Green 
School access 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the western 
side of Woodstock Road  

2b Cycling 
Woodstock Road between Wood 
Green School access and Jubilee 
Way 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the western 
side of the Woodstock Road 

3a 
Walking & 

Cycling 
A4095 Witney Road, between 
Jubilee Way and North Leigh 

Two-way segregated cycle track between Jubilee 
Way and Common Road, North Leigh 

3b 
Walking & 

Cycling 

A4095 Witney Road, between 
Common Road and Park Road, 
North Leigh 

Two-way segregated cycle track and adjacent 
footway on the western side of A4095 past North 
Leigh, removing need to go through North Leigh 

3c 
Walking & 

Cycling 

A4095 Witney Road, between 
North Leigh and Hanborough 
Station  

Two-way segregated cycle track between Park 
Road and Hanborough Station 

5 Cycling 
B4022 Hailey Road, between 
West End and Witney Community 
Primary School access 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the western 
side of Hailey Road 

6 Cycling 
B4022 Hailey Road, between 
Witney Community Primary 
School access and Hailey 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the western 
side of Hailey Road 

7 
Walking & 

Cycling 
B4022 West End/Crawley Road 
junction 

Crossing to link Hailey Road and Woodford Mill 
cycle path (for people cycling and walking) 

8 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath link between B4022 
West End and A4095 Mill Street 

Provide lighting and raised path/boardwalk along 
Woodford Mill (as liable to flooding) 

9 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath link between B4022 
West End and A4095 Mill Street 

New bridge/new alignment to remove sharp turn 
and improve visibility 

10a 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath link from B4022 Oxford 
Hill, in vicinity of Madley Brook 

Resurfacing of Public Right of Way (PRoW) 410/4 
running parallel to the Madley Park cycle track to 
allow cycling 

10b 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Footpath link between B4022 
Oxford Hill and Woodbank in 
vicinity of Newland allotments 

Ground lighting along section (circa 75m) of path 
parallel to Newland allotments 

10c 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath link from B4022 Oxford 
Hill, in vicinity of Madley Brook 

Repair and possible widening/re-alignment of 
bridges along the Madley Park/Park View Lane 
track 

10d 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Bridge between Woodbank and 
Northfield Road 

Repair of bridge between Woodbank and 
Northfield Road 

11 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Footpath link across Oxlease 
Park between Cogges Hill Road 
and Church Lane 

Widen existing footpath and extend to Church 
Lane to accommodate people cycling 

12 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Cogges Hill Road, north of Blakes 
Avenue 

New toucan crossing to link people walking and 
cycling to East Witney development and existing 
PRoW 410/7 

Page 78



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

39 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 

13 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Shared use path parallel to 
Stanton Harcourt Road 

Widening of existing shared use footway/cycleway 

14 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Stanton Harcourt Road, between 
shared use path 

New controlled crossing 

15 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Cogges Hill Road, between 
shared use path 

New controlled crossing 

16 
Walking & 

Cycling 
PRoW 410/41, east of Blakes 
Avenue 

Widen existing footpath where possible, re-
surface and add lighting 

17 Cycling 
Witan Way between Station Lane 
and High Street 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the western 
side of Witan Way 

18 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Farm Mill Lane, between Witan 
Way and Station Lane  

Re-surfacing, lighting and widening where 
possible of shared use path  

19 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Link between Stanton Harcourt 
Road and Station Lane/Witan 
Way 

New shared use footway/cycleway linking Stanton 
Harcourt Road across open land to new river 
crossing (21b) 

20 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Link between Cogges Hill Road 
and Station Lane/Witan Way 

New shared use footway/cycleway across open 
land to proposed new river crossing (21b) 

21a 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Links between new river crossing 
and Station Lane/Witan Way and 
Farm Mill Lane 

New shared use footway/cycleway from new river 
crossing (21b) to south side of Sainsbury 
Roundabout and Farm Mill Lane. 

21b 
Walking & 

Cycling 
East of Farm Mill Lane, over the 
River Windrush 

New southern river crossing (for people walking 
and cycling only) 

22 
Walking & 

Cycling 

South of Witan Way roundabout, 
between Station Lane and Two 
Rivers Trading Estate 

New toucan crossing  

23 
Walking & 

Cycling 
B4022 Oxford Hill, east of the 
Windrush Cemetery 

New toucan crossing (location to be confirmed – 
related to scheme 26 a southern footway and 
location of bus stops) 

24 
Walking & 

Cycling 

B4022 Oxford Hill, between South 
Leigh and the new toucan 
crossing (23) 

New shared use footway/cycleway on the 
southern side of Oxford Hill 

25 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Stanton Harcourt Road, west of 
Eton Close  

New toucan crossing 

26 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Link between Stanton Harcourt 
Road and PRoW 410/41 (East 
Witney SDA) 

New shared use footway/cycleway  

27 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Link between PRoW 410/41 and 
B4022 Oxford Hill 

Upgrade of PRoW 410/41 to a shared use 
footpath/cycleway from the East Witney site to 
B4022 Oxford Hill 

28 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Witan Way/Farm Mill Lane 

Upgrade existing uncontrolled crossing to a 
controlled crossing such as a raised tiger 
crossing.  

29 Cycling 
B4047 Burford Road/Downs Road 
junction 

Upgrade pedestrian crossing to a toucan crossing 

30 Cycling 
B4047 Burford Road/Deer Park 
Road junction 

Upgrade pedestrian crossing to a toucan crossing 

31 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Deer Park Road, in the vicinity of 
the footpath south of Valence 
Crescent northern access.  

New uncontrolled pedestrian crossing  

32 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Deer Park Road, south of Range 
Road linking Deer Park Road and 
the Bridleway 

Controlled toucan or sparrow or Pegasus crossing  

Page 79



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

40 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 

33 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Bridleway between Deer Park 
Road and Downs Road 

Widen, provide lighting and re-surface existing 
bridleway 

34 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath between Downs Road 
and Book End 

Maintenance of vegetation, lighting required 

35 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath between Book End and 
Range Road 

Widen existing path 

36 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Link between Colletts Way and 
Leslie Harvey Close 

New link between employment park and housing 
estate 

37 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Link between Downs Road and 
Chipmunk Drive/College Place 

New link between Downs Road and housing 
estate 

38 Cycling 
Curbridge Road between Spring 
Meadow and Deer Park Road 

Reduce length of right-turn pocket and extend 
shared-use section to the roundabout 

39 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Curbridge Road/Deer Park Road 

Roundabout with protected space for cycling (also 
known as a Dutch-style roundabout) 

40 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Curbridge Road/Ducklington 
Lane/Welch Way 

Roundabout with protected space for cycling (also 
known as a Dutch-style roundabout) 

41 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath linking Hyde Meadow 
View and Woodford Mill path 

Upgrade existing footpath by raising up, re-
surfacing and adding lighting. Re-alignment and 
modifications to bridge also required. 

42 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Curbridge Road in the vicinity of 
the Tower Hill Cemetery 

New controlled crossing  

43 Cycling 
Curbridge Road, between Deer 
Park Road and Tower Hill 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the northern 
side of Curbridge Road (likely to be shared in 
places near Fiveways Roundabout, where, due to 
crossing scheme 42, the cycle route is proposed 
on the southside approaching roundabout).  

44 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Shared use path east of 
Fettiplace Road 

Remove barriers or widen to safely allow for 
inclusive access 

45 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Footpath between Edington Road 
and Apley Way (south of West 
Witney Primary School) 

Re-surface path  

46 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Tower Hill in the vicinity of 
Windrush Valley Road 

New controlled crossing  

47 
Walking & 

Cycling 
A415 Ducklington Lane in vicinity 
of Burwell Drive 

At-grade controlled crossing  

48 
Walking & 

Cycling 
A415 Ducklington Lane 

Shared use footpath/cycleway parallel to road as 
bypass to underpass and remove the need for 
users to traverse the gradients 

49 
Walking & 

Cycling 
A415 Ducklington Lane 

New links between Ducklington Lane and Queen 
Emma's Dyke 

51 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath next to Lakeside 
Allotments 

Remove barriers (kissing gates) or widen to safely 
allow for inclusive access 

53 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Shared use path parallel to B4047 
Burford Road 

Resurfacing of off-road path to provide smooth 
surface. Lighting also required  

56 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Woodgreen (Narrow Hill) 

Restrict motorised traffic to access only, in 
southbound direction and add signage to allow 
contra-flow cycling 

57 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Path in the vicinity of Farmers 
Close  

Widen where possible and re-align barriers 

59 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath link between Eastfield 
Road and Vanner Road 

Widen cut through where possible 

60 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Ashcombe Close link 

Widen gap in the wall and re-align 
footway/cycleway 

Page 80



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

41 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 

63 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Witan Way, north of Two Rivers 
Industrial Estate 

Upgrade of uncontrolled crossing to a controlled 
crossing, linking to employment and Job Centre 

64 Cycling Welch Way  
Realign hedgerow to accommodate space for a 
two-way segregated cycle track 

65 
Walking & 

Cycling 
B4022 Newland, in vicinity of 
PROW 410/4 entrance 

New parallel crossing on B4022 Newland 

66 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Link between Newland Mill and 
Church Lane 

Re-surface path and widen footway to allow 
shared space 

68 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Woodstock Road, north of 
Blenheim Heights 

Realign barriers and add signage to warn of 
conflict. Barriers currently filter people cycling 
towards blind entrance with residential drive 

71 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Path linking Cogges Hill Church 
and Church Lane 

Remove barriers 

73 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Footpath between Fettiplace 
Road and Tower Hill 

Add lighting 

77 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Path link at Spring Road Add lighting 

78 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Path parallel to Gordon Way Widen where possible 

79 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Downs Road/Centenary Way 
roundabout 

New toucan crossing across the southern arm of 
Downs Road to connect the two cycle routes (ref 
83 and 90) 

81 
Walking & 

Cycling 
B4022 Oxford Hill/Jubilee Way Upgrade junction to MOVA and review staging 

83 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Path connecting Downs Road and 
Centenary Way parallel to the 
A40 

Upgrade path to accommodate a two-way 
segregated cycle track  

85 
Walking & 

Cycling A4095 Burford Road 
Upgrade of existing segregated shared 
footway/cycleway to a two-way segregated cycle 
track 

86 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Oxford Hill, between Cogges Hill 
Road and east of Windrush 
Cemetery 

New shared use footway/cycleway on the 
southern side of Oxford Hill  

87 
Walking & 

Cycling 
King George's Field, north of 
Newland 

Shared use footway/cycleway around King 
George's Field 

88 
Walking & 

Cycling 

New road linking Hailey Road and 
Woodstock Road (part of North 
Witney SDA) 

New northern distributor road. Proposed one-way 
cycle track on both sides of the carriageway, to be 
a min of 1.8m width ‘stepped’ cycle track (2m is 
preferable to enable overtaking). A 2m wide 
footway each side is also proposed. 

89 
Walking & 

Cycling 

Link between West End/Hailey 
Road junction and Burford 
Road/Woodford Way junction 

West End Link 2 to include segregated walking 
and cycling routes 

90 Cycling 
Witney Road, between Carterton 
and Witney 

Two-way segregated cycle track (some land take 
may be required) 

91 Cycling B4449 Aston Road 
Two-way segregated cycle track between 
Bampton and Aston  

92 Cycling Aston Mile 
Two-way segregated cycle track between 
Bampton and Ducklington  

93 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Ducklington Lane 

Upgrade of existing segregated shared 
footway/cycleway along Ducklington Lane to two-
way segregated cycle track 

Page 81



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

42 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 

94 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Thorney Leys 

Two-way segregated cycle track along Thorney 
Leys including extension of existing footway 

95 Cycling Corn Street Two-way segregated cycle track on Corn Street 

96 Cycling A415/Aston Mile 
Crossing on A415 between Aston & Ducklington 
to link proposed routes 

99 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Ducklington Lane Roundabout, 
adjacent to A40 western slips 

Introduce sparrow crossings at the roundabout. 
Crossings required on Ducklington Lane, A415 
and A40 slip roads (as a minimum). These could 
be standalone or as part of a junction 
signalisation. 

100 
Walking & 

Cycling 
High Street and Market Square 
from Welch Way to Church Green 

Active travel tranche 3 scheme - improve the 
public realm to make the High Street a more 
accessible, pleasant environment for people to 
walk, cycle and spend time. 

101 
Walking & 

Cycling 
Bridge Street 

Feasibility study under way 2022 with the aims to 
widened footways, provide improve crossings and 
cycle infrastructure. 

 

A concept level design has been produced for improvement 40 at Fiveways roundabout, to 
show an example of a roundabout with protected space for cycling (also known as a Dutch-
style roundabout), see Figure 13. A concept level design has also been produced for 
improvement 2a/2b at Woodstock Road, to show an example of a two-way segregated cycle 
route and parallel crossing, see Figure 14. These designs are available at higher resolution 
and full key in Appendix C. 

Page 82



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

43 

 

Figure 13: Roundabout with protected space for cycling at Fiveways Roundabout 

This drawing includes map data licenced from Ordnance 
Survey with the permission of the controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationery Office. © Crown copyright licence 
number 0100023343 (2022)  

P
age 83



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

44 

 

Figure 14: Woodstock Road segregated cycle track 

 

This drawing includes map data licenced from 
Ordnance Survey with the permission of the controller of 
Her Majesty’s Stationery Office. © Crown copyright 
licence number 0100023343 (2022)  

P
age 84



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

45 

 

3.3. Complementary measures 

Complementary measures are considered vital to any infrastructure that prioritises and 
separates people cycling from other road users and will support the delivery of this LCWIP. 
Measures include:  

• Signage and wayfinding – the delivery of strategic, comprehensive and consistent 
signage and wayfinding is important to support people cycling to navigate their way 
around Witney. A study is required to identify how this can be achieved in Witney. 
 

• Cycle parking – it is imperative that cycle parking provide safe storage for bikes, a 
key challenge to the uptake of cycling in Witney at present. Cycle parking should also 
be conveniently located where people want to travel. This could include cycle hubs 
at public transport interchanges or ‘Sheffield’ cycle stands, or cycle lockers outside 
key trip generators. Cycle parking should accommodate all types of bikes, including 
adapted bikes and cargo bikes.  An audit of cycle parking in Witney is available in 
Appendix E. This is a live document and will be regularly reviewed to assess the 
location and condition of current cycle parking and consider how cycle parking can 
be made safer and where additional cycle parking is required.  
 

• High Street and Market Square – there are aspirations to improve the public realm 
to make the High Street a more accessible and pleasant environment for people to 
walk, cycle and spend time in. This will complement the measures to reduce through 
traffic on High Street and Market Square delivered in 2020/21 as part of the Active 
Travel Fund. This is shown as reference 100 on the proposed cycling and walking 
improvements figures. 

 

• Bridge Street – specific measures have not been included within this LCWIP for 
Bridge Street and its key connectors to the rest of the Witney cycling and walking 
network. This is because a separate study is underway to identify what measures can 
be implemented at Bridge Street to improve traffic circulation, reduce congestion, and 
prioritise public transport and active travel. The outcome of this study will likely 
propose measures including widened footways, crossings and cycle infrastructure 
along Bridge Street and the nearby area. This is shown as reference 101 on the 
improvement plans. 

 

• In some locations across Witney guard-railing, bollards, or barriers, which were 
originally installed for safety reasons, are preventing access for people on all bike 
types and other wheeled mobility aids including mobility scooters and double 
pushchairs. The Windrush Bike Project have conducted a thorough audit of such 
barriers across Witney and OCC are seeking to remove or alter these to enable 
access for all (where safety will not be impacted)  

 

Page 85



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

46 

 

• Healthy Streets Approach18 – the Healthy Streets Approach considers how public 
spaces can be made more accessible for everyone including the elderly and people 
with disabilities. This involves assessing the quantity and quality of a number of 
elements that contribute to public health such as benches, shade provision and safety 
features including lighting. The provision of such can help to make cycling and 
walking more pleasant and accessible experiences for all. The Healthy Streets 
Approach will be considered during the design of any scheme. 

 

 

 

18 Healthy Streets Approach - https://www.healthystreets.com/ 

Page 86



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

47 

 

4. Network Map for Walking 

This chapter sets out the walking improvements proposed as part of this LCWIP. The 
development of the walking network has been an iterative process and has combined using 
the Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT), alongside local input from the public, key 
stakeholders, officers and councillors from OCC and WODC. The Audit Output Report can 
be found in Appendix B.  

4.1. Methodology 

The same trip generators used to develop the cycle network have been used for the walking 
network.  

 

On average people tend to walk up to 2km for a local trip, although it is noted that some 
people will walk further. Figure 15 shows a 2km walking catchment, assuming Welch 
Way/High Street as the centre point. It shows that from High Street, most of north, central 
and east Witney are accessible within 2km or roughly a 30-minute walk.   

Figure 15: 2km walking catchment 

Page 87



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

48 

 

 

Identifying a hierarchy of walking routes 

The walking hierarchy map illustrated in 

 

 

Figure 16 shows the different roles that each road has for walking. There are four main 
categories which are: 

• Prestige/Primary Walking Routes – very busy areas of town and main walking 
routes through the town centre with high footfall 

• Secondary Walking Routes – medium usage routes through local areas feeding 
into primary routes and places such as local shopping centres 

• Link Footways – links to connect access footways through urban areas and busy 
rural footways 

• Local Access Footways – footways associated with low usage, short estate roads 
to the main roads and cul-de-sacs 

Page 88



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

49 

 

  

Page 89



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

50 

 

 
 

Figure 16: Walking network map with route hierarchy

P
age 90



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

51 

 

Identifying walking network improvements 

The improvements to footways and other walking infrastructure in Witney are designed to 
be attractive, comfortable, direct, safe and coherent. They have been identified through the 
analysis of the data gathered (Section 2 and Appendix A), consultation feedback from 
‘Let’s Talk Oxfordshire’ and stakeholder engagement. 

A Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) assessment has been carried out to assess the five 
core design outcomes. The assessment also considers the needs of people with disabilities, 
mobility aid users, older people and people with young children/pushchairs.  

The improvements identified are high-level proposals, which will require further feasibility 
and design work, along with public consultation before being implemented.  

Types of improvements 

Below is a summary of some of the possible improvements to the walking experience in 
Witney that have been proposed. 

 

Dropped kerbs – features to facilitate non-stepped access to 
allow wheelchair/mobility aid users and people with pushchairs to 
cross the road unimpeded.  

 

Tactile paving – paving that warns visually impaired people about 
where the footway ends and the carriageway begins. There are 
different types of tactile paving.  

 

Refuge island – a small area of footway in the centre of the road 
to allow people walking to cross in two stages. Refuge islands are 
usually found on roads with higher speeds and greater numbers 
of vehicles, where crossing in a single movement is more difficult. 

 

Controlled pedestrian crossing – there are three types of 
controlled pedestrian crossings: Zebra, Pelican and Puffin.  
 
Zebra – these crossings are marked out by black and white stripes 
across the road with flashing beacons and zig zag markings.  
 
Pelican – these are signalised crossings and require people 
walking to press a button and wait for the green man to appear 
before crossing the road. 
 
Puffin – these are signalised crossings similar to Pelican 
crossings in that they require people walking to press a button. 
However, they are more advanced than Pelican crossings as they 

Page 91



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

52 

 

can detect people walking in the waiting area and whilst they are 
crossing the road.  

 

Uncontrolled pedestrian crossing – unlike controlled crossings, 
people walking must wait for traffic to stop or for a suitable gap to 
cross the road. These crossings may include dropped kerbs, 
tactile paving and a refuge island. 

 

Raised table – a form of traffic calming that aims to slow the 
speed of vehicles and to emphasise features such as crossing 
points. They are sometimes used at the entry of a side road to 
provide a level surface for people walking to cross the road without 
the need for dropped kerbs.    

 

Footway buildout - widenings of footways that run beside a 
carriageway and provide greater space for people walking to wait, 
reduce crossing distances, and improve the visibility of people 
walking and other road users.   

Figure 17: Types of walking improvements 

4.2. Proposed walking improvements 

The walking improvements are shown in Figure 18. The subsequent two maps in Figure 19 
and Figure 20 show a scaled up version of Figure 18. The reference numbers shown on 
the map refer to the improvements described in Table 3.   

 

Page 92



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

53 

 

 

Figure 18: Proposed walking improvements - Witney 

 

P
age 93



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

54 

 

 
Figure 19: Proposed walking improvements – West Witney 

P
age 94



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

55 

 

 

 
Figure 20: Proposed walking improvements – East Witney 

P
age 95



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

56 

 

Table 3 below outlines a description of each of the improvements proposed. Those that 
benefit walking only are shaded purple, and those that benefit both walking and cycling are 
shaded green. Improvements that benefit cycling only are shown in Section 3. 

Table 3: List of all proposed walking improvements 

Ref no. 
Benefit 

to 
Location  Description 

1 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 Woodgreen 
A formal pedestrian crossing within the vicinity of 
Holy Trinity Church 

3a 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 Witney Road, between 
Jubilee Way and North Leigh 

Two-way segregated cycle track between Jubilee 
Way and Common Road, North Leigh 

3b 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 Witney Road, between 
Common Road and Park 
Road, North Leigh 

Two-way segregated cycle track and adjacent 
footway on the western side of A4095 past North 
Leigh, removing need to go through North Leigh 

3c 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 Witney Road, between 
North Leigh and Hanborough 
Station  

Two-way segregated cycle track between Park 
Road and Hanborough Station 

4 Walking 
Station Lane, in vicinity of 
Avenue One and Gordon 
Lane 

Provision of controlled crossing 

7 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 West End/Crawley 
Road junction 

Crossing to link Hailey Road and Woodford Mill 
cycle path (for people cycling and walking) 

8 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath link between B4022 
West End and A4095 Mill 
Street 

Provide lighting and raised path/boardwalk along 
Woodford Mill (as liable to flooding) 

9 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath link between B4022 
West End and A4095 Mill 
Street 

New bridge/new alignment to remove sharp turn 
and improve visibility 

10a 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath link from B4022 
Oxford Hill, in vicinity of 
Madley Brook 

Resurfacing of PRoW 410/4 running parallel to the 
Madley Park cycle track to allow cycling 

10b 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath link between B4022 
Oxford Hill and Woodbank in 
vicinity of Newland allotments 

Ground lighting along section (circa 75m) of path 
parallel to Newland allotments 

10c 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath link from B4022 
Oxford Hill, in vicinity of 
Madley Brook 

Repair and possible widening/re-alignment of 
bridges along the Madley Park/Park View Lane 
track 

10d 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Bridge between Woodbank 
and Northfield Road 

Repair of bridge between Woodbank and Northfield 
Road 

11 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath link across Oxlease 
Park between Cogges Hill 
Road and Church Lane 

Widen existing footpath and extend to and Church 
Lane to accommodate people cycling 

12 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Cogges Hill Road, north of 
Blakes Avenue 

New toucan crossing to link people walking and 
cycling to East Witney development and existing 
PRoW 410/7 

13 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Shared use path parallel to 
Stanton Harcourt Road 

Widening of existing shared use footway/cycleway 

Page 96



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

57 

 

Ref no. 
Benefit 

to 
Location  Description 

14 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Stanton Harcourt Road, 
between shared use path 

New controlled crossing 

15 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Cogges Hill Road, between 
shared use path 

New controlled crossing 

16 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

PRoW 410/41, east of Blakes 
Avenue 

Widen existing footpath where possible, re-surface 
and add lighting 

18 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Farm Mill Lane, between 
Witan Way and Station Lane  

Re-surfacing, lighting and widening where possible 
of shared use path  

19 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link between Stanton 
Harcourt Road and Station 
Lane/Witan Way 

New shared use footway/cycleway linking Stanton 
Harcourt Road across open land to new river 
crossing (21b) 

20 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link between Cogges Hill 
Road and Station Lane/Witan 
Way 

New shared use footway/cycleway across open 
land to proposed new river crossing (21b) 

21a 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Links between new river 
crossing and Station 
Lane/Witan Way and Farm 
Mill Lane 

New shared use footway/cycleway from new river 
crossing (21b) to south side of Sainsbury 
Roundabout and Farm Mill Lane. 

21b 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

East of Farm Mill Lane, over 
the River Windrush 

New southern river crossing (for people walking 
and cycling only) 

22 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

South of Witan Way 
roundabout, between Station 
Lane and Two Rivers Trading 
Estate 

New toucan crossing  

23 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 Oxford Hill, east of the 
Windrush Cemetery 

New toucan crossing  

24 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 Oxford Hill, between 
South Leigh and the new 
toucan crossing (23) 

New shared use footway/cycleway on the southern 
side of Oxford Hill 

25 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Stanton Harcourt Road, west 
of Eton Close  

New toucan crossing 

26 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link between Stanton 
Harcourt Road and PRoW 
410/41 (East Witney SDA) 

New shared use footway/cycleway  

27 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link between PRoW 410/41 
and B4022 Oxford Hill 

Upgrade of PRoW 410/41 to a shared use 
footpath/cycleway from the East Witney site to 
B4022 Oxford Hill 

28 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Witan Way/Farm Mill Lane 
Upgrade existing uncontrolled crossing to a 
controlled crossing such as a raised tiger crossing. 

31 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Deer Park Road, in the 
vicinity of the footpath south 
of Valence Crescent 

New uncontrolled pedestrian crossing  

32 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Deer Park Road, south of 
Range Road linking Deer 
Park Road and the Bridleway 

Controlled toucan or sparrow or Pegasus crossing  

Page 97



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

58 

 

Ref no. 
Benefit 

to 
Location  Description 

33 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Bridleway between Deer Park 
Road and Downs Road 

Widen, provide lighting and re-surface existing 
bridleway 

34 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath between Downs 
Road and Book End 

Maintenance of vegetation, lighting required 

35 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath between Book End 
and Range Road 

Widen existing path 

36 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link between Colletts Way 
and Leslie Harvey Close 

New link between employment park and housing 
estate 

37 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link between Downs Road 
and Chipmunk Drive/College 
Place 

New link between Downs Road and housing estate 

39 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Curbridge Road/Deer Park 
Road 

Roundabout with protected space for cycling (also 
known as a Dutch-style roundabout) 

40 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Curbridge Road/Ducklington 
Lane/Welch Way 

Roundabout with protected space for cycling (also 
known as a Dutch-style roundabout) 

41 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath linking Hyde 
Meadow View and Woodford 
Mill path (8) 

Upgrade existing footpath by raising up, re-
surfacing and adding lighting. Re-alignment and 
modifications to bridge also required. 

42 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Curbridge Road in the vicinity 
of the Tower Hill Cemetery 

New controlled crossing  

44 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Shared use path east of 
Fettiplace Road 

Remove barriers or widen to safely allow for 
inclusive access 

45 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath between Edington 
Road and Apley Way (south 
of West Witney Primary 
School) 

Re-surface path  

46 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Tower Hill in the vicinity of 
Windrush Valley Road 

New controlled crossing  

47 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A415 Ducklington Lane in 
vicinity of Burwell Drive 

At-grade controlled crossing  

48 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A415 Ducklington Lane 
Shared use footpath/cycleway parallel to road as 
bypass to underpass and remove the need for 
users to traverse the gradients 

49 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A415 Ducklington Lane 
New links between Ducklington Lane and Queen 
Emma's Dyke 

50 Walking 
Footpath next to Lakeside 
Allotments 

Widen path where possible 

51 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath next to Lakeside 
Allotments 

Remove barriers (kissing gates) or widen to safely 
allow for inclusive access 

52 Walking 
Witney Road, in the vicinity of 
Dale Walk, Ducklington 

Uncontrolled crossing required, narrowing of 
carriageway and widening of footway 

Page 98



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

59 

 

Ref no. 
Benefit 

to 
Location  Description 

53 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Shared use path parallel to 
B4047 Burford Road 

Resurfacing of off-road path to provide smooth 
surface. Lighting also required  

54 Walking 
Cogges Hill Road, north of 
Blakes Avenue 

Formalisation of western path by re-surfacing 

55 Walking 
Cogges Hill Road/Cogges Hill 
Road 

Uncontrolled crossing required 

56 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Woodgreen (Narrow Hill) 
Restrict motorised traffic to access only, in 
southbound direction and add signage to allow 
contra-flow cycling 

57 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Path in the vicinity of Farmers 
Close  

Widen where possible and re-align barriers 

58 Walking 
B4022 Hailey Road between 
Farmers Close and Taphouse 
Avenue 

New uncontrolled crossing closer to the junction 

59 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath link between 
Eastfield Road and Vanner 
Road 

Widen cut through where possible 

60 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Ashcombe Close link 
Widen gap in the wall and re-align 
footway/cycleway 

61 Walking  
Footway between Moorland 
Road and Woodford Way 

Widen where possible, add lighting 

62 Walking 
Market Square, crossing on 
Langdale Gate/Corn Street 
roundabout's southern arm 

Pedestrian crossing movements on south of 
Langdale Gate are unclear and can be confused 
with motorcycle parking.  Enhance walking areas to 
make crossing movements clearer 

63 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Witan Way, north of Two 
Rivers Industrial Estate 

Upgrade of uncontrolled crossing to a controlled 
crossing, linking to employment and Job Centre 

65 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 Newland, in vicinity of 
PROW 410/4 entrance 

New parallel crossing on B4022 Newland 

66 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link between Newland Mill 
and Church Lane 

Re-surface path and widen footway to allow shared 
space 

68 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Woodstock Road, north of 
Blenheim Heights 

Barriers filter people cycling towards blind entrance 
with residential drive. Realign barriers and add 
signage to warn of conflict 

69 Walking 
A4095 Burford Road in 
vicinity of Moor Avenue 

Build-out within layby to make crossing movements 
safer and easier 

70 Walking 
A4095 Burford Road, east of 
Springfield Park 

Widen footway into adjacent verge 

71 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Path linking Cogges Hill 
Church and Church Lane 

Remove barriers 

72 Walking 
Tower Hill between Windrush 
Valley Road and Wilkinson 
Place 

Convert verge on western side of Tower Hill to 
footway, providing continuous footway connection 

73 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath between Fettiplace 
Road and Tower Hill 

Add lighting 

Page 99



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

60 

 

Ref no. 
Benefit 

to 
Location  Description 

74 Walking 
Moorland Road/Moor Ave 
junction 

Move uncontrolled junction further into Moorland 
Road crossing to provide safer crossing 

75 Walking Woodford Way/Welch Road  
Review signal timings as long wait time for people 
crossing Woodford Way at signal-controlled 
junction 

76 Walking 
Market Square western 
footway, south of 
Marlborough Lane 

Review bollard locations and potential to extend 
build-out to remove pinch point 

77 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath link at Spring Road Add lighting 

78 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath parallel to Gordon 
Way 

Widen where possible 

79 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Downs Road/Centenary Way 
roundabout 

New toucan crossing across the southern arm of 
Downs Road to connect the two cycle routes (ref 83 
and 90) 

80 Walking 
Witan Way, north of Waine 
Rush View 

New controlled pedestrian crossing north of Waine 
Rush View 

81 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 Oxford Hill/Jubilee 
Way 

Upgrade junction to MOVA and review staging 

82 Walking  
West End, east of Hailey 
Road/West End roundabout 

Add chicane on outbound carriageway to allow for 
footway widening at the pinch point 

83 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Path connecting Downs Road 
and Centenary Way parallel 
to the A40 

Upgrade path to accommodate a two-way 
segregated cycle track 

85 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 Burford Road 
Upgrade of existing segregated shared 
footway/cycleway to a two-way segregated cycle 
track 

86 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Oxford Hill, between Cogges 
Hill Road and east of 
Windrush Cemetery 

New shared use footway/cycleway on the southern 
side of Oxford Hill  

87 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

King George's Field, north of 
Newland 

Shared use footway/cycleway around King 
George's Field 

88 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

New road linking Hailey Road 
and Woodstock Road (part of 
North Witney SDA) 

New northern distributor road. Proposed one-way 
cycle track on both sides of the carriageway, to be 
a min of 1.8m width ‘stepped’ cycle track (2m is 
preferable to enable overtaking). A 2m wide 
footway each side is also proposed. 

89 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link between West 
End/Hailey Road junction and 
Burford Road/Woodford Way 
junction 

West End Link 2 to include segregated walking and 
cycling routes 

93 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Ducklington Lane 
Upgrade of existing segregated shared 
footway/cycleway along Ducklington Lane to two-
way segregated cycle track 

94 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Thorney Leys 
Two-way segregated cycle track along Thorney 
Leys including extension of existing footway 

97 Walking 
Cogges Hill Road/B4022 
Oxford Hill 

New footpath to the south of Oxford Hill between 
Oxford Hill/Jubilee Way to Windrush Cemetery 

Page 100



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

61 

 

Ref no. 
Benefit 

to 
Location  Description 

98 Walking 
A4095 Burford Road, in the 
vicinity of Windrush Valley 
Road 

New pedestrian crossing to help access bus stops 
east of Windrush Valley Road 

99 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Ducklington Lane 
Roundabout, adjacent to A40 
western slips 

Introduce sparrow crossings at the roundabout. 
Crossings required on Ducklington Lane, A415 and 
A40 slip roads (as a minimum). These could be 
standalone or as part of a junction signalisation. 

100 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

High Street and Market 
Square from Welch Way to 
Church Green 

Active travel tranche 3 scheme - improve the public 
realm to make the High Street a more accessible, 
pleasant environment for people to walk, cycle and 
spend time. 

101 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Bridge Street 
Feasibility study under way 2022 with the aims to 
widened footways, provide improve crossings and 
cycle infrastructure. 

4.3. Complementary measures 

Complementary infrastructure is considered vital to any infrastructure that prioritises and 
separates people cycling from other road users and will support the delivery of this LCWIP. 
This includes:  

• Signage and wayfinding – the delivery of strategic, comprehensive and consistent 
signage and wayfinding is important to support people walking to navigate their way 
around Witney. A study is required to identify how this can be achieved in Witney.  
 

• High Street and Market Square – there are aspirations to improve the public realm 
to make the High Street a more accessible and pleasant environment for people to 
walk, cycle and spend time in. This will complement the measures to reduce through 
traffic on High Street and Market Square delivered in 2020/21 as part of the Active 
Travel Fund. This is shown as reference 100 on the proposed cycling and walking 
improvements figures. 

 

• Bridge Street – specific measures have not been included within this LCWIP for 
Bridge Street and its key connectors to the rest of the Witney cycling and walking 
network. This is because a separate study is underway to identify what measures can 
be implemented at Bridge Street to improve traffic circulation, reduce congestion, and 
prioritise public transport and active travel. The outcome of this study will likely 
propose measures including widened footways, crossings and cycle infrastructure 
along Bridge Street and the nearby area. This is shown as reference 101 on the 
improvement plans. 

 

• In some locations across Witney guard-railing, bollards, or barriers, which were 
originally installed for safety reasons, are preventing access for people on all bike 
types and other wheeled mobility aids including mobility scooters and double 
pushchairs. The Windrush Bike Project have conducted a thorough audit of such 
barriers across Witney and OCC are seeking to remove or alter these to enable 
access for all.  

Page 101



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

62 

 

 

• Healthy Streets Approach19 – the Healthy Streets Approach considers how public 
spaces can be made more accessible for everyone including the elderly and people 
with disabilities. This involves assessing the quantity and quality of a number of 
elements that contribute to public health such as benches, shade provision and safety 
features including lighting. The provision of such can help to make cycling and 
walking more pleasant and accessible experiences for all. The Healthy Streets 
Approach will be considered during the design of any scheme. 

 

 

19 Healthy Streets Approach - https://www.healthystreets.com/ 

Page 102



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

63 

 

5. Prioritisation of improvements and Packaging of 

improvements  

This section outlines how the proposed improvements in Sections 3 and 3.3 have been 
prioritised, given a ranked score and delivery timescale, and grouped into one of eleven 
packages.  

5.1. Prioritisation of improvements 

A table has been produced (Table 5) which shows a prioritisation score/rank for each 
measure and a delivery timescale. The process for determining the prioritisation 
score/rank is separate to how the delivery timescale has been determined. That is to 
say, the delivery timescale has not influenced the prioritisation score/rank.  

To establish the prioritisation score/rank order of the improvements proposed in 
sections 3 and 3.3, they have been assessed against the following criteria: 

• Effectiveness: How effective is the measure? 

o Potential increase in cycling trips 

o Population who directly benefit from the improvement 

o Improvement in road safety 

 

• Policy: Is the measure policy compliant? 

o Supports connectivity to Strategic Development Areas (SDA) 

o Complementary to active travel users 

o Complementary to public transport 

 

• Deliverability: How deliverable is the measure? 

o Indicative cost 

o Funding potential 

o Physical constraints  

o Stakeholder acceptability 

 

• Environmental: What are the environmental impacts of the measure? 

o Impact on air quality 

o Impact on natural and historic environment 

 

• RST/WRAT Scoring: 

o Walking Route Assessment Tool 

o Route Selection Tool scoring 

 

Page 103



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

64 

 

Each measure has been scored against the criteria above on a scale of 0-2, with a total 
score of 28 available. Table 4 outlines the scoring requirements of each criterion. 

Table 4: Prioritisation criteria 

Effectiveness Source 0 1 2 

Potential increase 
in cycling trips 
(people cycling per 
day) 

Propensity to Cycle Tool 
– increase in people 
cycling for commutes and 
school travel  

Less than 50 50-100 More than 100 

Population who 
directly benefit 
from the 
improvement 

2020 Lower Super Output 
Area (LSOA) mid-year 
population within 400m of 
proposed measure20 

Less than 999 1000-1999 More than 2000 

Improvement in 
road safety 

Number of people 
walking, or cycling killed 
or seriously injured (KSI) 
in the same location as 
the proposed measure 
between 2017-2021 

No people 
walking or 

cycling KSI's 
along route 

People walking 
or cycling KSI's 
along route = 1 

People walking 
or cycling KSI's 

along route 
more than 2 

Policy  0 1 2 

Supports 
connectivity to 
Strategic 
Development 
Areas (SDA) 

Link to SDA 
Does not 

connect to a 
SDA 

Indirectly 
benefits/connects 

to SDA 

Provides direct 
link to SDA/lies 

within SDA 

Complementary to 
other Active Travel 
Users 

Benefits to people 
walking and cycling 

Negative impact 
to other active 
travel users 

No impact to 
other active 
travel users 

Strongly 
complements 
other active 
travel users 

Complementary to 
Public Transport 

Impact on buses, trains 
and other public transport 

Negative impact 
to public 
transport 

No impact to 
public transport 

Strongly 
complements 

public transport 
e.g. improves 
connections to 

bus 
stops/railway 

stations 

Deliverability  0 1 2 

Indicative cost 

A combination of 
indicative costs outlined 
in: 

• Figure 10 of the 
LCWIP guidance 

• Cycling measures, 
DfT 2017 

• Spons Civil 
Engineering & 
Highway Works Price 
Book 2022 

All costs were then 
amended to a 2021 cost 
inclusive of inflation  

High cost (More 
than £1.5m) 

Medium cost 
(£0.75m-£1.5m) 

Low cost (Less 
than £0.75m) 

 

20 No adjustments were made to population estimates to account for potential new developments in North and East Witney.  

Page 104



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

65 

 

Effectiveness Source 0 1 2 

Funding potential 

Whether the measure 
aligns to DfT’s Gear 
Change, including LTN 
1/20 Cycle Infrastructure 
Design compliance, and 
the likelihood of 
encouraging behavioural 
change. 

Funding very 
unlikely e.g.  

Medium 
likelihood of 

funding 

High likelihood 
of funding 

Physical 
constraints (land 
ownership, 
buildings) 

Whether the measure can 
be delivered within the 
Highway Boundary 

Significant 
constraints 

(bridges, land 
take etc) 

Some minor 
constraints (likely 

to be able to 
overcome) 

No physical 
constraints (no 
bridges, land 

take etc) 

Stakeholder 
acceptability 

Prioritisation exercise 
carried out with the 
Steering Group. 

Not supported 
by stakeholders 

Limited support 
by stakeholders 

Strongly 
supported by 
stakeholders 

Environmental  0 1 2 

Impact on air 
quality 

Whether the measure will 
have an impact on air 
quality/the environment 
and its proximity to Air 
Quality Management 
Areas 

Negative impact 
on air quality 

No impact to air 
quality 

Positive impact 
on air 

quality/falls 
within AQMA 

Impact on natural 
and historical 
environment 

Impact on green space 
and historic environments  

Loss of green 
space or 

vegetation (over 
and above 

highway verge) 
Street lighting 
impact to off-
road paths 

No impact on 
natural or historic 

environment 

Positive impact 
on natural or 

historic 
environment  

RST/WRAT 
Scoring 

 
0 1 2 

RST Scoring 
Score of the Route 
Selection Tool 
Assessment   

Less than 9 9 to 18 More than 18 

WRAT Scoring 
Score of the Walking 
Route Audit Tool  

More than 70% 35 to 70% Less than 35%  

Page 105



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

66 

 

A delivery timescale has also been determined for each measure as shown in Table 5. 

The delivery timescales are: 

• Short term (typically less than 3 years to deliver) – improvements which can be 
implemented quickly or are under development  

• Medium term (typically less than 5 years to deliver) – improvements where there is 
a clear intention to act, but delivery is dependent on further funding availability or 
other issues such as land acquisition or time to conduct design work 

• Long term (typically more than 5 years to deliver) – more aspirational improvements, 
or those awaiting a defined solution, or those with complex land acquisition, or those 
which take significant time to conduct design work 

Three factors have influenced the delivery timescale assessment. Firstly, the prioritisation 
score/rank. Low scoring/ranking improvements were prioritised for long term delivery while 
improvements that scored highly, which offer greater benefits, were prioritised for short term 
delivery. Secondly, consideration of whether a high scoring/ranking measure can practicably 
be delivered in the short term given the level of complexity of the scheme. Estimated 
construction cost has been used as proxy for complexity. Figure 21 outlines this process, 
where more costly improvements have been categorised to be delivered in the medium or 
long term.  

 

 

Figure 21: Cost adjusted delivery timescales 

 

Thirdly, where improvements were categorised for short- or medium-term delivery based on 
the scoring but are reliant upon a Local Plan Strategic Development Area (SDA) for delivery 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

No 

Estimated 
cost between 
£0.75m and 

£1.5m 

Change to long 
term  

Change to 
medium term  

Remains short 
term  

Short term 
improvement 

Estimated 
cost less 

than £0.75m 

Page 106



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

67 

 

for the benefits to be realised, they automatically became a long-term priority. At the time of 
writing, the East Witney or North Witney SDA do not have consented planning permission 
and are therefore unlikely to be delivering improvements on the ground in less than 5 years’ 
time.  

The prioritisation scoring/ranking will remain under review and may change if new funding 
or other opportunities become available to deliver the improvements sooner than planned. 

Figure 22 shows a map of the improvements by the short-, medium- and long-term delivery 
timescales. Wider cycle connections are shown in the larger scale plan in Figure 23.  

Table 5: Prioritised improvements in ranked order 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

7 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 
West 
End/Craw
ley Road 
junction 

Crossing to 
link Hailey 
Road and 
Woodford 
Mill cycle 
path (for 
cyclists and 
pedestrians) 

Highway 

18 1 Short 

2a Cycling 

Woodstoc
k Road, 
between 
Woodgre
en and 
Wood 
Green 
School 
access 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
on the 
western side 
of the 
Woodstock 
Road  

Highway 

16 =2 Short 

65 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 
Newland, 
in vicinity 
of PROW 
410/4 
entrance 
and 
Church 
Lane 

New parallel 
crossing on 
B4022 
Newland 

Highway 

16 =2 Short 

93 Cycling 
Ducklingt
on Lane 

Upgrade of 
existing 
segregated 
shared use 
footway/cycle
way along 
Ducklington 
Lane to 
footway with 
segregated 
two-way 
cycle track 

Highway 

16 =2 Medium 

Page 107



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

68 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

8 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Woodford 
Mill 
footpath 
between 
B4022 
West End 
and 
A4095 
Mill Street 

Provide 
lighting and 
raised 
path/boardw
alk along 
Woodford 
Mill (as liable 
to flooding) 

PROW 
410/45/10 

15 =5 Short 

9 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
link 
between 
B4022 
West End 
and 
A4095 
Mill Street 

90 degree 
overbridge. 
New 
bridge/alignm
ent to 
remove 
sharp turn 
and improve 
visibility 

PROW 
410/45/10 

15 =5 Short 

32 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Deer Park 
Road, 
south of 
Range 
Road 
linking 
Deer Park 
Road and 
the 
Bridleway 
410/44/10 

Controlled 
toucan or 
sparrow or 
Pegasus 
crossing  

Highway 

15 =5 Short 

40 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Curbridge 
Road/Duc
klington 
Lane/Wel
ch Way 

Roundabout 
with 
protected 
space for 
cycling (also 
known as a 
Dutch-style 
roundabout) 

Highway 

15 =5 Long 

44 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Shared 
use path 
east of 
Fettiplace 
Road 
PROW 
410/25/10 

Remove 
barriers or 
widen to 
safely allow 
for inclusive 
access 

PROW 
410/25/10 

15 =5 Short 

45 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
between 
Edington 
Road and 
Apley 
Way 
(south of 
West 
Witney 
Primary 
School) 

Re-surface 
path and 
lower 
manholes to 
footpath 
surface level 

PROW 
410/44/30 

15 =5 Short 

Page 108



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

69 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

PROW 
410/44/30 

47 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A415 
Ducklingt
on Lane 
in vicinity 
of Burwell 
Drive 

At-grade 
controlled 
crossing  

Highway 

15 =5 Short 

48 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A415 
Ducklingt
on Lane 

Shared use 
footpath/cycl
eway parallel 
to road as 
bypass to 
underpass 
and remove 
the need for 
users to 
traverse the 
gradients 

Highway 

15 =5 Short 

73 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
between 
Fettiplace 
Road and 
Tower Hill 

Add lighting 

PROW 
410/25/10 

15 =5 Short 

1 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 
Woodgre
en 

A formal 
crossing 
within the 
vicinity of 
Holy Trinity 
Church 

Highway 

14 =14 Short 

3a 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 
Witney 
Road, 
between 
Jubilee 
Way and 
North 
Leigh 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
between 
Jubilee Way 
and Common 
Road, North 
Leigh 

Highway 

14 =14 Long 

3c 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 
Witney 
Road, 
between 
North 
Leigh and 
Hanborou
gh Station  
 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
between 
Park Road 
and 
Hanborough 
Station 

Highway 

14 =14 Long 

5 Cycling 

B4022 
Hailey 
Road, 
between 
West End 
and 
Witney 
Communit

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
on the 
western side 
of Hailey 
Road 

Highway 

14 =14 Medium 

Page 109



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

70 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

y Primary 
School 
access 

10c 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
link from 
B4022 
Oxford 
Hill, in 
vicinity of 
Madley 
Brook 

Repair and 
possible 
widening/re-
alignment of 
bridges along 
the Madley 
Park/Park 
View Lane 
track 
between the 
cycle track 
and PROW 
410/4/10. 

PROW 
410/4/10 

14 =14 Medium 

10d 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Bridge 
between 
Woodban
k and 
Northfield 
Road 

Repair of 
bridge 
between 
Woodbank 
and 
Northfield 
Road 

Third 
party land 

14 =14 Medium 

11 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
link 
across 
Oxlease 
Park 
between 
Cogges 
Hill Road 
and 
Church 
Lane 

Widen 
existing 
footpath and 
extend to 
and Church 
Lane to 
accommodat
e cyclists 

PROW 
410/11/10 

and 
Highway 

14 =14 Short 

16 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

PRoW 
410/41/20
, east of 
Blakes 
Avenue 

Widen 
existing 
footpath 
where 
possible, re-
surface and 
add lighting 

PROW 
410/41/20 

14 =14 Long 

22 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

South of 
Witan 
Way 
roundabo
ut, 
between 
Station 
Lane and 
Two 
Rivers 
Trading 
Estate 

New toucan 
crossing, 
providing 
connection to 
new 
footpath/cycl
eway links 
(19 and 20) 

Highway 

14 =14 Long 

Page 110



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

71 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

41 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
linking 
Hyde 
Meadow 
View and 
Woodford 
Mill path 
(8) 

Upgrade 
existing 
footpath by 
raising up, 
re-surfacing 
and adding 
lighting. Re-
alignment 
and 
modifications 
to bridge also 
required. 

Third 
party land 

14 =14 Medium 

42 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Curbridge 
Road in 
the 
vicinity of 
the Tower 
Hill 
Cemetery 

New 
controlled 
crossing  

Highway 

14 =14 Short 

49 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A415 
Ducklingt
on Lane 

New links 
between 
Ducklington 
Lane and 
Queen 
Emma's 
Dyke 

Third 
party land 

14 =14 Short 

56 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Woodgre
en 
(Narrow 
Hill) 

Restrict 
motorised 
traffic to 
access only, 
in 
southbound 
direction and 
add signage 
to allow 
contra-flow 
cycling 

Highway 

14 =14 Short 

85 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095 
Burford 
Road 

Upgrade of 
existing 
segregated 
shared 
footway/cycle
way to 
footway and 
two-way 
segregated 
track 

Highway 

14 =14 Long 

95 Cycling 
Corn 
Street 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
on Corn 
Street 

Highway 

14 =14 Medium 

99 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Ducklingt
on Lane 
Roundab

Introduce 
sparrow 
crossings at 

Highway 
14 =14 Short 

Page 111



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

72 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

out, 
adjacent 
to A40 
western 
slips 

the 
roundabout. 
Crossings 
required on 
Ducklington 
Lane, A415 
and A40 slip 
roads (as a 
minimum). 
These could 
be 
standalone 
or as part of 
a junction 
signalisation. 

10a 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
link from 
B4022 
Oxford 
Hill, in 
vicinity of 
Madley 
Brook 

Resurfacing 
of Public 
Right of Way 
410/4/10 
running 
parallel to the 
Madley Park 
cycle track to 
allow cycling 

PROW 
410/4/10 

13 =30 Short 

10b 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
link 
between 
B4022 
Oxford 
Hill and 
Woodban
k  in 
vicinity of 
Newland 
allotments 

Ground 
lighting along 
section (circa 
75m) of path 
parallel to 
Newland 
allotments 

PROW 
410/4/10 

13 =30 Short 

12 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Cogges 
Hill Road, 
north of 
Blakes 
Avenue 

New toucan 
crossing to 
link 
pedestrians 
and cyclists 
to East 
Witney 
development 
and existing 
PRoW 410/7 

Highway 

13 =30 Long 

14 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Stanton 
Harcourt 
Road, 
between 
shared 
use path 

New raised 
controlled 
crossing 

Highway 

13 =30 Short 

18 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Farm Mill 
Lane, 
between 
Witan 

Re-surfacing, 
lighting and 
widening 
where 

PROW 
410/14/10 

13 =30 Short 

Page 112



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

73 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

Way and 
Church 
Green 

possible of 
shared use 
path  

23 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022, 
Oxford 
Hill, east 
of the 
Windrush 
Cemetery 

New toucan 
crossing  

Highway 

13 =30 Long 

25 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Stanton 
Harcourt 
Road, 
south of 
Eton 
Close  

New toucan 
crossing  

Highway 

13 =30 Long 

33 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Bridleway 
between 
Deer Park 
Road and 
Downs 
Road 

Widen, 
provide 
lighting and 
re-surface 
existing 
bridleway 

PROW 
410/44/10 

13 =30 Medium 

39 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Curbridge 
Road/Dee
r Park 
Road 

Roundabout 
with 
protected 
space for 
cycling (also 
known as a 
Dutch-style 
roundabout) 

Highway 

13 =30 Long 

43 Cycling 

Curbridge 
Road, 
between 
Deer Park 
Road and 
Tower Hill 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
on the 
northern side 
of Curbridge 
Road (likely 
to be shared 
in places 
near 
Fiveways 
Roundabout, 
where, due 
to crossing 
scheme 42, 
the cycle 
route is 
proposed on 
the southside 
approaching 
roundabout). 

Highway 

13 =30 Long 

46 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Tower Hill 
in the 
vicinity of 
Windrush 

New 
controlled 
crossing  

Highway 

13 =30 Short 

Page 113



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

74 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

Valley 
Road 

63 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Witan 
Way, 
between 
Station 
Lane and 
Two 
Rivers 
Trading 
Estate 

Upgrade of 
uncontrolled 
crossing to a 
controlled 
crossing, 
linking to 
employment 
and Job 
Centre 

Highway 

13 =30 Short 

64 Cycling 
Welch 
Way  

Realign 
hedgerow to 
accommodat
e space for a 
two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 

Highway 

13 =30 Short 

66 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
Newland 
Mill and 
Church 
Lane 

Re-surface 
path and 
widen 
footway to 
allow shared 
space (to 
reflect the 
meadow 
setting) 

PROW 
410/5/20 

13 =30 Short 

68 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Woodstoc
k Road, 
footpath 
adjacent 
to 
driveway 
for 120-
122 

Barriers filter 
cyclists 
towards blind 
entrance with 
residential 
drive. 
Realign 
barriers and 
add signage 
to warn of 
conflict 

Highway 

13 =30 Short 

75 Walking 
Woodford 
Way/Welc
h Road:  

Long wait 
time for 
pedestrians 
crossing 
Woodford 
Way at signal 
controlled 
junction. 
Review 
signal 
timings 

Highway 

13 =30 Short 

77 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
link at 
Spring 
Close 

Add lighting 

PROW 
410/20/10 

13 =30 Short 

Page 114



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

75 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

78 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
parallel to 
Gordon 
Way 

Widen where 
possible 

Third 
party land 

13 =30 Short 

81 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 
Oxford 
Hill/Jubile
e Way 

Upgrade 
junction to 
MOVA and 
review 
staging 

Highway 

13 =30 Short 

83 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Path 
connectin
g Downs 
Road and 
Centenar
y Way 
parallel to 
the A40 

Upgrade 
path to 
accommodat
e a shared 
footway/cycle
way 

Third 
party land 

13 =30 Long 

94 Cycling 
Thorney 
Leys 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
along 
Thorney 
Leys 

Highway / 
Third 

party land 
13 =30 Long 

98 Walking 

A4095 
Burford 
Road, in 
the 
vicinity of 
Windrush 
Valley 
Road 

New 
pedestrian 
crossing to 
help access 
bus stops 
east of 
Windrush 
Valley Road 

Highway 

13 =30 Short 

2b Cycling 

Woodstoc
k Road 
between 
Wood 
Green 
School 
and 
Jubilee 
Way 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
on the 
western side 
of the 
Woodstock 
Road 

Highway 

12 =52 Long 

3b 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

A4095, 
between 
Common 
Road and 
Park 
Road, 
North 
Leigh 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
on the 
western side 
of A4095  
past North 
Leigh, 
removing 
need to go 
through 
North Leigh 

Highway / 
Third 

party land 

12 =52 Long 

6 Cycling 
B4022 
Hailey 
Road, 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 

Highway / 
Third 

party land 
12 =52 Long 

Page 115



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

76 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

between  
Witney 
Communit
y Primary 
School 
access 
and 
Hailey 

Witney 
Community 
Primary 
School 
access and 
Hailey  

13 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Shared 
use path 
parallel to 
Stanton 
Harcourt 
Road 

Widening of 
existing 
segregated 
shared use 
footpath/cycl
eway 

Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

15 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Cogges 
Hill Road, 
between 
shared 
use path 

New raised 
controlled 
crossing 

Highway  

12 =52 Medium 

17 Cycling 

Witan 
Way 
between 
Des 
Roches 
Square 
(Sainsbur
y's 
access) 
and High 
Street 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
on the 
western side 
of Witan 
Way.  

Highway 

12 =52 Long 

26 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
Stanton 
Harcourt 
Road and 
PRoW 
410/41 
(East 
Witney 
SDA) 

New shared 
use 
footpath/cycl
eway  

Third 
party land 

12 =52 Long 

27 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
PRoW 
410/41 
and 
B4022 
Oxford 
Hill 

Upgrade of 
PRoW 
410/41 to a 
shared use 
footpath/cycl
eway from 
the East 
Witney site to 
B4022 
Oxford Hill 

PRoW 
410/41 

12 =52 Long 

28 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Witan 
Way/Far
m Mill 
Lane 

Upgrade 
existing 
uncontrolled 
crossing to a 
controlled 

Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

Page 116



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

77 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

crossing 
such as a 
raised tiger 
crossing. 

30 Cycling 

B4047 
Burford 
Road/Dee
r Park 
Road 
junction 

Upgrade 
pedestrian 
crossing to a 
toucan 
crossing 

Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

55 Walking 

Cogges 
Hill 
Road/Cog
ges Hill 
Road 

Uncontrolled 
crossing 
required 

Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

57 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
in the 
vicinity of 
Farmers 
Close 
(between 
numbers 
126 and 
148) 

Widen where 
possible and 
re-align 
barriers 

Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

67 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Multiple 
locations 

Wayfinding 
Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

69 Walking 

A4095 
Burford 
Road in 
vicinity of 
Moor 
Avenue 

Build-out 
within layby 
to make 
crossing 
movements 
safer and 
easier 

Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

71 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Path 
linking 
Cogges 
Hill 
Church 
and 
Church 
Lane 

Remove 
barriers 

PROW 
410/10/10 

12 =52 Medium 

74 Walking 

Moorland 
Road/Mo
or Ave 
junction 

Move 
uncontrolled 
crossing 
further into 
Moorland 
Road to 
provide safer 
crossing 

Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

80 Walking 

Witan 
Way, 
north of 
Waine 

Provide 
controlled 
pedestrian 
crossing 
north of 

Highway 

12 =52 Medium 

Page 117



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

78 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

Rush 
View 

Waine Rush 
View 

89 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
West 
End/Haile
y Road 
junction 
and 
Burford 
Road/Wo
odford 
Way 
junction 

West End 
Link 2 to 
include 
segregated 
walking and 
cycling 
routes 

Highway 

12 =52 Long 

19 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
Stanton 
Harcourt 
Road and 
Station 
Lane/Wita
n Way 

New shared 
use 
footpath/cycl
eway linking 
Stanton 
Harcourt Rd 
across open 
land to 
proposed 
new river 
crossing 
(21b)  

Third 
Party 
Land 

11 =70 Long 

20 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
Cogges 
Hill Road 
and 
Station 
Lane/Wita
n Way 

New shared 
use 
footpath/cycl
eway across 
open land to 
proposed 
new river 
crossing 
(21b) 

Highway / 
Third 

party land 

11 =70 Long 

21a 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
Station 
Lane/Wita
n Way 
and new 
river 
crossing 

Links 
between new 
river crossing 
and Station 
Lane/Witan 
Way and 
Farm Mill 
Lane 

PROW 
410/14/20 

and 
410/41/10 

and 
410/15/10 

11 =70 Long 

24 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

B4022 
Oxford 
Hill, 
between 
South 
Leigh and 
the new 
toucan 
crossing 
(23) 

New shared 
use 
footway/cycle
way on the 
southern side 
of Oxford Hill  

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

29 Cycling 
B4047 
Burford 

Upgrade 
pedestrian 

Highway 
11 =70 Medium 

Page 118



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

79 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

Road/Do
wns Road 
junction 

crossing to a 
toucan 
crossing 

38 Cycling 

Curbridge 
Road 
between 
Spring 
Meadow 
and Deer 
Park 
Road 

Reduce 
length of 
right-turn 
pocket and 
extend 
shared-use 
section to the 
roundabout 

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

58 Walking 

B4022 
Hailey 
Road 
between 
Farmers 
Close and 
Taphouse 
Avenue 

New 
uncontrolled 
crossing 
closer to the 
junction 

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

59 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
link 
between 
Eastfield 
Road and 
Vanner 
Road 

Widen cut 
through, 
where 
possible 

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

60 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Ashcomb
e Close 
link to 
Corn 
Street 

Widen gap in 
the wall and 
re-align 
footway/cycle
way 

Highway / 
Third 

party land 11 =70 Medium 

62 Walking 

Market 
Square, 
crossing 
on 
Langdale 
Gate/Cor
n Street 
roundabo
ut's 
southern 
arm 

Pedestrian 
crossing 
movements 
on south of 
Langdale 
Gate are 
unclear and 
can be 
confused 
with 
motorcycle 
parking.  
Enhance 
pedestrian 
areas to 
make 
crossing 
movements 
clearer 

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

70 Walking 

A4095 
Burford 
Road, 
east of 

Widen 
footway into 
adjacent 
verge 

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

Page 119



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

80 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

Springfiel
d Park 

72 Walking 

Tower Hill 
between 
Windrush 
Valley 
Road and 
Wilkinson 
Place 

Convert 
verge on 
western side 
of Tower Hill 
(between 
Windrush 
Valley Road 
and 
Wilkinson 
Place) to 
footway, 
providing 
continuous 
footway 
connection 

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

76 Walking 

Market 
Square 
western 
footway, 
south of 
Marlborou
gh Lane 

Review 
bollard 
locations and 
potential to 
extend build-
out to 
remove 
pinchpoint 

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

86 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Oxford 
Hill, 
between 
Cogges 
Hill Road 
and east 
of 
Windrush 
Cemetery 

New shared 
use 
footway/cycle
way on the 
southern side 
of Oxford Hill  

Highway 

11 =70 Medium 

87 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

King 
George's 
Field, 
north of 
Newland 

Shared use 
footpath/cycl
eway around 
King 
George's 
Field 

Third 
party land 

11 =70 Medium 

4 Walking 

Station 
Lane, in 
vicinity of 
Avenue 
One and 
Gordon 
Lane 

Provision of 
controlled 
crossing 

Highway 

10 =85 Long 

36 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
Colletts 
Way and 
Leslie 
Harvey 
Close 

New link 
between 
employment 
park and 
housing 
estate 

Third 
party land 

10 =85 Long 

Page 120



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

81 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

54 Walking 

Cogges 
Hill Road, 
north of 
Blakes 
Avenue 

Formalisation 
of western 
path by re-
surfacing 

Highway/ 
Third 

party land 10 =85 Long 

61 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footway 
between 
Moorland 
Road and 
Woodford 
Way 

Widen where 
possible, add 
lighting 

PROW 
410/24/20 

10 =85 Long 

88 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

New road 
linking 
Hailey 
Road and 
Woodstoc
k Road 
(part of 
North 
Witney 
SDA) 

New northern 
distributor 
road 

Highway/ 
Third 

party land 

10 =85 Long 

90 Cycling 

Witney 
Road, 
between 
Carterton 
and 
Witney 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
(some land 
take may be 
required) 

Highway/ 
Third 

party land 
10 =85 Long 

21b 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

East of 
Farm Mill 
Lane, 
over the 
River 
Windrush 

New 
southern 
river crossing 
(pedestrians 
and cyclists 
only) 

Third 
party land 

9 =91 Long 

31 Walking 

Deer Park 
Road, in 
the 
vicinity of 
the 
footpath 
south of 
Valence 
Crescent 

New 
uncontrolled 
pedestrian 
crossing  

Highway 

9 =91 Long 

34 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
between 
Downs 
Road and 
Book End 

Maintenance 
of vegetation, 
lighting 
required 

Highway 

9 =91 Long 

37 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Link 
between 
Downs 
Road and 
Chipmunk 
Drive/Coll
ege Place 

New link 
between 
Downs Road 
and housing 
estate 

Third 
party land 

9 =91 Long 

Page 121



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

82 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

50 Walking 

Footpath 
next to 
Lakeside 
Allotment
s 

Widen path 
where 
possible 

PROW 
194/16/10 

9 =91 Long 

51 Walking 

Footpath 
next to 
Lakeside 
Allotment
s 

Remove 
barriers 
(kissing 
gates) or 
widen to 
safely allow 
for inclusive 
access 

PROW 
194/16/10 

9 =91 Long 

52 Walking 

Witney 
Road, in 
the 
vicinity of 
Dale 
Walk, 
Ducklingt
on 

Uncontrolled 
crossing 
required, 
narrowing of 
carriageway 
and widening 
of footway 

Highway 

9 =91 Long 

53 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Shared 
use path 
parallel to 
B4047 
Burford 
Road 

Resurfacing 
of off-road 
path to 
provide 
smooth 
surface. 
Lighting also 
required  

Highway 

9 =91 Long 

79 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Downs 
Road/Cen
tenary 
Way 
roundabo
ut 

New toucan 
crossing 
across the 
southern arm 
of Downs 
Road to 
connect the 
two cycle 
routes (ref 83 
and 90) 

Highway 

9 =91 Long 

82 Walking 

West 
End, east 
of Hailey 
Road/We
st End 
roundabo
ut 

Add chicane 
on 
outbound/we
stbound 
carriageway 
to allow for 
footway 
widening at 
the 
pinchpoint 

Highway 

9 =91 Long 

97 Walking 

Cogges 
Hill 
Road/B40
22 Oxford 
Hill 

New footpath 
to the south 
of Oxford Hill 
between 
Oxford 
Hill/Jubilee 

Highway 

9 =91 Long 

Page 122



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

83 

 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 
Highway 
/ PROW 

Prioritisation 
Score 

Prioritisation 
Rank 

Delivery 
Timescale 

Way to 
Windrush 
Cemetery 

35 
Walking 

& 
Cycling 

Footpath 
between 
Book End 
and 
Range 
Road 

Widen 
existing path 

Third 
party land 

8 102 Long 

96 Cycling 
A415/Ast
on Mile 

Crossing on 
A415 
between 
Aston & 
Ducklington 
to link 
proposed 
routes 

Highway 

7 103 Long 

91 Cycling 

B4449 
Aston 
Road, 
between 
Bampton 
and Aston 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
(some land 
take may be 
required) 

Highway/ 
Third 

party land 
6 =104 Long 

92 Cycling 

Aston 
Mile,  
between 
Bampton 
and 
Ducklingt
on  

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
(some land 
take may be 
required) 

Highway/ 
Third 

party land 
6 =104 Long 

 

 

Page 123



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

84 

 

 

Figure 22: Proposed improvements by short, medium and long term delivery timescale - Witney

P
age 124



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

85 

 

 

Figure 23: Proposed improvements by short, medium and long term delivery timescale – Witney and surrounding area

P
age 125



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

86 

 

5.2. Packages of Improvements 

Whilst each improvement can be implemented as a standalone scheme, in some cases the 
proposals work together to improve a whole route. The improvements have been grouped 
into eleven geographical packages. Figure 24 illustrates the corridors/areas of packages 
across Witney.   

   

Figure 24: Delivery packages 

Figure 25 and Figure 26 show a more detailed breakdown of the improvements included 
within each package. 

Page 126



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

87 

 

 

Figure 25: East Witney delivery packages 

P
age 127



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

88 

 

 

Figure 26: West Witney delivery packages 

P
age 128



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

89 

 

Table 6 shows the breakdown of improvements within each package and the associated 
cost of delivering the whole package. The packages have not been prioritised in delivery 
order but have been grouped geographically along corridors or areas. The cost rank shows 
1 as the highest cost package and eleven as the lowest cost package. A more detailed 
version of table 6 is available in Appendix D.  

 Table 6: Total cost of packages 

 

The costs presented in Table 6 are estimates based on potential constructions costs and 
not including planning or contingency costs. They can be used as a guide; however, all 
improvements require feasibility design to ascertain a more accurate cost.   

5.3. Additional Schemes for Evaluation 

This section lists additional schemes recommended for entry into the Witney LCWIP by 
consultees. These will undergo site audits using the Walking Route Audit Tool and Route 
Selection Tool assessments as soon as possible to be able to enter them into Table 5: 
Prioritised improvements in ranked order and included in the delivery packages also. 
These are listed in no particular order.   

a) Safe, secure, covered cycle parking with CCTV surveillance. 
b) Increase seating/benches for rest stops, particularly on steep sections of routes.  
c) Review cycle parking at bus stops.  
d) Better walking routes through Witan Way (Waitrose) car park.  

 

21 Improvement 88 and 89 are not included in the cost estimate. 

Package Improvements Included 
Total Package 

Cost 
Cost 
Rank 

Woodstock Road 1, 2a, 2b, 3a, 3b, 3c, 56,68 £14,347,500 1 

Hailey Road 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 41, 57, 58, 59, 82 £5,940,875 6 

Burford Road 29, 30, 53, 69, 70, 85, 98 £6,013,000  5 

West Witney 32, 33, 44, 45, 46, 64, 72, 73, 75 £1,959,300 9 

Witney Road 38, 42, 43, 60, 62, 76, 79, 83, 90  £10,885,350 3 

Ducklington Lane 47, 48, 49, 93, 96, 99 £13,644,250 2 

South Witney 4, 50, 51, 52, 77, 78 £257,700  11 

Witan Way 17, 18, 22, 28, 63, 79, 80 £2,345,000  8 

East Witney 
11, ,12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 19, 20, 
21a, 21b, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 54, 
55, 71, 81, 86, 97 

£7,793,800 4 

Newland 66, 87 £564,500 10 

Madley Paths 10a, 10b, 10c, 10d, 65 £3,082,000 7 

Improvements not 
in packages 

31, 34, 35, 36, 37, 39, 40, 61, 
67, 74, 88, 89, 94 

£7,139,39021  
Not 

Applicable 

Page 129



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

90 

 

e) Improve riverside path from New Bridge Street to Crown Lane leading to Langel 
Common.  

f) Potential improvements to surface and signage of Public Right of Way 194/17a/10 
at Ducklington from the allotments to Witney Road.  

g) New walking and cycling route from Cogges Hill Road to Station Lane via the 
disused railway bridge over the river Windrush.  

h) Cycle infrastructure on Cogges Hill Road between Oxford Hill and Cogges. 
i) Improve cycling and walking access from Cogges and Ducklington to Rushy 

Common Nature Reserve and Tar Lakes e.g. via Tar Lane and via Witney Lake and 
Country Park. 

j) Footway from Church Lane, South Leigh to B4044 Oxford Hill.  
k) Cycle infrastructure on Newland and Oxford Hill  
l) Judds Close to be considered for walking improvements  
m) Station Lane southern side cycle path. 
n) Cycle infrastructure on Downs Road. 
o) The Leys – improved dedicated cycling and walking infrastructure. 
p) Review Station Lane Avenue 2 once the developer (S278) works are complete.  
q) Gap between Ducklington roundabout and the cycleway to the north, i.e. through 

the Windrush Industrial Estate.  
r) Alter crossing on Ducklington Lane in the vicinity of Pure Gym to separate people 

cycling and walking and allow people cycling to ride straight through onto Colwell 
Drive without using the footway. 

s) Witney to Eynsham cycle route via A40. 
t) Narrow Hill 2-way cycling (also known as contra-flow). 
u) General consideration of leisure routes and building these into cycling and walking 

networks. 

In addition, rental bike schemes and E-scooter hire were proposed from consultees. As 
these are not strictly infrastructure, but services, they fall outside of the Witney LCWIP, 
however, these will be considered for the Witney Area Travel Plan.  

 

5.4. Appraisal  

Each measure or package of improvements will require a business case, setting out how 
the improvement will meet the objectives and provide value for money. This will also be 
based on a preliminary design appraisal that will adhere to the latest design guidance, both 
national guidance such as LTN 1/20 and local guidance produced by OCC.  As it is not yet 
known which funding streams may be available to deliver the LCWIP improvements, no 
further appraisal has been undertaken at this stage. 

Every improvement will be subject to the appropriate formal consultation process. Any 
proposal on third party land will require agreement with the landowner before it is 
progressed. 

All schemes will also consider aspects such as the public realm, flooding and environmental 
sensitivity and how the scheme can incorporate and benefit these where appropriate.  

Page 130



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

91 

 

6. Integration and Application   

6.1. Embedding the Witney LCWIP 

The Oxfordshire Local Transport and Connectivity Plan and Witney Area Travel Plan 

The Witney LCWIP will form a key component of the Witney Area Travel Plan, which is a 

supporting document to LTCP. The Witney Area Travel Plan will identify how the policies in 

LTCP can be applied to the Witney area through a series of actions. These actions cover all 

types of transport, such as public transport and road schemes as well as cycling and walking.  

The improvements in this LCWIP are key actions that will improve cycling and walking in 

Witney and the surrounding area, contributing to healthy place shaping and addressing the 

climate emergency.  

 Figure 27: Linkages between LTCP and Witney LCWIP 

Figure 27 outlines how the Witney LCWIP supports the Witney Area Travel Plan, which in 
turn supports LTCP. The key policies from LTCP that the Witney LCWIP helps to address 
are also highlighted. In time, cycling and walking improvements will help in the delivery of 
many more policies within LTCP. Further details on LTCP policies can be found in 
Oxfordshire’s Local Transport and Connectivity Plan.22 

 

22 Oxfordshire County Council, Local Transport and Connectivity Plan, 2022, 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/connecting-oxfordshire/ltcp 

Page 131



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

92 

 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan update  

The Witney LCWIP will be used to inform the update to the current West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan. This update will cover the period up to 2041. 

Future developments 

The improvements identified in this LCWIP are required to facilitate sustainable travel in 

Witney and the surrounding area. It is important to embed sustainable travel choices from 

first occupation/ use of new developments (residential and commercial).  Contributions from 

developers will be sought and/ or developers will be requested to provide the improvements 

identified in this LCWIP where they relate to their development e.g., a connection between 

residential areas and key trip generators, or employment areas and residential areas. The 

contribution from developments will be proportionate to the impact the development will have 

on the transport network, environment, and community without improvements. Additional 

improvements may be identified as this LCWIP is reviewed or through the individual planning 

application processes.  

Funding bids 

The prioritised measure list in this LCWIP will support future funding bids, by guiding what 

funding should be sought and where it should be spent. This LCWIP provides an evidence-

based justification for the improvements proposed, which gives weight to the need for 

funding. Funding opportunities can arise from a variety of sources, including central 

government, Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership, planning obligations from 

development and internal OCC funds.  

Funded improvements 

Funding has been secured for the following proposed improvements shown in Table 7. 

 

Table 7: Proposed improvements with funding secured 

Ref 
no. 

Benefit 
to 

Location  Description 

33 
Walking & 
Cycling 

Bridleway between Deer Park 
Road and Downs Road 

Widen, provide lighting and re-surface existing 
bridleway 

32 Walking & 
Cycling 

Deer Park Road, south of Range 
Road linking Deer Park Road and 
the Bridleway 

Controlled toucan or sparrow or Pegasus crossing  

39 Walking & 
Cycling  

Curbridge Road/ Deer Park Road Controlled toucan or sparrow crossing (an interim 
measure with the aspiration being a roundabout 
with protected space for cycling (Dutch style 
roundabout) in this location for which funding is 
sought) 
 

Page 132



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

93 

 

76 Walking Market Square western footway, 
south of Marlborough Lane 

Review bollard locations and potential to extend 
build-out to remove pinch point 

100 Walking & 
Cycling 

High Street and Market Square 
from Welch Way to Church Green 

Active travel tranche 3 scheme - improve the 
public realm to make the High Street a more 
accessible, pleasant environment for people to 
walk, cycle and spend time. 

 

Initiatives to support infrastructure improvements  

To support the implementation of infrastructure improvements, initiatives will be needed that 

engage and empower the community to choose cycling and walking for journeys, as per 

Policy 7 of LTCP. These initiatives can include cycle hire schemes, cycle training, wayfinding 

and safe cycle storage. We will work with colleagues, such as those in public health, and 

local stakeholders to bring forward improvements, outside of, and in addition, to this LCWIP. 

This will also involve working with the local community to ensure that additional barriers to 

cycling and walking are addressed and thus solutions are locally based.  

6.2. Reviewing the Witney LCWIP  

This LCWIP will be regularly reviewed to ensure that progress is being made in achieving 

the vision for cycling and walking in Witney, and that the improvements reflect the needs of 

the community.  

To inform any updates to the Witney LCWIP, a public consultation will be held alongside 

engagement with stakeholders. In the meantime, any suggestions for improvements to 

cycling and walking in Witney can be made by contacting 

activetravelcherwellandwest@oxfordshire.gov.uk. These suggestions will be added to the 

list of additional schemes for evaluation. Depending on the outcome of this evaluation, they 

will be added to further iterations of the Witney LCWIP.  

Understanding changes in the number of people cycling and walking in association with the 

implementation of improvements, will be important in showing whether this LCWIP is 

effective. OCC have permanent cycle counters installed in Witney, which provide daily 

counts of people cycling at that location. These counts can then be compared over time. 

There are a range of methods for counting the number of people walking. These are often 

ad hoc surveys that are commissioned over a specified period e.g., one week, and make 

use of CCTV cameras. Surveys will take place on key routes where cycling and walking can 

be expected, and locations where improvements have been implemented.  

Stages of monitoring and review 

1. A baseline level of the current number of people cycling and walking will be 

established by using the permanent cycle counters and conducting walking surveys. 

 

2. The Witney LCWIP will be reviewed every 2 years. A supplementary document will 

be produced. This will include a review of progress against the LCWIP targets and 

Page 133

mailto:activetravelcherwellandwest@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

94 

 

local monitoring data for levels of cycling and walking in Witney and the level of 

change recorded in association with implemented improvements.  

 

3. The Witney LCWIP will be updated and re-issued, if necessary, to reflect the current 

situation and aspirations.  

Page 134



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

95 

 

7. Glossary 

Active travel  ‘Making journeys in physically active ways – like walking, 
wheeling (using a wheelchair or mobility aid), cycling, or 
scooting’.23 

Air Quality Management 
Area (AQMA) 

Areas where air pollution levels exceed the accepted national 
air quality objectives. 

All bike types Refers to all forms of bicycle including standard bikes, cargo 
bikes, tandem bikes, and tricycles etc. 

Appraisal  An assessment  

Areas of deprivation  Areas that do not have something that is essential for day-to-
day life and where there are less opportunities compared to 
other areas 

At-grade controlled 
crossing  

A signalised (traffic light) crossing across a road 

Audit The examination of something against set criteria  

Boardwalk  An elevated path often made of wood 

Bridleway  A path or track where horse riders have right of way which 
can also be used for walking and cycling 

Conservation Area An area of historic, architectural or rural significance that has 
been designated for protection. This places restrictions on the 
changes that can be made in the area. 

Contraflow cycle lane  A cycle lane which allows people cycling to travel in the 
opposite direction to other traffic. Often used on one-way 
roads to allow people cycling a direct passage along the 
road.24 

Department for Transport 
(DfT)  

The government department responsible for the English 
transport network 

Desire lines The most direct route for people cycling or walking to travel; 
this may not be a formal path 

Dropped kerbs  Features to facilitate non-stepped access to allow 
wheelchair/mobility aid users and people with pushchairs to 
cross the road unimpeded. 

 

23  Paths for all, About Active Travel, https://www.pathsforall.org.uk/about-active-travel 

24 Photo credit: TSRGD 2016, Diagram 960.2 

Page 135



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

96 

 

Dutch-style roundabout  As the name suggests, this type of roundabout has been 
inspired by the Dutch, with a priority lane for people 
cycling around the outside of the roundabout and 
controlled crossings on each arm of the junction for 
people walking. Vehicles are expected to give way to 
people cycling and walking crossing at the entry/exit 
arms of the roundabout. 

Feasibility How easy something is to do 

Footway buildout   Widenings of footways that run beside a carriageway to 
provide greater space for people walking to wait, to reduce 
the crossing distances or to improve the visibility between 
people walking and other road users.   

Formal pedestrian crossing  A signal-controlled crossing for people walking across a road 

Guard railing  Safety features often made of metal that are placed on a path 
to slow down people cycling and walking to prevent conflict 
between different users and alert to hazards including a road. 

Highway boundary  The extent of the highway and land owned, managed or 
controlled by the highway authority 

Isochrone  A line on a map or diagram that connects places that take the 
same time to travel to from a specified point 

Killed or seriously injured 
(KSI) 

Standard metric used to measure road safety 

Kissing gate  A gate that allows people but not livestock to pass through 
and has a standard gate and half-round or V-shape feature 

Land take  An area of land required for infrastructure  

Link footway  Linking local access footways through urban areas and busy 
rural footways 

Local access footways  Footways associated with low usage, short estate roads to 
the main roads and cul-de-sacs 

Local cycling and walking 
infrastructure plan (LCWIP) 

Strategic policy documents that identify improvements to 
active travel infrastructure at the local level 

Local cycle connection  Cycle route where lower flows of people cycling are forecast 
along desire lines that cater for local cycle trips, often 
providing links to primary or secondary desire lines 

Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) 

Voluntary partnerships between local authorities and 
businesses 

Page 136



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

97 

 

Local Transport and 
Connectivity Plan (LTCP) 

Oxfordshire County Council’s new Local Transport Plan 
(2022) 

Long term  Typically more than 5 years – more aspirational 
improvements or those awaiting a defined solution 

Lower Super Output Area 
(LSOA) 

A geographic area that has a population of approximately 
1,500 and is based on Census data 

Medium term  Typically less than 5 years – improvements where there is a 
clear intention to act, but delivery is dependent on further 
funding availability or other issues. 

Network plan A map showing routes for cycling and walking and how these 
connect together between origins and destinations  

Non-committed  Used to describe a proposed development site which does 
not yet have planning permission approved.  

Pegasus crossing A type of controlled crossing that caters to people riding 
horses as well as people walking and cycling. 

Pelican crossing  A type of controlled pedestrian crossing. These are signalised 
(traffic light) crossings and require people walking to press 
the button and wait for the green man to appear before 
crossing the road. 

Permanent cycle counters  OCC owned counters on roads that continuously count how 
many people are cycling at that location. This data is 
projected onto an online platform that can then be analysed.  

Place shaping  Multi-faceted approach to creating public places that support 
health, well-being and happiness and increase people's 
connection to the place, thereby maximising the shared value 
of public places. 

Prestige/primary walking 
route 

Very busy areas of town, with high public space and street 
scene contribution and main walking routes 

Primary cycle connection High flows of people cycling are forecast along desire lines 
that link large residential areas to trip attractors such as town 
centre 

Propensity to Cycle Tool 
(PCT) 

A tool that shows routes where cycling is currently common 
and routes where there is the potential for cycling to increase 

Public Rights of Way 
(PRoW) 

Network of routes where public use is legally protected 

Public transport  Transport that is available to the public for a set fare and 
includes buses and trains 

Puffin crossing  A type of controlled pedestrian crossing. These are signalised 
(traffic light) crossings similar to Pelican crossings in that they 

Page 137



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

98 

 

require people walking to press the button. However, they are 
more advanced than Pelican crossings as they can detect 
people walking in the waiting area and also whilst they are 
crossing the road.  

Raised table  A raised table is a form of traffic calming which aims to slow 
the speed of vehicles and to emphasise features such as 
crossing points. They are sometimes used at the entry of a 
side road to provide a level surface for people walking to 
cross the road without the need for dropped kerbs.    

Refuge island A small area of footway in the centre of the road to allow 
people walking to cross in two stages. Refuge islands are 
usually found on roads with higher speeds and greater 
numbers of vehicles where crossing in a single movement is 
more difficult. 

Route Selection Tool (RST) A tool for assessing the suitability of a route in its existing 
condition against the core design outcomes to identify where 
improvements need to be made 

Rural hinterland  The rural area surrounding a town or city 

Secondary cycle 
connection 

Medium flows of people cycling are forecast along desire lines 
that link to trip attractors such as schools, colleges and 
employment sites 

Secondary walking route   Medium, usage routes through local areas feeding into 
primary routes, local shopping centres, etc 

Service centre A place that provides a range of everyday services such as 
shops, schooling and medical to many people living both in 
the immediate area and further afield who lack services where 
they live 

Service road A road that runs parallel to the main road and provides access 
to properties 

Segregated cycle track  A cycle facility physically segregated from vehicles and 
people walking 

Segregated shared 
footway/cycleway  

A footway that legally allows cycling, with separate spaces for 
people walking and cycling. Segregation is usually light and 
consists of signage and markings. 

Shared use 
footway/cycleway  

Shared use paths allow people cycling and walking to share 
the space, although people walking have priority. These 
paths are identified by a blue circle with a white symbol of 
people walking and a bike.25 

 

25 Photo credit: TSRGD 2016, Diagram 956 

Page 138



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

99 

 

Sheffield cycle stand A metal cycle stand that is inverted U shaped 

Short term  Typically less than 3 years – improvements which can be 
implemented quickly or are under development 

Sparrow crossing  A sparrow crossing is the same as a tiger crossing; however, 
it is at a signal-controlled (traffic light) junction26 

Steering group  A group of local stakeholders and council officers, which 
gathers to discuss progress and ideas and ensures that local 
views are represented 

Strategic Development 
Areas (SDA)  

A large-scale site that has been allocated for development of 
houses and/or employment. This is included within the local 
plan. 

Tactile paving  There are different types of tactile paving with the purpose 
providing a warning to visually impaired people who would 
otherwise find it difficult to differentiate between where the 
footway ends, and the carriageway begins. 

Tiger crossing (Parallel crossing) – A tiger crossing consists of a zebra 
crossing with a parallel priority space for people cycling to 
cross. 

Topography  The natural form and features of an area 

Toucan crossing  A signal-controlled (traffic light) crossing that allows people 
walking and cycling to cross together. Toucan crossings are 
usually wider than standard pedestrian crossings to 
accommodate people cycling safely.   

Trip generator An area or place people travel from and to 

Uncontrolled pedestrian 
crossing    

Unlike controlled crossings, people walking must wait for 
traffic to stop or for a suitable gap in order to cross the road. 
These crossings may include dropped kerbs, tactile paving 
and a refuge island.  

Walking Route Audit Tool 
(WRAT) 

A tool developed to assess the condition and suitability of 
walking routes. This requires evaluation of features along the 
route including crossings and dropped kerbs. 

Wayfinding  Signage to support people walking and cycling navigate their 
way around a place 

Wheeled users People who use a mobility scooter or wheelchair instead of 
walking. Also includes people with pushchairs and who travel 

 

26 Photo credit: https://www.stockport.gov.uk/news/stockports-first-bee-network-scheme-which-will-be-part-
of-greater 

Page 139



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

100 

 

by small, self-propelled wheeled modes such as skateboards, 
rollerblades and scooters.  

Zebra crossing  A type of controlled pedestrian crossing. These crossings are 
marked out by black and white stripes across the road with 
flashing beacons and zig zag markings. 

 

Page 140



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

1 

 

Witney Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan  

 

Appendix A:  

Background information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
            

Page 141



Contents 

Figures ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Tables .................................................................................................................................. 4 

1. Policy context detail ....................................................................................................... 5 

2. Deprivation .................................................................................................................. 12 

3. Health .......................................................................................................................... 14 

4. Conservation area ....................................................................................................... 15 

5. Air Quality Management Area ..................................................................................... 17 

6. Flood risk ..................................................................................................................... 18 

7. Current travel patterns ................................................................................................. 20 

8. Traffic flows ................................................................................................................. 21 

9. Collision statistics ........................................................................................................ 24 

10. Propensity to Cycle Tool .......................................................................................... 27 

11. Trip generators ......................................................................................................... 32 

12. Future development and transport schemes ............................................................ 35 

13. Let’s Talk consultation findings ................................................................................ 36 

 

  

Page 142



Figures 

Figure 1: IMD overall index for Witney                                                                               12 

Figure 2: IMD barriers to housing and services domain index for Witney and surrounding 
area                                                                                                                                     13 

Figure 3: Witney Conservation Area                                                                                  15 

Figure 4: Witney AQMA                                                                                                     17 

Figure 5: Risk of flooding in Witney                                                                                   18 

Figure 6: Risk of flooding in Witney and surrounding areas                                              19 

Figure 7: Witney primary modes of transport for travel to work                                         20 

Figure 8: Example congestion map – central Witney, a typical weekday (Thursday) AM 
peak (08:30)                                                                                                                        21 

Figure 9: Cycle collision locations in Witney                                                                      25 

Figure 10: Locations of collisions involving people walking in Witney                               26 

Figure 11: Number of people cycling on routes in Witney and Ducklington: baseline 2011 
Census                                                                                                                                27 

Figure 12: Propensity to Cycle – Government Target (equality) Scenario, Fast Routes   28 

Figure 13: Propensity to Cycle – Gender Equality Scenario, Fast Routes                        29 

Figure 14: Propensity to Cycle – Go Dutch Scenario, Fast Routes                                   30 

Figure 15: Propensity to Cycle – Ebikes Scenario, Fast Routes                                       31 

Figure 16: Key trip generators in Witney                                                                            32 

Figure 17: Summary of public consultation responses                                                      36 

Figure 18: Key problem areas clustered                                                                            37 

 

 

Page 143



Tables 

Table 1: Policy, strategies, and guidance detail                                                                   5 

Table 2: Traffic flows in Witney and the surrounding area                                                 22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 144



1. Policy context detail 

Table 1: Policy, strategies, and guidance detail  

 Key Points 

National Policy / 
Strategy / Guidance 

 

Future of Mobility: 
Urban Strategy – 
Moving Britain Ahead 
(DfT, 2019)1 

This Strategy outlines how urban mobility can be transformed 
through innovation to help deliver social, economic and 
environmental benefits. Key to achieving this transformation 
includes: 

• ensuring cycling and walking are the first mode choice for 

short journeys;  

• promoting innovation to reduce congestion and more 

efficiently use road space, such as through ride sharing;  

• promoting transport modes that contribute to the zero 

carbon emissions transition; and 

• creating an integrated transport system combining public, 

private and multiple modes. 

The Transport 
Investment Strategy: 
Moving Britain Ahead 
(2017)2 

The Strategy supports the growth of businesses and outlines 
how this will be achieved by maintaining and delivering high 
quality transport infrastructure. This includes creating a more 
reliable, connected and less congested transport network.  
Highlighted also, is a need to remain adaptable in an 
increasingly unpredictable and changing world, whilst 
prioritising health and the environment in decisions. 
Decision making at the local level is devolved to local 
authorities and their communities. However, funding can be 
sought from central government for schemes that deliver 
national priorities, such as encouraging more walking and 
cycling. 

Inclusive Transport 
Strategy: Achieving 

Highlighted in the Strategy is the importance of ensuring 
people with disabilities have equal access to transport. The 
Government identify a programme of monitoring and 
evaluation to aid this.  

 

1 Department for Transport, Future of Mobility: Urban Strategy, Moving Britain Ahead, 2019, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/846593/fu
ture-of-mobility-strategy.pdf  

2 Department for Transport, Transport Investment Strategy, Moving Britain Ahead, 2017, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/918490/Tr
ansport_investment_strategy.pdf  

Page 145

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/846593/future-of-mobility-strategy.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/846593/future-of-mobility-strategy.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/918490/Transport_investment_strategy.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/918490/Transport_investment_strategy.pdf


equal access for 
disabled people (2018)3 

Inclusive Mobility: A 
guide to best practice 
on access to pedestrian 
and transport 
infrastructure (DfT, 
2021)4 

Guidance is provided on how to make transport infrastructure 
suitable for people with disabilities. This in turn ensures that 
the public realm is accessible for people with disabilities.  

Cycling and Walking 
Investment Strategy 
(DfT, 2017)5 

The Strategy outlines Government’s ambition to make cycling 
and walking the natural choice for shorter journeys, or as part 
of longer journeys by 2040. Emphasis is placed on improving 
the safety of streets for cycling and supporting more school 
children to cycle.   

Gear Change: A bold 
vision for cycling and 
walking (DfT, 2020)6 

This plan reinforces the value of cycling and walking for 
health and wellbeing, the environment and the economy.  To 
optimise these benefits, ambitious targets are set for cycling 
and walking in England including: 

• cycling and walking becoming the natural choice for short 

journeys, with half of all journeys in towns and cities cycled 

or walked by 2030;  

• providing everybody with the opportunity to cycle or walk 

to address inequalities; and 

• creating safe streets where people feel confident to cycle. 

The following actions and design principles will help realise 
this ambition: 

• cycle infrastructure should be accessible for everyone; 

• cycle tracks that are physically separated from all other 

modes of travel on roads and at junctions; 

• cyclists must be treated as vehicles, not pedestrians;  

 

3 Department for Transport, The Inclusive Transport Strategy: Achieving Equal Access for Disabled People, 
2018, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728547/in
clusive-transport-strategy.pdf  

4 Department for Transport, Inclusive Mobility – A Guide to Best Practice on Access to Pedestrian and 
Transport Infrastructure, 2021, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1044542/i
nclusive-mobility-a-guide-to-best-practice-on-access-to-pedestrian-and-transport-infrastructure.pdf  

5 Department for Transport, Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy, 2017, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/918442/cy
cling-walking-investment-strategy.pdf  

6 Department for Transport, Gear Change: A bold vision for cycling and walking, 2020, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/g
ear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf  

Page 146

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728547/inclusive-transport-strategy.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728547/inclusive-transport-strategy.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1044542/inclusive-mobility-a-guide-to-best-practice-on-access-to-pedestrian-and-transport-infrastructure.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1044542/inclusive-mobility-a-guide-to-best-practice-on-access-to-pedestrian-and-transport-infrastructure.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/918442/cycling-walking-investment-strategy.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/918442/cycling-walking-investment-strategy.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904146/gear-change-a-bold-vision-for-cycling-and-walking.pdf


• cycling, walking and bus corridors created through low 

traffic neighbourhoods  

• implement school streets; 

• create zero-emission zones; 

• removal of barriers on existing cycle routes   

• infrastructure that caters for a high number of people 

cycling;  

• connecting routes to produce a continuous, direct, logical 

and coherent network;  

• increase cycle parking and locate it where it is needed; 

• wayfinding to assist navigation of routes;  

• promotion of cycling for freight; 

• cycling and walking prescribed by GPs 

• improved cycle training opportunities for everybody; and 

• increased funding opportunities for local authorities for 

schemes that meet the strict criteria outlined in the plan. 

Cycle Infrastructure 
Design, Local Transport 
Note 1/20 (DfT, 2020)7 

LTN 1/20 provides guidance for the design of cycle 
infrastructure. The key principles of the guidance include: 

• ensuring cycle infrastructure is accessible for everyone; 

• treating cycles as vehicles and providing space for people 

to cycle that is separate from people walking; 

• physically separating people cycling from motor vehicles at 

junctions and on roads;  

• designing cycle infrastructure for a high number of people 

cycling and for all types of cycles; 

• considering the closure of side streets as an alternative to 

main road routes for people cycling; 

• providing cycle parking in sufficient amounts at the places 

where people want to go; and 

• consistent, logical, direct and comfortable routes must be 

provided. 

Cycle networks and routes should be designed so that they 
are: 

• coherent; 

 

7 Department for Transport, Cycle Infrastructure Design, Local Transport Note 1/20, 2020, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/951074/cy
cle-infrastructure-design-ltn-1-20.pdf  

Page 147

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/951074/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-1-20.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/951074/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-1-20.pdf


• direct;  

• safe; 

• comfortable; and 

• attractive. 

Guidance is also provided on appropriate widths of cycle 
lanes/ paths and, speed limits, crossings and junction 
arrangements. These should be adhered to where possible. 

Local Cycling and 
Walking Infrastructure 
Plans – Technical 
Guidance for Local 
Authorities, (DfT, 2017)8 

Guidance for producing LCWIPs. This recommends an 
approach that follows six stages – determining scope, 
gathering information, network planning of cycling, network 
planning for walking, prioritising improvements and integration 
and application. 

Decarbonising 
Transport: A Better, 
Greener Britain (DfT, 
2021)9 

This plan sets out how the government will decarbonise the 
transport system and the role of different players, including 
local authorities, in achieving this. Active travel is a key 
component of the government’s strategy for establishing a net 
zero transport system, setting the following targets: 

• half of all journeys in towns and cities will be cycled or 

walked by 2030 

• a world class cycling and walking network in England will 

be delivered by 2040 

Emphasis is also placed on reallocating road space for 
sustainable modes, the opportunities Low Traffic 
Neighbourhoods provide for cycling and walking and the 
importance of soft measures to support infrastructure. 

Regional and Local 
Policy / Strategy / 
Guidance 

 

Oxfordshire County 
Council’s 
Local Transport and 
Connectivity Plan 
(LTCP) (2022)10 and 

LTCP sets a vision for Oxfordshire’s transport system to be 
inclusive, safe and net-zero ‘by reducing the need to travel 
and private car use through making walking, cycling, public 
and shared transport the natural first choice’ by 2050 (page 
5). There are key themes of environment, health, health place 

 

8 Department for Transport, Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans – Technical Guidance for Local 
Authorities, 2017, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908535/cy
cling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance-document.pdf  

9 Department for Transport, Decarbonising Transport: A Better, Greener Britain, 2021, 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1009448/
decarbonising-transport-a-better-greener-britain.pdf  

10 Oxfordshire County Council, Local Transport and Connectivity Plan, 2022, 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-
oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf  

Page 148

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908535/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance-document.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908535/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance-document.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1009448/decarbonising-transport-a-better-greener-britain.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1009448/decarbonising-transport-a-better-greener-britain.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf


accompanying Active 
Travel Strategy (2022)11 

shaping, productivity, connectivity and inclusivity to support 
the vision.  
 
Key policies (condensed for inclusion in this document) to 
achieve the above objectives include: 
Policy 01: Promote a transport user hierarchy that prioritises 
walking, followed by cycling and riding, public transport, 
motorcycles, shared vehicles and finally mortised modes in 
transport schemes, development proposals and policies. 
Policy 02: Develop comprehensive walking and cycling 
networks   
Policy 03: Develop Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 
Plans… according to national guidance and best practice with 
the aim of increasing walking and cycling activity  
Policy 07: Oxfordshire County Council will ensure that 
improvements to cycling and walking networks and access to 
green infrastructure are supported by community activation 
measures  
Policy 08: Embed the Healthy Streets approach  
Policy 13: Develop 20-minute neighbourhood concept  
Policy 15: Adopt a vision zero approach, which seeks to 
eliminate all fatalities and severe injuries on Oxfordshire’s 
roads and streets 
Policy 22: Consider multi-modal travel as a central option for 
transport planning  
Policy 27: Net-zero transport network by 2040 
Policy 33: Ensure the parkin requirements of all modes of 
transport are considered  
 
Active Travel Strategy - a component of LTCP. 
This sets a vision for ‘Oxfordshire towns and villages to be 
places where most residents choose active and healthy travel 
(walking and cycling) as the natural first choice for making 
most of their local journeys and many of their longer 
journeys’. The aim is to increase the number of cycle trips in 
Oxfordshire from 600,000 to 1 million cycle trips per week by 
2031. As part of this West Oxfordshire must increase cycle 
trips per week from 50,000 to 100,000.  
 
This document sets out how an increase in walking and 
cycling will be achieved through street and infrastructure 
design. 

 

11 Oxfordshire County Council, Active Travel Strategy, 2022, 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-
plans/ActiveTravelStrategy.pdf  

Page 149

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-plans/ActiveTravelStrategy.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-plans/ActiveTravelStrategy.pdf


Oxfordshire Walking 
Design Standards, 
Oxfordshire County 
Council (2017)12 

Guidance is provided on the design of walking infrastructure 
to support a greater uptake of walking by all. Included are 
standards on footway widths and appropriate crossings. 

Oxfordshire Cycling 
Design Standards, 
Oxfordshire County 
Council (2017)13 

Guidance is provided on the design of cycling infrastructure to 
support a greater uptake of cycling by all. Included are 
standards on cycle lane widths, crossings and road speeds. 

Climate Action 
Framework, Oxfordshire 
County Council (2020)14 

Objectives for Oxfordshire are identified in response to the 
climate crisis, these include:  

• normalising active travel and making this accessible to all;  

• reducing emissions by 50% by 2030; and 

• achieving net zero by 2050. 

Oxfordshire Strategic 
Vision for Long-term 
Sustainable 
Development (2021)15 

The Vision for Oxfordshire is the transformation of movement 
and connectivity by 2050 so that the economic, social and 
environmental wellbeing of people and places is enhanced. 
Emphasis is placed on being carbon neutral, digital 
connectivity and sustainable travel. 

Oxfordshire Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy 
(2018-2023) (2019)16 

Sets out how residents’ health and wellbeing can be improved 
and includes the following objectives/ aims relevant to 
transport: 

• promoting physical activity including active; travel to 

prevent illness and improve health 

• tackling inequality, including by improving access to 

opportunities; and  

• promoting healthy place making. 

 

12 Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire Walking Design Standards, 2017, 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-
plans/walkingstandards.pdf  

13 Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire Cycling Design Standards, 2017, 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-
plans/cyclingstandards.pdf  

14 Oxfordshire County Council, Climate Action Framework, 2020, 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/about-
council/OCC_Climate_Action_Framework2020.pdf  

15 Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire’s Strategic Vision for Long-Term Sustainable Development, 
2020, https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s55528/CA_APR2021R05%20Appendix%201%20-
%20Strategic%20Vision.pdf  

16 Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2018-2023), 2019, 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/constitution/oxfordshirejointhwbstrategy.pdf  

Page 150

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-plans/walkingstandards.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-plans/walkingstandards.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-plans/cyclingstandards.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-policies-and-plans/cyclingstandards.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/about-council/OCC_Climate_Action_Framework2020.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/about-council/OCC_Climate_Action_Framework2020.pdf
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s55528/CA_APR2021R05%20Appendix%201%20-%20Strategic%20Vision.pdf
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s55528/CA_APR2021R05%20Appendix%201%20-%20Strategic%20Vision.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/constitution/oxfordshirejointhwbstrategy.pdf


West Oxfordshire Local 
Plan 2031 (2018)17 

The West Oxfordshire Local Plan sets out a vision for the 
District that includes alleviating traffic congestion, improving 
air quality and journey times by reducing the reliance on 
private vehicles by encouraging walking, cycling and the use 
of public transport. 

This is supported by core objectives including:  

CO11: maximising the opportunity for walking, cycling and 
use of public transport. 
CO15: contributing to a reduction in the causes and adverse 
impacts of climate change. 
Key policies to achieve this vision include: 
Policy OS1: Presumption in favour of sustainable 
development  
Policy T1 Sustainable Transport: priority will be given to 
new developments in areas with convenient access where the 
need to travel by private car can be minimised due to 
opportunities for walking, cycling and the use of public 
transport. 
Policy T2 Highway Improvement Schemes: identifies that 
new developments will be required to ‘demonstrate safe 
access and an acceptable degree of impact on the local 
highway network’. 
Policy T3 Public Transport, Walking and Cycling: 
identifies all new developments will be located and designed 
to maximise opportunities for walking, cycling and public 
transport and help reduce car use as appropriate.    
Policy EH4 Public Realm and Green Infrastructure: public 
space and green infrastructure will be protected and 
enhanced due to the multi-functional role of such. 

 

 

17 West Oxfordshire District Council, West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, 2018, 
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/feyjmpen/local-plan.pdf  

Page 151

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/feyjmpen/local-plan.pdf


2. Deprivation  

There are areas of deprivation in Witney. Three areas in central, east and south Witney are 
within the 40% most deprived nationally, according to the 2019 Indices of Multiple 
Deprivation overall index (Figure 1) (Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), 2019).18 19 
Furthermore, all wards in Witney were estimated to have over 20% of children living in 
poverty in 2019 (Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment).20  

 

 

Deprivation is also apparent across Witney and the rural hinterland when considering 
barriers to housing and services, including distance to services (Figure 2) (IMD, 2019).21  

 

18 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, Index of Multiple Deprivation, 2019, 
https://public.tableau.com/views/IMD2019Oxfordshire/IMD2019?:embed=y&:display_count=no&:showVizHo
me=no#1  

19 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (see notation 18) 

20 Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – Witney Community profile of Health and Wellbeing 
evidence, 2021, https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/system/files/documents/Witney_profile_Feb21.pdf  

21 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (see notation 18)  

Figure 1: IMD overall index for Witney  

(Source: IMD, 2019; OpenStreetMap, 2022). 

Page 152

https://public.tableau.com/views/IMD2019Oxfordshire/IMD2019?:embed=y&:display_count=no&:showVizHome=no#1
https://public.tableau.com/views/IMD2019Oxfordshire/IMD2019?:embed=y&:display_count=no&:showVizHome=no#1
https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/system/files/documents/Witney_profile_Feb21.pdf


  

 

Figure 2: IMD barriers to housing and services domain index for Witney and 
surrounding area 

Source: IMD, 2019. OpenStreetMap, 2022 

Page 153



3. Health 

There are high levels of physical activity for most wards in Witney, although levels are below 
West Oxfordshire District, Oxfordshire County and England averages in central Witney 
(Sports England, 2019).22 Having a physically active population presents an opportunity for 
more trips to be made by active means, and it is important to understand how cycling and 
walking improvements can support this.  

Increased active travel will also help to address childhood obesity. In Witney levels are equal 
to or below the England average of 28.5% (measure taken at Reception and Year 6) (Public 
Health England, 2019).23  Obesity is said to be higher in deprivation areas, further supporting 
the case for high quality cycling and walking provision in these areas (see Figures 1 and 2)  

 

 

 

22 Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (see notation 20) 

23 Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (see notation 20)  

 

Page 154



4. Conservation area 

Witney town centre is designated as a conversation area, which includes architecturally and 
historically significant sites that are protected (Figure 3).24 This limits the changes that can 
be made in some locations. 

 

 

24 West Oxfordshire District Council, Conservation area maps, 2017, https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-
and-building/historic-buildings-and-conservation/conservation-area-maps/  

Figure 3: Witney Conservation Area 

Source: (West Oxfordshire District Council, 2017) 

Page 155

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/historic-buildings-and-conservation/conservation-area-maps/
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/historic-buildings-and-conservation/conservation-area-maps/


In addition, Witney is located on the River Windrush in the Windrush Valley, which is also 
designated as a Conservation Area due to its rural nature and importance to wildlife. Witney 
is largely surrounded by environmentally sensitive rural areas and immediately south is the 
Lower Windrush Valley Project Area, of significance both for biodiversity and recreation. 
This further adds to the character of the town and presents opportunities and challenges for 
cycling and walking. 

Page 156



5. Air Quality Management Area 

 

 

One consequence of congestion in Witney is the high concentration of harmful pollutants 
emitted from motor vehicles. This has resulted in nitrogen dioxide levels exceeding the 
acceptable national standard on A4095 Bridge Street. Consequently, the A4095 Bridge 
Street and the junctions with New Yatt Road, B4022 Newland, A4095 Mill Street and High 
Street being classified as an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) (Figure 4).25 Action 
must be taken to reduce the level of pollution in the area and the detrimental effect on health. 

 

25 Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, AQMA Details, 2005, https://uk-
air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/details?aqma_ref=280  

Figure 4: Witney AQMA 

Source: Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, 
2005 

Page 157

https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/details?aqma_ref=280
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/details?aqma_ref=280


6. Flood risk 

There is a risk of flooding in Witney, largely attributed to the River Windrush. Areas at risk 
of flooding include Langel Common, Cogges, the proposed East Witney Strategic 
Development Area, Bridge Street, Hailey Road and Madley Park and connections to 
surrounding villages (Figure 5).26  When flooding occurs, this can cause severance between 
the north and east of Witney, and Witney centre and west, by making cycling and walking 
routes impassable. Flooding can also cause long-term damage to infrastructure in these 
locations. 

 

Figure 5: Risk of flooding in Witney 

Source: Ordnance Survey, 2022 

There is also a risk of flooding in areas within the wider geographic scope of the Witney 
LCWIP, including at Crawley and on the routes to Aston and Bampton (Figure ).27 Alongside 

 

26 Ordnance Survey, Flood risk information, 2022, https://flood-map-for-planning.service.gov.uk/flood-zone-
results?easting=435633&northing=209876&location=Witney&fullName=%2520&recipientemail=%2520  

27 Ordnance Survey, (see notation 26)  

Page 158

https://flood-map-for-planning.service.gov.uk/flood-zone-results?easting=435633&northing=209876&location=Witney&fullName=%2520&recipientemail=%2520
https://flood-map-for-planning.service.gov.uk/flood-zone-results?easting=435633&northing=209876&location=Witney&fullName=%2520&recipientemail=%2520


the flooding and subsequent severance that can occur in Witney, this poses a challenge to 
cycling for these longer trips.  

 

Figure 6: Risk of flooding in Witney and surrounding areas 

Source: Ordnance Survey, 2022 

 

Page 159



7. Current travel patterns 

 

There is a high level of car dependency in Witney. According to pre-Covid figures, whilst 
28% of Witney residents commuted less than 2km, only 18% of these journeys were cycled 
or walked (Census, 2011).28 Altogether, around 74% of commuting trips involved travel by 
private vehicle in Witney, which is 8% higher than the Oxfordshire County average and 34% 
higher than Oxford City (see Figure 7 for modal breakdown).29 Although there is likely a 
reduction in commuting trips because of the increase in homeworking resulting from the 
Covid pandemic, the preference for private vehicle travel cannot be ignored. 

 

28 Census, 2011, summary provided by Oxfordshire County Council on 
https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/travel  

29 Census (see notation 28) 

Figure 7: Witney primary modes of transport for 
travel to work 

Source: Census, 2011 

Page 160

https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/travel


8. Traffic flows30 

Due to the high level of car dependency in Witney (and West Oxfordshire more generally), 
Witney experiences significant levels of congestion. Google Maps ‘typical traffic’ mapping 
service was used to analyse weekday and weekend congestion (see Figure 8 for example 
map). This showed that overall congestion hotspots remain constant during the AM peak 
(08:30), inter peak (12:00) and PM peak (17:30) periods during the weekday. These 
hotspots are reflected during the weekend peak (Saturday, 12:00) also. 

Significant levels of congestion (resulting in ‘slow’ moving traffic) are evident on A4095 Mill 
Street west of the junction with Bridge Street, B4022 Newland, B4022 West End eastbound, 
A4095 Woodstock Road southbound and the northern extent of Witan Way southbound. It 
is more common for ‘slow’ moving traffic to occur on a Saturday than during weekdays. 

Congestion is evident within the vicinity of all schools in Witney during the AM and inter peak 
periods. Congestion is also evident within the vicinity of and on the approach to all major 
employment areas in Witney, for example those accessed by Downs Road and Range Road 
in west Witney. 

 

 

 

 

30 Google Maps, Traffic map, 2022, https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Witney/@51.7883516,-
1.5106604,7823m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x48712d59b4dd94a7:0xd8007a2cc120563f!8m2!3d51.7859
365!4d-1.4850544!5m1!1e1  

Figure 8: Example congestion map – central Witney, a typical weekday (Thursday) 
AM peak (08:30) 

Source: Google Maps, 2022 

Page 161

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Witney/@51.7883516,-1.5106604,7823m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x48712d59b4dd94a7:0xd8007a2cc120563f!8m2!3d51.7859365!4d-1.4850544!5m1!1e1
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Witney/@51.7883516,-1.5106604,7823m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x48712d59b4dd94a7:0xd8007a2cc120563f!8m2!3d51.7859365!4d-1.4850544!5m1!1e1
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/place/Witney/@51.7883516,-1.5106604,7823m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x48712d59b4dd94a7:0xd8007a2cc120563f!8m2!3d51.7859365!4d-1.4850544!5m1!1e1


The table below provides a summary of traffic flow levels (excluding people walking and 
cycling) on key roads in Witney and the surrounding area. This data comes from all surveys 
commissioned by OCC between 2018-2021. Flows have been separated into three 
categories: fewer than 2,500; 2,500-5,000 and greater than 5,000. This flow analysis 
informed the prioritisation criteria for ranking interventions proposed in the Witney LCWIP.  

Table 2: Traffic flows Witney and surrounding area 

Link  
 
  

Survey Type  Year of Data  24 hours flow 7am – 7pm flow  

Brize Norton Road (north of 
A40)  

Link count  2018  Greater than  
5,000  

Greater than  
5,000  

Brize Norton Road (south of 
A40)  

Link count  2019  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Witney Road  Link count  2019  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

B4047 Burford Road  Link count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than    
5,000  

Downs Road / Centenary 
Way Roundabout   

Junction count  2019  Greater than   
5,000  

2,500-5,000  

Burford Road / Downs 
Road  

Junction count  2019  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Deer Park Road / Range 
Road  

Junction count  2018     Greater than   
5,000  

Curbridge Road (west of 
Deer Park Road)  

Link count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

A4095 Curbridge Road / 
Deer Park Road / Thorney 
Leys  
  

Junction count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Curbridge Road  Link count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Welch Way / Corn Street / 
Tower Hill / Ducklington 
Lane / Curbridge Road 
Roundabout  

Junction count  2018    Greater than   
5,000  
  

Burford Road / Tower Hill  Junction count  2018    Greater than   
5,000  
  

Ducklington Lane / Thorney 
Leys / Station Road  

Junction count  2018    Greater than   
5,000  

Witan Way  Link count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  

 Greater than   
5,000  

Witney Road (south of 
Moors Close)  

Link count  2020  2,500-5,000  Fewer than 
2,500  

Station Lane  Junction count  2018    Greater than   
5,000  

Page 162



Church Green  Link count  2020  Fewer than 
2,500  

Fewer than 
2,500  

Corn Street  Link count  2020  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Witan Way  Junction count  2018    Greater than   
5,000  
  

Welch Way  Link count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  

  

High Street  Link count  2018 Greater than   
5,000 

 

Burford Road / Moore 
Avenue / Loom Lane  

Junction count  2018      Greater than   
5,000  
  

Bridge Street  Junction count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  
  

Greater than   
5,000  
  

Bridge Street  Link count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  
  

Greater than   
5,000  
  

West End  Link count  2018  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Woodgreen Hill  Link count  2021  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Farmers Close  Link count  2018    Fewer than 
2,500  

Hailey Road  Link count  2018  2,500-5,000    

Woodstock Road / Jubilee 
Way  

Junction count  2018    Greater than   
5,000  

Jubilee Way  Junction count  2018    2,500-5,000  

Oxford Hill  Link count  2020  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Church Lane  Link count  2020  Fewer than 
2,500  

Fewer than 
2,500  

Newland  Link count  2021  Greater than   
5,000  

Greater than   
5,000  

Main Road  Link count  2018  2,500-5,000  2,500-5,000  

Crawley Road  Link count  2018  Fewer than 
2,500  

  

Page 163



9. Collision statistics  

There have been a number of collisions reported involving people cycling in Witney over the 
period 2011-2020 – 62 slight, 10 serious and 1 fatal (OCC Highways and Transport Service, 
2021). These have been the result both of driver / passenger error and error by the person 
cycling. Most commonly incidents occur at give way junctions where the driver has failed to 
give way.  

There are noticeable collision hotspots in Witney involving people cycling (as Figure 9 
illustrates). These hotspots include: 

• A4095 Tower Hill / Welch Way / Corn Street/ Ducklington Lane / Curbridge Road 
roundabout 

• Welch Way 

• Corn Street/ Market Square / Langdale Gate junction  

• A4095 Mill Street / A4095 Bridge Street junction  

• B4022 West End / A4095 / Woodgreen B4022 Hill Close / A4095 Bridge Street 
junction  

• A4095 Mill Street / A4095 Burford Road / Woodford Way junction  

• Newland Mill / B4022 Newland junction   
 

There have also be a number of collisions reported involving people walking in Witney over 
the period 2011-2020 – this includes one fatal incident on Curbridge Road (CrashMap, 
2021).31 

There are noticeable collision hotspots in Witney involving people walking (as Figure 10 
illustrates). These hotspots include: 

• Corn Street  

• High Street  

• Witan Way  

• A4095 Woodstock Road  

• B4022/ A4095 mini roundabouts  

Most collisions have occurred where there is high footfall and trip generators, such as the 
central shopping area. 

 

 

31 CrashMap, 2021, https://www.crashmap.co.uk/Search  

Page 164

https://www.crashmap.co.uk/Search


Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

25 

 

Figure 9: Cycle collision locations in Witney (yellow: slight, blue: serious, red: fatal) 2011 – 
2020 

Source: Oxfordshire County Council – Highways & Transport Service; Map: Ordnance Survey, 2014 

P
age 165



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

26 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 10: Locations of collisions involving people walking in Witney (orange: slight, red: 
serious, black: fatal) 2011 – 2020 

Source: CrashMap, 2021; Map: Google Maps, 2022 

Page 166



10. Propensity to Cycle Tool 

The Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT), developed by the Department for Transport (DfT), is a 
web-based tool which can be used to help estimate the potential number of people cycling 
for commutes in the future based on route length and hilliness.32 The PCT shows both 
baseline data from the 2011 travel to work Census data and future targets to estimate how 
cycling could change under different scenarios in the future. It should be noted that as this 
data is based on the 2011 travel to work data, it does not consider trips for any other 
purposes e.g., education or leisure. Additionally, trips to developments that have been built 
since 2011 or are earmarked for development in the future are not included.    

Figure 11 shows the most cycled routes in Witney per day for commuting trips using the 
PCT.  

 

 

32 Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019, https://www.pct.bike/  

  

Figure 11: Number of people cycling on routes in Witney and Ducklington: baseline 
2011 Census  

Source: Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019 

Page 167

https://www.pct.bike/


 

The PCT also highlights routes with the greatest potential for growth in the number of people 
cycling, based on four scenarios: 

• ‘Government Target (equality)’ – models DfT’s ambition to double cycling in 
England between 2013 and 2025.  

o In this scenario the most cycled fast (direct) routes and therefore key aspects 
of the cycle network in Witney include A415 Ducklington Lane; Witan Way 
Langel Common; Cogges; Witney Road, Ducklington (Figure 12). 

o The link to Brize Norton via Curbridge and Witney Road is also an important 
cycle connection. 
 

 

 

 

Figure 12: Propensity to Cycle – Government Target (equality) Scenario, Fast 
Routes 

Source: Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019 

Page 168



• ‘Gender equality’ – models a scenario where gender differences are eliminated.  
o In this scenario the most cycled routes and therefore key aspects of the cycle 

network in Witney include A415 Ducklington Lane; Witan Way Langel 
Common; Cogges; A4095 Tower Hill High Street, Witney; A4095 Bridge 
Street; A4095 Woodstock Road; A4095 Curbridge Road; Corn Street; 
Langdale Gate; Witney Road, Ducklington (Figure 13) 

 

 

 

• ‘Go Dutch’ - models a scenario where investment results in the provision of cycling 
infrastructure to the standard found in the Netherlands, alongside a cultural shift in 
attitudes towards cycling.  

o This scenario shows a significant increase in the number of people cycling 
across Witney (Figure 14). This suggests that the Go Dutch approach address 
many of the barriers to cycling and thus makes it more accessible.  

o The most cycled routes and therefore key aspects of the cycle network in 
Witney include High Street, Witney; A4095 Bridge Street; A4095 Woodstock 
Road; Woodgreen; B4022 Hailey Road south; A4095 Curbridge Road; Corn 
Street; Langdale Gate; A415 Ducklington Lane; A4095 Mill Street; B4047 
Burford Road; B4022 Newland; A4095 Tower Hill; Welch Way; Witney Road, 
Ducklington.   

o The links to Brize Norton via Curbridge and Witney Road and Oxford Hill and 
the A40, are also important cycle connections. 

Figure 13: Propensity to Cycle – Gender Equality Scenario, Fast Routes 

Source: Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019 

Source: Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019 

Page 169



 

 

 

• ‘Ebikes’ – models the level of cycling achievable through the widespread uptake of 

Ebikes, as an extension of the ‘Go Dutch’ scenario. 
o This scenario shows a further increase in the number of people cycling 

across Witney (Figure 15). This suggests that Ebikes further contribute to a 
removal of barriers to cycling, making cycling more accessible for all.  

o The most cycled routes and therefore key aspects of the cycle network in 
Witney include High Street, Witney; A4095 Bridge Street; A4095 Woodstock 
Road; Woodgreen; B4022 Hailey Road south; A4095 Curbridge Road; Corn 
Street; Langdale Gate; A415 Ducklington Lane; A4095 Mill Street; B4047 
Burford Road; B4022 Newland; A4095 Tower Hill; Welch Way; Witney Road, 
Ducklington.   

o More cycle journeys are made beyond Witney in this scenario, including to 
Brize Norton, Carterton, Minster Lovell, Hailey, Long Hanborough and 
Eynsham. Ebikes evidently provide aid journeys over longer distances and 
thus provide a realistic alternative to private vehicle trips.   

Figure 14: Propensity to Cycle – Go Dutch Scenario, Fast Routes 

Source: Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019 

Source: Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019 

Page 170



 

 

Figure 15: Propensity to Cycle – Ebikes Scenario, Fast Routes 

Source: Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019 

Source: Propensity to Cycle Tool, Lovelace et al., 2017; Goodman et al., 2019 

Page 171



11. Trip generators 

There are many trip generators in Witney. These can be found at the neighbourhood level 
and include shops, parks and primary schools, and at a town wide level and include medical 
centres, secondary schools and employment sites. Owing to its role as a service centre, 
many of Witney’s amenities are relied upon by the rural hinterland. It is important that there 
is high quality cycling and walking provision between these trip generators and residential 
areas. 

Bus stops in Witney are also key trip generators. These must be accessible by cycling and 
walking and include appropriate resting and bicycle parking facilities to facilitate longer multi-
modal journeys. 

An example of some of the key trip generators is shown in Figure 16 and a detailed list 
provided below - this is not an exhaustive list.  

 

 

1. Windrush Park Industrial Estate  
2. West Witney sports ground  
3. Deer Park Medical Centre  

Figure 16: Key trip generators in Witney 

Source: Open Street Map, 2021 

Page 172



4. Deer Park recreation ground  
5. Eddington Road shops 
6. Curbridge Road north of Thorney Leys/ Deer Park Road roundabout for S1 and 233 

bus stops 
7. Thorney Leys shops  
8. Burwell Fields recreation ground 
9. Thorney Leys Industrial Estate  
10. Burwell Drive bus stops for S1 near shops  
11. Burwell Drive shops 
12. Curbridge Road bus stops for 215 and 233 
13. Fettiplace Road shops  
14. Welch Way bus stops for 11, 242, 19, 233 
15. Central Corn Street bus stops  
16. Ducklington Lane bus stops for X15,19 and S1 
17. Gordon Way all weather pitch  
18. Ducklington Lane businesses – PureGym, McDonald’s, Tesco Express  
19. Witney Lakes and Country Park  
20. Station Lane Industrial Estate  
21. The Leys recreation ground 
22. Henry Box School  
23. Eagle Industrial Estate  
24. Market Square bus stops  
25. Waitrose  
26. Woolgate shopping centre 
27. Abingdon and Witney Community College  
28. Witney Library  
29. Witney Community Hospital  
30. Marriotts Walk shopping centre  
31. Witney museum  
32. High Street bus stops north of Welch Way for S1/2, X9, 11, 242, 213/4 
33. Leisure Centre  
34. Bus stop outside Sainsburys for X9 and 233  
35. Sainsburys  
36. Cogges Manor Farm  
37. Cogges Medical Centre and shops 
38. Oxford Hill bus stops for S1/2 and 213/4 
39. Newland bus stops for S1/2 and 213/4 
40. Newland bus stops for S1/2 and 213/4 outside King George’s Field  
41. Witney Mill Cricket Ground  
42. Madley Park community centre  
43. Madley Park shops 
44. Wood Green School 
45. Madley Park recreation ground  
46. Hailey Road shops  
47. Hailey Road Allotments  
48. West Oxfordshire District Council offices  
49. Newland Allotments  
50. Windrush Place Allotments  

Page 173



51. Lakeside Allotments  
52. Witney Children and Family centre  
53. Corn Street shops 
54. Lidl 

 

Page 174



12. Future development and transport schemes  

Witney has a population of over 29,000 and has experienced considerable population 
growth in recent years; between 2009 and 2019 the population increased by 8% 
(Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, 2021). This is the result of a number of 
developments, including at North Curbridge (West Witney) for at least 1,000 homes. Further 
significant growth is expected due to the allocation of two Strategic Development Areas 
(SDAs) in West Oxfordshire’s Local Plan 2031.33 These sites are: 

• East Witney for 450 homes; and  

• North Witney for 1,400. 

The following infrastructure schemes are proposed and will have a positive impact on travel 
within Witney and connections to the surrounding area: 

• Witney High Street closure – this provides an opportunity to enhance the public 
realm and cycling and walking infrastructure to encourage more people to cycle 
and walk for local trips. This can improve personal health and the environment. 
Such measures also support the local economy, with it said that there can be up 
to 40% increase in shopping footfall from walking infrastructure improvements 
(DfT, 2020). 

• Shore’s Green – the provision of a west facing slip onto the A40 at Shore’s Green 
junction east of Witney. The provision of this slip will no longer necessitate 
travelling through Witney to access the A40 for those living in north and east 
Witney. This will reduce congestion in the town and consequently contribute to 
the improvement of the AQMA. 

• Second River Windrush crossing – options are currently being explored to 
provide an alternative to Bridge Street for crossing the River Windrush. The aim 
is to alleviate congestion on Bridge Street and thus improve the AQMA, whilst 
also providing a safe and accessible environment in which to cycle and walk.  

• North and East Witney Strategic Developments – cycling and walking provision 
is required as part of these developments. This will improve existing infrastructure 
and connectivity in Witney and embed sustainable travel practices from first 
occupation.  

• A40 improvements – this includes improving cycling and walking provision along 
the A40 between Witney and Eynsham to connect into existing and proposed 
infrastructure (including B4044 Eynsham to Botley cycle route) to Oxford. This will 
provide an attractive alternative to private vehicle travel for journeys between 
Witney, Eynsham and Oxford. 

• Hanborough Station enhancements – as the closest rail station to Witney with 
frequent services, proposed enhancements to the station and train service will 
make rail travel more accessible. 

 

 

33 West Oxfordshire District Council, (see notation 17) 

Page 175



13. Let’s Talk consultation findings  

An online public consultation was held between November 2021 and January 2022 on 
OCC’s Let’s Talk Oxfordshire Platform. This asked the question ‘Suggest walking and 
cycling improvements in Witney’.  

People could pinpoint on a map where there are issues related to cycling and walking. These 
could be categorised into damaged infrastructure, missing infrastructure, safety concerns, 
or other. People could also suggest improvements.  

Most responses related to safety concerns. Some locations garnered more comments than 
others, including Curbridge Road/ Deer Park Road junction, Church Green and Langel 
Common.   

Comments included: 

• Widening paths 

• Need for protection for people cycling and walking at roundabouts  

• Installing signage 

• Additional crossings 

• Implementing one-way streets 

• Need for lighting 

• Need for dedicated cycling provision  
 

Page 176



  
 
 

Figure 17: Summary of public consultation responses  

Source: Oxfordshire County Council, 2022 

Page 177



 

 
 

Figure 18: Key problem areas clustered  

Source: Oxfordshire County Council, 2022 

Page 178



 

 

 

 
 

Witney LCWIP 

Audit Output Report 

Page 179



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 2 

 

  

Project:  Witney LCWIP 

Document Title:  Audit Output Report 

Document Reference: 106416-PEF-ZZ-ZZ-RP-Z-002 

Revision Reference: P01 

Date:  September 2022 

 

Introduction 

This report sets out the findings from the walking and cycling audits undertaken as part of the Witney Local Cycling and 

Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) development. The findings have been set out alongside photos for the primary and 

secondary routes as identified in Figure 28 of the LCWIP. 

The site visits were undertaken across three days with separate walking and cycling groups. The details for each site visit 

and attendees are set out in Table 1.  

Table 1: Site visit details 

 Site Audit 1 Site Audit 2 Site Audit 3 

Date Tuesday 24th May 2022 Monday 30th May 2022 Tuesday 31st May 2022 

Areas covered Area 1 – West Witney 

Cycling team also covered 
route to Carterton, Minster 
Lovell 

Area 2 and 3 – Town Centre, 
South Witney and Ducklington 

Cycling team also covered 
Aston, Bampton and South 
Leigh 

Area 4 and 5 – North and East 
Witney 

Cycling team also covered 
Hailey, new Yatt, Hanborough, 
Crawley 

Walking team Steve Bibb (PF) 

Dan Susans (PF) 

Odele Parsons (OCC) 

Cllr Ted Fenton (OCC, Witney 
West & Bampton) 

Steve Bibb (PF) 

Megan McKenzie (PF) 

Odele Parsons (OCC) 

Cllr Ted Fenton (OCC, Witney 
West & Bampton) 

Lucy Ronaldson (PF) 

Dan Hounsell (PF) 

Odele Parsons (OCC) 

Janice Bamsey (OCC) 

Cllr Andrew Prosser (WODC, 
Witney North)  

Cycling team Lucy Ronaldson (PF) 

Kevin Hickman (Windrush Bike 
Project) 

Cllr Phil Hiles (WODC, Witney 
West) 

Nick Young (PF) 

Hanaii Faour (OCC) 

Kevin Arnold (Windrush Bike 
Project) 

Nick Young (PF) 

Hanaii Faour (OCC) 

Kevin Arnold (Windrush Bike 
Project) 

Weather Mostly dry with a few short 
showers 

A mixture of light and heavy 
rain showers and overcast 
conditions 

Dry and overcast 

 

  

Page 180



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 3 

Walking Audits  

All primary, secondary and link roads within Witney were audited as part of the walking audits. Figure 1 shows the links 

audited, split into five areas.  

 

During the walking audits, the Department for Transport (DfT’s) Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) was used to help 

identify the standard of existing infrastructure along routes and identified where improvements are required. The WRAT 

assessed each link against the five core design outcomes: attractiveness, comfort, directness, safety and coherence. A 

score was given between 0 and 2 (0 = poor provision, 2 = good provision) for each of the criteria. The total available 

score for each link was 40, and a score of 28 (70%) was considered the minimum level of provision. Routes that scored 

less than 70% were identified as requiring improvements.  

Overall, 84 links were audited and a WRAT assessment completed. 28 of the links scored below the minimum threshold 

(70%), identifying need for improvements. The lowest scoring links are outlined in Table 2.  

 

 

 

 

Figure 1: Walking Audit Links 

Page 181



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 4 

Table 2: WRAT Scores below 70% 

Route Name Start Location End Location 
Total Available 

Score % 

1e B4047 Burford Road 
B4047 Burford Road / Windrush 
Valley Road 

B4047 Burford Road / Tower 
Hill 

28% 

3b Thorney Leys Curbridge Road Ducklington Lane 45% 

4c Farmers Close Hailey Road New Yatt Road 50% 

5k 
Cogges Hill Road / Stanton 
Harcourt Road 

Blakes Avenue Eton Close 50% 

1i 
Bridleway (east of Downs Road 
roundabout, part 2 - eastern 
end) 

Centenary Way (when cross 
Centenary Way just past 
Windrush Place Playground) 

Deer Park Road 53% 

4f Woodstock Road Bridge Street Jubilee Way 53% 

4e Woodgreen New Yatt Road Woodstock Road 53% 

1h 
Bridleway (east of Downs Road 
roundabout, part 1 – western 
end) 

Centenary Way (east of Downs 
Road roundabout) 

Centenary Way (when cross 
Centenary Way just past 
Windrush Place Playground) 

55% 

4d Narrow Hill / Woodgreen West End Woodgreen / New Yatt Road 56% 

2l Station Lane Ducklington Way Avenue Two 58% 

C4i A4065 Witney Road Jubilee Way Common Road 58% 

1a B4047 Burford Road 
B4047 Burford Road / Brize 
Norton Road 

B4047 Burford Road / Minster 
Riding 

58% 

4a West End Bridge Street / West End Hailey Road / West End 58% 

C4l A4065 Witney Road Park Road Hanborough Station 61% 

3f Ducklington Allotments A40 underpass Witney Road 61% 

2fb Church Green west northbound St Mary's Church Market Square 62% 

1w Curbridge Road 
Deer Park Road / Curbridge 
Road 

Curbridge Road / Tower Hill 63% 

2o Farm Mill Lane Witan Way Church Green 63% 

5lb 
Footpath between Stanton 
Harcourt Road and Blakes 
Avenue 

Stanton Harcourt Road Blakes Avenue 63% 

5c 
Footpath between Church Lane 
and Newland Mill 

Church Lane Newland Mill 63% 

5j Cogges Hill Road Oxford Hill Blakes Avenue 64% 

2n Witan Way Langdale Gate Avenue Two 65% 

4h Eastfield Road Hailey Road New Yatt Road 66% 

2c Tower Hill A4095 Burford Road Fiveways Roundabout 66% 

1b B4047 Burford Road 
B4047 Burford Road / Minster 
Riding 

B4047 Burford Road / Downs 
Road 

68% 

4l Woodmill Footpath West End / Crawley Road Hyde Meadow View 69% 

2m Avenue Two Station Lane Southern side of A40 underpass 69% 

 

  

Page 182



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 5 

Cycling Audits 

Similar to the walking audits, the cycling audits were undertaken along each of the primary, secondary and link roads as 

well as main cycle connections to neighbouring villages including Carterton, Crawley and Long Hanborough. Figure 2 

shows the extents of the cycle audits.  

 

The Route Selection Tool (RST), also a DfT assessment tool, was used to assess the quality of the existing infrastructure 

against the five core design outcomes for cycling: directness, gradient, safety, connectivity and comfort. The results of the 

RST are shown for each link in the following pages of this report. 

  

Figure 2: Cycling Audit Links 

Page 183



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 6 

Findings  

Figure 3 shows an overview summary of the constraints identified from the site visits. The following pages give a more 

detailed breakdown of findings along each of the main primary and secondary routes audited with associated photos. 

The site visits helped identify constraints and opportunities including: 

➢ Existing barriers for active travel users; 

➢ Incorrect or misleading signage / wayfinding; 

➢ Missing or inconsistent infrastructure e.g. no dropped kerbs, tactile paving; 

➢ Narrow footways / shared use footway / cycleways; and 

➢ Poor / uneven surfacing 

The following pages provide a summary of each of the links audited as part of the walking audits. The WRAT percentage 

score has been given alongside a colour coordinated breakdown of scoring for each of the five areas. Table 3 outlines 

the scoring ranges corresponding to the WRAT and RST assessments. 

 

 

 

Figure 3: Site Visit Findings 

Page 184



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 7 

Table 3: WRAT and RST Scoring Ranges 

WRAT Criteria Scoring Range RST Criteria Scoring Range 

Attractiveness 6-8 3-5 0-2 Directness 4-5 2-3 0-1 

Comfort 9-12 4-8 0-3 Gradient 4-5 2-3 0-1 

Directness 9-12 4-8 0-3 Safety 4-5 2-3 0-1 

Safety 5-6 3-4 0-2 Connectivity 4-5 2-3 0-1 

Coherence 2 1 0 Comfort 4-5 2-3 0-1 

 

  

Page 185



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 8 

Link 1a – 1e – Burford Road (Brize Norton Road – Tower Hill) 

Route Description 

Burford Road between Brize Norton Road and Windrush Valley Road is part of the National Cycle Network (NCN) route 57. It is a 
two-way road (40-60 mph) and a main route between Minster Lovell and Witney. There is a shared footway / cycleway on the 
northern side of the carriageway between Brize Norton Road and Downs Road, and on the southern side between Downs Road and 
Windrush Valley Road. The shared use footway / cycleway on the western side of the route diverts away from the road and 
continues on an off-road gravel track. There is a pedestrian crossing at the junction of Burford Road / Downs Road and at Burford 
Road / Deer Park Road where the NCN 57 route continues.    

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1a 58% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1b 68% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1c 86% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1d 83% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1e 28% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1a – 1e Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• The off-road gravel track (Figure 4) is wide but unlit and of poor surface quality. The gravel surface in places is deep, 
making it very difficult for cyclists to navigate 

• The pedestrian crossing at the junction of Burford Road / Downs Road is not a toucan crossing despite the NCN route 
signposting across the crossing (Figure 5) 

• Narrow shared use footway / cycleway along Burford Road on the approach to Downs Road (from Minster Lovell) 

  

Figure 4: Gravel track parallel to Burford Road Figure 5: NCN Route 57 across pedestrian crossing on Burford 
Road 

  

Page 186



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 9 

Link 1f – 1g – Downs Road (Burford Road – Downs Road roundabout)  

Route Description 

Downs Road between Burford Road and Downs Road Roundabout is a two-way road (30 mph) connecting Burford Road and the 
A40. In recent years, there has been lots of development at the southern end of Downs Road including the creation of Wheatfield 
Drive. Development work is ongoing to the east of Downs Road. The northern end of Downs Road is home to predominantly 
industrial businesses and is noticeably different from the southern end, which is newer, residential properties. There is no footway on 
the western side of Downs Road between Burford Road and Curbridge Park Road. 

There is a short section of narrow shared footway / cycleway on the western side of Downs Road between Curbridge Park Road and 
the footpath linking to Range Road. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1f 72% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1g 89% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1f – 1g Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• There is a lack of signage and tactiles particularly at the northern end of Downs Road 

• Road surfacing is of poor quality at the northern end of Downs Road 

• Footways are not continuous along Downs Road, lots of crossing over the road  

  

Figure 6: Narrow footway / cycleway Figure 7: Lots of crossing from one side to the other  

  

Figure 8: Obstruction in the middle of the footway Figure 9: Narrow footway at the northern end of Downs Road 

  

Page 187



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 10 

Link 1h – 1i –Bridleway linking Downs Road and Deer Park Road  

Route Description 

This section is a bridleway that connects Downs Road and Deer Park Road. The eastern section of the bridleway is narrow and 
surrounded by trees and bushes and is uneven and without lighting. During periods of rainfall, ponding occurs making the route 
muddy and difficult to navigate. This bridleway is impassable for people in wheelchairs / with pushchairs. The western section of the 
bridleway is more open with natural light during the day time but is very narrow and on a slight incline (east to west). New houses 
have been built to the north of the bridleway with tarmacked roads and footways, potentially leaving the bridleway redundant. There 
are no dropped kerbs from the new housing estate onto the bridleway, which makes access for people on bikes, in wheelchairs or 
with pushchairs difficult. Crossing Deer Park Road to access the bridleway is difficult, with no tactile paving or dropped kerbs and 
very minimal signage / wayfinding.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1h 55% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1i 53% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1h – 1i Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• The surfacing is of poor quality in places, hence a poor rating for comfort for cyclists  

• There is a limited means of crossing, and crossing available is unattractive to pedestrians 

• There is a lack of surveillance, causing safety concerns 

• The bridleway is narrow and uneven with an incline (east to west)  

  

Figure 10: Bridleway linking Downs Road and Deer Park 
Road 

Figure 11: Crossing Deer Park Road to access the 
Bridleway 

 

 

Figure 12: No dropped kerbs Figure 13: Poor surface conditions 

Page 188



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 11 

Link 1j – Footpath (Downs Road – Range Road) 

Route Description 

The footpath is a shared footway / cycleway linking Downs Road with Range Road. The path is fairly narrow with overhanging 
branches and vegetation with no natural surveillance or lighting. The western part of the path is surfaced with wood chips; however, 
the eastern part is tarmacked to a good standard. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1j 75% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1j Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Narrow spacing between bollards at junction of Range Road 

• There is no illumination, and an extensive tree canopy, with little surveillance 

• The surfaces are uneven, and relatively narrow for the shared footway / cycleway use 

  

Figure 14: Footpath linking Downs Road and Range Road Figure 15: Footpath linking to the business park 

  

Figure 16: Cycle markings worn away Figure 17: Narrow spacing between bollards 

  

Page 189



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 12 

Link 1k – Main Road (Downs Road roundabout – Bampton Road)  

Route Description 

Main Road is a two-way road (30mph) connecting Witney Road / Downs Road with Bampton Road. The road is primarily used by 
pedestrians for local access to residential properties. There are no pedestrian crossings along this route; however, it is not an overly 
busy road meaning there are enough gaps in the traffic to cross easily.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1k 85% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1k Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Parking on footway 

• Narrow footways along Main Road. Footways end abruptly and switch to other side of the road 

• No dedicated cycle facilities – on-road only 

 
 

Figure 18: Deliveries in the carriageway Figure 19: On-street parking 

  

Page 190



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 13 

Link 1l, 1w – Curbridge Road (Main Road – Fiveways roundabout) 

Route Description 

Curbridge Road between Main Road and Fiveways Roundabout is a busy two-way section of road. There is little cycle infrastructure 
along this route at present, with a small amount of shared footway / cycleway on the northern side of the carriageway between Main 
Road and Centenary Way installed as part of the Windrush Development. The section of road between Main Road and the bridge 
over the A40 is 60mph where it then reduces to 40mph between the bridge and the roundabout.  

Curbridge Road between Deer Park Road and Fiveways roundabout is relatively wide with intermittent footways / shared spaces on 
both sides of the carriageway. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1l 72% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1w 63% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1l-1w Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Difficult for pedestrians to cross Fiveways roundabout due to volume of traffic 

• Refuge islands at Fiveways roundabout are narrow, particularly for larger groups of pedestrians / wheelchair users 

• Poor visibility for pedestrians crossing Deer Park Road at the roundabout of Curbridge Road / Thorney Leys 

• Few pedestrians crossings along pedestrian desire lines 

• Narrow footways along Curbridge Road 

• Footway abruptly ends on the northern side of Curbridge Road at the cemetery (Figure 20) 

• Cycle infrastructure is not continuous 

• Opportunity to widen and resurface footway on southern side of Curbridge Road 

  

Figure 20: Pinchpoint on Curbridge Road Figure 21: Non-continuous cycle provision 

  

Figure 22: Footway abruptly ends at the cemetery Figure 23: Opportunity to widen footway 

 

Page 191



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 14 

Link 1m – 1n - Deer Park Road (Burford Road to Curbridge Road) 

Route Description 

This route along Deer Park Road links Curbridge Road with Burford Road. It is a 40mph road with a shared cycleway / footway on 
the eastern side of the road. The cycleway / footway is generally in good condition for cyclists and pedestrians; however, there is no 
street lighting.   

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1m 85% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1n 83% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1m-1n Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• No crossing facilities or hardstanding for northbound bus stop on the western side of Deer Park Road  

• Uneven surfaces due to tree routes 

• No clear means of accessing leisure routes across Deer Park Road (despite signage) (Figure 26) 

• Crossing on splitter island at the junction of Ralegh Crescent is narrower than on approaching footway / cycleway, which 

could serve as a trip hazard for visually impaired pedestrians 

• No means of crossing to western side of Deer Park Road (south of Range Road). Currently no infrastructure on the western 

side but future development may warrant improved connectivity  

• Tree canopy hangs low over cycleway 

  

Figure 24: Uncontrolled crossing to Bridleway Figure 25: Deer Park Road shared footway / cycleway 

  

Figure 26: Splitter island does not align to footways Figure 27: No means of accessing northbound bus stop 

 Page 192



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 15 

  

Link 1o,1p,1u,1v  - Footpaths between Burford Road and Curbridge Road  

Route Description 

The northern part of this route is formed of two two-way roads (30mph), Windrush Valley Road and Apley Way. The southern part of 
the route is formed of another two-way road (30mph), Edington Road. The roads are small residential roads mainly used for access. 
The two parts are joined by a shared cycle way / footway around West Witney Primary School. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1o 94% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1p 89% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1u 89% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1v 89% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1o,1p,1u,1v Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• There are no dropped kerbs around the footpath crossing with Farmington Drive 

• Overgrown vegetation constricts visibility and covers some of the footway / cycleway creating a conflict between 

pedestrians and cyclists 

• Poor surface quality including potholes and raised manholes resulting in nearby ponding  

• Guard railing at the end of the cycleway constrains pedestrians and cycles passing  

• Worn surface indicates clear desire line, cutting corner from footway 

  

Figure 28: Barriers at end of the cycleway Figure 29: Pedestrian desire line 

  

Figure 30: Poor surface quality Figure 31: No dropped kerbs 

Page 193



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 16 

  

Link 1q, 1x, 1z – Footpath (Deer Park Road – Tower Hill) 

Route Description 

There is a shared footway / cycleway that connects Deer Park Road and Tower Hill. There are a number of spurs off this route 
including small residential roads which are used as cut throughs for pedestrians and cyclists. There is a short section of road to the 
east which permits vehicular access. However, this is to access a two houses and therefore is infrequently used. The shared 
footway / cycleway is a popular route used by pedestrians and cyclists as it connects to West Witney Primary School. The route is lit; 
however, there is not much natural surveillance.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1q 86% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1x 86% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1z 79% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1q, 1z Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

1x Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Two manholes sit high compared with footway level – pedestrians with mobility aids were observed re-routing to avoid the 

manholes  

• Uneven surfacing along sections of the route 

• Physical barriers, aimed at slowing down cyclists, were observed to be bypassed (Figure 32). Barriers are not wide 

enough to comfortably fit adapted bikes / cargo bikes through 

• Wayfinding is missing / damaged. Not clear where to go if unfamiliar with the area 

• Narrow in sections, particularly on a bike with oncoming pedestrians 

  

Figure 32: Physical barriers bypassed Figure 33: Narrow barriers 

 
 

Figure 34: Wayfinding misleading Figure 35: Shared path 

Page 194



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 17 

Link 1r – 1t – Footpath (Deer Park Road – Ralegh Crescent) 

Route Description 

The northern part of the route is a two-way road, Valence Crescent (30mph), and the southern part of the route is also a two- way 
road, Ralegh Crescent. These parts are joined by a footpath which runs alongside Deer Park field and Ralegh Crescent park. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1r 100% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1s 94% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

1t 94% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1r – 1t Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Pedestrians crossing movements from footpath to Stow Avenue obstructed by barrier 

• Good wayfinding, although more signs and of the same type would be useful 

• Mostly unlit 

  

Figure 36: Shared footway / cycleway Figure 37: Wayfinding 

  

Figure 38: Unlit path Figure 39: Narrow sections 

  

Page 195



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 18 

  

Link 1y – Range Road (Downs Road – Deer Park Road) 

Route Description 

Range Road is a two-way road (40mph) which connects Downs Road with Deer Park Road. It has a shared use footway / cycleway 
which runs parallel to the carriageway, completely separated from motor vehicles. The footway / cycleway is generally of good 
quality.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

1y 95% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

1y Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• There is no means of crossing to the southern side of Range Road at the junction of Deer Park Road. There is currently no 

infrastructure on the southern side; however, future development of this land may warrant improved connectivity 

• Overgrown vegetation constricts visibility and covers some of the footway / cycleway creating a conflict between 

pedestrians and cyclists 

 

 

Figure 40: No means of crossing to the south of Range 
Road 

Figure 41: Shared footway / cycleway 

Page 196



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 19 

  

Link 2a – 2b – Burford Road (Tower Hill roundabout – Bridge Street roundabout) 

Route Description 

This route is a two-way road (30mph) connecting Tower Hill and Bridge Street. Burford Road is a busy road being one of the main 
vehicular routes into Witney from the north and west. There is a newly constructed shared use footway / cycleway on the northern 
side of the carriageway. There are steep level differences on the shared footway / cycleway at each side road. There is a new 
toucan crossing to the east of Davenport Road and one opposite Woodford Mill. Sections of Burford Road (to the east) are quite 
narrow.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2a 78% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

2b 83% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2a – 2b Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Narrow section of footway (less than 1.8m) on Mill Street 

• Steep level difference at public house access creates a crossfall which may be uncomfortable for pedestrians 

• Ponding with new crossing which could encourage injudicious crossing movements elsewhere 

• Footway crossing within lay-by at Tower Hill encourages pedestrians to cross between parked vehicles 

  

Figure 42: Burford Road Figure 43: New toucan crossing 

  

Figure 44: Shared footway / cycleway Figure 45: Pedestrian crossing from layby 

Page 197



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 20 

  

Link 2c – Tower Hill (between Burford Road and Fiveways roundabout) 

Route Description 

Tower Hill is a main connection into Witney. The southern section of the route is very steep (heading towards Burford Road), making 
it challenging for cyclists. There is no dedicated cycle provision on Tower Road at the moment, with the exception of a small section 
of shared use footway between Beech Road and Fiveways roundabout.   

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2c 66% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2c Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Carriageway ponding within extents of uncontrolled crossing across Tower Court 

• Lack of crossing facilities on Tower Hill where footway terminates on western side of road (south of Windrush Valley Road)  

• Pedestrian crossing and a wig-wag sign suggest crossing patrol but no crossing provided 

• Potential to convert verge on western side of Tower Hill to footway 

• Access to / from eastern shared-use footway / cycleway is unclear for cyclists 

  

Figure 46: No footway on the eastern side of Tower Hill Figure 47: Lack of crossing facilities 

  

Figure 48: Toucan crossing on Tower Hill Figure 49: Narrow eastern footway 

Page 198



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 21 

 

  

Link 2e – Welch Way (Fiveways roundabout – High Street) 

Route Description 

Welch Way is two-way (30mph) linking Fiveways roundabout and High Street. There is a footway on the northern side of the 
carriageway, no provision to the south. There are two pedestrian crossings, at either side of the junction with Woodford Way and a 
zebra crossing further east of these crossings, directly south of Marriots Walk (shopping area). Signs are present indicating cycling 
is not permitted on the footway. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2e 78% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2e Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Long wait time for pedestrians crossing Woodford Way at signal-controlled junction  

• No cycling permitted on Welch Way footway 

• Lack of crossing facilities for pedestrians along Welch Way 

  

Figure 50: No cycling permitted on Welch Way Figure 51: Fiveways roundabout improvements 

Page 199



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 22 

  

Link 2fa – High Street / Market Square (Corn Street – Bridge Street) 

Route Description 

The northern section of this route is the main High Street in Witney, with retail, entertainment and restaurants. The section between 
Corn Street and Welch Way is for buses, taxis, disabled parking and cycling only. The High Street itself has wide footways in places; 
however, the width of the road is dominated by the carriageway. There are several bus stops along this section with services running 
to Oxford and Carterton. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2fa 93% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2fa Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Bollards and railings create a pinch-point at crossing location where pedestrian flows can be high 

• Inconsistent surface types on western footway create uneven surface 

• Vehicles were observed to ignore restrictions in place 

  

Figure 52: Wide footways Figure 53: Access only for certain vehicles 

  

Figure 54: Steep gradient footway Figure 55: Wide carriageway 

Page 200



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 23 

  

Link 2fb – Church Green (Corn Street to The Leys) 

Route Description 

Market Square operates as a gyratory with lots of on-street parking. Church Green operates as a two-way round with on-street 
parking. There are generally wide footways benches to rest. Crossing arrangements along this road are more challenging due to 
multiple permitted vehicle movements. There is no cycling permitted through the churchyard.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2fb 62% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

 2fb Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Unclear crossing arrangements for pedestrians, facilities are located away from desire line and not immediately noticeable, 
resulting in pedestrians crossing at locations of full height kerbs 

• There is a wide footway running parallel to Church Green  

• Narrow footway outside the church (too narrow for a wheelchair / pushchair) 

• Bollards and railings create a pinch-point at crossing at location where pedestrian flows can be high 

• Potentially confusing arrangement for all road users, as vehicles emerge from Market Square eastern link (West of Butter 
Cross), wrong way into mini-roundabout 

• Uneven surface created by inconsistent surface types 

  

Figure 56: Unclear crossing at Market Square  Figure 57: Unclear crossing arrangement outside Henry Box 
School 

  

Figure 58: Wide footway Figure 59: Uneven surface through the churchyard 

Page 201



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 24 

  

Link 2g – Corn Street / Langdale Gate 

Route Description 

Corn Street links Fiveways roundabout with Witan Way There is an advisory cycle lane on each side of the carriageway; however, 
there are pinchpoints at refuge islands where the cycle road markings break. There is a fair amount of on-street parking on Corn 
Street associated with the residential housing; however, parking is mostly within the designated parking bays.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2g 75% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2g Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Cycle merge onto footway unclear, no cycle marking, directional line or arrow 

• Wide carriageway could encourage higher vehicle speeds 

• Footway widening serves as traffic calming feature, but despite narrower carriageway width, can make pedestrian 
crossings difficult 

• No cycleway signs / markings on footway link between Langdale Gate and car park 

• Narrow footway width in front of Butter Cross, particularly on radii 

• New pedestrian and cycle signage. Good example, but not consistent across town 

  

Figure 60: Carriageway pinchpoint at Langdale Gate Figure 61: Wide footways between Corn Bar and Swan Court 

 
 

Figure 62: Wide carriageway on Corn Street Figure 63: Good example of wayfinding 

Page 202



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 25 

 

  

Link 2i / 2j – Henry Box School (Ducklington Road - The Crofts – The Leys) 

Route Description 

The Crofts (30mph) is a two-way, residential road which becomes pedestrians and cycles only at The Leys. At this point there is a 
shared path which joins The Leys, a narrow residential road with lots of on-street parking.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2i 77% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

2j 77% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2i Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

2j Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Uneven surface conditions along the length of The Leys, could trip pedestrians 

• Car parking at roadside, with marked pedestrian route, exposing pedestrians to vehicle movements 

  

Figure 64: No cycling through the churchyard  Figure 65: Shared footway / cycleway 

  

Figure 66: Shared use path linking to The Crofts Figure 67: Path around the playing field 

Page 203



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 26 

 

  

2k - Footpath adjacent to Gordon Way  

Route Description 

This shared footway / cycleway runs parallel to Gordon Road and provides connections to Ducklington Road, The Springs and 
Station Lane. The path is lit and of reasonable width; however, there is an opportunity to widen the footway to be more comfortable 
for cyclists and pedestrians.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2k 95% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2k Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Bollards pose a physical constraint 

• Unclear if shared use footpath / cycleway, but could be widened to account for both users 

• Footpath is illuminated 

• Would benefit from more wayfinding 

 

 

Figure 68: Illuminated shared footway / cycleway Figure 69: Bollards 

Page 204



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 27 

 

  

Link 2l, 2n – Station Lane (Ducklington Lane – Witan Way) 

Route Description 

This section of Station Road and Witan Way (both 30mph) is a busy, two-way road which connects Ducklington Lane with Langdale 
Gate. There is a shared footway / cycleway on the northern side of the carriageway.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2l 58% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

2n 65% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2l, 2n Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Difficult to cross road due to high traffic flows – potential pedestrian desire line linking Gordon Way, Buttercross Lane and 
Avenue One   

• Job Centre signed across Witan Way, but no crossing provision available at this location 

• Trees span footpath creating a dark environment for pedestrians 

  

Figure 70: Narrow footways Figure 71: Overgrown vegetation creeping into the shared 
footway / cycleway 

 

 

Figure 72: Wide junction mouth making it more difficult to 
cross 

 

Page 205



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 28 

  

Link 2m – Avenue Two (Station Lane – A40 underpass) 

Route Description. 

The northern part of this route is a two-way road, Avenue Two (30mph), along an industrial estate, which feeds into a shared 
footway / cycleway at the southern part of the road. One end of this route emerges onto Station Lane and the other end emerges 
onto the cycleway / footway which passes under a subway running beneath the A40. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2m 69% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2m Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Poor signage on the southern part of the route 

• Poor lighting and no surveillance in the subway beneath A40 

• Uneven concrete footway surface, could be hazardous for pedestrians 

• Footway parking observed reducing the width of the available footway 

  

Figure 73: Uneven footway Figure 74: Footway parking reducing available width 

Page 206



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 29 

  

Link 2o – Farm Mill Lane (Station Lane – Witan Way) 

Route Description. 

The eastern side of this route is a shared footway / cycleway leading onto Farm Mill Lane, a  two-way road, which emerges onto a 
section of one–way road on Station Lane, and onto The Leys 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2o 63% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2o Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Unlit route with no natural surveillance 

• Narrow footway link, could be widened into adjacent verge area 

• Cycle contraflow on relatively narrow section, where presence of cyclists is unclear to oncoming cyclists  

• Pedestrian route ends and pedestrians step directly into carriageway 

  

Figure 75: No surveillance Figure 76: Pedestrian route ends 

Page 207



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 30 

 

Link 2r – Witan Way (Langdale Gate – High Street) 

Route Description. 

This route is a two-way road (30mph) from Langdale Gate roundabout on the southern side to High Street on the northern side. 
There is a pedestrian crossing for access to the Sainsbury’s supermarket off Witan Way. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

2r 83% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

2r Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Footpath tie–in on eastern side of Witan Way. Footpath diverts behind line of trees, with no lighting or means of 
surveillance from the carriageway 

• Trees overhang signal-controlled pedestrian crossing, obscuring traffic signal heads and creating dark environments for 
pedestrians 

  

Figure 77: Trees overhanging pedestrian crossing Figure 78: Difficult to cross 

 

 

Figure 79: Footpath parallel to Witan Way Figure 80: Pedestrian crossing at Witan Way / High Street 

Page 208



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  Page 31 

 

Link 3a – Ducklington Lane 

Route Description. 

The northern part of this route emerges onto Fiveways roundabout and the southern part of the route ends below the A40. It is a 
two-way road (30mph) with a pedestrian crossing for access to services off the road. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

3a 70% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

3a Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Difficult for pedestrians to cross by the roundabout 

• Route for cyclists inconsistent standard, sometimes segregated and sometimes on carriageway 

• Underpass connecting to Burwell Drive is dark, with no illumination and poor visibility on approaches, with no natural 
surveillance 

• Worn paths across the grass show clear pedestrian desire line to avoid the barriers and underpass 

• Barriers make it difficult for cyclists due to steep gradient 

  

Figure 81: Barriers Figure 82: Narrow sections of shared segregated footway / 
cycleway 

  

Figure 83: Underpass with no lighting Figure 84: Clear pedestrian desire line 

Page 209



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 3b – Thorney Leys  

Route Description. 

Thorney Leys is a main road that links Curbridge Road to the west and Ducklington Lane to the east. It is a fast (30mph), busy road 
with no dedicated cycling facilities, with cyclists expected to share the carriageway with vehicles. Travelling west to east along 
Thorney Leys, there is a footway on both sides of the carriageway up until the side road, also called Thorney Leys. The southern 
footpath then diverts off towards Richmond Villages (a retirement village). The footway alongside the carriageway then ends and 
pedestrians are either forced to walk on the grass verge adjacent to the carriageway or walk through the estate, onto Burwell 
Recreation Ground and Park and rejoin the northern footway at Burwell Meadows.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

3b 45% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

3b Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

•  No footway for a large section of Thorney Leys  

• Pedestrians directed through Burwell Recreation Ground and Park where there is no lighting and little natural surveillance 

• No provision for cyclists away from other road users 

• No crossing facilities for pedestrians wanting to cross Thorney Leys / Ducklington Road junction anti-clockwise 

Page 210



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 3c – 3e – Witney Road between the A40 underpass and Back Lane 

Route Description. 

This section links the A40 underpass to Witney Road and along Church Street to Saint Bartholomew’s Church. Footway widths 
along Witney Road and Church Lane are variable, but narrow in places and changeable from one side of the carriageway to the 
other. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

3c 79% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

3d 85% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

3e 85% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

3c – 3e Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Narrow footway on eastern side of Witney Road; however, the carriageway itself is fairly wide 

• No means of crossing to Moors Close. There is no tie-in where the footway terminates on moors Close, with clear evidence 
of pedestrians walking on the verge 

• PRoW gateway is not accessible for wheelchairs, pushchairs or cyclists 

• 2m wide footways on both sides at access to Church Street, reducing to footway on the northern side of the carriageway 
after Bartholomew Close. After another c.20m the footways are omitted from both sides of Church Street 

• Pedestrians observed using Tristram Road as an alternative to Witney Road, with many walking in the carriageway due to 
lower traffic flows (as observed at time of walking audit) 

 

 

Figure 85: Narrow footways and parked vehicles Figure 86: Wide carriageway 

Page 211



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 3f – Footpath between Witney Lakes and A415 via Curbridge Road 

Route Description. 

The route links the A415 to the south with Witney Lakes via Curbridge Road and an off-road footpath that runs across the fields and 
parallel to the Lakeside Allotments. The footpath is predominantly a leisure route.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

3f 61% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

3f Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• The off-road footpath is narrow and uneven 

• The footpath is not suitable for wheelchair users or pushchairs due to a stepped approach to the bridge alongside the 
Lakeside Allotments 

• The gates between the footpath and the allotments access are not wheelchair / pushchair friendly, as well as being 
inaccessible for cyclists 

• The allotment access is a private road not a public right of way as indicated on multiple signs and gates. Correct PRoW not 
signed 

Page 212



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

 

  

Link 4a – West End (Bridge Street – Hailey Road) 

Route Description. 

West End is a two-way, narrow road connecting Hailey Road and Bridge Street. The footways along West End are variable in width 
and in places less than 1m wide. There is on-street parking on both sides of West End.   

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

4a 58% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

4a Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Narrow footways, particularly on the northern footway. Widths of less than 1m 

• Very difficult for pedestrians to cross at the double mini-roundabout at Bridge Street 

• Lots of on-street parking / loading  

• Popular route for HGV’s, meaning give and take on the carriageway at pinchpoints 

  

Figure 87: On-street parking Figure 88: Narrow footways 

Page 213



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 4b, 4j – Hailey Road (West End – Witney Community Primary School) 

Route Description. 

The route follows Hailey Road from the junction of West End / Crawley Road to Witney Community Primary School. It is a two-way 

road (30mph) with traffic calming. Footways vary in width; however, the western side of Hailey Road is generally wider. There are no 

dedicated cycle facilities along this stretch of road. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

4b 78% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

4j 74% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

4b, 4j Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Footway conditions poor in places with trip hazards 

• Narrow footway outside the petrol filling station, not suitable for wheelchairs or pushchairs 

 

 

Figure 89: Zebra crossing across Hailey Road Figure 90: Poor surface conditions 

  

Figure 91: Wide service road Figure 92: Pedestrian desire line 

Page 214



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 4c, 4g – Farmers Close (Hailey Road – New Yatt Road) 

Route Description 

Both of these links connect Hailey Road with Woodgreen / New Yatt Road. Link 4c follows Farmers Close between Hailey Road and 

New Yatt Road, a two-way 30mph road. Link 4g is a footpath that connects Farmers Close to Woodgreen. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

4c 50% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

4g 73% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

4c Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

4g  Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• No footway in places along Farmers Close meaning pedestrians are forced to walk in the road 

• Visibility along Farmers Close very poor, particularly at the uncontrolled crossing close to the footpath at the western end of 

Farmers Close 

• Some sections of the footpath have little natural surveillance  

• Vegetation very overgrown 

  

Figure 93: Poor visibility at uncontrolled crossing Figure 94: Steep gradient with barriers on footpath 

 

 

Figure 95: Footway parking  

Page 215



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 4d, 4e – Woodgreen  

Route Description 

4d is the link between Woodgreen (Narrow Hill) and New Yatt Road between West End and Farmers Close. This is a particularly 

steep section of road which is one-way southbound. 4e is the section of Woodgreen between New Yatt Road and Woodstock Road. 

Few vehicles were observed using these roads.   

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

4d 56% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

4e 53% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

4d Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

4e Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Narrow footways, with further pinchpoints due to vehicles parking on the footway in places 

• Steep gradient on Woodgreen (Narrow Hill) 

• Footway ends abruptly on Woodgreen (Narrow Hill) 

• Blind corner at Woodgreen / New Yatt Road which could lead to pedestrian hesitation 

 
 

Figure 96: Woodgreen (Narrow Hill) Figure 97: Narrow footways 

Page 216



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 4f – Bridge Street and Woodgreen / Woodstock Road (Newland – Jubilee Way) 

Route Description. 

Bridge Street is a very busy and constrained road in Witney due to it being the only river crossing within the town centre. It is a two-

way road, that falls within the Air Quality Management Area. It is also a main bus route and experiences high levels of queuing and 

congestion. There is no dedicated cycle provision on Bridge Street. Footways are also very narrow in places. Newland and 

Woodgreen. The road widens and footways are present on both sides of the road with large verges and mature trees. There are few 

pedestrian crossings across Woodstock Road. It is a main route to access Wood Green School. There is a shared use footway / 

cycleway on the eastern side of Woodstock Road between south of Harvest Way and Jubilee Way. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

4f 53% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

4f Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Bridge Street is very difficult to cross for pedestrians, particularly at the northern end by the double-mini roundabout 

• Large number of conflicting vehicle movements at the double- mini roundabout, causing vehicle and pedestrian hesitation 

• Wide façade to façade along Woodstock Road – opportunity to provide cycle provision 

• Clear pedestrian desire line adjacent to the road at Harvest Way 

• Difficult to access northbound bus stop on Woodstock Road (Figure 101) 

 
 

Figure 98: Pinchpoint on Bridge Street Figure 99: Lots of turning movements at double mini-roundabout 

  

Figure 100: Pedestrian desire line Figure 101: Northbound bus stop 

Page 217



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

Link 4k, 4l (Woodford Mill linking West End / Hailey Road and Burford Road 

Route Description. 

This shared use path connects West End / Hailey Road and Burford Road via a small bridge. The path is liable to flooding during 

heavy rainfall and during certain months may be impassable. The path splits in two; the western path (Figure 103) is a more 

informal, leisure track. Both paths have bridges across the river, which are narrow, have poor visibility and are unattractive for 

cyclists.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

4k 77% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

4l 69% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

4k, 4l Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• There is no natural surveillance along both the eastern and western paths 

• Path is liable to flooding – resulting it being impassable during periods of heavy rainfall 

• Uneven terrain on western path. Not suitable for wheelchair users or pushchairs 

• Bridges have sharp turns, making visibility poor 

  

Figure 102: Eastern footpath Figure 103: Western footpath 

  

Figure 104: Woodford Mill shared footway / cycleway Figure 105: Bridge to be re-aligned 

Page 218



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

 

  

Link 4i – New Yatt Road 

Route Description. 

The western part of this route begins at the junction between New Yatt Road and Farmers Close, and the eastern side begins at The 

King’s School. There is a footway along the majority of this route, but this stops towards the eastern side of the route. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

4i 84% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

4i Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Limited crossing movements across New Yatt Road.  

• No dedicated cycle facilities along New Yatt Road 

• Narrow footways with verges – opportunity to widen at the northern end of New Yatt Road 

• Western footway is intermittent north of Farmers Close. 

 

 

Figure 106: Traffic calming on New Yatt Road Figure 107: Verges 

Page 219



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

 

Link 5a – 5b – Church Lane (Crown Lane – Oxford Hill) 

Route Description. 

The western side of the route is a shared cycleway / footway, Crown Lane with limited vehicle movements (access only). The route 

diverts onto a two-way road (20mph), road which connects to Oxford Hill.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

5a 93% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

5b 82% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

5a – 5b Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Lots of on-street parking on the eastern side of Church Lane 

• Church Lane has narrow footways, resulting in pedestrians stepping into the road 

 

 

Figure 108: Shared use bridge Figure 109: Segregated shared use footway /cycleway 

 

 

Figure 110: Crown Lane  

Page 220



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 5c – Footpath (Church Lane – Newland) 

Route Description. 

This route is a footpath which joins Church Lane / Crown Lane and Newland. The path is not surfaced and is used as a shared 

footway / cycleway.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

5c 63% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

5c Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Path uneven and not suitable for wheelchair users 

• Narrow, some give and take required between pedestrians and cyclists 

• Guardrailing present near Newland Road – creating a barrier for cyclists to cross easily 

• No natural surveillance   

  

Figure 111: Gates at both ends of the path Figure 112: Narrow path 

 

 

Figure 113: Guardrailing at Newland Road  

Page 221



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 5d – Oxford Hill (Jubilee Way – Woodgreen) 

Route Description. 

Newland / Oxford Hill is a two-way 30mph road between Woodgreen and Jubilee Way. It is one of the main access roads into 

Witney town centre from the A40. There are no dedicated cycle facilities. Footway widths vary along the length of the road. 

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

5d 73% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

5d Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Eastbound bus stop adjacent to King George’s Field is within a very narrow section of road. There is limited space to 

manoeuvre mobility scooters / pushchairs 

• No dedicated cycle facilities along Oxford Hill  

• Busy road with parked vehicles 

 
 

Figure 114: Narrow footways Figure 115: Parked vehicles on Oxford Hill 

Page 222



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 5i – 5j – Jubilee Way – Cogges Hill Road 

Route Description. 

This is a two–way road (30-50mph) that connects Woodstock Road and Oxford Hill. There are shared footway / cycleways that run 

alongside this route and pedestrian crossings at the junction with Oxford Hill. There is no footway on the eastern side of the road.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

5i 85% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

5j 64% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

5i - 5j Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Signage on Jubilee Way directs pedestrians to a pedestrian on the eastern side. No crossing points to access the footpath 

(Figure 116) 

• Pedestrian desire lines into Madley Park. No formal path. 

 
 

Figure 116: Signage to public footpath Figure 117: Pedestrian desire lines from Jubilee Way into 
Madley Park 

 

 

Figure 118: Shared footway / cycleway  

Page 223



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 5k – Cogges Hill Road – Stanton Harcourt Road 

Route Description. 

This route is a shared cycleway / footway which runs alongside Stanton Harcourt Road and Cogges Hill Road.   

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

5k 50% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

5k Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Uneven surfaces creating steep inclines which may pose difficulties for pedestrians 

• Cut throughs the vegetation have been made, showing clear pedestrian desire lines 

• Lack of surveillance due to overgrown vegetation 

 
 

Figure 119: Uneven surface Figure 120: Pedestrian desire line 

 

 

Figure 121: Pedestrian desire line  

Page 224



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 5la and 5lb – Footpath (Church Lane – Stanton Harcourt Road) 

Route Description. 

This route is a segregated shared use cycleway / footway connecting Church Lane and Blakes Avenue. It is a popular route linking 

pedestrians and cyclists between Cogges and central Witney. It is also a main access point for pupils at Blake Church of England 

Primary School.   

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

5la 93% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

5lb 63% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

5l Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• Barriers present difficulties for people on bikes, especially adapted or cargo bikes  

• Overgrown vegetation constricts visibility and covers some of the footway / cycleway creating a conflict between 

pedestrians and cyclists 

 

 

Figure 122: Barriers Figure 123: Vegetation impeding on footway / cycleway 

Page 225



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

  

Link 5n – Footpath (Church Lane – Old Stanton Harcourt Road) 

Route Description. 

This route is a shared footway / cycleway that connects Church Lane to Old Stanton Harcourt Road through Oxlease Park.  

Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) 

5n 92% Attractiveness Comfort Directness Safety Coherence 

Route Selection Tool (RST)  

5n Directness Gradient Safety Connectivity Comfort 

Findings 

• No dedicated cycle facilities  

• Path is narrow, give and take required between users 

 
 

Figure 124: Footpath through Oxlease Park Figure 125: Clear pedestrian desire line 

Page 226



Witney LCWIP 
Audit Output Report 

Info 

 

 

  0 

This report is to be regarded as confidential to our Client and is intended for their use only and may not be assigned except in 
accordance with the contract.  Consequently, and in accordance with current practice, any liability to any third party in respect of the 
whole or any part of its contents is hereby expressly excluded, except to the extent that the report has been assigned in accordance 
with the contract.  Before the report or any part of it is reproduced or referred to in any document, circular or statement and before its 
contents or the contents of any part of it are disclosed orally to any third party, our written approval as to the form and context of 
such a publication or disclosure must be obtained. 

Report Ref. Audit Output Report - Primary & Secondary Routes.Docx 

File Path P:\Data\106416 - Witney LCWIP\01 - WIP\Documents\Reports\Audit Output Report - Primary & Secondary Routes.docx 

Rev Suit Description Date Originator Checker Approver 

1.0  First draft 01/09/2022 LR NY NY 

       

       

       

Ref. reference.  Rev revision.  Suit suitability. 

 

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



O
R

KN
EY

 P
LA

C
E

193

185

16

1
2

Presbytery

WELCH WAY

CORN STREET

D
U

C
KLIN

G
TO

N
 LAN

E
CURBRIDGE ROAD

A4095 TOWER HILL

     GENERAL NOTES

G1. DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.

G2. ANY DIMENSIONAL DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE
       NOTIFIED TO THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY.

G3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN MILLIMETRES - (mm)
       ALL LEVELS ARE IN METRES - (m) AND ARE ABOVE
       ORDNANCE DATUM AT NEWLYN, CORNWALL UNLESS
       NOTED OTHERWISE.

G4. NORTH SHOWN INDICATIVE ONLY

G5. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH
       ALL RELEVANT; SPECIFICATIONS; DRAWINGS; DETAILS
       AND OTHER DESIGN INFORMATION.

G6. ALL DRAWINGS AND WRITTEN MATERIAL CONTAINED
       WITHIN, CONSTITUTE ORIGINAL AND UNPUBLISHED
       WORK OF THE ENGINEER AND MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED,
       USED, REPRODUCED OR DISCLOSED WITHOUT WRITTEN
       CONSENT OR EXPRESS PERMISSION FROM THE
       ENGINEER.

G7. ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT IS
       COPYRIGHT ©

G8. WHERE THE CONTRACTOR UNDERTAKES OR ENGAGES
A THIRD PARTY TO UNDERTAKE TEMPORARY WORKS 
DESIGN, OR VARIES THE PELL FRISCHMANN DESIGN IN
ANY WAY, THEN THE CONTRACTOR WILL TAKE FULL 
RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR ALL DESIGN 
ASPECTS, INCLUDING A DESIGN RISK ASSESSMENT. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM PELL FRISCHMANN OF ANY
PROPOSED VARIANCES TO THE DESIGN.

- - - - - -

Witney LCWIP

Fiveways
Dutch-Style Roundabout

Concept Design

Not to Scale

106416 PEL XX FW DR D 0001

P01

S1D.SUSANS 27.06.22

D.SUSANS

L.RONALDSON

N.YOUNG

27.06.22

11.07.22

12.07.22

SHARED

P01 - DS LR NY 12.07.22

This drawing includes map data licensed from Ordnance Survey with
the permission of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

ã Crown copyright  licence number 0100023343 (2022)

Drawing No.

Name Date

Scale

Drawing Title

Project

APP

Approved

Eng Chk

Designed

Pell Frischmann Consultants (A1 841x594)c

Drawn

Revision

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHK DATE

Status Code

Drawing Status

100 BROAD STREET, BIRMINGHAM, B15 1AE
Email: pfbirmingham@pellfrischmann.com

www.pellfrischmann.com

Architect/Client/Contractor

KEY
White Road Markings

Kerbs

Carriageway

Footway

Cycleway

Landscaping

Buff Tactile Paving

Red Tactile Paving

P
age 229



El Sub

68

72a

37a

31 31a

61

39

92.8m

70

70b

68a

71

72d

74

Sta

72

37

49
72b

72c

70a

SCHOOL
KEEP

CLEAR

WOODSTOCK ROAD

W
O

O
D

 G
R

EEN
 SC

H
O

O
L

     GENERAL NOTES

G1. DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING.

G2. ANY DIMENSIONAL DISCREPANCIES SHOULD BE
       NOTIFIED TO THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY.

G3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN MILLIMETRES - (mm)
       ALL LEVELS ARE IN METRES - (m) AND ARE ABOVE
       ORDNANCE DATUM AT NEWLYN, CORNWALL UNLESS
       NOTED OTHERWISE.

G4. NORTH SHOWN INDICATIVE ONLY

G5. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH
       ALL RELEVANT; SPECIFICATIONS; DRAWINGS; DETAILS
       AND OTHER DESIGN INFORMATION.

G6. ALL DRAWINGS AND WRITTEN MATERIAL CONTAINED
       WITHIN, CONSTITUTE ORIGINAL AND UNPUBLISHED
       WORK OF THE ENGINEER AND MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED,
       USED, REPRODUCED OR DISCLOSED WITHOUT WRITTEN
       CONSENT OR EXPRESS PERMISSION FROM THE
       ENGINEER.

G7. ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT IS
       COPYRIGHT ©

G8. WHERE THE CONTRACTOR UNDERTAKES OR ENGAGES
A THIRD PARTY TO UNDERTAKE TEMPORARY WORKS 
DESIGN, OR VARIES THE PELL FRISCHMANN DESIGN IN
ANY WAY, THEN THE CONTRACTOR WILL TAKE FULL 
RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR ALL DESIGN 
ASPECTS, INCLUDING A DESIGN RISK ASSESSMENT. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM PELL FRISCHMANN OF ANY
PROPOSED VARIANCES TO THE DESIGN.

- - - - - -

Witney LCWIP

Woodstock Road
Segregated Cycle Track and

Parallel Crossing Concept Design

Not to Scale

106416 PEL XX WR DR D 0001

P01

S1D.SUSANS DD.MM.YY

D.SUSANS

J.BLOGGS

J.BLOGGS

DD.MM.YY

DD.MM.YY

DD.MM.YY

SHARED

P01 - DS JB JB XX.XX.XX

This drawing includes map data licensed from Ordnance Survey with
the permission of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

ã Crown copyright  licence number 0100023343 (2022)

Drawing No.

Name Date

Scale

Drawing Title

Project

APP

Approved

Eng Chk

Designed

Pell Frischmann Consultants (A1 841x594)c

Drawn

Revision

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHK DATE

Status Code

Drawing Status

100 BROAD STREET, BIRMINGHAM, B15 1AE
Email: pfbirmingham@pellfrischmann.com

www.pellfrischmann.com

Architect/Client/Contractor

KEY
White Road Markings

Yellow Road Markings

Kerbs

Carriageway

Footway

Cycleway

Landscaping

Buff Tactile Paving

Red Tactile Paving

P
age 230



Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

 

1 

 

Appendix D: Detailed table of the packages of measures 

This table shows the breakdown of improvements within each of the 11 packages of measures and the associated cost of 
delivering the whole package. The packages have not been prioritised in delivery order but have been grouped geographically 
along corridors or areas. The cost rank shows 1 as the highest cost package and 11 as the lowest cost package. 

Package Total 
Package 
Cost 

Cost Rank Measure 
Reference 

Location Description 

Woodstock 
Road 
package 

£14.34m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
1 

1 A4095 Woodgreen A formal crossing within the vicinity of Holy 
Trinity Church 

2a Woodstock Road, between Woodgreen 
and Wood Green School access 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the 
western side of the Woodstock Road  

2b Woodstock Road between Wood Green 
School and Jubilee Way 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the 
western side of the Woodstock Road 

3a A4905 Witney Road, between Jubilee 
Way and North Leigh 

Two-way segregated cycle track between 
Jubilee Way and Common Road 

3b A4095, between Common Road and Park 
Road 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the 
western side of A4095  past North Leigh, 
removing need to go through North Leigh 

3c A4095 Witney Road, between North Leigh 
and Hanborough Station and between 
Jubilee Way and North Leigh 

Two-way segregated cycle track between 
Park Road and Hanborough Station 

56 Woodgreen (Narrow Hill) Restrict motorised traffic to access only, in 
southbound direction and add signage to 
allow contra-flow cycling 

68 Woodstock Road, footpath adjacent to 
driveway for 120-122 

Barriers filter cyclists towards blind 
entrance with residential drive. Realign 
barriers and add signage to warn of conflict 

Hailey Road 
package 

£5.94m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
6 

5 B4022 Hailey Road, between West End 
and Witney Community Primary School 
access 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the 
western side of Hailey Road 

P
age 231



Package Total 
Package 
Cost 

Cost Rank Measure 
Reference 

Location Description 

6 B4022 Hailey Road, between  Witney 
Community Primary School access and 
Hailey 

Two-way segregated cycle track Witney 
Community Primary School access and 
Hailey  

7 B4022 West End/ Crawley Road junction Crossing to link Hailey Road and Woodford 
Mill cycle path (for cyclists and pedestrians) 

8 Woodford Mill footpath between B4022 
West End and A4095 Mill Street 

Provide lighting and raised path / 
boardwalk along Woodford Mill (as liable to 
flooding) 

9 Footpath link between B4022 West End 
and A4095 Mill Street 

90 degree over bridge. New bridge / new 
alignment to remove sharp turn and 
improve visibility 

41 Footpath linking Hyde Meadow View and 
Woodford Mill path (8) 

Upgrade existing footpath by raising up, re-
surfacing and adding lighting. Re-alignment 
and modifications to bridge also required. 

57 Footpath in the vicinity of Farmers Close 
(between numbers 126 and 148) 

Widen where possible and re-align barriers 

58 B4022 Hailey Road between Farmers 
Close and Taphouse Avenue 

New uncontrolled crossing closer to the 
junction 

59 Footpath link between Eastfield Road and 
Vanner Road 

Widen cut through, where possible 

82 West End, east of Hailey Road / West 
End roundabout 

Add chicane on outbound / westbound 
carriageway to allow for footway widening 
at the pinchpoint 

Burford 
Road 
package 

£6.01m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
5 

29 B4047 Burford Road / Downs Road 
junction 

Upgrade pedestrian crossing to a toucan 
crossing 

30 B4047 Burford Road / Deer Park Road 
junction 

Upgrade pedestrian crossing to a toucan 
crossing 

53 Shared use path parallel to B4047 Burford 
Road 

Resurfacing of off-road path to provide 
smooth surface. Lighting also required  

69 A4095 Burford Road in vicinity of Moor 
Avenue 

Build-out within layby to make crossing 
movements safer and easier 

70 A4095 Burford Road, east of Springfield 
Park 

Widen footway into adjacent verge 

85 A4095 Burford Road Upgrade of existing segregated shared 
footway/ cycleway to footway and two-way 
segregated track 

98 A4095 Burford Road, in the vicinity of 
Windrush Valley Road 

New pedestrian crossing to help access 
bus stops east of Windrush Valley Road 

P
age 232



Package Total 
Package 
Cost 

Cost Rank Measure 
Reference 

Location Description 

West Witney 
package 

£1.96m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
9 

32 Deer Park Road, south of Range Road 
linking Deer Park Road and the Bridleway 

Controlled toucan or sparrow crossing  

33 Bridleway between Deer Park Road and 
Downs Road 

Widen, provide lighting and re-surface 
existing bridleway 

44 Shared use path east of Fettiplace Road Remove barriers or widen to safely allow 
for inclusive access 

45 Footpath between Edington Road and 
Apley Way (south of West Witney Primary 
School) 

Re-surface path and lower manholes to 
footpath surface level 

46 Tower Hill in the vicinity of Windrush 
Valley Road 

New controlled crossing  

64 Welch Way  Realign hedgerow to accommodate space 
for a two-way segregated cycle track 

72 Tower Hill between Windrush Valley Road 
and Wilkinson Place 

Convert verge on western side of Tower 
Hill (between Windrush Valley Road and 
Wilkinson Place) to footway, providing 
continuous footway connection 

73 Footpath between Fettiplace Road and 
Tower Hill 

Add lighting 

75 Woodford Way / Welch Road Long wait time for pedestrians crossing 
Woodford Way at signal controlled junction. 
Review signal timings 

Witney Road 
package 

£10.89m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
3 

38 Curbridge Road between Spring Meadow 
and Deer Park Road 

Reduce length of right-turn pocket and 
extend shared-use section to the 
roundabout 

42 Curbridge Road in the vicinity of the 
Cemetery 

New controlled crossing  

43 Curbridge Road, between Deer Park 
Road and Tower Hill 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the 
northern side of Curbridge Road (likely to 
be shared in places (near Fiveways Rbt)) 

60 Ashcombe Close link to Corn Street Widen gap in the wall and re-align footway 
/ cycleway 

62 Market Square, crossing on Langdale 
Gate / Corn Street roundabout's southern 
arm 

Pedestrian crossing movements on south 
of Langdale Gate are unclear and can be 
confused with motorcycle parking.  
Enhance pedestrian areas to make 
crossing movements clearer 

P
age 233



Package Total 
Package 
Cost 

Cost Rank Measure 
Reference 

Location Description 

76 Market Square western footway, south of 
Marlborough Lane 

Review bollard locations and potential to 
extend build-out to remove pinchpoint 

79 Downs Road / Centenary Way 
roundabout 

New toucan crossing across the southern 
arm of Downs Road to connect the two 
cycle routes (ref 83 and 90) 

83 Path connecting Downs Road and 
Centenary Way parallel to the A40 

Upgrade path to accommodate a shared 
footway / cycleway 

90 Witney Road, between Carterton and 
Witney 

Two-way segregated cycle track (some 
land take may be required) 

95 Corn Street Two-way segregated cycle track on Corn 
Street 

Ducklington 
Lane 
package 

£13.64m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
2 

47 A415 Ducklington Lane in vicinity of 
Burwell Drive 

At-grade controlled crossing  

48 A415 Ducklington Road Shared use footpath/ cycleway parallel to 
road as bypass to underpass and remove 
the need for users to traverse the gradients 

49 A415 Ducklington Lane New links between Ducklington Road and 
Queen Emma's Dyke 

91 B4449 Aston Road, between Bampton 
and Aston 

Two-way segregated cycle track (some 
land take may be required) 

92 Aston Mile,  between Bampton and 
Ducklington  

Two-way segregated cycle track (some 
land take may be required) 

93 Ducklington Lane Upgrade of existing segregated shared use 
footway/ cycleway along Ducklington Road 
to footway with segregated two-way cycle 
track 

96 A415 / Aston Mile Crossing on A415 between Aston & 
Ducklington to link proposed routes 

99 Ducklington Lane Roundabout, adjacent 
to A40 western slips 

Introduce sparrow crossings at the 
roundabout. Crossings required on 
Ducklington Lane, A415 and A40 slip roads 
(as a minimum). These could be 
standalone or as part of a junction 
signalisation. 

South 
Witney 
package 

£0.26m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
11 

4 Station Lane, in vicinity of Avenue One 
and Gordon Lane 

Provision of controlled crossing 

50 Footpath next to Lakeside Allotments Widen path where possible 

P
age 234



Package Total 
Package 
Cost 

Cost Rank Measure 
Reference 

Location Description 

51 Footpath next to Lakeside Allotments Remove barriers (kissing gates) or widen to 
safely allow for inclusive access 

52 Witney Road, in the vicinity of Dale Walk, 
Ducklington 

Uncontrolled crossing required, narrowing 
of carriageway and widening of footway 

77 Footpath link at Spring Close Add lighting 

78 Footpath parallel to Gordon Way Widen where possible 

Witan Way 
package 

£2.35m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
8 

17 Witan Way between Des Roches Square 
(Sainsbury's access) and High Street 

Two-way segregated cycle track on the 
western side of Witan Way.  

18 Farm Mill Lane, between Witan Way and 
Station Lane 

Re-surfacing, lighting and widening where 
possible of shared use path  

22 South of Witan Way roundabout, between 
Station Lane and Two Rivers Trading 
Estate 

New toucan crossing, providing connection 
to new footpath/ cycleway links (19 and 20) 

28 Witan Way / Farm Mill Lane Upgrade existing uncontrolled crossing to a 
controlled crossing 

63 Witan Way, between Station Lane and 
Two Rivers Trading Estate 

Upgrade of uncontrolled crossing to a 
controlled crossing, linking to employment 
and Job Centre 

East Witney 
package 

£7.8m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
4 

11 Footpath link across Oxlease Park 
between Cogges Hill Road and Church 
Lane 

Widen existing footpath and extend to and 
Church Lane to accommodate cyclists 

12 Cogges Hill Road, north of Blakes Avenue New toucan crossing to link pedestrians 
and cyclists to East Witney development 
and existing RoW 410/7 

13 Shared use path parallel to Stanton 
Harcourt Road 

Widening of existing segregated shared 
use footpath/ cycleway 

14 Stanton Harcourt Road, between shared 
use path 

New raised controlled crossing 

15 Cogges Hill Road, between shared use 
path 

New raised controlled crossing 

16 PRoW 410/41, east of Blakes Avenue Widen existing footpath where possible, re-
surface and add lighting 

19 Link between Stanton Harcourt Road and 
Station Lane / Witan Way 

New shared use footpath/ cycleway linking 
Stanton Harcourt Rd across open land to 
proposed new river crossing (21b)  

20  Link between Cogges Hill Road and 
Station Lane / Witan Way  

New shared use footpath/ cycleway across 
open land to proposed new river crossing 
(21b) 

P
age 235



Package Total 
Package 
Cost 

Cost Rank Measure 
Reference 

Location Description 

21a Link between Station Lane / Witan Way 
and new river crossing 

Links between new river crossing and 
Station Lane / Witan Way and Farm Mill 
Lane 

21b East of Farm Mill Lane, over the River 
Windrush 

New southern river crossing (pedestrians 
and cyclists only) 

23 B4022, Oxford Hill, east of the Windrush 
Cemetery 

New toucan crossing  

24 B4022 Oxford Hill, between South Leigh 
and the new toucan crossing (23) 

New shared use footway/ cycleway on the 
southern side of Oxford Hill  

25 Stanton Harcourt Road, south of Eton 
Close  

New toucan crossing  

26 Link between Stanton Harcourt Road and 
PRoW 410/41 (East Witney SDA) 

New shared use footpath/ cycleway  

27 Link between PRoW 410/41 and B4022 
Oxford Hill 

Upgrade of PRoW 410/41 to a shared use 
footpath/ cycleway from the East Witney 
site to B4022 Oxford Hill 

54 Cogges Hill Road, north of Blakes Avenue Formalisation of western path by re-
surfacing 

55 Cogges Hill Road / Cogges Hill Road Uncontrolled crossing required 

71 Path linking Cogges Hill Church and 
Church Lane 

Remove barriers 

81 B4022 Oxford Hill / Jubilee Way Upgrade junction to MOVA and review 
staging 

86 Oxford Hill, between Cogges Hill Road 
and east of Windrush Cemetery 

New shared use footway/ cycleway on the 
southern side of Oxford Hill  

97 Cogges Hill Road / B4022 Oxford Hill New footpath to the south of Oxford Hill 
between Oxford Hill / Jubilee Way to 
Windrush Cemetery 

Newland 
package 

£0.56m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
10 

66 Link between Newland Mill and Church 
Lane 

Re-surface path and widen footway to 
allow shared space 

87 King George's Field, north of Newland Shared use footpath/ cycleway around King 
George's Field 

Madley 
Paths 
package 

£3.1m cost 
estimate 

Cost Rank:  
7 

10a Footpath link from B4022 Oxford Hill, in 
vicinity of Madley Brook 

Resurfacing of Public Right of Way 410/4 
running parallel to the Madley Park cycle 
track to allow cycling 

10b Footpath link between B4022 Oxford Hill 
and Woodbank  in vicinity of Newland 
allotments 

Ground lighting along section (circa 75m) 
of path parallel to Newland allotments 

P
age 236



Package Total 
Package 
Cost 

Cost Rank Measure 
Reference 

Location Description 

10c Footpath link from B4022 Oxford Hill, in 
vicinity of Madley Brook 

Repair and possible widening / re-
alignment of bridges along the Madley Park 
/ Park View Lane track 

10d Bridge between Woodbank and Northfield 
Road 

Repair of bridge between Woodbank and 
Northfield Road 

65 B4022 Newland, in vicinity of PROW 
410/4 entrance and Church Lane 

New parallel crossing on B4022 Newland 

Improvement
s not in 
packages 

£7.1m cost 
estimate 
Total cost not 
inclusive of 
improvement 
ref 88 or 89. 

Not 
Applicable 

31 Deer Park Road, in the vicinity of the 
footpath south of Valence Crescent 

New uncontrolled pedestrian crossing  

34 Footpath between Downs Road and Book 
End 

Maintenance of vegetation, lighting 
required 

35 Footpath between Book End and Range 
Road 

Widen existing path 

36 Link between Colletts Way and Leslie 
Harvey Close 

New link between employment park and 
housing estate 

37 Link between Downs Road and Chipmunk 
Drive / College Place 

New link between Downs Road and 
housing estate 

39 Curbridge Road / Deer Park Road Dutch style roundabout 

40 Curbridge Road / Ducklington Lane / 
Welch Way 

Dutch style roundabout 

61 Footway between Moorland Road and 
Woodford Way  

Widen where possible, add lighting 

67 Multiple locations Wayfinding 

74 Moorland Road / Moor Ave junction Move uncontrolled crossing further into 
Moorland Road to provide safer crossing 

88 New road linking Hailey Road and 
Woodstock Road (part of North Witney 
SDA) 

New northern distributor road 

89 Link between West End / Hailey Road 
junction and Burford Road / Woodford 
Way junction 

West End Link 2 to include segregated 
walking and cycling routes 

94 Thorney Leys Two-way segregated cycle track along 
Thorney Leys 

 

P
age 237



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Witney, 

Cycle Parking Audit

Oct 2022 

Page 239



Content

Background

Auditing process

Central Witney Ward

North Witney Ward

East Witney Ward

South Witney Ward

West Witney Ward

Conclusion

1

P
age 240



This work was completed in October 2022 as part of Witney LCWIP.
The audit took place in the five wards of Witney, and it looked at both the existing and potential 
cycle parking.
Details about the auditing process will be discussed below.

Background

Initially information was gathered from previous cycle parking audits of Witney and known cycle 
parking locations. Several site visits were undertaken to assess the existing cycle parking and 
consider if further cycle parking is required. Each ward of Witney was audited in turn.

Gathering the Data:
The base data that has been used are:
1. A previous cycle parking audit in 2011
2. A cycle parking location map by Windrush Bike Project in 2016
3. GIS data for the land and building uses in Witney, where commercial and service buildings are 
located.

4. Site visits were conducted after the first analysis to examine the existing cycle parking.

Analysing the Data:
The first step was the review the 2011 audit to see where cycle parking had been previously in-
stalled. The GIS land and building data was used to identify places where people are likely to cycle 
to, whether it is for work, study, shopping, etc. The second step was to examine the existing and 
potential cycle parking locations.

Sites where people are likely to cycle to, but there is no cycle parking, are sites where there is 
potential for new cycle parking.

Existing cycle parking sites were assessed and scored using three criteria, where each one is 
scored out of five points:

1. Is the cycle parking secure?

2. Is the cycle parking easily accessible?

3. Are there enough cycle parking spaces?”

Auditing Process

Witney current cycle parking locations

Witney commercial units cluster

2

P
age 241



Three locations were looked at in Central Witney:
1. Windrush Valley Road area
2. Welch Way area
3. High St area

Central Witney Ward

Central Witney Ward boundary 3

Corn St

Welch Wy

Burford Rd

Windrush Rd

Hi
gh

 S
t1

2

3P
age 242



1. Windrush Valley area
There are two sites of existing cycle parking at this 
location. One is on the north side of the Tesco build-
ing. The sec ond is opposite the antique shop.

Both sites were difficult to find and not easy to ac-
cess by bike, especially for the second one.

A new location would be more appropriate near the 
car park close to the fishing shop and the Oasis 

family church.

Central Witney Ward

4

Tow
er H

ill

Burford Rd

Cycle parking near the antique shop

Oasis Family Church Cycle parking at the north side of the Tesco building

1 Windrush Rd

P
age 243



2. Welch Way area
The cycle parking in Welch Way is well distributed, 

secure, and accessible. 

Central Witney Ward

5

Welch Wy

Cycle parking at Wech Way near Cafe Nero Cycle parking at Witney Community Hospital

2

P
age 244



3. High St
The existing cycle parking is secure and visible, 
however, a new cycle parking rack would be useful 
near NatWest bank considering the high amount of 

commercial units people might cycle to.

Central Witney Ward

6

Welch Wy

Hi
gh

 S
t

3

Cycle parking at High St near LLoyds Bank Potential location for cycle parking at High St near NatWest

P
age 245



v

Central Witney Ward

Central Witney Proposed cycle parking

Location

Windrush Valley area A) Near the car park

B) Near Oasis Family Church

High Street area C) Near NatWest

Central Witney Ward boundary 7

Welch Wy

Hi
gh

 S
t

A) B) C)

1
2

3

Windrush Rd

P
age 246

https://goo.gl/maps/CCyB1TwmEzmWZzFX9
https://goo.gl/maps/tpsErDskPj1w7huo8
https://goo.gl/maps/NaSP94msbWVF67658


Four locations were looked at in North Witney:
1. Bridge St area
2. West End area
3. Woodgreen area
4. Hailey Rd area

North Witney Ward

North Witney Ward boundary 8

1

2

3

4

P
age 247



1. Bridge St area
There is no cycle parking in Bridge Street, al-
though the street has plenty of commercial units. 
The layout of the street makes it hard to find a 
space to install cycle parking, however there is 
potentially space near The Old Court Hotel and We 
Three Kings shop.
      

North Witney Ward

North Witney Ward boundary 9

1

Potential location for cycle parking at Bridge St near The Old Court Hotel

Potential location for cycle parking at Bridge St near We Three Kings shop

P
age 248



2. West End area
Similar to Bridge St, there is an opportunity for cy-
cle parking near The Elm Tree and Elim Christian 

Fellowship.

      

North Witney Ward

North Witney Ward boundary 10

2

Potential location for cycle parking at West End near The Elm Tree 

Potential location for cycle parking at West End near Christian Fellowship

P
age 249



3. Woodgreen area
There is no cycle parking in this area. It would be 
useful to install some cycle parking stands close 
to the Woodgreen play area and near the West 
Oxfordshire District Council offices.
      

North Witney Ward

11

3

Potential location for cycle parking at Woodgreen area near WODC

Potential location for cycle parking near Woodgreen play area

P
age 250



4. Hailey Rd
There is cycle parking near Hailey Express with 
the potential of increasing its capacity when it’s 
needed.

North Witney Ward

North Witney Ward boundary 12

4

Cycle parking at Halley Rd

P
age 251



North Witney Ward

North Witney Proposed Cycle Parking

Location

Bridge St area A) Near The Old Court Hotel 

B) Near We Three Kings

West End area C) Near The Elm Tree

D) Near the Elim Christian

Woodgreen area E) Near Woodgreen Play Area

F) Near the West Oxfordshire District Council

D

C

A

B

E

F

Proposed Cycle parking

North Witney Ward boundary 13

P
age 252

https://goo.gl/maps/r6SGoXqj4VLnsscb9
https://goo.gl/maps/ft5RfBEz9GUcreKx6
https://goo.gl/maps/uLeja5n569U5QE1Q6
https://goo.gl/maps/CJogWwSDG5YgefWU7
https://goo.gl/maps/q6BAyGkxYxHXifHp7
https://goo.gl/maps/AGktDGX5brUbVg2s8


Three locations were looked at in East Witney:
1. Newland area
2. Madley Park area
3. Cogges area 

East Witney Ward

East Witney Ward boundary 14

Newland

Church
 Ln

Woodbank

1

2

3

P
age 253



1. Newland area
There is some cycle parking at Newland near Wit-
ney Mills Cricket Club, next to the Staple Hall bus 
stop. Further cycle parking would be useful near 
King George’s Field, next to the bus stop.

East Witney Ward

East Witney Ward boundary 15

Newland

Church
 Ln

Woodbank

1 Cycle parking at Newland near Staple Hall bus stop

Potential location for cycle parking at Newland near King George’s field

P
age 254



2. Madley Park area
There is a good level of cycle parking provision 
around the commercial units. However, it would 
be useful to have more cycle parking next to the 
Co-operative Childcare.

East Witney Ward

East Witney Ward boundary 16

Newland

Church
 Ln

Woodbank

2

Cycle parking at Madley Park Hall

Potential location for cycle parking at Madley Park area near Co-operative Childcare

P
age 255



3. Cogges area
There is one cycle parking stand near the Cogges 
Hill Pharmacy. Considering the volume of commer-
cial units, more cycle parking would be beneficial, 
potentially near the Kingdom Hall of Jehovah’s 
Witnesses.

East Witney Ward

East Witney Ward boundary 17

Newland

Church
 Ln

Woodbank

3

Potential location for cycle parking near the Kingdom Hall of Jehovah’s 

Cycle parking near Cogges Hill Pharmacy 

P
age 256



East Witney Ward

East Witney Proposed Cycle parking

Location

Newland area A) Near King George’s Field

Madley Park area B) Near the Co-operative Childcare

Cogges area C) Near the Kingdom Hall of Jehovah’s Witnesses

C

A

Proposed Cycle parking

B

East Witney Ward boundary 18

Newland

Church
 Ln

Woodbank

P
age 257

https://goo.gl/maps/CNGJX5uAVpS2LNrU7
https://goo.gl/maps/t4ZnrMSA2gzLoqgW8
https://goo.gl/maps/LpuVHtX2V7znzmGw8


South Witney Ward has a large industrial and 
commer cial area at Station Lane. All those units 
appear to provide cycle parking. Therefore, more 
focus has been given to auditing the areas near 
the centre of Witney:

1. Corn St area

2. Market Square area

3. Church Green area

South Witney Ward

South Witney Ward boundary 19

D
ucklington Ln

Witan W
ay

C
hurch G

rn

Corn St

1
2

3

P
age 258



1. Corn St area
Although Corn St has a plenty of commercial units 
there is only one set of cycle park ing stands op-
posite the Holloway Road bus stop. It would be 
beneficial two have two more sets of cycle parking 
stands: one near Proposals bridal shop and the 

other near Bus Garage bus stop.

South Witney Ward

D
ucklington Ln

C
hurch G

rn

Corn St

1

Cycle parking opposite the Holloway Road bus stop
Potential location for cycle parking near Proposals 
bridal shop 

Potential location for cycle parking near Bus Garage 
bus stop

20

P
age 259



2. Market Square area
There is a good amount of cycle parking in Market 
Square, with good visibility.

South Witney Ward

D
ucklington Ln

C
hurch G

rn

Corn St

2

21
Cycle parking along Market Square area

P
age 260



3. Church Green area
There are two sets of cycle parking in Church 
Green close to Langdale Gate. However, the one 
behind T and C Kitchen is not visible enough and 
not secure to the ground. Two more sets  of cycle 
parking stands would be beneficial near St Mary 
Church and behind the Butter Cross.

South Witney Ward

D
ucklington Ln

C
hurch G

rn

Corn St

3

Potential location for cycle parking near St Mary ChurchPotential location for cycle parking behind the Butter CrossCycle parking close to Langdale Gate
22

P
age 261



South Witney Ward

South Witney Proposed Cycle Parking

Location

Corn St A) Near Bus Garage bus stop

B) Near the Proposals bridal shop

Church Green C) Near St. Mary Church Green

D) Behind the Butter Cross

A

B

C

D

Proposed Cycle parking

South Witney Ward boundary 23

D
ucklington Ln

C
hurch G

rn

Corn St

Witan W
ay

P
age 262

https://goo.gl/maps/oeDhuZ9edrxRYNzH7
https://goo.gl/maps/sVHH96xMRq2zJHkw7
https://goo.gl/maps/jTzy8pmC7qKDLLjm9
https://goo.gl/maps/bx7c1wKNZkryMhC76


There is a large industrial area to the west of 
Witney. Most of the units have cycle parking. Two 
areas of focus for West Witney:
1. Centenary Way bus stop on Curbridge Road, 
which is the western entrance of Witney;

2. Edington Square at Deer Park.

West Witney Ward

West Witney Ward boundary 24

Curb
rid

ge
 Rd

Curb
rid

ge
 Rd

Deer Park Rd

Edlington Rd

Burford Rd

1

2

P
age 263



1. Centenary Way Bus Stop: The cycle parking 
is visible and secure.

West Witney Ward

West Witney Ward boundary 25

Curb
rid

ge
 Rd

Curb
rid

ge
 Rd

Deer Park Rd

Burford Rd

Cycle parking near Centenary Way Bus Stop

1

P
age 264



2. Edington Square: 
There are two sets of cycle parking near Boots 
phar macy. However, it would be beneficial to have 
cycle parking near Stepping Stones Nursery to 
encourage more parents to cycle.

West Witney Ward

Tow
er H

ill

D
eer Park R

d

Edlington Rd

Burford Rd

2

Potential location for cycle parking near Stepping Stones Nursery 26
Cycle parking near Boots pharmacy

P
age 265



West Witney Ward

West Witney Proposed Cycle parking

Location

Edington Square A) Near Stepping Stones Nursery

A

Proposed Cycle parking

West Witney Ward boundary 27

Curb
rid

ge
 Rd

Curb
rid

ge
 Rd

Deer Park Rd

Edlington Rd

Burford Rd

P
age 266

https://goo.gl/maps/BT7UGFbDUC8D66z89


It is clear that there is a relatively good distribution of cycle parking around Witney. How ever, there 
is always an opportunity for improvement. This audit suggests 17 locations to install more cycle 
parking around Witney. This will give people more options to park their bicycles and  may increase 
the number of cycling journeys across Witney.  The 17 locations are distributed across the five 
wards of Witney based on each locations needs and the density of commercial units. 
Ensuring cycle parking is adequately spaced and able to be used to secure non-standard cycles 
such as cargo bikes, trikes, recumbents, e-bikes etc. is also vital.  
Additionally, for situations where someone may leave their bike for a long period of time, such as 
a work shift, having the option to park in covered parking to protect from elements may also be 
critical in their decision to cycle or not. Witney has very little covered public cycle parking. We will 
work with land owners such as town and district councils and those who own and manage the 
Woolgate Shopping Centre and Marriotts Walk to identify locations where covered cycle parking 
could be provided for public use.

Conclusion

28

West Witney Proposed Cycle parking

Location

Edington Square A) Near Stepping Stones Nursery

South Witney Proposed Cycle Parking

Location

Corn St A) Near Bus Garage bus stop

B) Near the Proposals bridal shop

Church Green C) Near St. Mary Church Green

D) Behind the Butter Cross

East Witney Proposed Cycle parking

Location

Newland area A) Near King George’s Field

Madley Park area B) Near the Co-operative Childcare

Cogges area C) Near the Kingdom Hall of Jehovah’s Witnesses

North Witney Proposed Cycle Parking

Location

Bridge St area A) Near The Old Court Hotel 

B) Near We Three Kings

West End area C) Near The Elm Tree

D) Near the Elim Christian

Woodgreen area E) Near Woodgreen Play Area

F) Near the West Oxfordshire District Council

Central Witney Proposed cycle parking

Location

Windrush Valley area A) Near the car park

B) Near Oasis Family Church

High Street area C) Near NatWest

P
age 267

https://goo.gl/maps/BT7UGFbDUC8D66z89
https://goo.gl/maps/oeDhuZ9edrxRYNzH7
https://goo.gl/maps/sVHH96xMRq2zJHkw7
https://goo.gl/maps/jTzy8pmC7qKDLLjm9
https://goo.gl/maps/bx7c1wKNZkryMhC76
https://goo.gl/maps/CNGJX5uAVpS2LNrU7
https://goo.gl/maps/t4ZnrMSA2gzLoqgW8
https://goo.gl/maps/LpuVHtX2V7znzmGw8
https://goo.gl/maps/r6SGoXqj4VLnsscb9
https://goo.gl/maps/ft5RfBEz9GUcreKx6
https://goo.gl/maps/uLeja5n569U5QE1Q6
https://goo.gl/maps/CJogWwSDG5YgefWU7
https://goo.gl/maps/q6BAyGkxYxHXifHp7
https://goo.gl/maps/AGktDGX5brUbVg2s8
https://goo.gl/maps/CCyB1TwmEzmWZzFX9
https://goo.gl/maps/tpsErDskPj1w7huo8
https://goo.gl/maps/NaSP94msbWVF67658


T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 

Oxfordshire County Council 

Equalities Impact Assessment  

Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan  

31/01/2023  

P
age 269



2 
 

Contents 
Section 1: Summary details .............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Section 2: Detail of proposal ............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Protected Characteristics .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Community Impacts .................................................................................................................................................. 12 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Wider Impacts ........................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Section 4: Review ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

 

  P
age 270



3 
 

Section 1: Summary details 

Directorate and Service Area  Environment and Place, Growth and Economy  
 

What is being assessed (e.g. 

name of policy, procedure, 

project, service or proposed 

service change). 

Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 

Is this a new or existing 

function or policy? 

A new plan for Witney   

Summary of assessment 

Briefly summarise the policy or 

proposed service change. 

Summarise possible impacts. 

Does the proposal bias, 

discriminate or unfairly 

disadvantage individuals or 

groups within the community?  

(following completion of the 

assessment). 

Development of LCWIPs is a policy requirement within Oxfordshire’s Local Transport and Connectivity Plan. LCWIPs 
play a key role in supporting more journeys by walking and cycling and addressing the climate emergency.  
 
No negative equalities impacts have been identified as arising from the Witney LCWIP, instead there is significant 
opportunity to address inequality in Witney and the surrounding area.  
 
The LCIWP promotes investment in infrastructure that will improve the accessibility of travel in Witney and the 
surrounding area for everyone.  
 
All individual highways schemes may result in unintended negative equalities impacts. This risk will be considered in 
detail on a scheme-by-scheme basis (using scheme-specific EIAs as appropriate) when the individual schemes 
promoted in the LCWIP are developed. 
 

Completed By Kim Sutherland, Transport Planner  

Authorised By Hannah Battye, Head of Placemaking 

Date of Assessment 31/01/2023  

 

P
age 271



4 
 

Section 2: Detail of proposal 

Context / Background  

Briefly summarise the 

background to the policy or 

proposed service change, 

including reasons for any 

changes from previous versions. 

 

 

The Witney LCWIP is a 10-year plan for improving cycling and walking infrastructure in Witney. The improvements 
aim to enable walking and cycling to be the natural choices for travelling short distances (or as part of longer 
journeys), in Witney and the surrounding area, thereby reducing reliance on motor vehicles. It is a policy 
requirement in Oxfordshire County Council's Local Transport and Connectivity Plan to produce LCWIPs (Policy 3a). 
 
This is the first version of the Witney LCWIP to be considered for approval. 
 

Proposals 

Explain the detail of the 

proposals, including why this has 

been decided as the best course 

of action. 

 

 

 

The LCWIP proposes:   
•new and improved crossings for people walking and cycling  
•segregated cycle tracks 
•provision of lighting on footpaths and cycleways  
•removal or modification of barriers on walking and cycling routes to improve accessibility  
•implementation of additional cycle parking  
•new and improved bridges on walking and cycling routes  
•footway widening and resurfacing  
•new shared use footway/cycleway   
•public realm improvements to create a more accessible and pleasant environment on High Street for people to 
walk, cycle and spend time.  
 

Evidence / Intelligence 

List and explain any data, 

consultation outcomes, research 

findings, feedback from service 

users and stakeholders etc, that 

supports your proposals and can 

The LCWIP and its associated documents outline the evidence used to inform the proposals in the LCWIP. 
Two consultations have been held, the feedback from these is used to inform the proposals in the Witney LCWIP. 
 

P
age 272



5 
 

help to inform the judgements you 

make about potential impact on 

different individuals, communities 

or groups and our ability to deliver 

our climate commitments. 

Alternatives considered / 

rejected 

Summarise any other approaches 

that have been considered in 

developing the policy or proposed 

service change, and the reasons 

why these were not adopted. This 

could include reasons why doing 

nothing is not an option. 

 

The Witney LCWIP is a policy requirement in LTCP (Policy 3a). The Witney LCWIP development followed 
Department for Transport Guidance on developing LCWIPs. Using an alternative approach would mean deviating 
from the policies adopted in the LTCP and may reduce the likelihood of securing funding for active travel schemes 
in the Witney area.  
 

 

  

P
age 273



6 
 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Protected Characteristics 

P
age 274



7 
 

Protected 

Characteristic 
No 

Impact 
Positive Negative Description of Impact 

Any actions or mitigation 

to reduce negative impacts 

Action owner* 

(*Job Title, 

Organisation) 

Timescale and 

monitoring 

arrangements 

P
age 275



8 
 

Age 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Segregated cycle facilities 

are provided where possible 

so that people cycling do not 

need to mix with motor 

vehicles or cycle on 

carriageway. This increases 

the safety of cycling, 

particularly for children, 

young people and the elderly 

who are typically less 

confident at cycling. In 

addition, the walking and 

cycling network ensures high 

quality connectivity to 

schools to support more 

journeys to school by walking 

and cycling.   

The Witney LCWIP also 

promotes the Healthy Streets 

Approach, which aims to 

create accessible and 

pleasant places for all. This 

includes the provision of 

benches to provide people 

with opportunities to rest 

when necessary. 

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Public consultation 

endeavours to engage with a 

range of people to receive a 

representative view. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

P
age 276



9 
 

Disability 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

The Witney LCWIP promotes 

the removal of physical 

barriers on footways and 

cycle paths to improve 

accessibility for all. The 

needs of people with visual 

impairments are also 

considered, including through 

the provision of tactile paving 

and segregated footways 

and cycleways to reduce 

conflict between people 

walking and cycling.  

The Witney LCWIP also 

promotes the Healthy Streets 

Approach, which aims to 

create accessible and 

pleasant places for all. This 

includes the provision of 

benches to provide people 

with opportunities to rest 

when necessary. 

Retain or relocate disabled 

parking bays to suitable 

locations when reallocating 

space to active modes. 

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

Gender 

Reassignment 
☒ ☐ ☐ 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Marriage & Civil 

Partnership 
☒ ☐ ☐ 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

P
age 277



10 
 

Pregnancy & 

Maternity 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

The Witney LCWIP promotes 

the removal of physical 

barriers on footways and 

cycle paths to improve 

accessibility for all, including 

for people with pushchairs 

and children. 

The Witney LCWIP also 

promotes the Healthy Streets 

Approach, which aims to 

create accessible and 

pleasant places for all. This 

includes the provision of 

benches to provide people 

with opportunities to rest 

when necessary. 

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

Race ☒ ☐ ☐ N/A N/A N/A N/A 

P
age 278



11 
 

Sex 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

The cycle and walking 

networks provide equal 

opportunities for men and 

women. 

The cycle and walking 

networks will ensure 

inclusivity for all where 

everyone feels safe. Women 

more typically feel unsafe 

when cycling and walking – 

this can be due to lack of 

lighting and surveillance. The 

Witney LCWIP seeks to 

address this by identifying 

where lighting is needed, 

increasing the liveability and 

improving place making of 

spaces so that more people 

are encouraged to be in 

public spaces, and ensure 

routes are not in isolated 

locations.  

The walking and cycling 

network will provide 

connectivity to a range of 

destinations to ensure that 

multi-purpose journeys can 

be made safely.  

Public consultation 

endeavours to engage with a 

range of people to receive a 

representative view.  

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

Sexual 

Orientation 
☒ ☐ ☐ 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Religion or 

Belief 
☒ ☐ ☐ 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 

P
age 279



12 
 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Community Impacts 

Additional 

community 

impacts 

No 

Impact 
Positive Negative Description of impact 

Any actions or mitigation 

to reduce negative impacts 

Action owner 

(*Job Title, 
Organisation) 

Timescale and 

monitoring 

arrangements 

Rural 

communities 
☐ ☒ ☐ 

The Witney LCIWP includes 

improved cycling connections 

with the villages surrounding 

Witney. 

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

Armed Forces  

☐ ☒ ☐ 

The Witney LCWIP includes a 

cycling connection between 

Witney and Brize Norton, 

which will benefit people 

working at RAF Brize Norton. 

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

Carers 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Should the schemes in the 

Witney LCWIP be 

implemented this may benefit 

people who are Carers or the 

people they care for, by 

making cycling and walking 

safe and more accessible to 

all people. It is recognised that 

the LCWIP may only benefit a 

small proportion of Carers.  

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

Areas of 

deprivation  ☐ ☒ ☐ 

The Witney LCWIP identifies 

areas of deprivation in Witney. 

The walking and cycling 

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

P
age 280



13 
 

Additional 

community 

impacts 

No 

Impact 
Positive Negative Description of impact 

Any actions or mitigation 

to reduce negative impacts 

Action owner 

(*Job Title, 
Organisation) 

Timescale and 

monitoring 

arrangements 

network have been developed 

to ensure that access to/ from 

these areas to key 

destinations in Witney is 

provided. This will help to 

improve health, wellbeing, and 

access to economic 

opportunities for people in 

these areas.  

P
age 281



14 
 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Wider Impacts 

Additional 

Wider Impacts No 

Impact 
Positive Negative Description of Impact 

Any actions or mitigation 

to reduce negative impacts 

Action 

owner* (*Job 

Title, 

Organisation) 

Timescale and 

monitoring 

arrangements 

Staff 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Potential for improvements to 

staff’s ability to travel 

(commuting and business 

travel) by active modes. 

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

Other Council 

Services  

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Potential for improved access 

to schools, Witney Library, 

and Witney Community 

Support Service premises by 

active modes. 

Consider unintended 

consequences of individual 

schemes during design work. 

Cherwell and 

West Locality 

Team 

Ongoing 

Providers  ☒ ☐ ☐ N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Social Value 1 ☒ ☐ ☐ N/A N/A N/A N/A 

  

 
1 If the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 applies to this proposal, please summarise here how you have considered how the contract might improve the economic, 

social, and environmental well-being of the relevant area 

P
age 282



15 
 

Section 4: Review 

Where bias, negative impact or disadvantage is identified, the proposal and/or implementation can be adapted or 

changed; meaning there is a need for regular review. This review may also be needed to reflect additional data and 

evidence for a fuller assessment (proportionate to the decision in question). Please state the agreed review timescale for 

the identified impacts of the policy implementation or service change.  

Review Date EIA to be reviewed during LCWIP updates. The LCWIP is a live document, and the EIA should be updated 

accordingly as and when changes are made to the LCWIP 

Person Responsible for 

Review 
Odele Parsons, Senior Transport Planner, Cherwell and West Locality Team  

Authorised By Hannah Battye, Head of Placemaking 

 

P
age 283



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Climate Impact Assessment 

Summary

Directorate and Service 

Area 

Environment and Place, Growth and Economy 

What is being assessed Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)

Is this a new or existing 

function or policy?

A new plan for Witney 

Summary of assessment

The Witney LCWIP will have a positive impact when 

considering OCC's climate policies. The Witney LCWIP 

identifies how walking and cycling infrastructure can be 

improved in Witney so that it becomes a more accessible form 

of travel, thereby reducing reliance on private cars for 

journeys. As well as a positive impact on climate, active travel 

also has a positive impact on health and wellbeing and 

addressing inequalities. 

Completed by Kim Sutherland (Transport Planner)

Climate action sign off by Tammy Marrett

Director sign off by Hannah Battye, Head of Placemaking

Assessment date 01/02/2023

Energy

(↓↑ 0)

Transport & 

Connectivity

(+6)

Buildings

(+2)

Nature

(+2)Waste & 

Consumption

(↓↑ 0)

Resilience & 

Adaptation

(+3)

Procurement 

& Investment

(+5)

People & 

Organizations

(+4)

Just transition

(+3)

+25

Oxfordshire Council has committed to being a carbon 

neutral organisation by 2030 (8 years and 0 months away).

Generated 
10/03/23 

v1.36

Preview

P
age 285



Detail of proposal

Context / Background

Proposal

Evidence / Intelligence

Alternatives considered / 

rejected

The Witney LCWIP is a 10 year plan for improving cycling and walking infrastructure in Witney. The 

improvements aim to enable cycling and walking to be the natural choices for travelling short distances (or as 

part of longer journeys), in Witney and the surrounding area, thereby reducing reliance on motor vehicles. It is 

a policy requirement in Oxfordshire County Council's Local Transport and Connectivity Plan to produce 

LCWIPs (Policy 3a).

This is the first version of the Witney LCWIP to be considered for approval.

The LCWIP proposes:  

•new and improved crossings for people walking and cycling 

•segregated cycle tracks

•provision of lighting on footpaths and cycleways 

•removal or modification of barriers on walking and cycling routes to improve accessibility 

•implementation of additional cycle parking 

•new and improved bridges on walking and cycling routes 

•footway widening and resurfacing 

•new shared use footway/cycleway  

•public realm improvements to create a more accessible and pleasant environment on High Street for people 

to walk, cycle and spend time. 

•The LCWIP and its associated documents outline the evidence used to inform the proposals in the LCWIP

•Two consultations have been held, the feedback from these is used to inform the proposals in the Witney 

LCWIP.

The Witney LCWIP is a policy requirement in LTCP (Policy 3a). The Witney LCWIP development followed 

Department for Transport Guidance on developing LCWIPs. Using an alternative approach would mean 

deviating from the policies adopted in the LTCP and may reduce the likelihood of securing funding for active 

travel schemes in the Witney area. 

P
age 286



Category Impact criteria
Score

(-3 to +3)
Description of impact

Actions or mitigations to 

reduce negative impacts

Action 

owner

Timeline and 

monitoring 

arrangements

Energy Increases energy efficiency N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Energy Promotes a switch to low-carbon or renewable energy N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Energy Promotes resilient, local, smart energy systems N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Transport & Connectivity
Reduces need to travel and/or the need for private car 

ownership
2

The LCWIP identifies walking and 

cycling networks that connect people 

to key daily destinations. 

Improvements are proposed on these 

routes to make walking and cycling 

safe and accessible for all. This 

supports journeys by walking and 

cycling for short everyday trips and 

reduces the need for private cars for 

everyday journeys.  

Reducing the reliance on 

private cars by improving the 

opportunities to walk and cycle 

is a fundamental part of the 

Witney LCWIP. Now that the 

LCWIP has been developed the 

next steps are to approve the 

document and implement 

recommendations. LCWIP 

needs to be supported by a 

community activation plan to 

maximise the benefits bought 

by infrastructure 

improvements. 

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

Transport & Connectivity Supports active travel 3

The function of the LCWIP is to 

support active travel in Witney and 

the surrounding area. This is 

achieved by identifying networks of 

walking and walking and cycling and 

proposing improvements on these to 

enable more journeys to be made by 

walking and cycling. Proposed 

improvements include new crossings 

for people walking and cycling, new 

and improved footways/ cycleways, 

segregated cycle tracks, 

implementation of lighting, public 

realm enhancements. 

The LCWIP supports active 

travel. To realise the potential 

of the LCWIP, it must be 

adopted and the improvements 

implemented. 

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

P
age 287



Transport & Connectivity Increases use of public transport 1

The LCWIP will help to support use of 

public transport by ensuring walking 

and cycling routes link to bus stops 

and key transport interchanges, 

including Hanborough Station. Cycle 

parking at bus stops will also be 

reviewed as part of the LCWIP 

development .

Ensure public transport 

interchanges are considered 

within the route networks 

developed and that 

improvements for walking and 

cycling do not negatively impact 

public transport (particularly 

bus services). Need to review 

cycle parking at bus stops in 

future iterations of the Witney 

LCWIP. 

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

Transport & Connectivity Accelerates electrification of transport 1

Improved safe cycle infrastructure 

particularly between Witney and the 

surrounding villages, may increase 

the use / ownership levels of electric 

bikes (known as Ebikes). 

Adoption and implementation 

of the LCWIP will ensure that 

the cycle infrastructure 

improvements can be 

implemented. Close working 

with TDC colleagues will also be 

required to ensure developer 

contributions to cycle routes 

beyond Witney are sought 

where appropriate. In addition, 

it will be important to work with 

iHUB colleagues to ensure 

opportunities to develop ev in 

Witney and the surrounding 

area are not missed.

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) & 

Cherwell 

and West 

Transport 

Developm

ent and 

Control

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.P
age 288



Buildings Promotes net zero new builds and developments 1

The LCWIP proposes key walking and 

cycling infrastructure required to 

serve the allocated strategic 

development sites in Witney based 

on the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 

2031. Once the LCWIP is adopted it 

will effectively become policy that will 

support the requirement of 

developers to deliver this 

infrastructure. The Witney LCWIP has 

included the new developments in its 

generation of a walking and cycling 

network that links people with where 

they want to go. This means that the 

developments will ultimately be 

linked to key trip generators in 

Witney by good quality walking and 

cycling routes, thereby reducing the 

need to drive and avoiding 

embedding reliance of private 

vehicles from these developments. 

The identification of routes and route 

improvements can be used in 

negotiations with developers to 

secure funding and/ or delivery of 

Share Witney LCWIP/ inform 

Transport Development Control 

colleagues of the Witney LCWIP 

to be used in negotiations with 

developers. Share/ inform 

wider team of the Witney LCWIP 

to ensure schemes are 

identified for funding in 

response to planning 

applications in the area. 

Individual schemes will be 

subject to a CIA to ensure that 

they do not have a negative 

impact on the environment.

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) & 

Cherwell 

and West 

Transport 

Developm

ent and 

Control

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

Buildings Accelerates retrofitting of existing buildings N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Nature
Protects, restores or enhances biodiversity,  landscape and 

ecosystems 
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Nature Develops blue and green infrastructure 1

The LCWIP promotes the Healthy 

Streets Approach to public spaces. 

This includes consideration of how 

and where more trees could be 

planted to enhance the attractiveness 

of a place and provide shade to 

encourage more people to walk and 

cycle. The LCWIP also ensures that 

existing green and blue infrastructure 

is retained and new routes/ 

improvements must work around the 

blue and green infrastructure. 

Ensure that improvements 

proposed in the LCWIP do not 

compromise blue and green 

infrastructure/ are 

implemented at the expense of 

green and blue infrastructure. 

Opportunities to develop blue 

and green infrastructure should 

be taken where possible. 

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

P
age 289



Nature Improves access to nature and green spaces 1

The LCWIP improves routes and 

access to green spaces by ensuring 

that green spaces are included in the 

walking and cycling network 

developed (which connects people 

with the places they want to go as 

identified through stakeholder 

engagement). 

Implement proposals that 

improve access to nature and 

green spaces.  In some 

instances grass verge may be 

lost to accommodate widened 

paths and other infrastructure. 

The loss of vegetation will be 

considered as a last resort and 

weighed against the benefits 

from increased active travel 

over motor vehicle use. 

Opportunities to increase 

vegetation/ plant trees will be 

sought with each scheme. The 

specific details of individual 

schemes e.g. materials will be 

determined during the design 

stage, and each scheme will be 

subject to a CIA. If the impact 

on nature is unacceptable then 

a scheme will not progress. 

OCC's tree policy will be 

adhered to during scheme 

development also. 

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

Waste & Consumption Reduces overall consumption N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Waste & Consumption Supports waste prevention and drive reuse and recycling N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Resilience & Adaptation Increases resilience to flooding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Resilience & Adaptation
Increases resilience to other extreme weather events (e.g., 

storms, cold snaps, heatwaves, droughts)
1

The LCWIP promotes the Healthy 

Streets Approach to public spaces. 

This includes consideration of how to 

provide shade, shelter and rest stops 

in public spaces to make them more 

accessible and a pleasant place to be 

for all. This will become increasingly 

important as more extreme whether 

is anticipated and will mean people 

can still travel by walking and cycling 

without reliance on a car to provide 

protection, or being isolated at home.

Weather and climate has been 

highlighted as a barrier to 

walking and cycling. The long-

term conditions in which 

people will be walking and 

cycling needs to be considered 

in all scheme development and 

appropriate steps taken to 

reduce the impacts of these 

conditions on how people 

travel, as highlighted in this 

LCWIP.

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

P
age 290



Resilience & Adaptation
Increases resilience of council services, communities, energy 

systems, transport infrastructure and/or supply chains
2

The LCWIP will enhance the resilience 

of the local community by providing a 

means of transportation that is 

reliant on and controlled by the 

individual. Reduced reliance on 

private motor vehicles will help to 

combat congestion and thus increase 

the resilience of the County's public 

transport system in the area and the 

negative impacts of Oxfordshire's 

transport network more generally on 

climate. Reduced need to travel by 

private motor vehicles will also 

reduce the dependence of people 

travelling in Oxfordshire on global 

fuel markets and will put less 

pressure on supply chains for 

essential services.  Any new walking 

and cycling infrastructure or 

improvements to such will by future 

proofed for a changing climate by the 

materials used. 

Adopting and implementing the 

Witney LCWIP will ensure that 

resilience of council services 

and communities etc is 

enhanced as the LCWIP aims to 

address the climate emergency. 

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

Procurement & Investment
Procurement practices prioritise low-carbon options, circular 

economy and sustainability
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Procurement & Investment
Investment being considered supports climate action/ is 

consistent with path to net zero
3

The LCWIP promotes investment in 

alternatives to the private car. The 

investment supports a transition to 

net zero and does not lead to a net 

increase of emissions across the 

county. 

Adoption and implementation 

of the LCWIP will ensure 

investment in infrastructure 

that supports climate action/ 

net zero. Ensure alignment with 

OCC's climate policy and 

revisions to the LCWIP to 

account for revisions in the 

climate policy.

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

People & Organizations
Drives behavioural change to address the climate and ecological 

emergency
2

The LCWIP will help to encourage 

behavioural change of residents and 

visitors to Witney and the 

surrounding area by providing safe 

and convenient access to active 

travel. The LCWIP also promotes 

community activation and cross team 

working with the behavioural change 

team to further enable a change in 

travel behaviour.

Adoption and implementation 

of the LCWIP will help to drive a 

change in behaviour to address 

the climate emergency

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

P
age 291



People & Organizations
Drives organizational and systemic change to address the climate 

and ecological emergency 
1

The LCWIP supports LTCP targets for 

reducing emissions and Council 

targets for being net-zero by 2040. 

The LCWIP is a guide that helps to 

promote the Council's climate policies 

in new developments also. 

Additionally the LCWIP  includes a 

prioritised list of improvements (with 

environmental factors considered in 

prioritisation) to guide change over a 

prolonged period. 

Adoption and implementation 

of the LCWIP will help to drive 

change and address the climate 

emergency.  

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

Just transition Promotes green innovation and job creation N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Just transition Promotes health and wellbeing 2

The LCWIP promotes and supports 

active travel. By improving active 

travel options for journeys the LCWIP 

reduces reliance on private vehicles 

for journeys and thereby improves air 

quality.  

Adoption and implementation 

of the LCWIP will ensure that 

the health benefits of active 

travel can be realised. 

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

Just transition Reduces poverty and inequality 1

The LCWIP creates accessible, zero 

carbon transport options. The 

development of the walking and 

cycling network involved identifying 

areas of deprivation in Witney and 

ensuring that walking and cycling 

links were provided from these areas 

to key destinations in Witney.

Adoption and implementation 

of the LCWIP will contribute to 

addressing poverty and 

inequality in Witney.

Jacqui Cox 

(Infrastruc

ture 

Locality 

Lead 

Cherwell 

& West) 

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of LCWIP.

P
age 292



1 
 

Oxfordshire County Council  

 

Consultation Report:  

Witney Local Cycling and Walking 

Infrastructure Plan  

March 2023 
 

Email: activetravelcherwellandwest@Oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 293



2 
 

Contents 
Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Background ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Overall comments on the proposed plan ...................................................................................... 3 

Areas of support ................................................................................................................................... 3 

Areas of concern .................................................................................................................................. 3 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

About this report .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Background to the consultation ...................................................................................................... 5 

About the questionnaire ..................................................................................................................... 6 

Respondent Profile .................................................................................................................................. 7 

Comments on the draft Witney LCWIP ............................................................................................. 11 

Questions about Cycling ................................................................................................................. 11 

Questions about Walking ................................................................................................................. 15 

Packages of improvements ............................................................................................................. 19 

Prioritisation of improvements ....................................................................................................... 23 

Final thoughts ..................................................................................................................................... 24 

OCC’s response to main issues raised and changes to the LCWIP .................................... 26 

Written Responses ............................................................................................................................ 28 

Appendix A – Questionnaire ............................................................................................................... 40 

Appendix B - List of Stakeholder written responses in full. ....................................................... 50 

West Oxfordshire Ramblers ............................................................................................................ 51 

West Oxfordshire District Council Officer ................................................................................... 52 

Witney resident ................................................................................................................................... 54 

Witney Town Council Councillor (4 emails) ................................................................................ 56 

Windrush Bike Project ...................................................................................................................... 57 

Witney Traffic Advisory Committee .............................................................................................. 60 

Witney Town Council ........................................................................................................................ 62 

West Oxfordshire District Council ................................................................................................. 65 

Jubb representing North Witney Consortium ............................................................................ 77 

 

 

 

Page 294



3 
 

Executive Summary 
 

Background 
This consultation report outlines the response received to the Draft Witney Local 

Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) consultation. The Witney LCWIP is a 

strategic plan which identifies a network of walking and cycling routes in and around 

Witney (including potential future routes) and sets out high level proposals for 

improvements to the walking and cycling infrastructure which makes up this network. 

These infrastructure improvements are intended for development over a ten-year period 

to 2033 and will help to enable modal shift from private vehicle use to active and 

sustainable modes of travel.  

The Draft Witney LCWIP consultation ran from 5 December 2022 to 20 January 2023. 

67 people responded to the online questionnaire and 9 responses were received in 

writing, mainly from organisations.  

 

Overall comments on the proposed plan 
The overall comments on the proposed plan for Witney LCWIP are mixed. Some 

residents and advocacy groups are positive about the plan to improve walking and 

cycling infrastructure in the area, including the idea of a Dutch Roundabout, one with 

protected space for cycling, at Fiveways roundabout. However, others have concerns 

such as the potential for increased traffic speed, difficulties faced by elderly and 

mobility-impaired individuals, and the need to address access for all. There are also 

concerns about the feasibility of the plan and the availability of resources to implement it 

effectively. There is also a need to consider the impact of the weather and the opinions 

of young people. Some residents are also concerned about a proposal to straighten a 

bridge and the impact of new infrastructure on the flood risk. Overall, there is a need to 

strike a balance between encouraging cycling and walking and accommodating the 

needs of all residents, especially those who rely on cars for transport. 

 

Areas of support 
Of those who completed the questionnaire 56% thought the proposed cycling 

improvements were ‘ambitious’ or ‘adequate’ and 64% though the proposed walking 

improvements were ‘ambitious’ or ‘adequate’.   

 

Areas of concern 
The questionnaire has been designed to acquire comments which could assist in 

improving the draft plan before it is finalised.  

Page 295



4 
 

There are several areas of concern about the Witney LCWIP. First, there are concerns 

about the funding and financing of the proposed plan. Specifically, there is a lack of 

clarity about where the funds for the project will come from and how they will be 

managed. Additionally, there are concerns about the potential impacts of the proposed 

plan on the local community, including potential traffic congestion, loss of green spaces, 

and potential impacts on local businesses. Additionally, there are concerns about the 

lack of consultation with the local community and stakeholders, which could result in a 

lack of buy-in and support for the proposed plan. Finally, there are concerns about the 

lack of detail in the proposed plan, which could make it difficult to evaluate and assess 

its effectiveness.  

Page 296



5 
 

Introduction 
 

About this report  
This report provides the results of the questionnaire about the opinions, attitudes, and 

preferences of the public regarding the proposed cycling and walking infrastructure plan 

for Witney. 

The aim of this report is to provide a comprehensive overview of the feedback received 

from the community during the consultation period. The results of the questionnaire will 

be used to inform the final Witney LCWIP report and ensure that the plan is responsive 

to the needs and preferences of the community. 

The report includes a summary of the questionnaire results and the written responses 

received from organisations. The first part of the report summarises the respondent 

profile and characteristics, the second section details the responses to questions about 

cycling, the third section is about walking, the fourth section is about the proposed 

packages of improvements, followed by any final thoughts from those answering the 

questionnaire. The final section of the report is a summary of the written responses 

received mainly from organisations. 

Please note, the questions asked in the questionnaire are not reported sequentially in 

this document.  

 

Background to the consultation  
The draft Witney LCWIP has been developed over a two-year period with guidance from 

the steering group comprised of Council officers, Councillors, and local interest groups. 

In January 2022 an initial public consultation was held entitled “Suggest Walking and 

Cycling Improvements in Witney” to assist in developing the plan. Where members of 

the public could put forward initial ideas of cycling and walking infrastructure 

deficiencies to be included in the plan.  

Once the plan was drafted it was consulted on at the end of 2022. The draft Witney 

LCWIP and its appendices were made available for viewing and downloading through 

the Let's Talk Oxfordshire website, which was used as a website for the consultation 

process, and to provide feedback through a questionnaire. The consultation ran from 5 

December 2022 to 20 January 2023.  

During the consultation period, in addition to Let’s Talk Oxfordshire website, a physical 

copy of the LCWIP and its appendices was available at Witney Library.  

Page 297



6 
 

 

About the questionnaire 
The questionnaire is designed to gather information about the opinions, attitudes, and 

preferences of the public regarding the proposed cycling and walking infrastructure plan 

for Witney and the surrounding area.  

The questionnaire includes a series of questions related to the proposed plan. The 

questions were grouped into three categories: cycling, walking, and packages of 

improvements. Demographic questions were also asked. The questionnaire also 

included open-ended questions that allow respondents to provide more detailed 

feedback. 

The results of the questionnaire were analysed and used to inform the final LCWIP 

report. This information can help to identify areas where improvements are needed, 

what types of infrastructure are most desired by the public, and what the overall level of 

support is for the proposed plan. 

By conducting a questionnaire, we can ensure that the final Witney LCWIP report 

reflects the needs and preferences of the community and that the plan is responsive to 

the concerns and issues raised by residents and stakeholders. 

  

Page 298



7 
 

Respondent Profile 

 
This section of the report outlines information about the people who responded to the online 

questionnaire.  

A total of 67 people completed the online questionnaire.  

• Of these 62 said they lived in Oxfordshire, whilst 5 said they did not. 

• In response to “I work in Oxfordshire” 41 people said they did work in Oxfordshire, and 26 

said they did not.  

• 8 people said they owned or represented a business in Oxfordshire, whilst 59 said they did 

not.  

• 2 people said they study in Oxfordshire, and 65 did not.  

• 1 person said none of the above categories applied to them but “I regularly visit 

Oxfordshire”.  

 

If you live in Oxfordshire, which is the nearest town to where you live? 

• 3 said Abingdon. 

• 1 said Bicester 

• 2 said Charlbury 

• 2 said Oxford 

• 50 said Witney 

• 9 people did not respond to the question 

 

Q1a Typically, how often do you cycle in Witney for any trip purpose? 

 

The results of the question on cycling frequency in Witney showed a relatively low 

frequency of cycling, with the majority of respondents reporting either cycling 

infrequently or not at all. Specifically, 11 individuals reported cycling daily, 10 reported 

Page 299



8 
 

cycling weekly, and 6 each reported cycling monthly or yearly. However, 27 individuals 

reported not cycling at all. There were also 4 individuals who chose the “other” option. 

These results suggest that there is a need for improved cycling infrastructure in Witney 

to encourage and support more frequent cycling. The low frequency of cycling may also 

indicate that there are barriers to cycling, whilst not explored in this question, they could 

be things such as lack of safe and convenient routes, lack of secure bike parking, or a 

lack of awareness of the benefits of cycling. 

 

Q1b Typically, how often do you cycle in the area surrounding Witney (shown in 

figure 1) for any trip purpose? 

Regarding the frequency of cycling in the area surrounding Witney of the 65 people who 

responded to the question, 36 people said they did cycle in the area surrounding 

Witney. 9 people said they cycled daily, 11 weekly, 9 monthly and 7 yearly. 29 people 

said they did not cycle at all in the area surrounding Witney.  

 

Q2 Typically, how often do you walk in Witney for any purpose? 

 

Page 300



9 
 

The results of the question on walking frequency in Witney showed a clear pattern of 

frequent walking activity, with the majority of respondents walking either daily or weekly. 

Specifically, 32 individuals reported walking daily, 19 reported walking weekly, and 4 

reported walking monthly. 

However, there were also a small number of respondents who reported either not 

walking at all (1 individual) or choosing a different option (4 individuals). These results 

suggest that there may be a small group of individuals who do not engage in walking in 

Witney, or who may have a different pattern of walking behaviour. 

 
Q44 How did you find out about this consultation? 

The most popular channels were Facebook (16 respondents), followed by email from 

OCC (12 respondents). Twitter, Instagram, LinkedIn, NextDoor, and the OCC website 

were also used as sources of information, with 6, 2, 2, 2, and 4 respondents 

respectively. Local news (5 respondents), Councillors and local community groups (3 

respondents), friends or relatives (4 respondents), and other sources (4 respondents) 

were also used. 

 

Q45 What is your age? 

The results of the question on the age of respondents showed a diverse range of ages, 

with the majority of respondents being in the 55-64 age group (19 respondents). This 

was followed by respondents in the 45-54 age group (10 respondents) and the 65-74 

age group (12 respondents). There were also 9 respondents in the 25-34 age group, 6 

respondents in the 35-44 age group, 2 respondents in each of the 16-24 and 75 or more 

age groups, and 5 respondents who preferred not to say. 

These results provide a useful insight into the age distribution of respondents and can 

help to ensure that the views and needs of different age groups are taken into account 

when developing plans and initiatives. This information can also be used to identify any 

potential barriers or biases in engagement with different age groups and to develop 

strategies for increasing participation from under-represented groups. 

 
Q46 What is your sex? 

The results illustrate a clear majority of male respondents (40), with 16 female 

respondents and 7 respondents who preferred not to say. 

These findings provide a useful overview of the gender distribution of respondents and 

can help to ensure that the views and needs of both male and female respondents are 

taken into account when developing plans and initiatives. This information can also be 

Page 301



10 
 

used to identify any potential biases in engagement with different genders and to 

develop strategies for increasing participation from underrepresented groups. 

 
Q47 What is your ethnic background? 

The majority of respondents identified as white with a British, English, Welsh, Scottish, 

Northern Irish, Irish, or any other white background (53). A smaller number of 

respondents preferred not to say (8). 

 

Q48. Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a long-term illness, health problem 

or disability that has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months? 

A low number of respondents reported that their day-to-day activities were impacted by 

a long-term illness, health problem, or disability (5 a lot and 6 a little). The majority of 

respondents reported that their activities were not limited (47). A small number of 

respondents preferred not to say (5). 

By considering the needs of those who may have limited mobility, the authorities can 

ensure that the LCWIP (Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan) is designed in a 

way that promotes active travel for everyone, regardless of their health status. 

 

Representative of Oxfordshire  

The number of responses at just 67 means that the demographic profile of the 

respondents is not fully representative of Witney or Oxfordshire. We value what each 

person has said in the questionnaire and their comments on the plan, however we 

cannot conclude that their views, experiences, and characteristics are representative of 

the rest of the population.   

Page 302



11 
 

Comments on the draft Witney LCWIP  
 

Questions about Cycling 
This section of the report outlines the responses in relation to the proposals for 

improvements to cycle infrastructure.  

 

Q3 Overall, what do you think of the proposed cycling improvements (detailed in table 2 

and figures 8-12 of the Draft Witney LCWIP)? 

 

 
The results of the questionnaire show a mixed response towards the proposed cycling 

improvements with a majority of respondents viewing it as either ambitious or adequate. 

However, a small percentage of respondents felt that the proposals were inadequate.  

The "Other" category highlights the diversity of opinions and suggestions from the 

respondents. The proposed cycle lanes in Witney are seen as a waste of money by the 

majority of the “Other” respondents. They believe the money would be better spent on 

other things and that the cycle lanes are not practical or necessary. Some respondents 

have concerns about the loss of green vegetation and parking spaces. They also 

believe that the first phase should be obtaining real data from people who are not 

recreational cyclists and that the cycle routes should not be forced on people. Some 

believe walking should be prioritised over cycling and that car drivers should not be 

affected. 

 

Q4 To what extent does the proposed cycling network (shown in figure 6) take you where 

you want to go in Witney? 

 

Page 303

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/witney-lcwip


12 
 

 

The proposed cycling network in Witney appears to be effective to a varying extent for 

different individuals. 63 people responded to this question. 16 respondents feel that they 

can reach everywhere they want to go by cycling, while 11 say it does not help them at 

all. 23 respondents feel that they can reach most places, but some routes are either 

missing or unsafe. The remaining 13 have other views on the matter.  

 

The "Other" responses to the question of the extent to which the proposed cycling 

network in Witney takes people where they want to go are varied and include: concerns 

about the lack of enforcement against cyclists using pavements, belief that the current 

network is sufficient, personal behaviours unlikely to change, lack of cycling ability due 

to injury or other reasons, concerns about safety on bike paths, and criticism of the 

plans for not reflecting the priority of walking over cycling for most residents. Some 

respondents also pointed out issues with maintenance and suggested reducing 

spending on certain projects to budget for proper maintenance. Overall, the proposed 

cycling network has received mixed feedback, with some finding it useful while others 

still have concerns regarding its effectiveness and safety. 

 

Q5 To what extent does the proposed cycling network (shown in figure 7) take you where 

you want to go in the area surrounding Witney? 

 

Page 304



13 
 

 

Based on the results of the questionnaire, a majority of respondents (15 out of 62) feel 

that the proposed cycling network, shown in figure 7, would allow them to get 

everywhere they want to go in the area surrounding Witney. However, there are some 

who feel the network is insufficient, with 14 respondents indicating that it would not take 

them where they want to go at all, and 21 respondents indicating that while they could 

get to most places, some routes are missing or unsafe. There are also 12 respondents 

who provided other responses. Overall, the proposed cycling network has received 

mixed reviews, with some feeling it would meet their needs while others feel it is lacking. 

The "Other" responses indicate that the proposed cycling network in Witney is not 

useful or desirable for all people. Some respondents do not cycle, while others believe 

that the road conditions are too dangerous for cycling. There were also concerns about 

the lack of dedicated cycle paths, as well as the difficulty in verifying the details of the 

proposal. Some respondents suggested that cycling lanes from Witney to Bladon and 

along the A40 are more necessary. Some respondents think that the proposal is 

unrealistic and do not believe that anyone would choose to cycle to Hanborough Station 

instead of driving. Some respondents feel that the road from Curbridge to Brize 

Norton/Carterton is too dangerous for cycling and that there should be a dedicated cycle 

and pedestrian path. 

 

Q6 If the measures in the Witney LCWIP were implemented, would this encourage you 

to cycle more? 

If the measures in the Witney LCWIP were 
implemented, would this encourage you to 

cycle more? 

Number of responses 

Yes 28 

No 26 

Unsure 2 

Other (please specify) 8 

Blank / did not respond 3 

Total responses 67 

Page 305



14 
 

 

Q7 Please provide further information on your selection in Q6 

People in Witney face various obstacles that make cycling either impractical or not their 

preferred mode of transport. These include distance, age, disability, lack of public 

transport options, security concerns, hilly terrain, and inclement weather. Many 

individuals prefer to drive, walk, or take a bus for shopping and other short journeys. 

Some own e-bikes, but do not feel comfortable leaving them in public areas and would 

only use them for passing through. Others work outside of Witney and do not see 

cycling as a viable option for their weekly shopping. 

 

Q8 Please suggest any other improvements to cycling you think should be included in 

the Witney LCWIP. 

There are a number of suggestions made by people for improvements to cycling in the 

Witney LCWIP. One of the key suggestions is the inclusion of rental bikes or e-scooters, 

which would allow people who do not live in Witney to access different parts of the town 

without driving. This would reduce the need for driving once in Witney and allow people 

to easily travel from one part of the town to another on a rented bike or e-scooter. 

Another suggestion is the installation of CCTV covering the bike parking in central 

Witney, to enable the police to follow up on any thefts that occur. Additionally, some 

people believe that all cyclists should be required to pay Vehicle Excise Duty. 

One of the main focuses of the suggestions is the creation of a safe cycle route from 

Witney to Carterton, as many people who work in Witney and live in Carterton would 

like to cycle to work but find the roads narrow and unlit, making it unsafe to do so. 

Improving the B4044 from Eynsham to Botley was also mentioned as a priority, as 

accidents involving cyclists and aggression from drivers make it difficult to travel by 

bike. This scheme is geographically outside of the Witney LCWIP; however, we note the 

importance of the scheme to those who live in Witney and the surrounding area.   

There are differing opinions on the use of cycle lanes, with some suggesting that they 

should be removed, and the roads returned to their original use, while others believe 

that separate dedicated only cycling paths should be created. Some also suggested that 

cyclists should be required to have lights on their bikes and wear reflective clothing. 

Improving the links to Hanborough station, improving the B4044 from Eynsham to 

Botley cycle route, including Standlake in the plans, and improving routes further afield 

from the town were also mentioned. Some people believe that it is important to promote 

safe cycling, while others feel that cyclists should be fined if they use roads when there 

is also a cycle way adjacent. 

Additionally, there were suggestions for secure, free and dry parking for electric bikes, 

seating/benches on long distance or steep routes, and safer crossings for cyclists. 

Page 306



15 
 

There were also suggestions for improvements to the surfacing of roads and for 

widespread cycle parking in the town centre. Some people also suggested using the old 

railway track bed as a possible route for linking Witney to surrounding villages. 

In general, the suggestions made by the respondents cover a range of topics, including 

accessibility, safety, infrastructure, and cost. While some respondents are in favour of 

promoting cycling in Witney, others believe that it should not be promoted at the 

expense of vehicle-tax paying motorists. 

 

 

Questions about Walking 
This section of the report outlines the responses in relation to the proposals for 

improvements to walking infrastructure. 

 

Q9 Typically, how often do you walk in Witney for any purpose? 

 
Of the 65 people that responded to this question, the majority of respondents (32) walk 

in Witney on a daily basis. 19 individuals walk weekly, 4 monthly, 5 yearly and 1 person 

reported not walking at all. 4 individuals specified that they walk every few days, when 

necessary, use a mobility scooter to take their dog out, or they are a carer and need to 

drive. 

 
Q10 Overall, what do you think of the proposed walking improvements (detailed in table 

3 and figures 18-20)? 

Page 307



16 
 

 
64 people responded to this question. A total of 12 respondents viewed the 

improvements as ambitious, 31 considered them adequate, and 6 found them 

inadequate. Additionally, 15 respondents gave other responses, ranging from concerns 

about the necessity of the improvements, to issues with the practicality of the proposals, 

to suggestions for alternative solutions. 

 

The comments mention specific locations such as the dropped kerb by Sainsbury's on 

Station Lane and the 5-ways roundabout on Ducklington Lane, where the respondents 

believe pedestrian crossings are necessary for improved safety. Additionally, there is a 

lack of direct footpaths into Witney, specifically from existing and proposed houses, 

which the respondents suggest the need for more river crossings and footpaths. 

 
Q11 To what extent does the walking network (shown in figure 16) take you where you 

want to go in Witney? 

 
62 people responded to this question. According to the results, 36 respondents stated 

that they can get everywhere they want by cycling in Witney, while 1 respondent stated 

that they cannot get anywhere they want by walking. 17 respondents reported that they 

can get most places by walking, but some routes are missing or unsafe. 8 respondents 

provided other answers, with some mentioning that they have no issue with the current 

walking network and others mentioning that they do not walk enough in Witney to 

Page 308



17 
 

provide an accurate response, or that they find it annoying when cars park on 

pavements or when cyclists use pavements. Additionally, some respondents mentioned 

specific difficulties, such as elderly clients not being able to walk or having to face near-

death experiences while walking. 

 

Q12 If the measures in the Witney LCWIP were implemented, would this encourage you 

to walk more? 

If the measures in the Witney LCWIP were 
implemented, would this encourage you 

to walk more? 

Number of responses 

Yes 20 

No 26 

Unsure 10 

Other (please specify) 7 

Blank / did not respond 4 

Total responses 67 

 

The results of the question show that 20 respondents believe that the measures in the 

Witney LCWIP would encourage them to walk more, 26 respondents believe it would 

not, and 10 are unsure. Seven respondents provided additional comments, with 

concerns about cyclists using the pavements, the need for better links from certain 

areas, questioning the logic behind spending public money, their current walking habits 

or the difficulty for elderly clients to walk. 

 

Q13. Please provide further information on your selection from Q12.  

Residents of Witney have shared their thoughts on the proposed walking improvements 

in the town. Some of them already walk or cycle to the central areas of Witney for 

shopping and other activities but feel that the current walking network is already 

sufficient for their needs. Some also mention the lack of convenient public transport and 

secure bike parking as reasons for having to use their cars to get to the town. 

Others are concerned about the proposed shared paths with cyclists, as they believe it 

will make walking less likely in the future. They also express their dissatisfaction with 

the pedestrian crossings at the Tower Hill/Curbridge Rd roundabout (Fiveways 

roundabout) and feel that they are adequate as long as everyone is cautious. 

Many residents are worried about the segregation of motorists and vehicles and believe 

it will negatively impact the economy. They want the High Street to be reopened to 

through traffic and the return of 30mph speed limit instead of 20mph. 

Page 309



18 
 

On the other hand, some believe that the current walking network is more than sufficient 

but feel that some areas need improvement to make them more accessible for other 

people such as those with disabilities. They also feel they walk a sufficient distance 

each day. 

Overall, the residents of Witney have mixed opinions on the proposed walking 

improvements, with some finding the current walking network adequate and others want 

improvements to make Witney more accessible and safer. 

 

Q14. Please suggest any other improvements to walking you think should be included. 

There are a number of improvements to walking in Witney and the surrounding areas 

that locals suggest should be considered. One of the suggestions is to allow e-scooters 

as a mode of transport. People have also raised concerns about dangerous cyclists 

riding in pedestrian areas and have asked for a separation between cyclists and 

pedestrians to ensure safety. Another suggestion is to enforce speed limits and fully 

pedestrianise some roads. Additionally, walking routes should be prioritised over 

cycling, and the town's High Street and Market Square should be re-opened to through 

traffic. The footpath from Witney to Carterton is also in need of improvement, as are 

some of the pavements in the town, which are too narrow or in a poor state of repair for 

disabled users. Basic maintenance, such as cutting overhanging hedges, sweeping 

paths, repairing broken slabs, and fixing pot holes, is also needed to make the paths 

more accessible. 

 

People have also expressed a need for better lighting, handrails on bridges in icy 

conditions, and wider, better-lit footpaths, especially for women. More pedestrian 

crossings are also needed, particularly between West End and the A4095, and 

improvements should be made to the walking routes from Windrush Place to Curbridge. 

 

Some people have expressed concerns about the cost of the improvements in the plan, 

while others believe that walking journeys should be encouraged as a healthy and free 

mode of transport for all. Protection from other forms of transport, as well as safer and 

strategically placed pedestrian crossings, should be a priority. 

 

However, there is also opposition to the current 20mph speed limit across Witney, which 

residents feel are politically motivated and not based on road safety. They believe that 

the taxpayer money spent on implementing the 20mph could have been better used on 

local amenities like recycling centres or leisure facilities such as bird aviaries. The 

blanket speed restriction across the town is seen as unjust and is causing distress to 

residents, leading to low spirits and mistrust in local politics.  

Page 310



19 
 

Packages of improvements 

 
This section of the report outlines the responses in relation to the proposals which have 

been packaged into eleven packages which summarise the cycling and walking 

infrastructure plan.  

 

Q15 Would you like to provide feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

Out of the total of 67 responses, 17 people provided feedback on a specific package 

shown in figures 24-26, while the remaining 50 did not.  

 
Q16 Would you like to comment on the Woodstock Road package and Q17 Please 

provide your comments on the Woodstock Road package. 

9 people provided comments on this package. The Woodstock Road package has 

received a mix of opinions from the public. Some see the proposed segregated cycle 

lane as a waste of money and believe there isn't enough space for such a lane. They 

also express concern over the potential damage to the environment through removal of 

trees and narrowing of grass verges.  Others believe that shared cycle paths on 

Woodstock Road are not safe or practical. They suggest that the proposed crossing 

near Wood Green/Holy Trinity should be positioned between two junctions for better 

visibility and to avoid traffic. A few people welcome the western side of the road to be 

designated as cycle-only and upgrading of the pedestrian side footpath.  

 

Some see the gap between the cycle paths at North Leigh as a vital component in 

connecting people to Hanborough Station and suggest provision of various amenities 

like changing rooms, laundry services, food and drink options, and bike and e-scooter 

rental along with electric vehicle charging facilities. They also suggest the possibility of a 

covered cycle path with solar panels. One person considers the cycle path to 

Hanborough as an expensive folly, as the same route is already covered by the 233 bus 

service. They suggest that the money would be better spent subsidising the bus service. 

 

One person suggests conversion of Narrow Hill to motorised access only southbound, 

and 2-way cycling (also known as contra-flow) and walking. They also raise concerns 

about the kerbs/footways being too narrow for walkers and suggest the measures 

should be implemented in the short term. 

 

Page 311



20 
 

Finally, one person objects to the proposal and believes that no changes are necessary. 

They also express confusion over the named B4022 Newland Crossing on Fig 10 and 

its apparent route around the back of Bridge Street on Fig 11. 

 

 
Q18 Would you like to comment on the Hailey Road package and Q19 Please provide 

your comments on the Hailey Road package? 

5 people provided comments on this package. The Hailey Road package has received 

mixed reviews, with some commenting that it is a waste of money. However, there are 

also those who believe that ensuring a smooth flow between pedestrians and cyclists is 

important and suggest reminding people of the hierarchy of use through signs. The 

detail and protection offered for cyclists on a fast car route is also appreciated. 

Additionally, the proposal of a crossing to access water meadows and Woodford Mill is 

welcomed. On the other hand, some respondents object to the changes and feel that 

there is no need for them to be made. 

 
Q20 Would you like to comment on the Burford Road package and Q21 Please provide 

your comments on the Burford Road package? 

5 respondents have expressed their opinions on the Burford Road package. Some 

consider the package to be a waste of money and believe it should be left alone. 

However, one person thinks that connecting the cycle path at Woodford Way and Deer 

Park Road would be a major improvement and that Burford Road is currently the 

scariest part of their cycling route. Another person simply wants the pedestrian crossing 

by The Windrush public house to start functioning properly. 

 

Q22 Would you like to comment on the West Witney package and Q23 Please provide 

your comments on the West Witney package? 

4 people provided comments on this package. The West Witney package has received 

mixed responses, with some considering it to be a waste of money and others 

appreciating the roundabout idea [the proposed roundabout with protected space for 

cycling. Three respondents object to any changes being made. Overall, the opinions 

seem to be divided on the West Witney package. 

 

Q24 Would you like to comment on the Witney Road package and Q25 Please provide 

your comments on the Witney Road package? 

Out of 4 respondents, one person thinks the Witney Road package is a waste of money. 

Another person feels that the footpath on the southern side of Curbridge Road is in 

Page 312



21 
 

urgent need of renovation or widening. One respondent objects and feel that there is no 

need for changes to be made. One of the respondents who cycles down Corn Street 

twice daily for work is concerned about being "doored" by cars parked to the left of the 

cycle paths. 

 
Q26 Would you like to comment on the Ducklington Lane package and Q27 Please 

provide your comments on the Ducklington Lane package? 

Out of the 3 respondents, one felt that the Ducklington Lane package was a waste of 

money, and another felt that there was no need for changes to be made. The third 

respondent suggested that although the shared path could use some basic 

maintenance, it is not a frequently used route by either cyclists or pedestrians. However, 

they suggested that the crossing by Pure Gym could be altered to separate cycles from 

pedestrians, allowing cyclists to ride straight through onto Colwell Drive without using 

the footway. 

 
Q28 Would you like to comment on the South Witney package and Q29 Please provide 

your comments on the South Witney package? 

Out of the 4 people who responded to the South Witney package, one person believed 

it to be a waste of money, while another believed that there is no need for any changes 

to be made. However, another respondent mentioned that connecting all the new 

estates would be great, as currently the area is heavily focused on cars.  

 

Another respondent expressed concerns about the proposed changes and deemed the 

idea as "crazy." They pointed out that the path alongside Gordon Way is a footpath, not 

a bridleway, and that creating a 5-way junction at the intersection of this path and the 

bridleway to The Leys/The Springs could lead to dangerous conditions, particularly 

during busy school times when cyclists already race downhill. The respondent also 

noted that the crossing on Station Lane works fine and there is no need to change it. 

They also mentioned that the green line on Figure 26 of the proposal does not continue 

through the industrial estate and reappears south of the A40, which they considered to 

be illogical. They expressed concerns about schoolkids from Ducklington mixing with 

deliveries to builders’ merchants in the morning, stating that it could lead to fatal 

accidents if not addressed. The respondent suggested encouraging cycling along the 

existing Station Lane cycle path to the crossroads and then south to Ducklington as a 

safer alternative.  

 
Q30 Would you like to comment on the Witan Way package and Q31 Please provide 

your comments on the Witan Way package? 

Page 313



22 
 

Regarding the Witan Way package, 5 individuals responded with a mix of positive and 

negative comments. Some felt that the package was a waste of money and there was 

no need for changes to be made, while others welcomed the idea of improving the path 

through the woods between New Bridge Street and Langel Common, possibly with a 

simple footbridge connecting Aquarius at the end of Marsh Lane. However, the need for 

more cycle infrastructure along Witan Way was emphasised as it is a busy vehicle route 

and many cyclists avoid it due to its lack of safety. 

 
Q32 Would you like to comment on the East Witney package and Q33 Please provide 

your comments on the East Witney package? 

6 people provided comments on this package. The comments on the East Witney 

package are mixed. While some believe it is a waste of money and there is no need for 

changes to be made, others have specific suggestions for improvement.  

There is a concern for those who often cross over from the path leading to the A40 to 

South Leigh that this route would still be open during the proposed A40/B4044 Shores 

Green slip roads work.  

Lighting is deemed important for the section of path by the allotments and improving the 

bridges between Oxford Hill and Madley/Woodbank.  

One person felt disappointed that the toucan crossing at reference 23 to the cemetery is 

identified as ‘long term’ and the walking access is ‘medium term’. As there is no safe 

way to walk to the cemetery, they felt these should be higher priority.  

The linking of Woodstock Road and New Yatt Road is welcomed, but it is suggested 

that this be done at the start of the development [the North Witney Strategic 

Development Area], rather than the end, as cycling to New Yatt to purchase eggs can 

be difficult due to the high speed of motorised traffic.  

 

Q34 Would you like to comment on the Newland package and Q35 Please provide your 

comments on the Newland package? 

The Newland package has received mixed reviews, with three people expressing their 

thoughts on the proposal. One person deemed it a waste of money and another 

believed that no changes should be made.  

 
However, one person raised concerns about the proposed link between Newland Mill 

and Church Lane [reference 66], stating that it would be a disaster for the character of 

the Windrush valley if cycling was allowed on the path and it widened to accommodate 

cycling. This person believed that the existing narrow path would be better if the 

macadam surface were replaced with a more natural material, and that the proposed 

Page 314



23 
 

cycle track would cause irreparable harm to the valley and its surroundings, including 

the Scheduled Ancient Monument of Cogges Farm Museum and the Windrush in 

Witney Project. The person emphasised the importance of preserving the rural 

character of the valley and maintaining its ecological balance. 

 
Q36 Would you like to comment on the Madley Paths package and Q37 Please provide 

your comments on the Madley Paths package? 

6 people provided comments on this package. The Madley Paths package has received 

mixed reviews, with two people feeling that it would be a waste of money and that no 

changes need to be made. However, four others believe that upgrades are needed for 

these cycle and pedestrian-friendly routes. The need for lighting by the allotments has 

been emphasised by some people and upgrading the footpaths along the allotments is 

also seen as a positive change. The possibility of lighting and surfacing the paths has 

been described as transformative, as it could provide a new route for people from North 

and East Witney, making it easier for them to cycle or walk. 

 

Prioritisation of improvements  
This section of the report outlines the responses received regarding section 5 of the 

LCWIP ‘Prioritisation of Improvements’ as outlined in Table 5, which prioritises the 

proposed measures by ranking them in priority order.  

 

Q38 Considering the list of prioritised improvements in table 5, to what extent do 

you agree or disagree with the ranking of measures? 

 

There is a mix of opinions regarding the ranking of measures in table 5, to which 59 

people responded, with 8 respondents completely agreeing with the ranking, 15 partially 

agreeing, 18 neither agreeing nor disagreeing, 3 partially disagreeing, and 15 

completely disagreeing. Overall, 23 people agreed to some extent where as 18 people 

disagreed to some extent.  

Page 315



24 
 

 
Q39-40 Please provide further information on your selection  

The responses to the question "Please provide further information on your selection" 

are a mix of opinions with some agreeing with the prioritised improvements while others 

disagree.  

• Some respondents mention that they believe cycling is important, however, they 
are concerned about its accessibility and impact on the safety of walkers.  

• Others are disappointed that the Oxford Hill cemetery will not have easy walking 
access and believe that the improvements should be short term (as highlighted 
earlier).  

• Some respondents feel that there is too much support for non-car drivers and 
view the prioritised improvements as a waste of money.  

• Others express frustration that the list does not address widespread poverty, cost 
of living crisis, and other pressing social issues.  

• Some respondents believe that the proposed changes are unnecessary and 
prefer that the money be used to fix roads and support the growing population. 

•  A few respondents express the opinion that the current infrastructure is fine as it 
is and does not need any changes.  

• Completely pointless if you don't deliver 2a 2b 3a 3b 3c at the same time. 

• Someone responded that scheme 93: Ducklington Lane is a very low priority. 
Highlighted that scheme 65 for a new parallel crossing on B4022 Newland has 
been installed in 2022. Scheme 40 Roundabout with protected space for cycling 
(also known as a Dutch-style roundabout) is not needed, just put better islands 
on the spurs. 

• Someone else identified, the Fiveways Dutch-style roundabout and the second 
bridge over the river Windrush should be highest priority. 

 

Final thoughts 
 

This section outlines comments received to the final question asking if there are any 

further comments. In this section people could raise any additional issues they wish.  

Q41 Please let us know if you have any further comments  

42 people responded to this question.  Some are supportive of the plans and believe 

they should be implemented as soon as possible, such as the safe cycle route from 

Witney to Carterton and the Woodstock Road package. Others feel that the council is 

not considering the needs of all residents, particularly those who are disabled and 

Page 316



25 
 

unable to walk or cycle, and those who are negatively impacted by the 20mph speed 

limit.  

Some feel that the cycling and walking improvements should focus on larger, more 

impactful projects rather than just clearing and repairing existing infrastructure. On the 

other hand, some feel that the council should prioritise fixing the infrastructure that 

already exists, such as maintaining the roads and paths to a decent standard, before 

spending money on new projects.  

Some also express their concerns about the impact of the proposed improvements on 

the rural character of the area, and the feasibility and expense of implementing Dutch 

roundabouts. 

Some respondents mentioned that initiatives within the community may increase 

walking and cycling, such as working with schools and also more work is needed to  

educate cyclists in the Highway Code.  

There is no recognition in the plan that the weather is a great determining factor in 

people choosing to cycle, walk or take a bus.  They may well do so on warm, dry 

summer days but not many people would choose to walk, cycle or wait at a bus stop on 

cold, wet winter days. 

We note that the picture of a ‘Tiger crossing’ on p28 is not one. There are now 

examples of these on Ferry Hinksey Road, Osney and Cowley Road/Oxford Road, 

Oxford. 

The Oxfordshire Cycling Network and the Coalition for Healthy Streets and Active 

Travel have praised the draft Witney LCWIP for its inclusion of walking and cycling 

elements, as well as its scope which includes nearby villages and the major town of 

Carterton. They particularly appreciate the idea of a Dutch Roundabout at Fiveways 

roundabout; however, they acknowledge the challenge of finding the resources to 

implement these schemes quickly and effectively.  

In addition, some residents of Woodford Mill and members of the Witney Flood 

Mitigation Group have concerns about the proposal to straighten the bridge, as it may 

become a racetrack and increase the risk of accidents. They also raise concerns about 

the poor lighting on the path from Woodford Mill to Mill Street and the potential impact 

on the already bad flood situation.  

With regard to the consultation itself, some raised concerns about the design of the 

proposed plans, including the lack of clarity in the maps and the dense information that 

requires several hours or days to analyse. Some feel that the consultation process is 

not accessible to all residents and that there is limited opportunity for feedback. Some 

felt the consultation was not publicised widely enough. The questionnaire has been 

poorly laid out and not able to follow the document or the questionnaire.  

 

Page 317



26 
 

OCC’s response to main issues raised and changes to the LCWIP 
 

The carbon impact of schemes will be assessed. Retrofitting and using existing 

infrastructure will be considered first to lower the carbon impact of schemes. Reducing 

carbon emissions is one of the key reasons for encouraging more cycling and walking 

and therefore the carbon footprint of infrastructure cannot be ignored. 

The feasibility of all schemes requires assessment. Any scheme that is deemed 

unfeasible will not be delivered or will be modified to ensure that it is feasible.  

Safety will be considered upfront in the feasibility and design of all schemes. Any 

scheme that is deemed unsafe will not be implemented. All schemes will be subject to 

safety audits both before and following construction. 

The Witney LCWIP is not the only plan that will address cycling in relation to Witney – 

there is also the Strategic Active Travel Network being developed by Oxfordshire 

County Council. This considers connections between settlements and key transport 

interchanges.  

All schemes will adhere to guidance from the Department for Transport, particularly 

Local Transport Note 1/20, which sets the standards for cycling infrastructure and 

considers factors including safety.  

Short, medium and long term refers to the time it will take to deliver a scheme. This is 

influenced by many factors, often beyond the control of the Council. The schemes that 

will take longer to deliver may be subject to many complex factors. The time it takes to 

deliver a scheme does not influence its priority.  

Any improvements will take account of local character and the environment. The detail 

of improvements will be determined in collaboration with relevant stakeholders, 

including West Oxfordshire District Council heritage and conservation officers and 

subject to public consultation. Any improvements to cycling and walking that are 

deemed to have a significant negative impact on character will not be progressed or will 

be modified to ensure they are acceptable.  

Oxfordshire County Council realises the opportunities presented by schemes such as e-

scooter and e-bike hire. The feasibility of these will be explored in the Witney Area 

Travel Plan. This considers how the transport network in Witney will look in the future 

and how people will move about.  

Oxfordshire County Council’s adopted Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP), 

guides decision making on transport. It includes policies including establishing a 

transport hierarchy, which puts walking at the top, followed by cycling. The Witney 

LCWIP and other transport documents must adhere to the policies set in LTCP.  

The need for more secure cycle parking in Witney has been emphasised. Cycle parking 

has initially been considered in the cycle parking audit that accompanies the Witney 

Page 318



27 
 

LCWIP. Further consideration of secure cycle parking in Witney will be given when 

developing the Witney Area Travel Plan.  

 

  

Page 319



28 
 

Written Responses  
This section details responses to the consultation that were received in writing instead of 

via the questionnaire. In total 9 responses were received to the consultation by email. 

These responses came from:  

• West Oxfordshire Ramblers 

• West Oxfordshire District Council officer 

• Resident 

• Witney Town Councillor 

• Windrush Bike Project 

• Witney Traffic Advisory Committee 

• Witney Town Council  

• West Oxfordshire District Council 

• Jubb on behalf of North Witney Strategic Development Site 

 

A range of points were raised through the email responses. The following list provides a 

summary of the types of responses received: 

• Map and figure corrections 

• Additional routes to consider for cycling and walking  

• Need to include Eynsham within the catchment area of Witney and consider 
connections to Eynsham  

• Need to make clearer how the Witney LCWIP is inclusive of all 

• Piecemeal approach to prioritisation  

• Safety and environmental concerns about some routes  

• Importance of Strategic Development Areas in helping to deliver improved cycling 
and walking infrastructure  

• Need to tie to and reference West Oxfordshire District Council’s Local Plan 
update to 2041 

 

  

Page 320



29 
 

Respondent  Response summary OCC action  

West Oxfordshire Ramblers Changes to Public Rights of Way such as redesignation from 
footpath to bridleway, or new footpaths, will be subject to a 
standard consultation process. It is unclear how the LCWIP will 
deal with this consultation process. 

Update Witney LCWIP to make it clearer where 
schemes are proposed on the Public Rights of Way 
Network and add more information about the next steps 
of developing any of the schemes (involving several 
statutory processes). 

West Oxfordshire District 
Council Officer  

The importance of the bridleway in encouraging more active travel 
through Windrush Place development is highlighted. The section 
of bridleway through Colwell Green is particularly emphasised 
and should be prioritised for funding if funding is not already 
secured. Clarification sought on bridleway funding and why it 
appears in the secured funding and prioritisation/ ranked tables.   

Funding for the Colwell Brook section of bridleway has 
been secured, although the exact cost of bridleway 
improvements is not yet known. The bridleway is 
included in the prioritisation table in case of a funding 
shortfall, and this will be made clearer in the Witney 
LCWIP. 

Resident  Error figure 6 – shared use path indicated when it is a footpath 
only. 
 
Extend proposed new/ upgraded shared use route so that it 
bypasses proposed Acorn Bioenergy plant where lorry 
movements present a danger to people cycling. 
 
Delivery should focus on delivering specific packages or a desired 
outcome rather than being focused on time e.g., piecemeal short-
term measures and budget. Full package of measures are 
needed as short-term measures are not enough to bring about 
change.  

Amend map to account for error. 
 

A new section of potential Witney LCWIP routes 
suggested through the consultation, which need to be 
fully apprised before they enter the LCWIP will be 
added. 

The LCWIP prioritisation and packages are flexible to 
respond to a variety of funding opportunities to bring 
about change. This approach will be evaluated during 
the LCWIP review process to see if it is effective. 

Witney Town Councillor Requesting clarification that the proposed crossing of Deer Park 
Road in the vicinity of the junction with Curbridge Road will be 
delivered. 

The Witney LCWIP will be amended to make clear that 
the crossing of Deer Park Road will be delivered, and 
the long-term aspiration is for a Dutch Style roundabout 
at the Deer Park Road/ Curbridge Road junction. 

Windrush Bike Project  Dutch style roundabouts, segregated cycle tracks and parallel 
crossings represent the ambitions direction of cycling and walking 
desired in Witney.  
 
No cycle infrastructure proposed at present Newland and Oxford 
Hill. 
 
Study looking at motor traffic flow across the town and the impact 
of filtering traffic e.g., through traffic filters, bus gates and LTNs 
desired. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 321



30 
 

Dutch style roundabout does not make cycling on Tower Hill 
safer. Only option on Tower Hill appears a modal filter, which 
would need picking up in a wider study. 
 
Station Lane – a cycle path on the south side is required to make 
it safe for people to cycle to/from employment sites. 
 
No cycle infrastructure on Cogges Hill Road between Oxford Hill 
and Cogges – require clarification on whether funding for this will 
come from East Witney Development.  
 
Downs Road lacks cycle infrastructure along its length – this 
needs addressing. 
 
Map errors identified. 

Study looking at motor traffic flows and filtering traffic 
across the town (including at Tower Hill) will be picked 
up in the development of Witney Area Travel Plan.  

  

A new section of potential Witney LCWIP routes 
suggested through the consultation, which need to be 
fully apprised before they enter the LCWIP will be 
added. 

 
 
 
 
 
Map errors will be corrected.  

Witney Traffic Advisory 
Committee (TAC) 

Unclear whether refuge island that has been sought on Witan 
Way (near Farm Mill Lane) is included in the Witney LCWIP. 
 
 
 
Need to improve Fiveways roundabout from its current unsafe 
layout acknowledged but lack of consensus on whether Dutch 
style roundabout is the best option. Would like to see a solution 
that is safe for everyone. 
 
The Leys – upgrade of existing path to shared use should be 
included and should inform new and utilize existing s106. 

Included in the Witney LCWIP is a proposal at this 
location to upgrade existing uncontrolled crossing to a 
controlled crossing such as a raised tiger crossing 
(improvement 28). 
 
Feasibility work is currently ongoing for Fiveways 
roundabout to produce a solution that is safe for 
everyone. This will be shared with stakeholders in due 
course. 
 

A new section of potential Witney LCWIP routes 
suggested through the consultation, which need to be 
fully apprised before they enter the LCWIP will be 
added. 

Witney Town Council  Would like to understand how suggestions and amendments to 
the Witney LCWIP can be made once it is adopted. 
 
 
Eynsham does not feature on the 5/10km cycling catchment area 
map. Has consideration been given to a leisure route between 
Witney and Eynsham? 
 
 

The mechanisms for suggestions and amendments to 
the Witney LCWIP will be outlined in greater detail in 
section 6.2 of the Witney LCWIP.  
 
Eynsham will be added to the 5/10km catchment map. 
The route between Witney and Eynsham via the A40 is 
considered the main route due to directness. If the 
demand for a leisure route becomes substantial, this will 
be explored in later iterations of the Witney LCWIP. 

P
age 322



31 
 

 
 
West Witney proposals should be a higher priority due to the 
development nearing completion. 
 
 
 
 
East Witney Strategic Development Area (SDA) should include an 
enhanced designated footpath/ cycleway which links east Witney 
to the southern industrial and commercial areas. 
 
 
 
 
Connections to North Witney SDA should be considered now. 
 
 
 
Consider referencing potential rail line between Witney and 
Oxford and need for connectivity to this. 
 
 
More consideration should be given to the elderly and disabled in 
the plan e.g. benches. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minimal disruption to the environment is requested. 
 
 
 
 
Drainage mitigations and topography should be considered during 
the design and building process to ensure flooding is not caused. 
This is particularly relevant on the flood plain between Hailey 
Road and Woodford Mill, which floods regularly. The path through 

 
S106 funding has been secured for the West Witney 
development. This includes funding for active travel 
improvements. OCC are actively seeking to deliver 
these improvements to active travel connectivity for 
residents, employees, and visitors to the development.  

 

A new section of potential Witney LCWIP routes 
suggested through the consultation, which need to be 
fully apprised before they enter the LCWIP will be 
added. 

 
The proposals in the Witney LCWIP have considered 
connectivity to the North Witney SDA and routes/ 
improvements included in LCWIP proposals. 
 
Later iterations will include reference to the rail line 
between Witney and Oxford once the direction of this 
proposal is more established. 
 
 
The Witney LCWIP promotes the Healthy Streets 
Approach, which looks to make places more accessible 
for everyone and includes features such as benches. 
During the design stage of every scheme the needs of 
everyone will be considered and the Healthy Streets 
Approach applied – this will be made clearer in the 
Witney LCWIP. 
 
This is noted. All schemes are subject to a Climate 
Impact Assessment and OCC also has policies such as 
a Tree Policy to ensure minimal impact to the 
environment.  
 
 
Drainage and flooding will be considered during the 
feasibility and design stage of schemes.  
 
 

P
age 323



32 
 

Langel Common should also be raised so that it does not impede 
flooding. 
 
 
There is a need for maintenance, and this should be emphasised 
more in the Witney LCWIP.  
 
 
Witney Town Council object to any measures that use or increase 
traffic on private roads within the vicinity of Lakeside allotments.  

 
 
 
 
Maintenance is beyond the remit of the Witney LCWIP. 
Maintenance will be considered during later stages of 
scheme development.  
 
OCC will ensure measures in this area are directly 
related to the public rights of way and amend the LCWIP 
accordingly.  
 

P
age 324



33 
 

West Oxfordshire District 
Council  

Overall support for the plan. 
 
Greater emphasis should be given to design including public 
realm, landscaping and quality of materials. 
 
 
 
Consider more ambitious interventions on linkages to SDAs. 
 
 
Importance of linking active travel routes to bus stops and need 
for improved cycle storage at bus stops should be a key 
consideration.  
 
Technological advances will support active travel and greater 
reference to this is needed. 
 
 
Reference should be made to 20mph speed limit in Witney. 
 
 
Make clearer that access for all includes people on wheelchairs, 
mobility scooters etc. 
 
Reference how the Witney LCWIP will help to inform the new 
West Oxfordshire Local Plan to 2041. 
 
Place shaping concept should be elaborated.  
 
Vision should be reworked to better emphasise challenges and 
opportunities arising from active travel.  
 
Target amendments and additions suggested. 
 
 
Additions and amendments are suggested to the background 
section of the document. 
 
Network plan for cycling 

 
 
Whilst detailed design is beyond the scope of this plan 
and will come during individual scheme development, 
design expectations will be highlighted in the Witney 
LCWIP. 
 
The optimal option at each location will be considered 
during the feasibility and design stage.  
 
An audit of bus stops will be undertaken and consider 
aspects such as additional cycle storage. This will 
become an appendix to the Witney LCWIP. 
 
Technology will be picked up in the Witney Area Travel 
Plan, which the LCWIP sits under and will be considered 
in conjunction with.  
 
This will be added to the background section of the 
Witney LCWIP. 
 
Noted. Document to be amended to reflect comments.  
 
 
Noted. Document to be amended to reflect comments.  
 
 
Noted. Document to be amended to reflect comments.  
 
Noted. Document to be amended to reflect comments. 
 
 
Targets have been proposed in line with other OCC 
policy/ strategy targets. 
 
Noted. Document to be amended to reflect comments. 
 
 
Network plan for cycling  

P
age 325



34 
 

1. Amalgamate sections 3 and 4 or the table within to avoid 
repetition, as improvements are relevant to both 

2. Greater emphasis on safer cycle storage required. 

3. Link between A40 from Witney to Eynsham Park & Ride 
should be identified.  

4. Further explanation required on what constitutes a 
destination cluster. 

5. Quality of environment should be included as an outcome 
of cycle improvements   

6. Elaborate on meaning of attractiveness and why it is not 
included as an assessment criterion.  

7. Various map amendments proposed due to errors or 
suggested improvements.  

8. Cycle provision along A4095 to North Leigh supported but 
should be given lower priority. Shared use path may be 
more cost effective  

9. Segregated route on Hailey Road is supported but should 
be part of more comprehensive improvements including 
public realm and flooding to support North Witney SDA.  

10. Feasibility of various cycle route proposals questioned.  

11. Consider Hailey Road/ West End junction crossing as 
part of Hailey Road package.  

12. Intervention 8 should be reviewed in light of West End 
Link Road. 

13. Intervention 9 priority questioned.  

14. Consider new/upgraded cycle lane along Avenue 2, 
Station Lane.  

15. A toucan crossing on Oxford Hill is not supported on 
safety grounds (intervention 23) but support improved 
accessibility closer to Jubilee Way junction. 

1. The document has been set out in this way to 
recognise cycling and waking as different modes 
of travel with different requirements and 
purposes in some instances. The Witney LCWIP 
follows DfT guidance on the structure of 
LCWIPs. 

2. Noted. Document to be amended to reflect 
comments.  

3. Whilst no improvements to the A40 route are 
proposed in this LCWIP, the route will be added 
as it is an important part of the wider Witney 
cycle network. 

4. Noted. Document to be amended to reflect 
comments.  

5. The outcomes of cycle improvements have been 
taken from national guidance – LTN 1/20, which 
outlines the core design principles. 

6. Noted. Document to be amended to reflect 
comments.  

7. Noted. Document to be amended to reflect 
comments.  

8. The link between Witney and Hanborough 
Station via the A4095 is important for facilitating 
longer journeys by train. The Witney LCWIP is a 
long-term plan and so does not just consider 
flows and usage now but potential future flows 
and aspirations. LTN 1/20 compliant 
interventions are proposed from the outset, as 
this is the standard of cycling provision aspired. 
During scheme design the details and feasibility 
of each scheme will be considered and 
amendments may be made.  

9. A Hailey Road package is proposed in the 
Witney LCWIP. These comments will be 
incorporated into the detail of this.  

P
age 326



35 
 

16. Environmental concerns related to route 41 and 
suggestion to wait for West End Link work. 

17. Question the necessity of an uncontrolled crossing on 
Deer Park Road south of Valence Crescent (improvement 
31). 

18. Safety concerns about the removal of barriers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10. Feasibility and details of schemes will be 
considered during the feasibility and design 
stages. 

11. A Hailey Road package is proposed in the 
Witney LCWIP.  

12. Without guarantee that the West End Link will 
be delivered, alternatives for active travel have 
been considered. Once outcomes of the West 
End Link study have been reviewed and 
progress made on the direction of this project, 
the Witney LCWIP will be updated to reflect this.  

13. Cycle routes should be direct and without 
conflict points. Intervention 9 has been included 
to reflect this desired design. 

14. New section of potential Witney LCWIP routes 
that need to be fully apprised before they enter 
the LCWIP will be added. 

15. The exact location of the crossing on Oxford Hill 
will be determined during the feasibility/ design 
stage. 

16. Environmental impact will be considered during 
the feasibility and design of a scheme and if the 
impact is deemed too great schemes will not be 
progressed. 

17. To remain in the Witney LCWIP as a need was 
identified during the audit process. Schemes to 
progress when funding becomes available will 
be determined on the degree of positive impact 
they have. 

18. Barriers will only be removed where this does 
not pose a safety risk. If barriers are removed 
and there are safety concerns, an alternative 
solution will be installed. 

 
 

P
age 327



36 
 

Network plan for walking 

1. Judds Close should be identified for improvements. 

2. Visibility of maps including figure 18 unclear – would 
support an online interactive map.  

3. Complementary measures should include improved 
lighting, planting, seating, surveillance, and route 
information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Prioritisation of improvements and improvement packages  

1. Policy criteria should include connectivity to other areas 
of development and destinations such as business sites 
and town centre.  

2. Concern about safety and environmental implications of 
some routes. 

 
 
 
 
 
Integration and application  

1. Greater detail needed in this section.  

2. Question realism of reviewing LCWIP every 2 years 

 
 
Other comments 

1. Greater connectivity to green spaces beyond the town 
needed. 

2. No projects proposed in Lower Windrush Valley which 
appears a missed opportunity e.g. improve pedestrian 

Network plan for walking 

1. New section of potential Witney LCWIP routes 
that need to be fully apprised before they enter 
the LCWIP will be added. 

2. Map resolution will be improved in the 
document. The option of providing an online 
interactive map tool for schemes will be 
explored.  

3. These aspects are included within the Healthy 
Streets approach that the Witney LCWIP 
supports. This will be made added to the 
complementary measures section.  

 
Prioritisation of improvements and improvement 
packages  

1. Noted. This would lead to significant re-
evaluation which will be considered in the first 
update of the LCWIP.  

2. Safety and environmental impact will be 
considered during the feasibility and design 
stage of scheme development. Any schemes 
that are deemed unsafe or have an 
unacceptable impact on the environment will not 
be progressed.  

 
Integration and application  

1. Noted. Document to be amended to reflect 
comments.  

2. Noted. 

 
 
Other comments  

1+2. Key trip generators have been considered 
in the Witney LCWIP – this has accounted for 
current and predicted future flow patterns. This it 
is not an exhaustive list of walking and cycling 

P
age 328



37 
 

and cycle access to Rushy Common Nature Reserve and 
tar Lakes via tar Lane. 

3. Cycle path along half of Tar Lane to Rushy Common is 
not shown in Figure 2 as it is in Figure 1.  

4. Why are some ‘existing on road’ routes not being 
improved (figure 6)? 

5. Will the improvements to the A40 underpass that connect 
Ducklington to Witney remove the metal barriers to ease 
cycling and assess lighting/ maintenance to improve 
safety? 

6. Will EVCP charging for electric bikes form part of the 
audit of cycle parking in Witney? 

7. 2km catchment area centred on the town centre does not 
include all residential areas and reflect all trips residents 
could take. 

8. Figure 15 2km catchment area does not extend 2km/ 30 
minutes in some places. 

9. Figure 16 secondary route to Ducklington via A4095 does 
not exist. 

10. Prioritisation criteria should include reduction in carbon 
emissions. 

11. Rather than having lots of interventions with the same 
priority, those that benefit both cycling and walking could 
be placed above improvements that benefit just one 
mode. 

12. Significant number of improvements to be delivered over 
a long timescale and are aspirational. 

13. Source of total cost of packages 

14. Further work needed on looking at funding bids. 

connections, however. A new section of 
potential Witney LCWIP routes suggested 
through the consultation, which need to be fully 
apprised before they enter the LCWIP will be 
added. 

3. Figure 1 shows the geographic scope of the 
Witney LCWIP. This was determined through 
consultation from stakeholders and reflects local 
experience. Figure 2 shows the Propensity to 
Cycle Desire Line Classification, which uses 
2011 Census data to determine where people 
would like to cycle. 

4. Existing on road routes are considered 
appropriate where the road conditions are LTN 
1/20 compliant for on road cycling.  

5. Improvement 48 = “shared use footpath/ 
cycleway parallel to road as bypass to 
underpass “and improvement 99 = introduce 
sparrow crossings on the arms of the 
Ducklington Lane roundabout are proposed in 
relation to the A40 underpass that connect 
Ducklington and Witney. A study of barriers has 
been conducted in Witney and is currently under 
review by OCC engineers. Where it is 
considered there are no safety implications, 
barriers will be removed or modified.   

6. EVCP charging for electric bikes will be 
reviewed in the next iteration of the cycle 
parking audit for Witney. 

7. It is acknowledged that not all trips have a 
destination in the town centre and some people 
may walk more or less than 2km, the Witney 
LCWIP represents an average situation. Trip 
attractor generation considered trip attractors in 
residential areas also. Walking route 
improvements are proposed across Witney. All 
improvements will consider aspects such as 

P
age 329



38 
 

lighting during the design stage – this will be 
made clearer in the LCWIP. 

8. Figure 15 to be amended to reflect comments. 

9. Figure 16 to be amended to reflect comments. 

10. As it is challenging to measure the carbon 
emission reduction from individual schemes at 
this stage, it has not been included as criteria in 
the prioritisation process. Impact on air quality 
has been considered.  

11. The impact of each improvement will be 
considered when determining which scheme to 
progress when funding becomes available.  

12. Where possible, Witney LCWIP improvements 
aim to deliver the highest quality walking and 
cycling infrastructure that is compliant with LTN 
1/20 – this is the aspiration. In many instances 
this requires a radical change to the way things 
are currently done and this can take a longer 
time and be more costly, hence the long delivery 
timescale.  

13. The package costs have been estimated based 
on current industry construction costs and do 
not include planning or contingency costs.  

14. OCC remain abreast of funding opportunities 
and actively seek funding when appropriate 
opportunities present themselves. The Witney 
LCWIP puts OCC in a better position to bid for 
funding. Many fundings bids require LCWIPs to 
have been produced/ result in schemes being 
viewed more favourably.  

P
age 330



39 
 

Jubb, North Witney 
Strategic Development 
Area  

Outlining how the North Witney SDA will assist in the delivery of 
the Witney LCWIP. 
 
North Witney Consortium supports an approach that seeks to 
prioritise sustainable modes. 
 
Outline proposals related to North Witney. 
 
Highlights how the West End Link would not be in accordance 
with Oxfordshire’s Decide and Provide approach, with alternative 
routes having been identified in the LCWIP. 
 
North Witney SDA would deliver infrastructure on site to support 
active travel including the Northern Distributer Road and a 
potential mobility hub. 
 
North Witney SDA can contribute to improvements within North 
Witney through S106 contributions. The level of contribution 
would depend on the impact of North Witney SDA. 

The support and commitment to active travel is noted. 

P
age 331



40 
 

 

Appendix A – Questionnaire 

 
Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 
Let's Talk Oxfordshire 

 
What are your views of the Witney LCWIP? 
 
Cycling 
 
Tell us about your views on the cycling elements of the Witney LCWIP (Chapter 3 and 
Chapter 5) 
 
Typically, how often do you cycle in Witney for any trip purpose? 
(Choose any 1 options) 

 Daily 

 Weekly 

 Monthly 

 Yearly 

 Not at all 

 Other (please specify) 

 

Typically, how often do you cycle in the area surrounding Witney (shown in figure 1) 
for any trip purpose? (Choose any 1 options) 

 Daily 

 Weekly 

 Monthly 

 Yearly 

 Not at all 
 
Overall, what do you think of the proposed cycling improvements (detailed in table 2 
and figures 8-12)? (Choose any 1 options) 

 Ambitious 

 Adequate 

 Inadequate 

 Other (please specify) 
 
To what extent does the proposed cycling network (shown in figure 6) take you where 
you want to go in Witney? (Choose any 1 options) 

 I can get everywhere I want by cycling 

 Most places, but some routes are missing or unsafe 

 Not at all 

Page 332



41 
 

 Other (please specify) 
 
To what extent does the proposed cycling network (shown in figure 7) take you where 
you want to go in the area surrounding Witney? (Choose any 1 options) 

 I can get everywhere I want by cycling 

 Most places, but some routes are missing or unsafe 

 Not at all 

 Other (please specify) 

 

If the measures in the Witney LCWIP were implemented, would this encourage you to 
cycle more? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 

 Unsure 

 Other (please specify) 
 
Answer this question only if you have chosen No for If the measures in the Witney 
LCWIP were implemented, would this encourage you to cycle more? 
Please provide further information on your selection 

 
 
Please suggest any other improvements to cycling you think should be included in the 
Witney LCWIP 
 

 

 
 
 
Walking 
 
Tell us about your views on the walking elements of the Witney LCWIP (Chapter 4 and 
Chapter 5) 
 
Typically, how often do you walk in Witney for any purpose? (Choose any 1 options) 

 Daily 

 

 

Page 333



42 
 

 Weekly 

 Monthly 

 Yearly 

 Not at all 

 Other (please specify) 

  
Overall, what do you think of the proposed walking improvements (detailed in table 3 
and figures 18-20)? (Choose any 1 options) 

 Ambitious 

 Adequate 

 Inadequate 

 Other (please specify) 
 
To what extent does the walking network (shown in figure 16) take you where you 
want to go in Witney? (Choose any 1 options) 

 I can get everywhere I want by walking 

 Most places, but some routes are missing or unsafe 

 Not at all 

 Other (please specify) 
 
If the measures in the Witney LCWIP were implemented, would this encourage you to 
walk more? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 

 Unsure 

 Other (please specify) 
Please provide further information on your selection 

 

Please suggest any other improvements to walking you think should be included 

 

 

Packages of improvements 
Please tell us about your views on the packages of improvements in figures 24-26, 
section 5.2 and Appendix D 

 

 

Page 334



43 
 

 
Would you like to provide feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 
(Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 
 
Would you like to comment on the Woodstock Road package? (Choose any one 
option) 

 Yes 

 No 
 
Please provide your comments on the Woodstock Road package 
 

 
 
 
Would you like to comment on the Hailey Road package? 
(Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 
 
Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 
Hailey Road package? 
Please provide your comments on the Hailey Road package 

 
 
Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 
feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 
 
Would you like to comment on the Burford Road package? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 
 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

Burford Road package? 

Please provide your comments on the Burford Road package 

 

 

Page 335



44 
 

 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 

feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

Would you like to comment on the West Witney package? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

West Witney package? 

Please provide your comments on the West Witney package 

 

 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 

feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

Would you like to comment on the Witney Road package? 
(Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

Witney Road package? 

Please provide your comments on the Witney Road package 

 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 

feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

 

 

 

Page 336



45 
 

Would you like to comment on the Ducklington Lane package? Choose any one 

option) 

 Yes 

 No 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

Ducklington Lane package? 

Please provide your comments on the Ducklington Lane package 

 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 

feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

Would you like to comment on the South Witney package? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

South Witney package? 

Please provide your comments on the South Witney package 

 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 

feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

Would you like to comment on the Witan Way package? 

(Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

Witan Way package? 

Please provide your comments on the Witan Way package 

 

 

Page 337



46 
 

 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 

feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

Would you like to comment on the East Witney package? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

East Witney package? 

Please provide your comments on the East Witney package 

 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 

feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

Would you like to comment on the Newland package? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

Newland package? 

Please provide your comments on the Newland package 

 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to provide 

feedback on a specific package (shown in figures 24-26)? 

Would you like to comment on the Madley Paths package? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 

 

 

Page 338



47 
 

 No 

Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Would you like to comment on the 

Madley Paths package? 

Please provide your comments on the Madley Paths package 

 

 
 
Prioritisation of improvements 
 
Please tell us your views on the prioritised improvements in table 5 
 
Considering the list of prioritised improvements in table 5, to what extent do you agree 
or disagree with the ranking of measures? 
 
(Choose any 1 options) 

 Completely agree 

 Partially agree 

 Neither agree nor disagree 

 Partially disagree 

 Completely disagree 
 
Answer this question only if you have chosen Partially disagree for Considering the list 
of prioritised improvements in table 5, to what extent do you agree or disagree with the 
ranking of measures? 
 
Please provide further information on your selection 
(Required) 

 
 
Answer this question only if you have chosen Completely disagree for Considering the 
list of prioritised improvements in table 5, to what extent do you agree or disagree with 
the ranking of measures? 
 
Please provide further information on your selection 
(Required) 

 

 

Page 339



48 
 

 
 
Final thoughts 
Please let us know if you have any further comments 

 
 
About you 
How did you find out about this consultation? (Choose any one option) 

 Facebook 

 Twitter 

 Instagram 

 LinkedIn 

 NextDoor 

 Oxfordshire.gov.uk website 

 Email from Oxfordshire County Council 

 Local news 

 Oxfordshire County Councillor 

 District Councillor 

 Town/ Parish Councillor 

 Local community group organisation 

 Friend/ relative 

 Other (please specify) 
 
What is your age? (Choose any one option) 

 0-15 

 16-24 

 25-34 

 35-44 

 45-54 

 55-64 

 65-74 

 75 or more 

 Prefer not to say 
 
What is your sex? (Choose any one option) 

 Female 

 

 

Page 340



49 
 

 Male 

 Prefer not to say 

 Other (please specify) 
 
What is your ethnic background? (Choose any one option) 

 Asian or Asian British (Indian, Pakistani, Bangladeshi or any other Asian 
background) 

 Black or Black British (Caribbean, African, or any other Black background) 

 Chinese 

 Mixed (White and Black Caribbean, White and Black African, White and Asian, 
and any other mixed background) 

 White (British, English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, Irish, or any other white 
background) 

 Prefer not to say 

 Other (please specify) 
 
Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a long-term illness, health problem or 
disability that has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months? (Choose any one 
option) 

 Yes - a lot 

 Yes - a little 

 No 

 Prefer not to say 
 
Stay in touch: would you like to sign up for regular email updates on news, events, and 
developments from across the county? (Choose any one option) 

 Yes 

 No 
 
Answer this question only if you have chosen Yes for Stay in touch: would you like to 
sign up for regular email updates on news, events, and developments from across the 
county? 
 
Please provide your email address below, so we can contact you and send a link to our 
sign-up page where you can tailor which communications you receive: 

 

  

 

Page 341



50 
 

Appendix B - List of Stakeholder written responses in full.  
 

• West Oxfordshire Ramblers 

• West Oxfordshire District Council Officer  

• Witney resident 

• Witney Town Council Councillor (4 emails) 

• Windrush Bike Project 

• Witney Traffic Advisory Committee 

• Witney Town Council 

• West Oxfordshire District Council 

• Jubb representing North Witney Consortium 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 342



51 
 

West Oxfordshire Ramblers 
“I have read much of the Draft Plan and I can see that some of the proposed changes 

may involve changes to the designation of various Rights of Way e.g. that footpaths 

might be redesignated as bridleways or that new sections of footpaths are being 

proposed. I presume whoever reads this will know that there is a standard consultation 

process for looking at such changes, and I wondered how the development of the Plan 

will interface with Rights of Way consultations? (Redacted) I would find it difficult to put 

together the maps provided in the consultation document with the OCC Definitive Map 

that shows all current Rights of Way and proposals for changes – this would be a 

complex task. 

Needless to say, (Redacted) I welcome proposals that will encourage walking in West 

Oxon, and personally, I welcome more access for cycling. Thus, I am not seeking to 

hold up the process in any way, but to be sure I can contribute in the best way 

possible.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 343



52 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council Officer  
 “Hope you are well and enjoyed the Christmas break. 

 Just before the Christmas break a colleague raised an idea, which rang a bell… 

We have a (S106 funded) Creative Community Connector based at Windrush Place (a 

new development in West Witney) who’s role is to being the community together using 

arts/creative outlets. He is doing a lot of work with the school and the allotments and 

really embedding himself well into the community, which is great. He mentioned the 

bridleway that crosses the site, that is currently underused, but with some work could be 

a good cut through (encouraging more active travel – as it connects two parts of Witney 

- but the currently situation he mentioned is that – some of a path that is unusable 

during the wetter months of the year – Please see attached Google Image map with the 

route highlighted in orange - The part with the most potential use/benefit to the 

community though, would be the part through Colwell Green - connecting Windrush to 

Deer Park/West Witney estates - highlighted in the green circle. It jogged my memory, 

so having checked the LCWIP, it looks like this has already been proposed, which is 

great! (Page 80) 

 

  

Just wondering if you provide some clarification - as these proposals (Ref. number 32 & 

33) are show as having funding secured in Table 7, but are also showing in the 

‘Prioritisation score/rank’ charts. Hopefully the funding is secured and there is no issue 

– but if not my concern would be that - As a whole, it may not score very highly and the 

work may not be undertaken, which would be a missed opportunity. If this is the case, I 

would propose to divide the improvement - Ref. number 33. into two parts. Separating 

out the shorter bit of the bridleway - through Colwell Green (Approx.155m - highlighted 

in the green circle) as a higher priority piece of work and have the proposed 

resurfacing/widening etc. of the full bridleway (Approx.885m - highlighted in orange) as 

a separate proposal item, which could completed over a longer period of time. As I said, 

hopefully it’s had funding approved so shouldn’t be an issue, but if you could clarify 

please that would be great. 

  

Many thanks,”  

Page 344



53 
 

 

  

Page 345



54 
 

Witney resident  
 

 

 

 

Page 346



55 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 347



56 
 

Witney Town Council Councillor (4 emails) 

 

1) “I have had a look in the LCWIP which is proposed on Let’s Talk Oxfordshire. 
 

I note that there is only one pedestrian crossing proposed - previously, there 

have been conversations about two crossings, one which is within the LCWIP 

and one that is going to be further down the Deer Park Road near the 

Roundabout. 

 

The one near the roundabout really needs to be a priority as crossing the road is 

a significant issue at the moment. 

 

Please can you confirm that there are still plans for two pedestrian crossings 

along the Deer Park Road and whether or not timeframes have been discussed?” 

 

2) “Thanks for the update, I am pleased that the crossing closest to the roundabout 
is still being considered - if the Dutch style roundabout is a good 
solution.  However, the crossing near the roundabout is most vital to residents 
and they really want this one s there are many families who just do not find it safe 
for their children to walk to school - which is really sad. 
 

I hope to hear more about the progress of this crossing soon.” 

 

3) I have looked at the LCWIP, so apologies if I have missed it, but I do not see in 
the short term the pedestrian crossing which (Redacted) have been suggesting 
for a number of years now. 
I do hope that this is still in consideration and in the short-term plan outside of the 

LCWIP? 

 

4) Thanks for confirming that (Redacted), it just wasn't clear within the LCWIP. 
I shall respond to the consultation soon - it's a very good document, so well done 

to everyone involved. 

 

  

Page 348



57 
 

Windrush Bike Project  
 

“Summary 

We are delighted that Witney will have a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 

in 

place and look forward to contributing to its evolution. Our thanks to everyone involved 

in the process so far. 

 

The two ‘Dutch style’ roundabouts, the segregated cycle tracks and the parallel 

crossings 

are just the kind of ambitious design choices that will make more people consider 

cycling in Witney. 

 

Some of the more complex junctions in the Bridge Street and High Street areas have 

been left out of the plan for now but we agree it makes sense at the moment and we 

look forward to the results of the separate project to enable and improve active travel 

there. We wonder how this will affect traffic on Newland and Oxford HIll which currently 

have no proposed cycling infrastructure along their length? 

 

We note that there are no traffic filters, bus gates or Low Traffic Neighbourhoods 

proposed. We would like to see a similar project to the one for Bridge Street which looks 

at motor traffic flow for the wider town and investigates filtering traffic to enable more 

active travel. We offer an example in our ‘areas to revisit’ below. 

Finally we’ve noted what we think are a few errors in the document. 

 

Areas to revisit 

 

Tower Hill: 

The Dutch style roundabout at Fiveways does not improve cycling along Tower Hill itself 

Page 349



58 
 

and therefore between North West Witney and the Town Centre. The space constraints 

here were identified when trying to implement the East West Active Travel Corridor 

scheme and some form of traffic filtering here appears to be the only solution. That 

would require looking at the impact across the wider area, so perhaps as well as an 

LCWIP, a wider motor traffic plan is required for Witney? 

 

Station Lane: 

The employment sites on the South side of Station Lane are poorly connected from an 

active travel perspective (currently one crossing at Avenue Two) and has no cycle path 

along the South side. The proposed crossings (ref no.s 4, 22 and 63) improve this, 

particularly for walking, but how will people cycle to Avenue Three for example without 

a cycle path on the South side of Station Lane? 

 

Cogges Hill Road: 

No cycling infrastructure is proposed along Cogges Hill Road from Oxford Hill into 

Cogges. We were under the impression that the funding for this would be delivered by 

the East Witney development? 

 

Downs Road: 

Downs Road has missing cycling infrastructure along its length, eg, this picture shows a 

section where cyclists must rejoin the carriageway in order to access a toucan crossing 

50m further on. 

Page 350



59 
 

 

Errors/Corrections 

Page 16, “The closest station is Hanborough Station, approximately 9km northwest of 

Witney High Street” - should be northeast. 

 

Page 28, The picture illustrating a Tiger crossing (Parallel crossing) shows a form of 

informal crossing. 

 

Ref no. 4 is shown in figures 8 and 9 as a cycling improvement but is not listed in table 

2 

as a walking and cycling benefit - it appears in table 3 as just a walking benefit. 

 

Ref no. 43 is described as a segregated cycle track on the northern side of Curbridge 

Road - the scheme drawing of ref no. 40 shows the cycle track on the southern side of 

Curbridge Road. 

 

Ref no. 65 in Figure 11 appears to be drawn in the wrong location.” 

Page 351



60 
 

Witney Traffic Advisory Committee  
 

“Draft Witney LCWIP Consultation – Witney Traffic Advisory Consultation 

Response 

 

The Witney Traffic Advisory Committee met on 10th January 2023, the latest version of 

the Draft Witney LCWIP Consultation was on the agenda for the consideration of 

members. Please find below the response from this committee. 

 

Members of the Witney Traffic Advisory Committee were pleased to receive the 

December 2022 edition of the Draft Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 

Plan. The Chair and other members acknowledged the amount of work that has been 

invested to date and that these efforts have resulted in a solid draft plan resulting from a 

good variety of online and in-person engagement. Members reflected on a well drafted 

initial list of priorities, a good framework upon which more work can follow.  

 

A member raised the issue of a refuge island at Witan Way (when you are crossing 

near/from Farm Mill Lane). This had been raised previously, with an assurance that this 

would be included. It is not clear if the refuge island has been included in the current 

draft plan? 

 

The suggested improvements for the five-ways roundabout were discussed, with all 

members agreeing that the current layout is dangerous, with pedestrians and cyclists 

being most at risk. Ducklington Lane was highlighted as being particularly unsafe for 

pedestrians – the current situation being that as a pedestrian waiting to cross, you 

cannot see the traffic that is coming. And contributing towards this risk, as a driver 

exiting Corn Street, the Ducklington Lane pedestrians aren’t visible. There was mixed 

feedback about the idea of a ‘Dutch roundabout’, the consensus being that it was clear 

to see what doesn’t work, but more needs to be done to come up with a proposal that 

does work and offers a safer solution for all.  

 

Members of the Committee discussed the ongoing proposals for traffic calming 

measures at The Leys. Further improvements for pedestrians and cyclists were 

suggested, including an upgrade to the existing path, with segregated use would be 

welcomed as part of the plan. It was put forward that the whole scheme should work 

with and be in conjunction with the Active Travel Scheme already established and that it 

should inform new and utilise existing section 106 contributions.” 

Page 352



61 
 

 

  

Page 353



62 
 

Witney Town Council  
 

“Draft Witney LCWIP Consultation – Witney Town Council Consultation Response 

 

Witney Town Council met on 4th January 2023, the latest version of the Draft Witney 

LCWIP Consultation was on the agenda for the consideration of members. Please find 

below their response. 

 

Witney Town Council welcomes the draft local cycling and walking infrastructure plan 

produced by the County Council. The well-structured proposals, developed with 

interested parties and experts is long overdue and helps address a piecemeal approach 

made by varying authorities over many years. The Town Council hopes the plan will 

assist developers and help the County Council to source additional funds (including 

Section 106 contributions) to ensure it is realised and that residents will benefit from 

safer, less polluting, active travel infrastructure through to 2033. In particular, the 

enhancement and re-creation of historic connections with neighbouring villages, once a 

key to the economic success in the wider community is welcome. 

  

The Town Council also recognises and appreciates that this is a ‘live document’ which 

will be reviewed every two years but would like to understand the mechanism as to how 

suggestions and amendments can be made by interested parties. Further issues the 

Town Council would like to raise are: 

  

• Although proposed A40 cycle routes are referred to in the Geographical scope, 
Eynsham does not figure on the 5km and 10km cycling catchment (Figure 4, 
Page 26). Has the LCWIP considered an alternative more leisurely route to 
Eynsham? 
  

• West Witney improvements– the Town Council would have preferred to see 
some of these in shorter term plans. Both the Windrush Place and Colwell Green 
developments have been completed or nearly completed and there is a high 
number of working-age parents and young families who require routes to school 
and the town centre. 

  

• East Witney Strategic Area Improvements – the development of this strategic 
development area is imminent. Connectivity to this area is covered via proposals 
11-28 but does not see an enhanced designated footpath/cycleway which links 
east Witney to the southern industrial and commercial areas. 

Page 354



63 
 

  

• North Witney Strategic Area improvements. The planning for this area may be 
some way off, but the anticipation of such a development with connecting routes, 
may be advantageous in terms of funding requests when plans are submitted. 

  

• There is no mention of a reinstated railway line between Witney and Oxford in 
the plan. Although this still may be many years off, potential routes have been 
identified by supporters. Would it be prudent to include this potential so that if any 
future funding streams become available there is flexibility to include connectivity 
links should it occur? 

  

• As a walking route, the Town Council would like to see more mention to the 
elderly and disabled in the plan. There are mentions of dropped kerbs and 
undulations, but these are the only references – the elderly may require seating 
etc. and the footpaths may need gritting/salting in inclement weather (depending 
on the surface). 

  

• The Town Council would like to ask that there is minimal disruption to the 
environment, this includes retaining hedges and verges for biodiversity where 
possible and not harming or removing any trees unnecessarily. Climate is only 
referred to in the Executive Summary and no key policies on this are listed in 
Table 1. Key Policies, strategies, and guidance. 

  

• In constructing the improvements, the town council would also like to insist that 
drainage mitigations and the topography of the grounds are considered in the 
process of building any new paths which will create additional surface water run-
off or exacerbate current flooding problems. For example, the current shared 
path at Langel Common is raised so it can be used or most of the year, but the 
town council understands from flooding campaigners that this impedes the flood 
plain. Could this be reviewed in future design upgrades to allow water to flow 
underneath the path? Likewise, on the flood plain between Hailey Road and 
Woodford Mill, this key walking route is impassable for a large part of the year 
and the town council would like to support the use of an upgraded boardwalk-
style solution.  

  

• The Town Council would like to see more mention and commitment to continued 
maintenance and peripheral issues regarding the future of such a large, well-
connected network. 

  

• Finally, regarding proposals 49 – 52. The Town Council recognises the need to 
make journeys as short as possible but objects to any measures which suggest 
the use of or increase foot or cycle traffic because of the private road adjacent to 

Page 355



64 
 

Lakeside allotments off of Witney Road. The most direct route for residents of 
Witney is to utilise the existing tarmacked footpath (194/16/20 &194/17A/10) over 
the Moors land to meet up with footpath 194/16/10 – this stretch of path to 
Witney Lake and Country Park could be upgraded per the proposals. There is 
also currently a shared cycle and footpath running parallel to the A40 slip road, 
which is well-lit, tarmacked and was constructed c.2003 as the cycling and 
walking link between Witney and Ducklington as it linked up with other 
infrastructure. With this in mind, the footpaths/rights of way listed above would 
only require widening in order to upgrade the proposed walking routes. This 
issue may be resolved by the development of the Moors Land per planning 
application 21/03405/OUT and the town council would encourage dialogue 
between the County Council and developers to improve connectivity.” 

  

Page 356



65 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council 
 

Draft Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan  

West Oxfordshire District Council (WODC) welcomes further engagement on the Draft 

Witney Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP), which is an evidence-

based plan for improving the cycling and walking experience in Witney and to 

surrounding towns and villages.  

In addition to the comments raised by the Planning Policy Team, please note that a 

separate section has been included in this response from the Council’s Climate Change 

Manager (see page 8).  

Overall we are extremely supportive of this Plan and the proposed interventions which 

will greatly improve active travel in and surrounding Witney; improving health and 

wellbeing, reducing emissions and helping to tackling climate change. The study is 

comprehensive and provides useful information which will benefit a wide range of 

organisations involved in delivering these. It will also help to inform discussions with 

developers/ S106 negotiations as well as the new West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2041.  

As you know, West Oxfordshire is placing increasing emphasis on healthy place 

shaping principles and an important part of this is providing opportunities to encourage 

people to walk and cycle rather than use their car, particularly for short journeys. To 

achieve this, priority needs to be given to planning around an effective and permeable 

active travel network and the majority of interventions proposed will greatly assist with 

this aim.  

We however feel that a stronger emphasis should be given to design in the Plan, 

including consideration of the public realm, the importance of landscaping as well as the 

quality of materials. As such, the potential interventions should be guided by urban 

design expertise to avoid a heavily engineered approach, which is particularly important 

in sensitive and historic areas such as the Windrush Valley and the Market Square but 

is of value across the whole study area.  

In exploring the potential interventions, it is important for these to be considered 

comprehensively and in this regard we support the ‘corridor approach’ although we 

acknowledge that each intervention can be brought forward independently and we 

support this approach.  

On particular corridors which provide future linkages to proposed new Strategic 

Development Areas (SDA) such as Hailey Road (which will link to the North Witney 

SDA), the interventions proposed could be more ambitious to help serve the future 

development as well as existing residents. These interventions could also link in with 

other initiatives such as tackling flooding by utilising future funding which will be 

available through new development.  

Page 357



66 
 

We know that transport modes are not mutually exclusive and, in many cases, support 

one another. Where interventions are on routes which contain small ‘hubs’ such as bus 

stops on key corridors, complementary measures such as improved bike storage 

solutions and waiting facilities should be explored. Therefore, how the interventions best 

link with public transport such as bus stops in the town to help assist multi-modal travel 

should be a key considerations.  

We believe that emerging technology will play an ever-increasing role in contributing to 

increased levels of active travel and modal shift by improving access to live information 

and the ability to pay for and access onward travel. This may include interactive 

mapping showing facilities such as the nearest cycle parking or even cycle hire facilities 

(including e-bikes/ scooters) and the ability to hire these with ease. As such, the 

document could make a stronger reference to technological advances and how these 

could increasingly help to support active travel.  

We note that since the study began, most of the built-up area of the town is now in a 

20mph zone, with reductions in speed on the approach roads. Reference to this could 

be usefully included in the document so that the potential benefits/ implications of these 

speed reductions can be considered.  

As a general comment, whilst we support the timely role out of active travel 

improvements, this should not be to the detriment of their quality.  

Further comments regarding this Plan are provided below and they are divided into 

relevant headings which correspond to the consultation document for ease of reference.  

 

Executive summary  

This summary usefully sets out what the plan aims to achieve and how this has been 

developed in a succinct fashion. As part of the ‘access for all’ objective, perhaps it could 

be made clearer from the outset that infrastructure for walking and cycling includes 

wheelchairs, mobility scooters, e-bikes, pushchairs etc.  

 

1. Introduction  

This section clearly introduces what the LCWIP aims to achieve and how this has been 

developed. It could be strengthened further by including information on how this links in 

with the Local Transport and Connectivity Plan and Witney Area Travel Plan and what 

weight this will have alongside these. It could usefully explain that it will also help to 

inform the new West Oxfordshire Local Plan to 2041 which is currently in preparation.  

 

Reference could also be made in Section 1.2 to Healthy Place Shaping with a link to the 

OCC website as detailed below:  

Page 358



67 
 

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/social-and-health-care/public-health-and-

wellbeing/healthy-place-shaping   

Turning to Section 1.3, the ‘Place Shaping’ text box could include some further text on 

assisting community coherence and a sense of belonging.  

Finally within Section 1.4, we agree that the compact size of Witney makes it suitable 

for walking and cycling and also, in general, its favourable topography  

 

1.5 Vision  

We support the overall vision with the aim of making walking and cycling routes safe, 

convenient and well-connected for all. We also welcome reference made to the need for 

walking and cycling to become the everyday choice for short journeys. We consider that 

the link between these aims and the climate change emergency we face should be 

made more explicit within the vision.  

Stronger reference could be made to improved outcomes for health, well-being and 

social inclusivity and this links closely with the Healthy Place Shaping aspirations of the 

Council. Mention could also be made here to the need for education to encourage 

walking and the uptake of cycling.  

In addition, reference should be made to the natural and historic environment and the 

positive gains that are possible through good design and greening of routes to help 

improve the public realm and support biodiversity.  

Although by no means vital, we wonder if the vision should refer to the period up to 

2041 which would ensure maximum alignment with West Oxfordshire’s emerging Local 

Plan.  

 

1.6 Targets  

We support the proposed targets although the second target may provide a better 

indication of uptake if this were to measure the percentage of residents cycling rather 

than just the total number, as the population is likely to grow over the coming years.  

Another measure of success may be the number of short car journeys, which should 

reduce if walking and cycling increases.  

Cycle parking take up may also provide an indicator of cycle usage.  

Finally, air quality could also be another measure although this is likely to reduce as 

electric vehicle rates increases.  

 

Page 359



68 
 

2. Background  

This section provides some useful background data and sets out the key policy 

documents of relevance. This could be bolstered to explain how this Plan links directly 

with each of the policy documents of relevance.  

Section 2.1 could be improved by making use of 2021 census data. This should also 

make reference to Charlbury train station which is the closest station for parts of west 

and north Witney.  

Within section 2.2, more information could be included on how the geographical scope 

of the study area was determined as this is not explained in any detail. In terms of 

school trips, Abingdon and Witney College are also of relevance. 4  

Table 1 within section 2.3 should include the soon-to-be-published OCC Study on 

Transport Hubs (which is particularly relevant to paras 3.3 and 4.3 on complementary 

measures).  

Within section 2.5, we suggest that the text within the ‘Conservation’ box should be 

tweaked to read: ‘Much of Witney town centre and the Windrush Valley are important for 

their historical and natural environment. Any change in the area needs to be undertaken 

sensitively’.  

Similarly the text within the ‘Flooding’ box could be improved to read: ‘Witney is located 

next to the River Windrush and its floodplain. Flooding can impact services, amenities 

and infrastructure’.  

Within section 2.6 ‘Future development and transport schemes’. It would be useful to 

clarify what type of proposed infrastructure schemes are being referred to here.  

 

3. Network plan for cycling  

Firstly, we would like to make the suggestion that it may reduce repetition to 

amalgamate sections three and four (or at least the table accompanying these sections) 

and include a sub-section within this that assesses those improvements that are for 

cyclists/ walkers only as most appear to be applicable to both.  

As a general comment, there could be a stronger emphasis on the need for safe and 

secure cycle parking at a range of destinations such as bus stops, places of 

employment, town centre locations, gyms, schools and other services, although we 

recognise that there will be further work including an audit of existing cycle proviso 

which could help inform this.  

Considering Figure 2 within Section 3.1, we suggest that the A40 from Witney to 

Eynsham Park & Ride should be identified. This is now under construction and could 

provide an important active primary route for the future Science & Technology Park at 

Salt Cross, as well as into Oxford.  

Page 360



69 
 

The theoretical trips to and from Witney shown in Figure 2 is useful but some 

destinations such as Hanborough Station are unlikely to attract a significantly number of 

people due to the distance and importantly the uphill topography. Therefore, these 

initiatives should be prioritised accordingly. However, if these routes are supported by 

complementary measures such as the potential for hiring e-bikes etc, then uptake may 

be greater.  

Figure 4 on p26 shows destination clusters but it is not clear what purpose these serve. 

Why is Minster Lovell a ‘destination cluster’ but not North Leigh or Freeland? Further 

explanation is needed on this.  

Considering the various methods of identifying cycling network improvements also on 

the p26; alongside the five outcomes listed (directness, gradient, safety, connectivity 

and comfort), we would also recommend that ‘quality of environment’ is added to this. 

This is an equally important outcome in order to encourage the uptake of active travel 

and has other public realm benefits too.  

On page 27 it states that ‘Attractiveness is not included within the assessment tool as it 

is not deemed to be a deciding factor between routes’. Further explanation of what is 

meant by ‘attractiveness’ would be useful and why this is not considered relevant. If 

attractiveness results in a more pleasant route by practicing good urban design, this is 

likely to increase usage and therefore this plays an important element in encouraging 

active travel.  

Figure 6 on page 30 appears to include a couple of typos. The first is the proposed 

upgrade of the southern end of the route through Madley Park which should be shown 

in pink and the second is the existing route along Woodlands Road which should be 

shown in blue.  

Figure 7 on page 31 shows the existing and proposed cycling network. We have a 

couple of observations regarding this. Firstly, we suggest that the green line detailing 

the potential new track should be extended to new homes west of Minster Lovell. 

Secondly, we note that it shows a new/ upgraded shared use cycle path going through 

the very narrow pinch point from East Witney to Cogges estate. Whilst this might 

become an informal route in the future, this should not been seen as a suitable 

alternative to a new route to the south of Cogges which will be far more beneficial.  

Considering Figure 8 ‘Proposed cycling improvements – Witney’ on page 32, which 

gives numbered interventions. We have the following observations:  

 Intervention 3a, 3b and 3c. We support the concept of a cycleway alongside the 

A4095 to North Leigh but it may be appropriate for this to be given a lower priority than 

some of the better used routes within Witney. Would a shared surface be more cost 

effective than a high cost segregated route here given the level of use?  

 Intervention 5. Segregated cycle route to the western side of Hailey Road. We fully 

support this but consider that this should be considered as part of a more 

Page 361



70 
 

comprehensive improvement to Hailey Road, funded by the North Witney SDA. This 

more comprehensive approach could aim to resolve flooding, improve the route for 

pedestrians and cyclists, incorporate tree planting/ landscaping and aim to generally 

improve the quality of this corridor, which is an important approach to the town.  

 Intervention 6. Segregated cycle route to Hailey. We question whether there is space 

to achieve this on the western side and whether it can be incorporated into the field to 

the west as part of the new housing schemes.  

 Intervention 7. Crossing over the roundabout at Hailey Road/West End junction. We 

support this subject to design details. We question whether this may form part of a more 

comprehensive package as discussed under ‘Intervention 5’.  

 Intervention 8. Improvements to this route need to take account of the proposed West 

End Link Road, which could provide an alternative route once complete. . Can the costs 

of the works be justified on this basis and given that there are current alternatives? We 

would instead suggest that cycle and pedestrian provision is incorporated into the road 

scheme if this is viable.  

 Intervention 9. The original bridge was proposed to be straight but the developer 

raised the levels of the housing development, necessitating a dog-leg and larger bridge 

than originally anticipated. We would question whether this scheme should be a priority.  

 

Turning to Figure 10 ‘Proposed cycling improvements - East’ on page 34, we would like 

to make the following observations:  

 Firstly, there could be merit in including a new/upgraded cycle lane along Avenue 2, 

Station Lane to provide safer provision between the A40 overbridge and Station Lane.  

 Intervention 17. We question whether there is enough space to provide a two-way 

cycle lane and footpaths along the western side of this stretch of Witan Way between 

Station Lane and High Street. If there is space, how will it successfully adjoin the High 

Street/ Bridge Street?  

 Interventions 19 & 20. These connections are to be funded through the East Witney 

SDA. Segregated two-way cycling and footpaths would be supported here.  

 Intervention 21a. Links from a new river crossing at Farm Mill to Farm Mill Lane/Witan 

Way crossing and potential link to Sainsbury’s roundabout. We suggest that both 

options are kept open as it may be more feasible to connect a new bridge to the existing 

right of way past Farm Mill flats. However if Farm Mill Lane is to be considerably 

upgraded along its entire length, leading to the town centre and schools from the east, it 

would make more sense having a toucan crossing at 28, and no additional features at 

22. A new cycle link from Sainsbury’s roundabout to 28, past De Roche Square offices 

would be supported and this could link in with the existing cycle route along Station 

Lane.  

 Intervention 23. We do not support bus stops along this stretch of Oxford Hill on 

accessibility and safety grounds and therefore we do not support a toucan crossing in 

Page 362



71 
 

this location. We do however support accessibility improvements closer to the Jubilee 

Way junction to support bus travel from this location, which will better serve existing and 

future residents and can link to the cemetery.  

 Intervention 66 needs to be carefully considered in terms of design detail and access 

due to livestock.  

 

Within Figure 11, which details the proposed cycling improvements to the north of the 

town, we have the following observation:  

 We have concerns regarding Intervention 41 linking to Hyde Meadow View. However, 

a sensitively designed and surfaced footpath between the pedestrian bridge and 

vehicular bridge to provide all weather use, would be supported. There is not 

considered to be a need to raise the level of the path and as it is within the floodplain, 

this may result in objections from the EA. The area is sensitive to light pollution and 

there are alternative lit routes available. It might be sensible to await plans for West End 

Link Road before committing to a design.  

 

We have the following comments to make regarding Figure 12 which sets out the 

proposed cycling network to the west of the town:  

 Intervention 31 along Deer Park Road details an uncontrolled pedestrian crossing. 

We note that this leads to Deer Park woods and therefore may provide a beneficial 

crossing point but we would like to understand the benefits for/ potential usage of this in 

more detail. appear to lead to anywhere.  

 Intervention 32 for a controlled toucan crossing on Deer Park Road is supported if it is 

to support users from new housing to the west and dispense these onto the existing 

cycle network.  

 

Finally, within Table 2, which lists all the cycling improvements, we note that 

intervention 71 suggests the removal of barriers along the path linking Cogges Hill 

Church and Church Lane. Whilst we strongly support the removal of unsightly barriers 

where possible; where these are required to reduce hazards then an alternative solution 

will need to be proposed.  

 

4. Network Map for Walking  

This chapter sets out the walking improvements proposed as part of this LCWIP and 

separates these into four different categories depending on their use, which is helpful.  

Page 363



72 
 

The interventions listed appear logical and are supported. We would also like to see 

Judds Close identified for improvement within Figure 20 (and 18) as this links Oxford 

Hill to Madley Park. This is an important link because of its proximity to the Oxford Hill 

bus stop and it benefits from already being lit.  

 

As a general observation, Figure 18 – Proposed walking improvements is hard to read 

due to the resolution of the image. If possible it would be extremely helpful if this and 

the other maps/proposed interventions set out in the document were to be made 

available online via an interactive map.  

On p58, within section 4.3. ‘Complementary measures’, we agree with those listed but it 

should also explore other measures such as improved lighting, planting and seating. 

Levels of surveillance should be mentioned and measures to improve this such as 

widening narrow and enclosed routes where possible (provided this doesn’t result in the 

loss of valued planting). Finally, reliable route information is also an important measure 

which could be improved to help pedestrians and cyclists navigate more easily.  

 

5. Prioritisation of improvements and Packaging of improvements  

This section sets out the proposed improvements, which are given a ranked score along 

with an estimated delivery timescale. We note that all proposed improvements are 

grouped into one of eleven packages.  

Table 5 shows a prioritisation score/rank for each measure and a delivery timescale. To 

establish the prioritisation score, they have been assessed under five key criteria (as set 

out in table 4).  

The policy criteria could include connectivity not just from SDAs (which is obviously 

crucial in imbedding these into the community) but also other areas of development and 

destinations such as business sites and the town centre.  

We note a typo in Figure 21: ‘Cost adjusted delivery timescales’ on page 62 which is 

incomplete where is states ‘Estimated cost between £0.75m and…….’  

On p63 it states that ‘the prioritisation scoring/ranking will remain under review and may 

change if new funding or other opportunities become available to deliver the 

improvements sooner than planned’. This is particularly important especially in relation 

to the progress of sites such as the East Witney SDA and ideally this aspect of the Plan 

should be frequently reviewed.  

Considering some of the prioritised improvement identified in Table 5, we would like to 

make the following observations:  

 Improvement ‘8’ A study would need to be carried out into the potential implications of 

lighting and a raised platform on biodiversity and flooding.  

Page 364



73 
 

 Improvement ‘3a’. We are that this falls within the long term category given that there 

is an existing footpath/cycleway.  

 Improvement ‘11’. Consideration needs to be given to the potential risk of cyclists 

travelling downhill close to a well-used play park  

 

6. Integration and Application  

Within section 6.1. ‘Embedding the Witney LCWIP’, more information could be provided 

on how this Plan fits with the parent/ place-making documents and which parts of these 

this Plan fulfils as well as which policies are directly relevant to this Plan and how these 

meet the objectives of the parent/ place-making documents. This could be formatted in 

a diagram to make it visually interesting and easy to follow.  

As mentioned above, it would also be useful to refer in this section to the LCWIP 

helping to inform the new West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2041.  

Under ‘Future developments’ on p79, more information could be set out explaining what 

type of development is likely to contribute and in what circumstances improvements are 

likely to be ‘relevant’ to development.  

The section ‘Initiatives to support infrastructure improvements’ on p80 appears to be 

particularly brief and it could be expanded to provide details as to how these will be 

supported. Further initiatives could include cycle management and cycling lessons to 

improve confidence and awareness.  

We agree that understanding changes in the number of people cycling and walking in 

association with the implementation of improvements is important as set out within 

section 6.2. ‘Reviewing the Witney LCWIP’. More information could be included within 

the Plan to explain where these counters are envisaged (such as on new development 

sites to monitor cycle update compared to established areas).  

As a general observation whilst we support the commitment to reviewing the LCWIP on 

a regular basis (every 2 years) we would respectfully point out the potential resource 

implications which this may raise.  

 

Comments received from the Climate Change Manager – (Redacted)  

General comments  

Improving cycling and walking routes across Witney is important in minimising carbon 

emissions from transport.  

The aim of the LCWIP is to improve cycling and walking in Witney and to the 

surrounding towns and villages (para 1.1). Not many proposed routes connect to green 

spaces beyond the town and, the ones that are been included, are planned to be 

Page 365



74 
 

delivered in the long term. It is important that residents have good access to the wider 

countryside and villages, as well as villagers having access to the town’s facilities. 

Further consideration of potential routes outside the town should be made and how 

these can be delivered sooner. This would help to fulfil one of the actions in the PaZCO 

Net Zero Action Plan and Route Map.  

Several proposed measures link to WODC owned green spaces. Improvements to 

wildlife and amenity are being made to these spaces through our Land Management 

Plans. These include sites at 3c to North Leigh Common, 50 to Carterton to link to 

Kilkenny Lane Country Park; 66 to Langel Common, 32, 33 and 35 to Deer Park Wood. 

These proposals will improve public access to these sites. We are keen to be involved 

in these projects and any others that may impact local wildlife populations through 

increased foot and cycle traffic.  

As part of UKSPF funding, access in and round Deer Park Wood South (Grid ref SP 

33526 09656) is being improved and therefore the upgrading of the bridleway (project 

33) is welcomed. WODC is willing to contribute to this project so that we can make use 

of our respective funding sources.  

The Lower Windrush Valley Project area is noted in Appendix A as being an area of 

significance both in terms of biodiversity and recreation as it holds opportunities and 

challenges for cycling and walking. There are no proposed projects in this area, which 

seems like a missed opportunity to improve residential access to the nature reserves. 

One suggestion is to improve pedestrian and cyclist access from both Cogges and 

Ducklington to Rushy Common Nature Reserve and Tar Lakes, e.g. via Tar Lane.   

 

Specific comments  

1.3 – Climate should be included as a separate box or figures on carbon emission 

reductions included in the environment box.  

1.5 – Does any reference need to be made to WODC’s Council Plan?  

1.6 – Target 1 may be very difficult to meet, there will always be accidents in the form of 

pedestrians/cyclists tripping or acting recklessly near roads and people going over the 

speed limits. How will progress against Target 2 be monitored? Are Active Lives 

Surveys carried out often enough to measure this? A climate related target could be 

included, tied to carbon reduction, and linked to our carbon budgets.  

2.2 – Were the residential and employment areas in the south of Witney included in the 

scope? Were key cycle connections for leisure included?  

2.3 – Refer to the WODC Council Plan, WODC Local Plan review consultation, and 

PaZCO Net Zero Action Plan and Routemap.  

2.5 – Include a climate box with carbon emissions.  

Page 366



75 
 

3.1 – Using existing trip generators may not take into account potential trips that could 

exist if cycle routes were improved. Rushy Common Nature Reserve and Tar Lakes is a 

destination for leisure users and improving cycle routes to this reserve would increase 

use.  

Figure 2 – Cycle path along half of Tar Lane to Rushy Common is not shown in Figure 

2, as it is in Figure 1.  

Figure 6 – Why is some ‘existing on road’ routes not being improved?  

Figure 8 and Figure 9 – Why have the following improvements to cycle routes not been 

considered?  

 Witney and Ducklington to the Witney Lake and Country Park and Rushy Common  

 Gap between Ducklington roundabout and the cycleway to the north, i.e. through the 

Windrush Industrial Estate.  

 Gap between existing and potential cycleways to the town centre.  

 

Table 2 – Will the improvements to the A40 underpass that connect Ducklington to 

Witney remove the metal barriers to ease cycling and assess lighting/maintenance to 

improve safety?  

3.3 – Refer to the action in the PaZCO Route Map and Action Plan that relates to 

walking and cycling. Will EVCP charging for electric bikes form part of the audit of cycle 

parking in Witney?  

4.1 –Drawing the 2km catchment area from the town centre does not take into all 

residential areas of Witney where residents may be prepared to walk to the town centre 

and other facilities around the town. Lighting should be listed as another improvement.  

Figure 15 – Area shown on Figure 15 does not seem to extend to 2km/30 minute walk 

in places.  

Figure 16 – Does the secondary walking route to the west of Ducklington exist?  

5.1 – Criteria should include reduction in carbon emissions.  

Table 5 - Where a project benefits both cycling and walking, these could be placed 

above others within a block of equal prioritisation rank? There seems a significant 

number of proposed improvements to be delivered over a long timescale and are 

‘aspirational’.  

Table 6 – How have these costs been calculated?  

Table 7 – Project 33 is listed twice.  

Page 367



76 
 

6.1 – Further work needed on looking at funding bids as part of this work. The plan 

requires funding behind it, and project packages matched to available funding (sources 

listed and others). Horizon scanning for future opportunities needs to be undertaken.  

 

We trust you find this response helpful. If you wish to discuss any of the points raised, 

please feel free to get in touch. 

  

Page 368



77 
 

Jubb representing North Witney Consortium  
 

 

 
“1.0 Introduction  
 
1.1 Jubb have been commissioned by L&Q Estates, Blenheim Strategic Partners, 
Taylor Wimpey, Cranbrook Construction and Gleeson Land (as part of the North Witney 
Consortium) to provide transport and highways advice in support of a proposed 
residential-led development on land to the north of Witney. This land forms the North 
Witney Strategic Development Area (SDA) as set out within the West Oxfordshire 
District Council’s (WODC) Local Plan. The WODC Local Plan has allocated a total of 
1400 dwellings within the North Witney SDA.  
 

1.2 The location of the North Witney SDA is as set out in Figure 1.1 below. 

 

 

Page 369



78 
 

 
 Figure 1.1 – Location of North Witney Consortium Land 

 

 
 1.3 This Technical Note (TN) has been prepared in response to a call for consultation 
from Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) in relation to their proposed strategy for the 
implementation of active travel measures as set out within Draft Witney Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) published in December 2022.  
 
1.4 The scope of the TN is as follows:  

▪ Section 2: Outlines details of proposals as outlined within the LCWIP including in 
the vicinity of the North Witney SDA.  

▪ Section 3: Sets out how the North Witney SDA will assist in the delivery of 
relevant LCWIP proposals in the vicinity of the site and add associated benefit.  
 

1.5 In addition to the above details associated summary and conclusions are also 

provided within Section 4 of this TN.  

 

2.0 Draft Witney LCWIP  

 

Introduction  

 

2.1 This section provides a review of the proposed Vision for the LCWIP. In addition, an 

initial review of the proposed measures in the North Witney area (i.e. in the vicinity of 

the North Witney SDA) is also provided.  

 

LCWIP Vision  

 

2.2 The vision of the LCWIP is set out within section 1.5 which states the following:  

 

“By 2033, Witney will have safe, convenient, and well-connected walking and cycling 

networks that are accessible for people of all abilities, ages and backgrounds. These 

networks will connect people to where they want to go, including excellent routes to 

access public transport.  

 

Page 370



79 
 

Walking and cycling will become the everyday choice for short journeys, or as part of 
longer journeys combined with using public transport, in Witney and beyond. A culture 
of walking and cycling will be achieved, creating a thriving, healthy and vibrant 
community, and making Witney a great place to live, work and visit.”  
 
2.3 To provide further guidance as to how this this vision could be achieved, the LCWIP 
provides a review of requirements for active travel enhancement within Witney. This 
review considers desire lines and area catchments, and subsequently provides 
recommendations for enhancements to mitigate gaps in existing infrastructure.  
 
2.4 The provision of a vision and strategy that focusses, in particular, on active travel 
modes is in accordance with the Decide and Provide (D&P) approach as set out within 
the “Oxfordshire County Council – Local Transport and Connectivity Plan 2022 – 2050” 
(LTCP) as published in July 2022 by OCC. This approach focuses on the delivery of the 
transport connections in consideration of a transport hierarchy (see extract from Figure 
9 of the LTCP as Figure 2.1 below) that promotes the delivery of sustainable transport, 
particularly active modes of transport, with additional infrastructure for private motorised 
modes (e.g. such as additional highway capacity) only considered as a last resort. This 
approach is summarised on page 105 of the LTCP which states the following:  
 
“The decide and provide approach to transport planning decides on the preferred future 

and then provides the means to work towards that which can accommodate uncertainty. 

This offers the opportunity for more positive transport planning and helps implement a 

transport user hierarchy by considering walking and cycling up-front.” 

 

 

Figure 2.1 – Transport hierarchy as extracted from Figure 9 of the LTCP 

 

Page 371



80 
 

2.5 The strategy would also assist in the delivery of targets as set within the LTCP for a 
decrease in the number of car trips and associated carbon emissions across 
Oxfordshire. These targets are summarised on page 31 of the LTCP and set out below:  
 
“By 2030 our targets are to:  
 

▪ Replace or remove 1 out of every 4 current car trips in Oxfordshire  
▪ Increase the number of cycle trips in Oxfordshire from 600,000 to 1 million cycle 

trips per week • Reduce road fatalities or life changing injuries by 50% By 2040 
our targets are to:  

▪ Deliver a net-zero transport network  
▪ Replace or remove an additional 1 out of 3 car trips in Oxfordshire By 2050 our 

targets are to:  
▪ Deliver a transport network that contributes to a climate positive future  
▪ Have zero, or as close as possible, road fatalities or life-changing injuries”  

 
2.6 The North Witney Consortium is in agreement with an approach that seeks to 
prioritise sustainable modes and in this regard is in approval to the vision and general 
approach as put forward within the LCWIP.  
 
Proposed measures as set out within the LCWIP for the North Witney area 
  
2.7 A summary of the location of proposed active travel improvements in North Witney 

are provided in Figure 11 or the LCWIP report which is also extracted as Figure 2.2 

below. 

 

Page 372



81 
 

 

Figure 2.2 – Location of proposed active travel Improvements as identified within the 
LCWIP for the North Witney area  
 
2.8 It can be seen from the above that there are a number of enhancements proposed 
in the North Witney area that include upgraded crossing points, improved surface and 
lighting and potential new or upgraded cycle track and shared use footway / cycleway. A 
summary of the detail of each of these enhancements is provided in Table 2.1 below. 
The information in Table 2.1 also includes an additional identified walking enhancement 
(listed as item 82) which is not shown on the diagram in Figure 2.1 but is located within 
the North Witney area and on the desire line from the North Witney SDA into Witney.  
 
2.9 In addition, Table 2.1 also identifies each schemes priority rank, when compared 

with the full list of proposals across Witney, in terms of delivery as identified within the 

LCWIP. This priority is presented within the LCWIP as number between 1 and 104, with 

a lower number representing a high priority and higher numbers representing 

enhancements of lower priority. It is noted that where schemes are identified as of equal 

importance in terms of priority then the same ranking number is attributable to each 

scheme. 

 

Ref No.  Benefit to  Location  Description  Priority Rank 
as identified 

Page 373



82 
 

within the 
LCWIP  

1  Walking & 
Cycling  

A4095 
Woodgreen  

A formal 
pedestrian 
crossing 
within the 
vicinity of Holy 
Trinity Church  

14  

2a  Cycling  Woodstock 
Road between 
Woodgreen 
and Wood 
Green School 
access  

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track on 
the western 
side of 
Woodstock 
Road  

2  

2b  Cycling  Woodstock 
Road between 
Wood Green 
School access 
and Jubilee 
Way  

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track on 
the western 
side of the 
Woodstock 
Road  

52  

3a  Walking & 
Cycling  

A4095 Witney 
Road, 
between 
Jubilee Way 
and North 
Leigh  

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
between 
Jubilee Way 
and Common 
Road, North 
Leigh  

14  

3b  Walking & 
Cycling  

A4095 Witney 
Road, 
between 
Common 
Road and 
Park Road, 
North Leigh  

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 
and adjacent 
footway on 
the western 
side of A4095 
past North 
Leigh, 
removing 
need to go 
through North 
Leigh  

52  

3c  Walking & 
Cycling  

A4095 Witney 
Road, 
between 

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track 

14  

Page 374



83 
 

North Leigh 
and 
Hanborough 
Station  

between Park 
Road and 
Hanborough 
Station  

5  Cycling  B4022 Hailey 
Road, 
between West 
End and 
Witney 
Community 
Primary 
School access  

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track on 
the western 
side of Hailey 
Road  

14  

6  Cycling  B4022 Hailey 
Road, 
between 
Witney 
Community 
Primary 
School access 
and Hailey  

Two-way 
segregated 
cycle track on 
the western 
side of Hailey 
Road  

52  

7  Walking & 
Cycling  

B4022 West 
End/Crawley 
Road junction  

Crossing to 
link Hailey 
Road and 
Woodford Mill 
cycle path (for 
people cycling 
and walking)  

1  

8  Walking & 
Cycling  

Footpath link 
between 
B4022 West 
End and 
A4095 Mill 
Street  

Provide 
lighting and 
raised 
path/boardwal
k along 
Woodford Mill 
(as liable to 
flooding)  

5  

9  Walking & 
Cycling  

Footpath link 
between 
B4022 West 
End and 
A4095 Mill 
Street  

New 
bridge/new 
alignment to 
remove sharp 
turn and 
improve 
visibility  

5  

41  Walking & 
Cycling  

Footpath 
linking Hyde 
Meadow View 

Upgrade 
existing 
footpath by 
raising up, 

14  

Page 375



84 
 

and Woodford 
Mill path  

resurfacing 
and adding 
lighting. Re-
alignment and 
modifications 
to bridge also 
required.   

56  Walking & 
Cycling  

Woodgreen 
(Narrow Hill)  

Restrict 
motorised 
traffic to 
access only, 
in southbound 
direction and 
add signage 
to allow 
contra-flow 
cycling  

14  

57  Walking & 
Cycling  

Path in the 
vicinity of 
Farmers 
Close  

Widen where 
possible and 
re-align 
barriers  

52  

58  Walking  B4022 Hailey 
Road between 
Farmers 
Close and 
Taphouse 
Avenue  

New 
uncontrolled 
crossing 
closer to the 
junction  

70  

59  Walking & 
Cycling  

Footpath link 
between 
Eastfield 
Road and 
Vanner Road  

Widen cut 
through where 
possible  

70  

61  Walking  Footway 
between 
Moorland 
Road and 
Woodford 
Way  

Widen where 
possible, add 
lighting  

85  

65  Walking & 
Cycling  

B4022 
Newland, in 
vicinity of 
PROW 410/4 
entrance  

New parallel 
crossing on 
B4022 
Newland  

2  

68  Walking & 
Cycling  

Woodstock 
Road, north of 

Realign 
barriers and 
add signage 

30  

Page 376



85 
 

Blenheim 
Heights  

to warn of 
conflict. 
Barriers 
currently filter 
people cycling 
towards blind 
entrance with 
residential 
drive  

74  Walking  Moorland 
Road/Moor 
Ave junction  

Move 
uncontrolled 
junction 
further into 
Moorland 
Road crossing 
to provide 
safer crossing  

52  

82  Walking  West End, 
east of Hailey 
Road/West 
End 
roundabout  

Add chicane 
on outbound 
carriageway 
to allow for 
footway 
widening at 
the pinch 
point  

91  

88  Walking & 
Cycling  

New road 
linking Hailey 
Road and 
Woodstock 
Road (part of 
North Witney 
SDA)  

New northern 
distributor 
road. 
Proposed 
one-way cycle 
track on both 
sides of the 
carriageway, 
to be a min of 
1.8m width 
‘stepped’ 
cycle track 
(2m is 
preferable to 
enable 
overtaking). A 
2m wide 
footway each 
side is also 
proposed. 

85  

Page 377



86 
 

89  Walking & 
Cycling  

Link between 
West 
End/Hailey 
Road junction 
and Burford 
Road/Woodfor
d Way 
junction  

West End Link 
2 to include 
segregated 
walking and 
cycling routes  

52  

101  Walking & 
Cycling  

Bridge Street  Feasibility 
study under 
way 2022 with 
the aims to 
widened 
footways, 
provide 
improve 
crossings and 
cycle 
infrastructure.  

No priority 
identified  

Table 2.1 – Summary of proposed active travel measures within the LCWIP for the 
North Witney area  
 
2.10 It can be seen from Table 2.1 that there are enhancements proposed within the 
vicinity of the North Witney SDA that would improve connection to Witney centre. These 
improvements include the delivery of active infrastructure along the Northern Distributor 
Road (providing the main spine road through the eastern side of the North Witney SDA) 
as well as enhancements on the corridor of Hailey Road, and Woodstock Road. 
Moreover, many of these enhancements have been identified as a high priority in terms 
of delivery within the LCWIP.  
 
2.11 In addition, the proposals include enhancements to connections providing linkages 
over the River Windrush, which includes measures as identified across the West End 
Link Road (WEL). It is noted however that the WEL itself would introduce additional 
highway capacity that would likely serve to draw traffic into the centre of Witney. Thus, 
in this regard, it is considered that the WEL would not be in accordance with 
Oxfordshire’s D&P approach that seeks to avoid the introduction of additional road 
capacity. Moreover, it is evident that crossing of the River Windrush by active travel 
modes can effectively be delivered via Bridge Street and an existing route to the west 
between the B4022 West End and A4095 Mill Street, with both these routes also having 
been identified for enhancement within the LCWIP (i.e. as identified as item 8,9, and 
101).  
 
Summary  
 
2.12 The North Witney consortium is in agreement with the approach as identified within 
the LCWIP that seeks to prioritise enhancements to the active travel network within 

Page 378



87 
 

Witney. As discussed above this is in accordance with the D&P approach as outlined 
within the LTCP that seeks to prioritise the delivery of infrastructure for active modes 
with the provision of enhancements to highway infrastructure such as highway capacity 
(i.e. as would be provided by the WEL) discouraged.  
 
2.13 It is noted that LCWIP also provides a number of measures within North Witney in 

the vicinity of the North Witney SDA. This presents opportunity for the North Witney 

SDA to contribute to the delivery of such measures as discussed further in Section 3 

below. 

 

3.0 North Witney SDA 
  
Introduction  
 
3.1 This section outlines how the North Witney SDA could provide significant benefit by 
assisting with the delivery of some of the measures as outlined within the LCWIP 
.Further details in relation to this are set out below.  
 
North Witney SDA  
 
3.2 The proposals at North Witney SDA would deliver the Northern Distributor Road 
active travel connections as identified as item 88 of the LCWIP through the 
communities’ construction. This link would serve to not only provide an active travel link 
for the North Witney SDA itself but would also provide a useful active travel connection 
between Hailey Road and Woodstock Road via the proposed points of access at the 
North Witney SDA.  
 
3.3 It is considered that a financial contribution via the S106 process would provide the 

most appropriate mechanism to enable the North Witney SDA to assist in the delivery of 

offsite schemes that are of relevance to this proposed community. This mechanism 

would enable OCC to pool associated financial resources and enable the subsequent 

delivery across associated movement corridors linking with Witney centre such as 

Hailey Road and Woodstock Road. Thus, this strategy should enable the delivery of 

enhancement to routes in a wholistic, i.e. rather than piecemeal way, to ensure that 

routes for active users are of a consistent high standard and do not include significant 

gaps in provision that would cause a barrier to these users. 

 

3.4 The LCWIP provides the following statement in relation to sources of funding for the 
list of measures within the document:  
“The prioritised measure list in this LCWIP will support future funding bids, by guiding 
what funding should be sought and where it should be spent. This LCWIP provides an 
evidence based justification for the improvements proposed, which gives weight to the 
need for funding. Funding opportunities can arise from a variety of sources, including 

Page 379



88 
 

central government, Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership, planning obligations from 
development and internal OCC funds.”  
 
3.5 The proposals within the North Witney SDA would provide an associated avenue for 
funding that would assist in the delivery of offsite measures connecting the proposals 
with key destinations on the nearby network of North Witney. It is considered that the 
level of contribution would be dependent on the relative impact of the North Witney SDA 
when compared with existing potential demand and other development proposals. 
However, this financial contribution in tandem with other funding sources should serve 
to aid the delivery of these proposals that would provide a step change in active travel 
provision which would benefit both occupiers and visitors of the North Witney SDA as 
well as existing users of the network.  
 
3.6 The North Witney SDA proposals would also enable the delivery of significant 
infrastructure on site that would serve to encourage travel via sustainable modes. This 
could include an associated mobility hub that would include for associated cycle 
facilities and micro mobility facilities such as parking for bikes/scooters and charging 
facilities for electric bikes/scooters. Moreover the internal network of the proposals will 
be based on Manual for Streets that will seek to first and foremost ensure high quality 
connection for active modes. In addition, associated behavioural measures will be 
introduced as part of the Travel Plan that will serve to encourage travel via active 
modes.  
 
3.7 Convenient walking and cycling distances (typically defined as 2km and 5km 

respectively) are outlined in Figure 3.1 below, which shows that a large area of Witney, 

including the town centre, is conveniently accessible on foot with the whole of Witney 

also conveniently accessible by bicycle. Thus, the location of the proposals, at the North 

Witney SDA, provide opportunity for a significant number of journeys to be carried out 

by active modes. Moreover, the proposals also provide the opportunity to both 

contribute and benefit to the LCWIP strategy. 

 

Page 380



89 
 

 

 

Figure 3.1 – Details of walking and cycling isochrones from North Witney SDA  
 
Summary  
 

Page 381



90 
 

3.8 It is evident that the proposals at the North Witney SDA would be able to deliver 

active travel measures on site that are in accordance with the ethos of the LCWIP and 

include for associated proposals (i.e. the measures across the Northern Distributor 

Road). In addition, it is proposed that appropriate and proportional financial 

contributions could also be provided, through an associated S106 agreement with OCC, 

in relation to relevant offsite infrastructure within the LCWIP. This financial contribution, 

in tandem with other funding sources, should serve to aid the delivery of these 

proposals that would provide a step change in active travel provision which would 

benefit both the occupiers of the North Witney SDA and existing users of the network. 

 

4.0 Summary and Conclusions  
 
4.1 The North Witney Consortium is in agreement with the proposed vision of the 
LCWIP proposals that seeks to enhance active travel connections within Witney. This 
strategy is in accordance with the D&P approach as outlined within the LTCP that seeks 
to enhance the network for active travel modes as a priority as opposed to the delivery 
of additional highway capacity (i.e. such as the WEL) which should be discouraged.  
 
4.2 The North Witney SDA provides opportunity for both on site delivery of active travel 

measures in combination with assistance for offsite measures through appropriate 

targeted and proportional S106 contributions. Thus, the North Witney SDA would assist 

the LCWIP in providing a step change in active travel provision which would benefit both 

the occupiers of the North Witney SDA and existing users of the network.” 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 382



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected:  Grove & Wantage 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT – 23 MARCH 
2023   

 
WANTAGE: MARKET PLACE (WESTERN END) – PROPOSED 
PERMANENT PROHIBITION OF VEHICLES & REMOVAL OF 

PARKING PLACES 
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the permanent prohibition of vehicles and removal of parking places 
from the western end of the Market Place, continuing to utilise temporary 

planters and barriers, pending technical approval by the County Council of 
Wantage Town Council’s consultant’s permanent scheme design and 

subsequent construction works. 
 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. This report presents responses received to a consultation on an Experimental 
Traffic Regulation Order which came into effect on 03 January 2022 that 
continued on an experimental basis the provisions of a Covid related 

Temporary Traffic Regulation Order which suspended waiting & parking places 
(disabled persons’ parking places, general time limited parking places and 

motorcycle parking places) at the western end of Market Place, the southern 
end of Alfred Street, and the northern end of Church Street in Wantage. The 
Order also prohibited the use of these parts of the above roads by all vehicles. 
 

3. The aim of the Wantage Town Council promoted scheme is to provide outdoor 

seating and an environmental improvement for the benefit of pedestrians, 
including customers of adjacent businesses. The temporary closure has been 
implemented with planters and barriers. A draft Plan of the permanent scheme 
has been included at Annex 1 for context. 

 

 

Financial Implications  
 

4. Funding for the proposal, including consultation and permanent implementation 
if approved will be met by Wantage Town Council. 

 
 
 

 

Page 383

Agenda Item 6



            

     
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

5. Objections and concerns have been received that relate to the loss of parking 

and access to the western end of the Market Place for the elderly and infirm. 
Also, a concern has been received from an adjacent business who have elderly 
patients that need to be picked up and dropped off for their appointments. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

6. The proposal reallocates road space to provide outdoor seating and an 

environmental improvement for the benefits of pedestrians, including customers 
of the adjacent businesses. Prohibiting vehicles from the western end of the 

Market Place removes vehicle / pedestrian conflict, therefore improving road 
safety. 

 

 

Formal consultation  
 

7. Formal consultation was carried out between 03 January 2022 and 01 July 
2022. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper on the 23 

December 2021, and an email sent to statutory consultees, including Thames 
Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 

countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 
Horse District Council, and the local County Councillors representing the Grove 
& Wantage divisions. Street notices were also placed on site in the immediate 

vicinity of the proposals. 
 

8. 193 responses were received during the statutory consultation, comprising of: 
43 (22%) objections, 44 (23%) raising concerns, 102 (53%) in support, and four 
submitting a non-objection / no opinion. 

 
9. The responses are shown at Annex 2, and copies of the original responses are 

available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections / concerns  
 

10. Thames Valley Police & Oxford Bus Company raised no objections to the 
proposals. 

 
11. 43 objections and 44 concerns were received from members of the public, 

broadly relating to seven main issues. These are, loss of parking / access, loss 

of disabled persons’ parking places (DPPP), loss of taxi rank spaces, 
detrimental effect on adjacent businesses including deliveries, lack of use of 

the pedestrian space, negative effect of traffic changes, and people shopping 
elsewhere. Responses to these issues are listed below. 
 

Page 384



            

     
 

12. Loss of parking / access – eight parking spaces have been removed by the 

experimental Order. Wantage Town Council have stated that there are 
adequate alternative parking options within a short walk from the closed area. 

These are the Town Council’s own car parks by the statue in the Market Square 
which accommodate 34 vehicles, and the on / off street car parking around the 
town centre which provides a further 787 spaces. They do not consider the loss 

of spaces to be significant in the total number of spaces available. 
 

13. The temporary and experimental Order has been in place for two years and 
eight months. Wantage Town Council state that no major issues have arisen 
regarding lack of access. There is a pull in area off Church Street that enables 

vehicles to get within a very short distance of the few premises requiring front 
access. Others have access to the rear. The Market Square car parking is in 

close proximity. It should be noted that after the consultation, the Barclays Bank 
was closed, and the cashpoint removed which was a significant attractor for 
vehicles visiting. 

 
14. Loss of disabled persons’ parking places (DPPP) – due to the large number of 

objections and concerns received on this issue Wantage Town Council have 
agreed to retain the two existing DPPP at the western end of the Market Place. 
Also, the Town Council has recently created two further DPPP within the Market 

Square car park. 
 

15. Loss of taxi rank spaces - the changes do involve the reduction of the taxi rank 

from seven to four spaces. Wantage Town Council state that the use of the rank 
has diminished in recent years due to customers calling taxis by mobile 

telephones. There is the possibility of locating three taxi rank spaces to 
Newbury Street, if it is found necessary, but currently this would appear not to 
be required. 

 
16. Detrimental effect on adjacent businesses including deliveries – the responses 

highlighted are mixed with some hospitality businesses elsewhere in the town 
complaining that they were disadvantaged because they were unable to place 
tables and seating on the highway. Wantage Town Council state that there is 

no evidence that businesses have been significantly adversely affected. The 
only business close to the area that has closed is Barclays Bank, which was 

not to do with the pedestrianisation. An empty shop within the closed area has 
recently been occupied. 
 

17. Regarding deliveries, Wantage Town Council state that the licensed properties 
in the western end of the Market Place can be, and normally are, accessed from 

the rear in Church Street. They also point out that there is a pull in from Church 
Street by The Swan Public House that is also available for deliveries. 
 

18. Lack of use of the pedestrian space – Wantage Town Council state that the 
pedestrian space has proved popular, which is why it has been supported by 

102 respondents. The tables and chairs that are on the public highway are well 
used and create a pleasant environment away from the traffic. 
 

Page 385



            

     
 

19. Negative effect of traffic changes – this issue relates to changing Alfred Street 

and Church Street (side) from one-way roads to two-way roads because of 
closing the western end of the Market Place. These roads are narrow, with 

reduced visibility at their respective junctions with Mill Street and Church Street 
(main). However, vehicle movements are minimal and in the two years and 
eight months that the closure has been in place, these roads appear to have 

been operating satisfactorily as two-way, with no complaints being received by 
the County Council’s Traffic & Road Safety Team. 

 
20. Notwithstanding the above, changing Alfred Street and Church Street (side) to 

two-way roads forms part of Wantage Town Council’s consultant’s permanent 

scheme design which is subject to road safety audit, and technical approval by 
the County Council. 

 
21. People shopping elsewhere – Wantage Town Council state that Wantage 

cannot offer the variety of shopping opportunities offered elsewhere and 

therefore undoubtedly residents are attracted to shop elsewhere for certain 
items. The pedestrianisation of the western end of the Market Place is unlikely 

to dissuade visitors to the town and may in fact be an attractor. Our Town 
Centre Manager monitors the situation regarding empty shops in the town and 
currently none are empty due to local trading conditions. Some are under offer 

awaiting completion. Others are affected by specific issues relating to the 
premises. The car parks in the town get reasonably full and the weekly markets 
are thriving. The high cost of fuel is a disincentive to shopping elsewhere. 

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Draft Plan of permanent scheme 
Annex 2: Consultation responses 

   
  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle  07920 591545 
    Lee Turner  07917 072678 

     
March 2023 
 

 
  

Page 386



          

  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 387



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT  COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

No objection 

(2) Oxford Bus Company No objection 

(3) As an individual, 
(Grove, Catmore close) 

 
Object - Increase of carbon emissions. 

The cutting off of access to the square from 2 roads,increases traffic congestion in the surrounding roads. 
To get from Church street to Waitrose requires a 2 mile detour down Locks lane,Ickleton road,through traffic 
lights,Priory road,Wallingford st and more. 
Also at a time when lots of business are struggling,why does 1 business (Marmalade) get to put tables and chairs 
outside there Cafe,when other business don't. 
 

(4) As an individual, 
(Grove, Farmstead Close) 

 
Object - The plan seems to be simply to improve trade for catering businesses.  This improvement can only be in 

good weather.  Therefore in bad weather the town centre will have lots of empty space. 
 

(5) As an individual, 
(Grove, Membury Way) 

 
Object - You are taking away disabled parking and not thinking of disabled or elderly people. 

 

(6) As an individual, 
(Grove, North Drive) 

 
Object - As a disabled person the experiment will affect me by the loss of disabled parking spaces at that end of town 

and in town as a whole when we already have so few. When you're unable to walk very far it makes a huge difference 
!! 
 

(7) As an individual, 
(Grove, Oxford lane) 

 
Object - Need to keep disabled access parking there 
 

P
age 388



                 
 

(8) As an individual, 
(Grove, St Ives) 

 
Object - The proposal does not work well for Wantage in its present state. The only real benificery is the owner of the 

marmalade cafe [I happen to like Nick the owner], the other businesses in this area as well as all the rate paying 
businesses in the town and the taxi drivers are being disadvantaged by the continuation of the scheme. 
The funeral directors are only able to offer a limited service for the dead without the traditional slow walk around the 
square for those deserving of the honour this is due to the closure of the road through into the town centre. 
The market is being fractured by those stall owners setting out in the proposed pedestrianised area.  
I would like to think that those of the same opinion as myself will be taken into account but i suspect this survey is 
merely a box ticking exercise and that the proposal is already a "done deal". 
 

(9) As an individual, 
(Grove, St Ives Road) 

 
Object - I am disabled and as such cannot walk far at all.  What is being proposed will effectively stop all bar three 

disabled people/vehicles from being in town at any one time.  What would the planners do, I wonder, if only three able 
bodied people could bring their cars into town at the same time? 
 

(10) Rather not say, 
(Grove, Station road) 

 
Object - Apart from helping marmalade it is total disregard for all other businesses and has caused chaos with the 

restrictions of the one way streets. 
 

(11) As an individual, 
(Grove, Westbrook) 

 
Object - The plan on paper seems alright but doing away with two disabled parking by Barclays Bank but keeping the 

Taxi’s there is totally unfair. 
1 There’s not enough disabled parking in the square as it is and half the time they’re used by people "just popping in", 
just dropping off or just plain lazy 
Answer: Make all  of remaining car spaces in the square to disabled  
Or are all car going spaces  
2 Able people can walk any distance for a taxi,  
Answer: make a new taxi rank to where cars park along the road called little lane. 
It would be nice to see a drawing plan as what I may have written is no good for an argument. 
 

(12) As a business, 
(Grove, DeVitre Place) 

 
Object - As a taxi driver our rank has been almost totally removed, before lockdown we had 7 spaces on the rank . 

Now we are told we have 7 but lucky to get 3 or 4 cars on the rank. It’s used by delivery vehicles not even parked well. 
Also the general public park there to visit the local shops. The council did put signs up but they are useless no one 
adheres to them. The police can’t enforce them because they are not legitimate Highway Code signs. Have 

P
age 389



                 
 

complained to the council rep nothing is done. Also due to this layout we have to reverse to get on the rank which is 
dangerous as pedestrians and cyclists go through this area it’s a a miracle no one has been injured. 
 

(13) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Adkin way) 

 
Object - My husband has MS and finds it incredibly difficult to walk. Removing the disabled spaces around the market 

square makes it near impossible for him to access certain areas e.g bank, cafe, shops. It is just too far to walk for 
people with certain disabilities.  The reason they are given Blue Badges is so that can be part of and use the facilities 
of the community. By restricting access you are pushing these people away from the very town they want to be part of. 
It is hard enough to live with disabilities why is the council considering making it even harder? 
 

(14) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Badgers Drive) 

 
Object - I havent seen anything regarding the bus stops. What will happen to them? In general, i don't like the idea of 

restrictions broader than the ones on right now. 
 

(15) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Badgers Drive) 

 
Object - I don't see problems associated with traffic around the market place today. In addition to it, the market place 
is a central point of access to other roads around Wantage. Consequences of restricting access would be troublesome 
for well established routes. 
 

(16) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Belmont) 

 
Object - As much as I love the pedestrianised area as it exists I would NOT like it extended to remove the 2 disabled 
parking spaces outside Barclays Bank. It is the nearest elderly, disabled people such as myself can park to take my 
husband who has Alzheimer’s to the dementia day centre behind the church. I am not the only disabled person who 
needs that space. Please consider we have already lost a number of disabled parking spaces in the market square 
and now you want to remove 2 more! Please do NOT do it. 
 

(17) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Blackthorn 
Road) 

 
Object - Restriction of access to businesses. Loss of parking leading to taxi drivers taking over the area. Unfair to 

businesses away from that area where a sudden new outdoor dining area was created. Space taken was too large. 
 

(18) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Chain Hill) 

 
Object - I strongly object to the loss of the disabled bays outside Barclays Bank.  There has been a steady erosion of 

disabled spaces in the Marketplace, which began with the 4 spaces outside the Nationwide and the Mind Charity 
shop.  This Experimental Traffic Order will now continue the loss of two more vital disabled spaces.  It is not 
acceptable to try to replace these disabled spaces with provision elsewhere as has happened with the establishment 

P
age 390



                 
 

of spaces in Newbury Street.  The spaces are prohibitively (for disabled people) far away.  What might seem like a 
short distance for an able-bodied person is not for a disabled person. 
 

(19) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton 
Village Road) 

 
Object - The majority of our journeys into the town centre are done on foot. However, when we occasionally have a 

purpose to drive into town, for example, a collection from the sorting office, using a cash machine, collecting a take-
away, we’ve noticed that the town seems very much against the motorist. In years gone by, it was very convenient to 
be able to park in the square, or drop someone off in the west end of the town centre. We’ve noticed confusion and 
gridlock around the square from non-sensical signage, and have been discouraged from meeting friends or 
recommending visiting the town centre due to the inconsistencies of parking provisions, length of stay and charging. 
The town centre square, in our opinion, used to work better for passing trade when there were less restrictions. 
Experience in European towns and cities has demonstrated to us that people are far more likely to spend time and 
money using local services when the motorist isn’t penalised or prohibited from parking. In most French towns we 
visit, parking in a central square, the hub of a community, is encouraged, and means we don’t hesitate to venture 
further afield. Maybe it’s an attitude thing - I’m not sure why we’re so centred on finalising access and restrictions, 
rather than taking a deep breath and saying something isn’t ideal, but change isn’t always for the best… 
 

(20) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Coates Close) 

 
Object - This proposal will effect the business and our daily life in the town. Wantage has limited shops and it is 

essential that we have right to access these shops with our vehicles. The current active system allows us to stop by 
and conduct quick purchase. If the proposal plan implemented, we will be forced to park our cars to supermarkets 
parking areas. Also, Wantage has limited parking space and your proposal will force people to go and shop in other 
towns. 
 

(21) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Collinsmith 
Drive) 

 
Object - Restricting cars will kill the town centre. 

 

(22) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Foliat Close) 

 
Object - I used to drop my very old and infirm mother and father in that area to access the bank and other shops in 

that area. They have not been able to make these visits since the pedestrianisation. 
 

(23) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Goodlake ave) 

 
Object - Small town no need for anymore traffic 
 

P
age 391



                 
 

(24) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Grove Road) 

 
Object - I am a carer for a disabled partner 

 

(25) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Haywards 
Close) 

 
Object - This will restrict disabled parking to the east end of the Market Place ( Newbury Street). Disabled persons 

may not be capable of walking to the west end of the square to use the retail and banking facilities. Why should 
priority be given to taxi ranks? The only business to benefit are the cafes. One bar has already closed and we await to 
see what retail unit replaces it. In addition the conversion of the upper floors of the building into residential flats with no 
car parking presents another problem. The idea that new residents will rely on public transport and not own cars is not 
accepting the realities of modern life. Return the market place back into its original state. 
 

(26) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Larkhill) 

 
Object - There is not enough parking in Wantage as it is, even with The Beacon parking there is not enough, lots 

taken away with electric charging point and Sainsburys Waitrose etc limit time. If you want people to visit the town to 
do their shopping, socialising it would be catastrophic to pedestrianise more of the town.  With business rates being 
increased a lack of passing trade due to no parking facilities will kill off what is left. 
Also where would disabled parking go?   The buses queue round the town now to park up taking up spaces outside 
Nationwide. 
If you had more parking then closing off the town to traffic wouldn't be a problem but with more new houses being 
agreed to be built no one goes into the town as it is too much of a problem to get anywhere. People like easy quick 
access and you are not providing this. 
If you were to do your research you would find probably 80% or more of local Wantage / Grove and surrounding 
villages go to other towns to do their shopping as Wantage has nothing to offer.  
Those benefitting from the town being closed off and being able to have outside seating etc will also agrivate other 
businesses that cannot offer this service, just like in lock down when 30 Something and Marmalade were allowed 
outside seating yet others couldn't i.e The Blue Boar, Cafe down Wallingford Street etc. 
You need to listen to the folk that live here not just what a few locals want as they practically live in the town centre 
anyway so wouldn't need a car to travel there anyway.  
More congestion for surrounding roads causing more traffic jams !! 
 

(27) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Larkhill) 

 
Object - I have serious concerns about the removal of disabled parking especially outside of amenities such as the 

bank. This will completely prevent my father from accessing the town centre, and the bank, unless he is accompanied. 
As I work full time and the bank is not open when I am not at work he would effectively be unable to be independent. I 
would question if removing all disabled parking is actually discrimination. It is a lovely thought to have people sitting 

P
age 392



                 
 

outside local businesses enjoying food and drink but money needs to be injected into the local infrastructure before 
that becomes a reality. Increased housing, increased anti-social behaviour, no school spaces (forcing schools over 
numbers), loss of shops...I would imagine that needs some thought before we get excited about how amazing it will be 
if cars cannot access the main part of town. 
 

(28) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Lydsee Gate) 

 
Object - No to closing of parking bays for disabled 

 

(29) As a business, 
(Wantage, Market place) 

 
Object - Only favours certain businesses and Taxi rank constantly used by members of public to park in. A lot of the 

area is wasted space and not used 
 

(30) As part of a 
group/organisation, 
(Wantage, Market Place) 

 
Object - We do like the idea of pedestrian only areas but we feel the need for a Blue Badge bay around the site of 

Barclays Bank. VCI have a number of volunteers and clients that are disabled and cannot walk the length of the Town. 
 

(31) As a business, 
(Wantage, Market place) 

 
Object - Only supports certain businesses while the rest are forgotten about. Giving them extra trading space free of 

charge while others can’t even put tables outside, fully object, also lost half of the taxi rank that they have to pay to 
use, same old wantage town council 
 

(32) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Meadow 
Close) 

 
Object - There are very few disabled spaces in the town without losing another two, and when non disabled drivers 

park in the ones that are available, without any recourse. Having disabled spaces in Newbury street is out of the way 
from many shops. Having those spaces makes a huge difference to disabled people 
 

(33) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Mill Street) 

 
Object - I am a Blue Disabled parking Badge user who relies very heavy on her car to get around. I have concerns 

about the removal of these disabled parking bays in the marketplace for this reason.  This would be a particular 
problem for me personally when I would like to make purchases from the market, ie. heavy bags, as the alternative 
parking is too far for me to walk back to my vehicle.  At times the availability of disabled and non-disabled parking is 
already limited and I have been known to have to go back home without doing any shopping  at all as there was 
nowhere for me to park. Therefore if these further restrictions are put in place it would be very likely that I would no 
longer use the market for my fruit and vegetables and possibly other purchases from the marketplace. I feel very 
strongly about making the most of our market and independent business' therefore I feel it is very unfair that disabled 

P
age 393



                 
 

people should be excluded due to a lack of suitable parking. Please can you confirm whether or not disabled parking 
will be made available in other areas close to the marketplace?  I also have concerns about the increase in traffic and 
traffic noise on Mill Street where I live. 
 

(34) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Newbury St) 

 
Object - Reduction of disabled parking spaces in the centre. Wantage has more than its fair share of disabled 
(national average some 10%) which includes me - I cannot walk - and this significantly hampers my ability to access 
the centre.  
Why should the pubs cafes etc be given (presumably) free extra seating at the cost of the council and taxpayer ? If 
they want to expand they should buy real estate and pay to configure it like everyone else. 
The proposal creates a dead end in Market Place big enough for one car between Sylheti Spice and a jewellers. If 
persisting with this scheme at least turn that into a disabled bay. Also look for ways to add disabled bays to The 
Cloisters without reducing access. Furthermore, the pedestrian patch between the sorting office, hair boutique and 
Vale community impact is used only for pedestrian access. Why that ready space has not been improved for leisure 
and pleasure instead is beyond me. If you are not prepared to do that, then find a way to turn it into a few disabled 
parking paces with roadway access around Barclays Bank. 
 

(35) As an individual, 
(Wantage, North Drive) 

 
Object - As someone that is disabled ( not that I look it ) I feel it would discriminate against disabled people. There is 

not much in Wantage now and I think pedestrianising one end will stop people coming here 
 

(36) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Roman way) 

 
Object - We have few facilities, restricting the traffic in the town center will kill it further. We have little parking, and the 
centre of town will just be left to rot and drinking. We have 1000s of new houses and people, no infrastructure, no 
proper cycle ways or footpaths, little outdoor facilities, look at Didcot, lots of open sandy paths to walk, outdoor 
exercise equipment,  open facilities we have nothing except an old no longer fit for purpose leisure centre which you 
have to pay for. 
 

(37) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Tanners Row) 

 
Object - It has brought no benefit to the town. The space isn't being used. It's increased parking issues as 4 spaces 

are now gone. 
 

(38) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Trinder road) 

 

P
age 394



                 
 

Object - The road that has been cornered off for a while now never seems busy at all. It seems a waste of space 
would be much better to be able to have a bigger taxi rank with the disabled car parking back or even more car 
parking spaces. This town is in desperate need of them. 
 

(39) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton park) 

 
Object - I don’t agree with tables and chairs being put in the road. If people can’t drive freely around the town they will 
go somewhere else to shop . I feel if this current experiment is seen as successful then it may expand to half the 
market place as previously suggested. I think that would any chance having a successful business in the market 
place. Just look at the lack of retail shops now 
 

(40) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Haywards 
close) 

 
Object - Unfair to other businesses in the town. One has already closed/moved since closure was implemented. 

 

(41) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Kent Mews) 

 
Object - Lack of access and parking 

 

(42) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Priory Orchard) 

 
Object - It restricts a historic part of Wantage that for years has had access and helped the general flow of the town 

for the benefit of a few specific businesses and to the detriment of other businesses. Wantage functioned perfectly fine 
for decades without this restriction  and allowing it will clog up the arteries of the centre of town even for more for no 
overall benefit 
 

(43) As an individual, 
(Bath, John St) 

 
Object - I like the idea of more pedestrian space (we have lots in Bath), but why should two or three businesses 

benefit to the detrement of others not so lucky as to be given free open space outside their front door? 
 

(44) As an individual, 
(Brightwalton, Berkshire, 
Spray Lane) 

 
Object - Wantage is my nearest town. I frequently shop there, attend events, restaurants, and pubs. I have quite a few 

friends who live there. I have known and loved this well preserved market town for almost 60 yrs. I am now aged 79, 
live by myself, and am applying for a disabled badge, due to severe osteo-arthritis in both my knees (you are aware 
that any operation which might be approved will at the moment be delayed by at least 3 yrs, and they only do one 
knee at a time). But recently I already find it more difficult to visit the town. The main car park has had the free time 
reduced from 2 to 1 hour, the number of places reduced by installing charging spaces, and more double yellow lines 
added on peripheral roads. There are no bus services from where I live, 6 miles away, just because of "county lines" ! 
(There is only one bus a day too and from Newbury). So I rely on my small 2-seat car. I am still an active and 

P
age 395



                 
 

intelligent man, and enjoy the occasional visit to Oxford, to attend public lectures at the University, and visit museums, 
concerts, and restaurants. To do this, I need to drive to Wantage, park my vehicle, and catch the bus. The same thing 
happens when I have to attend the John Radcliffe Hospital in Oxford, which I have had to do several times, and my 
next visit is scheduled for July. But recently there are less and less parking places, including those for the disabled. 
There is no reason at all to make the west end of the Market Place pedestrian only; there are adequate controlled 
crossing points for pedestrians, and the parking places (in particular for those disabled) are essential. And the narrow 
pavements in Wantage are unsuitable for tables (except perhaps in the area behind the bus stops). Pavements are 
intended for pedestrians, not for commerce, and the weather in this country is not (yet) comparable with that of the 
Mediterranean countries ! I understand that (traditionally) the square has to be closed for the market; but that does not 
mean the Council has the right to impose any more restrictions on the general populace. Whom exactly are these 
changes designed to help? Certainly not me. 
 

(45) As an individual, 
(Childrey, Lawrence 
Close) 

 
Object - I do not think that you should get rid of the disabled bays outside Barclays bank they are essential for people 

with access needs and their rights need to be supported. Make the taxi rank smaller and keep.the disabled bays 
 

(46) As an individual, 
(East Challow, Hedge Hill 
Road) 

 
Concerns - My only issue is the impact it will have on those with disabilities being able to make the most of shopping 
and general access to the area. 
 

(47) As an individual, 
(Grove, Meadow Cl) 

 
Concerns - 1. The area that has been set aside is too large. It benefits the cafe owners only in the near vicinity which 

is not fair to the other cafe owners such as the museum ( & will stop/deter people shopping in the market place. I am 
one of these. I used to regularly visit Barclays bank then maybe call into another shop. Now parking is so bad for short 
visits I very rarely use the market place.  
2. Because elderly & disabled people need more access/parking not less to the market square. There are too many 
large work vans at break/lunchtimes that fill the spaces and non-blue badge holders park in disabled bays because 
there isn’t enough parking in the town for people wanting a quick  visit to a shop. My elderly uncle can’t manage to 
walk from the public car parks (Beacon, Sainsburys, etc) and as there aren’t often blue badge bays available,  my 
mum drops him in town then has to keep driving around until he is ready to be picked up.  
3. Not being able to use the little cut through road by the church/Swan is a pain in the proverbial when you have 
visited somewhere down Church street & need to get back into town that you have to go around the one way system 
of Priory Rd.  

P
age 396



                 
 

4. The fact that there are always cars, vans & trucks parked on the double yellow lines shows that drivers will still park 
in the town making the whole place even more congested & dangerous therefore reducing the parking spaces has 
increased the problem. 
 

(48) As an individual, 
(Grove, Meadow close) 

 
Concerns - Disabled parking 
 

(49) As an individual, 
(Grove, Vale Avenue) 

 
Concerns - In general i support it as it's a good community space, but I'm concerned about the loss of disabled 

parking spaces. These need to still be by barclays bank to ensure disabled people can access that area. 
 

(50) As an individual, 
(Grove, Woodhill) 

 
Concerns - The issue I have is that at certain times of the day the alternative roads to get through/around Wantage 

are inaccessible (school pickup. Buses park outside centre site all on one side of the main road making th road 
unusable as they stretch hundreds of yards so you can't get past. So traffic goes through the town. Now all that traffic 
will have to through the traffic lights at A338 and Harcourt road causing massive queues. 
So it will still be quicker going through town. 
Sort out the buses, stop them blocking the road up and then stop vehicles in town, otherwise it won't work 
 

(51) As an individual, 
(Grove, Woodhill Drive) 

 
Concerns - I do not like to see more and more roads closed to car users with no replacement 
 

(52) As an individual, 
(Letcombe Regis, Anvil 
Lane) 

 
Concerns - The disabled parking spaces need to remain outside Barclay's Bank. There are services at this end of the 

market place disabled people need to access - optician, bank, post, advice centre as well as pub, cafe etc.  
Some disabled parking spaces have been moved out of the market place in favour of a bus stop. To have a blue 
badge. this means a person has significant restricted mobility.  It should be possible to have part of the space for 
pedestrians but still keep the disabled parking at this end of Wantage Market Place. 
 

(53) As an individual, 
(Letcombe Regis, Anvil 
Paddock) 

 
Concerns - Disabled parking spaces have been removed  Half the disabled parking spaces at the other end if Market 

Place also gone. This is very difficult for the disabled. 
 

P
age 397



                 
 

(54) As an individual, 
(Stanford in the Vale, Van 
Diemans) 

 
Concerns - I am objecting because prior to covid this area worked very well for taxi and car parking - I can see no 

reason why this should not be returned as it was normally.  I am also concerned that there was some talk about 
further pedestrianisation around the market square which is not needed and I feel that if the closure is continued then 
further restrictions may be made later which again are not needed as Wantage is a small market town.  It will drive 
people away to shop elsewhere if this happens. 
 

(55) As an individual, 
(Stanford in the Vale, 
Horsecroft) 

 
Concerns - I like the idea of the scheme but am very concerned, as a disabled driver, that the disabled parking 

spaces are being removed.  There are very few disabled parking spaces in the town centre and I think this will be a 
disaster to this group of drivers.  We need and expect the councils help in allowing our independence and social 
needs of these spaces is integral to our involvement in life.  Please do not remove these disabled parking spaces. 
 

(56) As an individual, 
(Wantage, A417) 

 
Concerns - It seems to be very good for 2-3 businesses who can expand their premises to use public space but 

doesn't actually give much space to the wider community. 
 

(57) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Adkin Way) 

 
Concerns - I am disabled and with so few disabled parking space on the Market square anyway, the loss of these will 

negatively impact me and other disabled people. 
 

(58) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Chapel close) 

 
Concerns - I am concerned about the removal of disabled parking spaces from Market Place 

 

(59) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton 
Village Road) 

 
Concerns - To facilitate cycling, the arrangements should permit cycle (in either direction) along Alfred Street, the 

Western end of Market Place and Church Street.  This would provide a good route for cyclists travelling from Grove 
the northern end of Wantage, via Mill Street, via Priory Road to KAs, keeping some of this traffic away from the main 
Market Place and busier roads (Wallingford St, Ormond Road). 
 

(60) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton 
village road) 

 
Concerns - Great concern that the number of disabled parking spaces will be reduced in the centre making it 

inaccessible for many of our patients with mobility issues (local Physiotherapy practice). 
 

P
age 398



                 
 

(61) As a business, 
(Wantage, Church Street) 

 
Concerns - Looks shabby and unfair to many businesses 

 

(62) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Coates close) 

 
Concerns - Leave Market place as it was and stop messing around with it. Businesses will be affected and leave, and 

it worked just fine before. Are you determined to destroy every town centre? It isn’t bad enough you’ve screwed up the 
2 hours parking? 
 

(63) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Courtenay Rd) 

 
Concerns - Generally supportive, but I have concerns about the reduction in disabled parking. For people with limited 

mobility having to walk from one end of the market square to the other in order to reach a particular shop/bank is 
difficult. Having disabled parking in several locations around the market square means they can use the closest 
parking space to their destination. 
 

(64) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Courtenay 
Road) 

 
Concerns - It concerns me that the number of disabled parking spaces is being further reduced in the market square. 
Whilst I am broadly supportive of teaffic reduction measures, they must not be made to the detriment of those with 
additional mobility needs. 
 

(65) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Denchworth 
Rd) 

 
Concerns - Whilst I like the pedestrian /taxi rank area at that end of the market place, I am very concerned for 
disabled car users.    If they park outside the old HSBC bank, they are not able to get out quickly enough.    I would 
prefer the disabled car park to stay outside Barclays Bank, and just slightly reduce the area for taxis. 
 

(66) As an individual, 
(Wantage, De-Vitre Place) 

 
Concerns - I worry it would discourage people from using marketplace businesses and amenities due to the lack of 

parking facilities in the surrounding area. 
 

(67) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Elder Way) 

 
Concerns - I like the way things are, not sure why we need to change it. 
 

(68) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Ham Road) 

 
Concerns - It should be only April to September 

 

P
age 399



                 
 

(69) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Larkdown) 

 
Concerns - I am very concerned about the loss of the disabled parking bays in creating this pedestrianised area. It is 

far too far for disabled people to get to that part of town from the other disabled parking spaces and I seriously hope 
you will reconsider this position. Maybe the taxi rank could be moved somewhere else? 
 

(70) As a business, 
(Wantage, Market Place) 

 
Concerns - I am a business in the affected area (Dolphin Gallery), and the loss of parking access has cost me a lot of 

business. I support the hospitality use of the square, however the rest is rarely used and its loss of parking 
significantly affects business prospects in Market Place. So very little useage, no benefit, and cost to local business. 
You cannot cut businesses off from their customers and suppliers. What is more you have not published any 
proposals. I support partial pedestrianisation for the cafe and bars who utilise, however the pedestrianisation should 
end there. Wantage Town Council do noy use the rest of the space effectively enough, and could always close it for 
one off events such as markets. It does not require permanent closure (apart from the cafe useage). 
 

(71) As a business, 
(Wantage, Market Place 
(West End)) 

 
Concerns - We are wondering if the short length of road between the Cloisters and the West end of the Market Place 

will be levelled as the current raised pavement on each side causes disabled 'scooters' and people with prams 
considerable difficulty in passing the large raised flower bed that stops vehicle access. 
We also would like to know if the pedestrian area will remain as large as it is currently. I gather from other businesses 
here that when recent activities have been staged in the square, this area has not been used at all which would seem 
to be a waste, especially if businesses open in order to try to benefit from such activities. Perhaps a smaller area 
would be better but still roomy enough for the Marmalade Cafe and bar while allowing an open space for stalls or an 
entertainment area. 
Thirdly, and finally, it is important that businesses, and indeed customers, are able to have delivered and deliver 
sometimes quite large items, so easy and short access is essential. A smaller pedestrian area would mean more room 
for the Taxis and the disabled parking, but also some space for deliveries and pick ups. 
 

(72) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Mary Shunn 
Way) 

 
Concerns - Looking at the age profile of many of the people I see around Wantage and the number of mobility 

scooters, walking sticks etc I am concerned that accessibility to the town's facilities will be made more difficult. My 
husband has been advised to apply for a blue badge as he has mobility issues and as I am over 70 no doubt my 
mobility will decrease over time. Many of the cars parked in the Market Place display blue badges so there is 
obviously a need for many people. 
 

P
age 400



                 
 

(73) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Membury Way, 
Grove) 

 
Concerns - I support the pedestrianization of the West End BUT it is imperative that the disabled parking spaces must 

be protected. 
 

(74) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Priory Orchard) 

 
Concerns - With the building work and scaffolding currently in place, it does not provide the best conditions for 
assessing the experiment.  The inconsiderate Parking  of cars at the junction of Church Street, the Cloisters and 
Market Place and the footpath from SS Peter & Paul's Church needs to be prohibited. 
 

(75) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Priory rd) 

 
Concerns - Parking provisions for the new apartments under construction next to King Alfred’s pub 
 

(76) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Rolls Court) 

 
Concerns - My concern is that reduced access to parking in particular for disabled visitors will have a detrimental 

impact on their ability to visit and access the town centre. 
 

(77) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Smiths Wharf) 

 
Concerns - Disabled parking and taxi rank always seems to have "others" parked they. In general no respect for 

parking restrictions. 
 

(78) As an individual, 
(Wantage, The Cloisters) 

 
Concerns - My wife and I live to the North of the temporary closure to the Market Square. The properties here are 

occupied by the Vicarage of SS Peter and Paul, the Delivery access to the King Alfred’s Head, The October Club, 
which caters for people needing dementia day care,  and six private dwellings, three of which are occupied by 
householders over 70.  Once the new flats at 30 Market Place are occupied, the utilities access to theses properties 
will add to the traffic. In addition, the Vicarage has been unoccupied most of the time the temporary arrangements 
have been in place, so a normally high traffic flow to the Vicarage has not been tested. 
The current temporary arrangements cause significantly more access problems than the previous circulatory route. 
Arriving vehicles often have to back all the way out of The Cloisters onto Church Street (by the museum) to allow 
vehicles to exit, whereas these vehicles would previously have exited via the market square.  Parking on the Keep 
Clear area outside of the museum at the top of The Cloisters is at best sporadically enforced, and cars are often 
parked in this area, even in the evening when other parts of Church Street are legally available. This has a two-fold 
effect. The first is an inconvenience, the second potentially lethal. First, it can be difficult to turn out of The Cloisters 
with anything larger than a small car; and Second, vehicles driving West along Church Street towards Priory Road are 

P
age 401



                 
 

forced to the right-hand side of the road to pass the parked cars. It is almost inevitable that at some stage one of these 
vehicles will collide at quite high speed with a vehicle nosing out, or reversing out, of the Cloisters. 
I appreciate the transformative effect the closure has had on the market square, but it is imperative that the safety 
issues at the junction by the museum are addressed, possibly by a change of traffic priorities, and certainly by 
rigorous enforcement of the parking restrictions. 
 

(79) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Truelocks 
Way) 

 
Concerns - I am concerned re the lack of parking in the square. Particularly for elderly people who struggle to walk 

from a car park but don’t have blue badges. Plus the footfall to the shops!  
 

(80) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Upthorpe 
Drive) 

 
Concerns - Reduction in disabled parking as a result of this 

 

(81) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Blackcroft) 

 
Concerns - I am concerned about the lack of disabled parking in the market place. While I don't mind the pedestrian 

area it is very hard for disabled people in Wantage to get access to the market place. There needs to be a way to 
provide more parking for disabled. It is very difficult to park sometimes I have had to give up and not shop. It would be 
good if disabled could also get to access the new outdoor facilities provided. It seems very unfair to only cater for the 
able bodied and taxis. 
 

(82) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Chain Hill) 

 
Concerns - '- the reduction in accessible disabled bays means already some members of the Wantage community will 

no longer be able to access the facilities of the market square.  Disabled bays need to be closer to the facilities to be 
of use to the intended user 
_ the current “pedestrian area” isn’t really that pleasant an area in which to sit due to the high volume of taxis close by 
- overcrowding of traffic on one side of the market square and too many buses - pollution concerns with stationary 
buses and the potential for an increase in stationary traffic 
- pedestrian risk with too much traffic on one side 
- limited access for businesses - will this mean they will go elsewhere  
- if there is too much congestion people will go elsewhere and what used to be a thriving market square will lose out to 
places with easier access. 
- overall I think a two way traffic system is a better option in a relatively small space 
- in the current cost of living crisis is this the best use of council money? 
 

P
age 402



                 
 

(83) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Elizabeth 
Drive) 

 
Concerns - As a disabled person, I am horrified about the way the disabled parking places are being moved/removed 

around the Market Place. 
How can it be easier to walk into the centre of town from outside the Blue Boar?  
It is NECESSARY to park close to places you need to visit. 
Suppose you need to eat at The Bear, visit Barclays Bank or Vale Community Impact: a charity that you support with a 
generous grant ref. The latest town newsletter? 
 
 

(84) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Hampden) 

 
Concerns - It only supports a few businesses.  And I do not see what it is achieving.  It isolates that end of town. 

 

(85) As a business, 
(Wantage, Market place) 

 
Concerns - Reduced taxi setting down area meaning not enough taxis for my customers  

People still parking in the area marked as taxis only  
Taxis have to reverse into taxi area on busy days/nights an accident waiting to happen  
The area used not very often  
Do those businesses adjacent pay extra to use this area in rates being there square feet area has enlarged  
 
 

(86) As part of a 
group/organisation, 
(Wantage, Maryfield) 

 
Concerns - To ensure good accessibility in the town centre. 

 

(87) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Paddock close) 

 
Concerns - As someone who requires to use disabled parking. The centre has become very hard to use. There is 

now only 3 disabled bays that are within an appropriate distance to the majority of the shops and 2 which are slightly 
further away, with the 2 being taken away you have reduced the available parking to probably those with the most 
need for parking closely to the shops. 
Most of the time delivery vehicles occupy the one behind the bus stop or by people getting cash from the cash point 
and the other two are usually also full by other shoppers, Or vans on market days. I think a couple more disabled bays 
would help greatly and encourage those who can walk further to park slightly further away in the nearby car parks. 
I encourage the closure of that end of the market and see the boom in those shops which is great but please can i 
encourage you to implement a few more disabled bays to greatly help those in need. 
 

P
age 403



                 
 

(88) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Warmans 
Close) 

 
Concerns - I'm very concerned that two disabled parking places will be lost in this scheme. Especially as spaces have 

already been lost on the south side to make space for the bus stop. This will make it very difficult for those struggling 
with mobility to access the square. 
 

(89) As a business, 
(Wantage, Oxfordshire, 
Market Place) 

 
Concerns - 'Hello to those putting forward the the plans for the West end of Wantage Market Place. 

I'm not one for complaining nor an I one for pouring cold water on projects that could help someone or something, I 
have kept my ideas and concerns to myself, but sadly I feel that the suggestions that have been circling around for the 
future of our market town concerns me. 
Although the idea of pedestrianising the West end sounds like a good idea it has its flaws, and we see these daily 
from our premises. 
   
- the taxi set up isn't practical and certainly not safe, the idea of having a taxi rank is exactly that, 'it's a rank', it should 
not be a so called parking lot!  Having cars/cabs shunt back and forth is I believe illegal and also unsafe, it is only a 
matter of time before a person gets hit, and who will get the blame, the driver for starters and then the council for not 
putting a safe plan together. 
- the other concerns are those that need deliveries to their premises, for us we have elderly patients that need to be 
picked up and dropped off for their appointments, this would also apply to the Wantage Natural Therapy Centre that is 
above us at No.34. 
- we also have the matter of the disabled parking outside Barclay's Bank, unfortunately these are abused on a regular 
basis, this is affecting those with disabilities etc. there is a limited amount of parking as it is, the town has lost I think 
it's 6 or 7 spaces already due the West End and now the electric points have now been installed another 10 slots in 
the Beacon have in theory got a restricted use, ie not all vehicles can use them..... 
I am not from the Wantage area, but have a had a business in the town for over 27 years, this pedestrianising I am 
sorry to say will only assist in Wantage town dying on its feet, we have lost 2 banks with a third now going in 
September, Fat Face is showing signs of going, M & Co closed its doors as well. 
We need to allow easy access to the town as a whole, not have restricted access. 
On a more positive note we do have what was called Shush re -opening soon, have you giving any thought to the 
amount of people that may need cabs after that venue closes?  Where are these cabs going to pitch up moving 
forward!!! 
Having the West End is a good idea but needs to be more user friendly and maybe reduced in its size. 
So please just think of the practical issues and the effect on businesses before any more money is thrown at this 
venture, it sounds good, but is it practical! 
 

P
age 404



                 
 

(90) As an individual, 
(Childrey, Dog Lane) 

 
Support - Think it is useful for local people to have a voice 

 

(91) As an individual, 
(Denchworth, Hyde Road) 

 
Support - Great for businesses, much nicer area, safer. All in all I think this has been a fantastic thing for Wantage - 

long may it continue. 
 

(92) As an individual, 
(East Challow, The Park) 

 
Support - I think that having that part of the town square as a pedestrianised area means that the ‘cafe culture’ area 

can continue. I think that this is a great addition to the town and makes the square feel more like a place to hang 
around in rather than a place to travel through. 
 

(93) As an individual, 
(Grove, Barbury Drive) 

 
Support - I've said for 40 years we should pedestrianise the market square. This is a step in the right direction. 

 

(94) As an individual, 
(Grove, Broadmarsh) 

 
Support - Gives a great area for people to socialize. People just parked there before  and stopped and blocked traffic 

anyway 
 

(95) As an individual, 
(Grove, Caudwell Close) 

 
Support - The market place area would be wondeful as a pedestrian area and allow much more space for outdoor 

seating and pedestrian gathering. It would be nice to foster a more al fresco environment with reduced traffic sound 
and pollution. 
 

(96) As an individual, 
(Grove, Evenlode Close) 

 
Support - To be involved in decisions on Wantage. 

 

(97) As an individual, 
(Grove, Glebe Gardens) 

 
Support - I support the continuation of the closure to traffic of the west end of Wantage Market Place as has been 

done on an experimental basis. This section of the market place is now much more pleasant and it is possible to sit 
out and enjoy a coffee etc. The whole atmosphere of the place has changed for the better. 
  I have seen some concerns over the loss of disabled parking because of this measure. I do not know how many 
disabled parking places are lost - and how many others remain - in Wantage market place. However, consideration 
should be given to make sure there are an adequate number. If necessary by making some elsewhere in the market 
square. 

P
age 405



                 
 

 

(98) As an individual, 
(Grove, Main Street) 

 
Support - I support the pedestrianisation of the town centre 1as it helps to create a space for the community that can 
be enjoyed socially. Market towns such as wantage can benefit from such plesant  environments, free from noisy 
traffic, as it will encourage increased footfall from both locals and visitors to the town. In an age when almost anything 
can be purchased online it is paramount that town centres offer an 'experience' if they are to survive. Wantage has 
good transport links by bus and ample parking outside of the main marketplace area meaning accessibility will be 
unimpacted. 
 

(99) As an individual, 
(Grove, Main Street) 

 
Support - Wantage Market is a beautiful public space which has long been blighted by far too much though traffic and 

parking. It simply needs less cars in it in order to thrive and to provide a decent public space for all to enjoy. The 
pedestrianisation of the West End is a small but good start. 
 

(100) As an individual, 
(Grove, Minns Road) 

 
Support - In many towns all across the UK and abroad, creating pedestrianised zones has lead to improved foot 

traffic for businesses (something which many opponents argue will decrease, contrary to evidence elsewhere), better 
air quality and a cleaner environment for all those sharing the space. 
 

(101) As an individual, 
(Grove, Shepherds Close) 

 
Support - I fully support the proposal to make this permanent, It's lovely to have part of the Market Place traffic free. 

Being able to sit outside to enjoy food & drink is a much needed facility in town. The more that is done to make our 
town centre pleasant to be in the more trade will come into the town 
 

(102) As an individual, 
(Grove, The Maples) 

 
Support - The only reason to go to Wantage now is the cafe culture this oasis provides.  The taxis are a nuisance but 

otherwise this is the only worthwhile feature of the town. 
 

(103) As an individual, 
(Grove, Vale Avenue) 

 
Support - The closure of parts of Wantage Market Place is a valuable step in making this a modern market-place - 

one where businesses can provide services that require personal interactions and also that people can wait whilst 
others are using services. Most obvious is the provision of outdoor catering both as a direct service, and as a facility 
for those waiting whilst family and/or friends are using services. We need to prioritise space for people if we want 

P
age 406



                 
 

market places to be successful in the coming decades. Too much of Wantage Market Place is given over to through 
traffic. The buses and taxis belong there as part of personal services, also vans delivering to businesses - but there's 
much less need for private cars, especially using it as a through route. On recent visits I've been struck by the 
comparison between how Millbrook Square in Grove is thriving with businesses offering personal services and cars 
better controlled than in Wantage (but with scope for further controls) - compared to Wantage Market Place with less 
such businesses. It would be good to see both places thrive - the potential is there, it just needs some action to retain 
and expand space for people in the Market Place. 
 

(104) As an individual, 
(Grove, Vale Avenue) 

 
Support - It creates a safer traffic free space where people can enjoy a cafe style atmosphere.  Much better than 

when people used to attempt parking and then turn in a tight space. 
 

(105) As an individual, 
(Grove, Wolage Drive) 

 
Support - Wantage Market Place has the prospect to become much more tourist friendly if these traffic restrictions are 

implemented. Already the Marmalade cafe is making use of the street to put out additional tables. I support this 
change in order to reduce the amount of cars in the Market Place and give pedestrians more space. 
 

(106) As an individual, 
(Grove, Woodhill) 

 
Support - I believe safer for pedestrians and its good to see outside dining from  cafe, wine bar and pub.    That area 

was full of parked cars or taxis.  Althoughnowaday  because of the lack of business in the square you can't get a 
taxi on a Saturday night 
 

(107) As an individual, 
(Grove, Meadow Close) 

 
Support - Safer for all. 

 
(108) As an individual, 
(Kingston Lisle, Fawler 
Road) 

 
Support - I think its a great idea 

 

(109) As an individual, 
(Letcombe Bassett, 
Gramp’s Hill) 

 
Support - Ambience, safety, parking improvement 
 

(110) As an individual, 
(Letcombe Bassett, 
Holborn Hill) 

 
Support - The temporary restrictions have worked well. It makes the town centre more attractive to visit, adding the 

amenity of having refreshments al fresco. 
 

P
age 407



                 
 

(111) As an individual, 
(Letcombe Bassett, 
Holborn) 

 
Support - It will make the area more pleasant and safer 

 

(112) As an individual, 
(Letcombe Regis, Kings 
Close) 

 
Support - Increasing pedestrian access to the town centre, and potential for outdoor tables at local cafes and 

eateries, will benefit the town. For those of us travelling from outside Wantage, there is plenty of parking close to the 
town centre that we can use to access the market place. 
 

(113) As an individual, 
(Letcombe Regis, South 
Street) 

 
Support - Improves environment in town. Good to have outside eating. Safer for pedestrians 

 
(114) As an individual, 
(Southmoor, Cherry Tree 
Close) 

 
Support - Often shop in Wantage and find the reduction of traffic in and around the Market Square a real plus. 

 
(115) As an individual, 
(Stanford in the Vale, 
Hunters Field) 

 
Support - It is much safer to have that area pedestrianised. 

 

(116) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Coates Close) 

 
Support - It helps a little with traffic, so much more to do, I generally avoid the town centre as there are so many cars 

going everywhere, it could be such a nice place for people and is falling short. I support the current measures at it's a 
start at least! 
 

(117) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Adkin Way) 

 
Support - Lock down had such a negative impact on our business and our lives, this proposal flourished out of the 

negativity and has made that end of town delightful. It’s no longer rammed with double parking or taxis turning. 
Deliveries can still be made and managed from the back roads but this delightful 
Spot leads us to the church and the park and altogether makes a more civilised but bustling environment. 
 

(118) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Angel Walk) 

 
Support - It's providing a nice space for meet up in (supporting community feel and all associated health benefits of 

maintaining your social connections), plus it's supporting local businesses with the outdoor seating. Also it brings a 
nicer feel to the market place - instead of just an area you pass through to get somewhere else, it becomes an area 
you go to so you can spend time there.  My only minor concern would be the removal of the disabled parking space, 
as access for those less able should be supported. 
 

P
age 408



                 
 

(119) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Barnards way) 

 
Support - Nice to have an outside space to eat, drink and listen to music 

 

(120) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Belmont) 

 
Support - Considerable Improvement to Historic marketplace by reducing parked vehicles and creating a safe 

pedestrian area for socialising and walking. 
Totally fitting for a market town. 
All positive - no negatives 
 
 

(121) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Belmont) 

 
Support - I think the car free area created provides a new type of space for Wantage which helps people to connect 

and to support local businesses 
 

(122) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Bluebell lane) 

 
Support - The experimental area has opened up the town and creates more trade for local businesses. This benefits 
the local economy and will lead to further trade in the town. 
 

(123) As an individual, 
(wantage, Broadwater 
place) 

 
Support - Greatly add to the amenity of the square with only minor inconvenience to some businesses while 

enhancing others .. particularly the cafe and wine bar and giving a space for other temporary stalls 
 

(124) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Challow Road) 

 
Support - I have found the temporary changes a great improvement, improving the market square for pedestrian 

users and helping to make it more of a social hub. I would support further pedestrianisation of the square. 
 

(125) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Chandlers 
Close) 

 
Support - Gives a lovely atmosphere to the town and extra business to the businesses that can have tables outside. 

 

(126) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Chapel Close) 

 
Support - Wantage should take more advantage of the entire market place to make it a traffic free area where people 

can relax, shop, eat and drink without busses and cars.  This will encourage a cafe culture and support outdoors 
eating drinking and provide room for entertainment and market stalls and pop up events in a safe way.    The limited 
closures have shown how this can work well and for our family we have really enjoyed using those businesses with 

P
age 409



                 
 

outdoor seating, in nice weather it makes us feel like we are on holiday and encourages us to visit town, spend money 
and look in galleries and shops. 
Towns should concentrate on ways to separate traffic and pedestrians. 
 

(127) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton 
Village Road) 

 
Support - I think it is a great idea to keep the pedestrian zone - and would support extending it so the market place is 
a one way street so the southern section of road and southern half of central zone all pedestrianised and the northern 
road 2 way and northern 1/2 of central zone for buses and disabled parking. Would make the whole market place 
much more attractive - a place to stay and browse rather than pop in and out with only 1/2 hour central parking 
allowed. Currently situation does not encourage small interesting shops. We manage well without central parking on 
market days. Market could be in the newly fully pedestrianised southern half. 
 

(128) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Crown Close) 

 
Support - I believe the pedestrian area adds to the town and gives it a much better atmosphere. I would support more 

of the tow centre being pedestrianised. Obviously parking needs considering, possibly making the Beacon multistorey 
or official parking in Newbury Street if it was no longer a main route into town . Thanks. 
 

(129) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Elizabeth 
Drive) 

 
Support - It’s made the centre a more lovely place to visit, child and pedestrian friendly. I would keep the parking in 

the centre but the west end really works as it is 
 

(130) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Elm road) 

 
Support - Car free spaces like this are absolutely necessary these days for a public space to be a desirable 

destination. Wantage needs to improve and needs to make the most of market square. 
 

(131) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Elm Road) 

 
Support - It will give more pedestrian friendly area which everyone can access, helping businesses to thrive and if 

theres wantage event, it will make me looking forward to visiting it. It will generally make Wantage more welcoming, so 
i support this. A brilliant idea! 
 

(132) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Fyfield Close) 

 
Support - The town centre is small and busy with traffic. Any reduction allowing for pedestrian only zones will make it 

safer for families with young children and the elderly.  
I have also enjoyed the outside seating at the cafes in this area/end of town.  It’s a really nice, relaxing vibe which is 
great for the community to enjoy. 

P
age 410



                 
 

 

(133) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Garston lane) 

 
Support - I feel this would promote and encourage larger footfall in the market square 
 

(134) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Grove Road) 

 
Support - I am generally in favour of more pedestrian space in town centres 

 

(135) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Grove St) 

 
Support - * 

 

(136) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Ham Road) 

 
Support - Strongly support any pedestrianisation of towns. Wantage Market area should be fully pedestrianised as it 

would make it far safer and attractive. A nice green area with seating and meeting places. 
 

(137) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Ham Road) 

 
Support - It’s great having less traffic and the outdoor seating means the atmosphere in the centre is much improved. 

I regularly go into the centre for coffee now, and I didn’t bother before. I think you should pedestrianise the whole of 
the market square! It would be so much better! 
 

(138) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Ham road) 

 
Support - The cafe culture it enables brings Wantage in line with other parts of Oxfordshire and makes me want to 

spend more time and money in the marketplace 
 

(139) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Hazel close) 

 
Support - Too many illegally parked vehicles. 
 

(140) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Highclere 
Gardens) 

 
Support - Love the continental feel of the west end now. Lots of markets, entertainment and places to eat and drink. It 

used to feel like a car park but now it has a real buzz. Please keep it free from cars and prioritise the residents who 
mostly support the pedestrianisation. 
 

P
age 411



                 
 

(141) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Highclere 
Gardens) 

 
Support - The proposals seem sensible. Open to review always a good idea. 

 

(142) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Hiskins) 

 
Support - I much prefer shopping areas which are pedestrianised, Wantage market Square is small with a lot of 

vehicles passing through. 
 

(143) As an individual, 
(wantage, larkdown) 

 
Support - road safety, air and noise pollution .... improved liveability of the town centre, studies show pedestrian traffic 

increases with fewer vehicles ... should encourage cyclists too and thereby improve CO2 emissions and climate 
targets. 
 

(144) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Larkdown) 

 
Support - It is really important for the vitality of the town to pedestrianise town centres - studies show that more 

money is spent in town centres that have been pedestrainised - see https://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-
economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf in addition the improvement to health is obvious and everything we can do to 
help decarbonise our environment has to be a good thing. 
 

(145) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Locks Lane) 

 
Support - Brings business into town (people coming to eat/drink at cafes) 

The planters with the flowers in improve the appearance of the area, better than bollards 
Less traffic/pollution 
Safer for more vulnerable road users ie pedestrians cyclists due to less traffic in surrounding areas 
It would be good if the parking was better enforced in the affected areas as well as the surrounding roads.  
I also think you go further with pedestrianisation of the top of the market place on the South side (towards Newbury 
Street) and make the North side two way, or make the whole of market place pedestrianised once link roads/bypass to 
the North of the town are built 
 

(146) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Locks Lane) 

 
Support - It adds a favourable atmosphere to the Market Square and has helped support the businesses in this part 

of the Market Square 
 

(147) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Manor Road) 

 
Support - It makes a happy and safe environment. I would like to see more of the market square pedestrianised. 

 

P
age 412



                 
 

(148) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Market Place, 
Wantage) 

 
Support - The pedestrianised area in front of Marmalade and the new bar shortly to open,  provides a delightful area 

with a peaceful ambience for people of all ages, being wheelchair and pushchair friendly, to be seated outside as is 
popular in Europe.  The tourists and locals alike can enjoy the character and atmosphere of Wantage. 
 

(149) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Market 
Square) 

 
Support - Its a good idea and will support the businesses get back on their feet by providing more custom after the 

pandemic 
 

(150) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Mill Street) 

 
Support - Too many near miss car accidents . And less people parking in a clearly marked no parking zone with it 
being closed off. 
 

(151) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Naldertown) 

 
Support - Wantage market place has become so busy with traffic and the bus stops are sometimes difficult to 

navigate passed with people waiting. It would prove a much nicer and safer area for pedestrians to enjoy the 
town/shops/cafes 
 

(152) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Ormond Road) 

 
Support - It provides a safe area to relax and enjoy a coffee etc, along with the variety of entertainment that is 

provided over the year 
 

(153) Local/County Cllr, 
(Wantage, Ormond Road) 

 
Support - The pedestrianisation has enhanced the town centre and increased its attractiveness to residents and 

visitors. It facilitates outdoor cafes and events. 
 

(154) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Portway) 

 
Support - Provides a quiet place to sit for a coffee or beer and areas for entertainment away from the main square 

 

(155) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Portway) 

 
Support - The pedestrianised area protects the Wantage high street, and makes the area attractive to locals and 

supports local businesses. It creates a sought-after recreational space in the town centre, which is well-used by 
cyclists and pedestrians. It also makes using public transport more attractive, as it extends the waiting area. 
 

P
age 413



                 
 

(156) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Priory Road) 

 
Support - Makes a safe environment for al fresco eating and for the bands and various groups who use the area. It is 

very popular with the residents and visitors to Wantage.It does seem to make more traffic in Priory Road, I think we 
should have residents parking in Priory Road 
 

(157) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Roman Way) 

 
Support - Improvement to quality of experience and environment for pedestrians. 

 

(158) As a business, 
(Wantage, Russell Craggs 
Lane) 

 
Support - I support the pedestrianisation of the market place in Wantage. There are no need for cars in the centre, as 

there are car parks close by and sufficient public transport within walking distance. We should be prioritising people 
over cars, in order to create a thriving, European style pedestrianised centre, where residents and visitors can meet 
and enjoy hospitality businesses in the market square. This is the future of town centres, and would create much nicer 
places to meet and create a greater community atmosphere, with important social benefits. 
 

(159) As an individual, 
(Wantage, 
SegsburyRoad) 

 
Support - I think keeping parts of the town pedestrianised is much safer and will keep traffic more free flowing  at 

moment people are very inconsiderate with parking on paths and pelican crossings in town centre, I even think should 
possible have two way traffic on one side of square ie left side coming from mill street in square and pedestrianise 
other side much more efficient. 
 

(160) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Springfield 
Road) 

 
Support - I believe it will enhance the the town centre by reducing traffic and increasing public usage and enjoyment 

of the location: and in doing so increase footfall to local businesses. For example a wider cafe type culture in the 
square encouraging people linger and shop. 
 

(161) As an individual, 
(Wantage, St Gabriel’s) 

 
Support - This has to be the way forward in encouraging people to use town centres safely. If it were up to me the 

pedestrianisation would be larger! 
 

(162) As an individual, 
(Wantage, St Gabriel's) 

 
Support - I live a couple of minutes walk from the market square. I fully support the continued closure of the area to 

vehicles, and would politely ask that you go further, and make market square single lane and give more space to 
pedestrians and businesses. 
 

P
age 414



                 
 

(163) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Stirlings Road) 

 
Support - The area of traffic free space in the square has been fantastic. The use of the space by community groups, 

businesses and pedestrians has shown how valuable and much needed this is. Time to extend the scheme to the 
north side of the square! 
 

(164) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Stockham 
Park) 

 
Support - We need to encourage business to the town centre. I believe we need more areas that people can sit, relax 

and enjoy but we also need more free longer parking to allow people not to be restricted by limited time, when 
shopping etc 
 

(165) As an individual, 
(wantage, stockham park) 

 
Support - provide an open area for pedestrian use free from traffic 

 

(166) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Wallingford 
street) 

 
Support - It brings a communal feel to the town and a cosmopolitan vibe with all of the tables out in the sunshine. It is 

always nice to have live music on and would be great to have even more done with the area. Decking, permanent 
seating, free drinking water fountains etc 
 

(167) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Warmans 
Close) 

 
Support - Previously, the whole market place was dominated by motor traffic and the need to accommodate same.  

This was to the detriment of other users - including pedestrians who had driven there and parked in the market place 
themselves.  I do not believe that the market place should be used for vehicle parking other than: disabled, public 
transport (bus and taxi), deliveries (possibly with time restrictions) and service vehicles e.g. attending market place 
premises for the purposes of maintenance and repair.   Any moves towards making the MP pedestrian-friendly should 
be encouraged. 
 

(168) As a business, 
(Wantage, West End of 
market Place) 

 
Support - Our business is within the West End pedestrianised area  and since the closure we have seen an upturn in 

footfall. The outside hospitality has added a great feel and atmosphere and allowed potential customers to spend 
more time to shop rather than race through dodging traffic. 
We fully support the permanent closure. 
 

(169) As an individual, 
(Wantage, White Horse  
Crescent) 

 
Support - A Safer, cleaner & more attractive town centre. 

 

P
age 415



                 
 

(170) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Witan Way) 

 
Support - I welcome the opportunity for Wantage to have a more welcoming outdoor cafe culture, less 

cars/noise/pollution 
 

(171) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Badgers Drive) 

 
Support - Important to be part of the towns decision making 
 

(172) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Black Croft) 

 
Support - Any efforts to pedestrianise the centre of the town can only be seen as a positive. Get the cars away from 

the centre and the chairs and tables out of the bars, restaurants and cafés onto the pavements as happens in many 
European cities will attract more people into the town and make it pedestrian friendly. 
 

(173) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Chain Hill) 

 
Support - It's nice to be able to have somewhere to sit 

 

(174) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Chandlers 
Close) 

 
Support - The town is much nicer since there was partial pedestrianisation  

Gives a buzzy feel, is more attractive and good for local business. The taxis it’s displaced have managed the move 
 

(175) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton Road) 

 
Support - It makes the town welcoming and a nice place to sit without buses 

 

(176) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton Road) 

 
Support - Makes that area of the Market Square very attractive to pedestrians and allows pavement cafes. It 

encourages social activity there and brings life back to the market square beyond being a through traffic  route and big 
bus stop 
 

(177) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton Road) 

 
Support - I enjoy the space for coffee shops, seating, music etc. 

 

(178) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Charlton 
Village Road) 

 
Support - Great to have a pedestrianised area especially for sitting outside the cafe 

 

P
age 416



                 
 

(179) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Fern close) 

 
Support - Creates a nice atmosphere in the town, provides outdoor eating space, reduced uncessary parking in the 

centre 
 

(180) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Larkdown) 

 
Support - The square is too small for the amount of vehicles 
The pollution levels are too high  
 
 

(181) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Limborough 
Road) 

 
Support - The current arrangement allows for peaceful, safe and attractive social interaction 
 

(182) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Little lane) 

 
Support - Reducing traffic through the town center 

 
(183) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Mary shunn 
way) 

 
Support - I prefer it. I like the outdoor seating it's provided.  It's a nice 'vibe' 

 

(184) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Ogbourne 
Close) 

 
Support - I think it adds a nice big safe quiet traffic free space at one end of the square to enjoy, either on a seat, at 

Marmalade or the other two businesses or for kids. 
 

(185) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Parsonage 
Close) 

 
Support - I think the pedestrianisation gives the square a greater community feel and encourages socialisation 

between many different socio-economic groups. 
 

(186) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Priory Road) 

 
Support - I am supporting this measure because it has been pleasant to have a non-traffic area of town. The little 
square to sit and not have to worry about traffic and cars has been lovely. The area outside Marmalade is well used, 
calm and lovely to be free from cars. I know concerns have been raised that this impacts in the extent of disabled 
parking, but there are disabled bays next to the taxi rank and they are never full. I made a note yesterday to count if 
any disabled badge holders were parked there and there were none. The most I have ever seen parked there are two. 
It seems disproportionate to scrap what has been a really lovely area for everyone, disabled and ambled alike, just to 
allow more parking, when the parking provided seems perfectly adequate. 
 

P
age 417



                 
 

(187) As an individual, 
(Wantage, St Gabriel’s) 

 
Support - It has been really lovely to have an area of the town that you can sit in without traffic 

 

(188) As an individual, 
(Wantage, St Mary’s) 

 
Support - As I feel it’s a good idea since I came to Wantage it’s has increased so much with homes being build it 

needs more structured work on the main roads 
 

(189) As an individual, 
(Wantage, The Ivies) 

 
Support - It has been nice to have a pedestrianised area in the Town, to be able to sit in the cafe and pub area . I 

don't think the area has had a negative impact on footfall and it is good for everyone's health to reduce traffic in parts 
of the town. 
 

(190) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Warmans 
Close) 

 
Support - I like the idea of more pedestrian friendly areas 

 

(191) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Witan way) 

 
Support - It's give Market Place a very nice feel. I don't think it has an impact on  the traffic.  

Very nice to be able to be outside to enjoy a drink. 
 

(192) As an individual, 
(Grove, Easterfield) 

 
No opinion - Doubt I can make any difference to the decision! 

 

(193) As an individual, 
(Wantage, Manor Road) 

 
No opinion - N/a 

 
 

P
age 418



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected:  Witney South and Central  
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT – 23 March 2023 
 

WITNEY- THE LEYS: PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES  
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve the proposed traffic calming features as advertised. 
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on traffic 
proposals comprising of the introduction of traffic calming features in the form 
of speed cushions and hump in The Leys, Witney - as shown in Annex 2. The 

proposals have been put forward by Witney Town Council to address anti-social 
behaviour, particularly in the form of vehicles speed over this short distance, in 

an area where quite commonly there are children at running around. 
 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation on the proposals has initially been provided by OCC, 
however Witney Town Council will be part funding the implementation of the 
scheme if approved, the remaining funding to come from OCC Accessibility & 

Road Safety Fund. 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help facilitate walking and cycling and the safe movement 

of traffic. 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 419

Agenda Item 7



            

     
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 21 September and 21 October 

2022. A notice was published in the Witney Gazette newspaper and an email 
sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 

countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Witney Town 
Council, West Oxfordshire District Council, and the local County Councillor 

representing the Witney South & Central division. Letters were also sent to 
approximately 10 adjacent properties, and public notices placed on site in the 
immediate vicinity of the proposals. 

 
7. 22 responses were received during the formal consultation, comprising of 13 

objections (59%), three expressions of concern (14%), four in support (18%), 
and two non-objections.  
 

8. The responses are shown at Annex 3, and copies of the original responses are 

available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 

9. Thames Valley Police raised no objection to the proposals; however, they do 

feel full width humps would be more appropriate. This isn’t possible due to the 
need to allow cycle movements, as requested by Witney Town Council, and the 
local cycle group. 

 
10.  The overriding objections to this scheme come from residents of Witney 

many of which are not local are not local to scheme, objection being that 
traffic calming is not necessary, and a waste of money, it could be surmised, 
that not living close to the ‘Leys’, they do not experience the anti-social 

behaviour. 
 

11. However, this concern along with the 59% of objections raised, was taken 
back to Witney Town Council who undertook a second informal consultation. 
Responses to this was taken to the Town Councils Parks and Recreation 

Committee with a 67.5% of respondents in favour of traffic calming. Their 
response and further responses from Witney Town Council, and Witney 
Traffic Advisory Committee can be seen in Annex 1, all of which further 

support the introduction of the traffic calming measures. 
 

12. OCC will work with Witney Town Council to ensure all the technical issues 
raised in their response are addressed to the satisfaction of all parties 

 
13. Requests for traffic calming in station road, whilst not pertinent to this scheme, 

we will take away and look at these issues. 

 
14. Officer responses to a specific technical question can be seen in Annex 3 

following the relevant question. 
 

Page 420



            

     
 

 

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Witney Town Council informal consultation 
response 

 Annex 2: Consultation Plan 
Annex 3: Consultation responses 

  

  
  

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Mike Wasley 07393 001045 
 

March 2023 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 421



            

     
 

Annex 1 

 
Witney Town Council Response to their second informal consultation: - 

 
 
The Town Council’s Parks and Recreation Committee met on the 6th March. 

 
In response to a small amount of relevant feedback to the County Council consultation on the Leys 
traffic calming measures, Witney Town Council conducted an e-survey with local residents on the 

proposed OCC scheme/design. The responses were considered by the Council’s Parks & Recreation 
Committee on 6 March 2023 which noted and recommended the following:  
 

Initially, the request from the town council for a traffic calming scheme at the Leys was based on 
reports of speeding and anti-social behaviour passed on by local residents in 2017/18. Although there 
are no recent logged reports of this behaviour with Thames valley Police, the town council’s own 

survey indicated 62.5 % of 40 respondents were aware of speeding issues on this road, with 52.5% 
giving examples. The survey also indicated several occurrences of near accident misses along this 
stretch of road with 60% of respondents saying they were aware of pedestrian safety issues, 57.5% 

gave examples, including some which relate to children accessing the nearby facilities.  
 
In conclusion, and following the informative feedback to the survey, the town council would like to re-

affirm its support for traffic calming measures at the Leys; 67.5% or respondents were in favour of the 
current proposed scheme versus 22.5% who were not. The safety of pedestrians, predominantly 
children entering and exiting the location to use the recreation and play facilities is now the primary 

concern for the town council and the introduction of a traffic calming scheme would future-proof the 
safety of pedestrians, disabled visitors, cyclists, and children as well as providing an obstruction to 
any further anti-social behaviour. The town council welcomes the scheme in its current version but 

would encourage a re-design to ensure road safety between the churchyard and recreation ground is 
given more importance in line with the previous consultation comments of the town council and 
Witney Traffic Advisory Committee.  

 
Witney Town Council 
Members of Witney Town Council Climate, Biodiversity & Planning Committee welcome the scheme 

for traffic calming measures at The Leys, but it is important to get it right for al l users of this busy area. 
Members ask if there is an opportunity to put one of the speed cushions nearer to where pedestrians 
cross from St Mary’s Church into The Leys recreation ground - The stated objective is to protect 

pedestrians and this area is where the greatest number of pedestrians will be. Members also ask that 
the speed cushions are compliant for all road users – including those on tricycles. 
 

Witney Traffic Advisory Committee 
Members of Witney Town Council Traffic Advisory Committee welcome improvements to pedestrian 
safety. Members raised the issue of spacing on either side of the speed cushions and whether the 

proposed measures would be inclusive for tricycle users. The scheme must ensure that tricycle users 
have enough space to traverse the cushions and not be any increased risk  of trikes tipping over. 
Further, it was suggested that signage could be included encouraging motorists to ‘reverse in’ to the 

park ing spaces as an additional safety measure – motorists would be forward facing as they exit the 
park ing space and join the lane. 
 

The full responses and comments from the town council’s survey are below. 

 
 

 
  

Page 422



            

     
 

  

Page 423



            

     
 

 

Page 424



            

     
 

 

Page 425



            

     
 

  

Page 426



            

     
 

  

Page 427



            

     
 

 

Page 428



            

     
 

  

Page 429



          

  

  

ANNEX 2

P
age 430



                 
 

ANNEX 3 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
No objection – In principle the Police do not object. Just one observation and concern from me please: 

 
Looking at the drawing will Vehicles squeeze between the new road hump and existing buildout making the new hump 
ineffective. Full width humps rather than a cushion might be a better solution.  
 
Officer response: 
 
The dimensions shown on the drawing are nominal and clearance to the buildouts will need to be checked so the 
cushions can be tailored individually. 
 

(2) Witney Town Council  
Support 

 
Witney Town Council – Climate, Biodiversity & Planning Committee 
Members of Witney Town Council Climate, Biodiversity & Planning Committee welcome the scheme for traffic calming 
measures at The Leys, but it is important to get it right for all users of this busy area. Members ask if there is an 
opportunity to put one of the speed cushions nearer to where pedestrians cross from St Mary’s Church into The Leys 
recreation ground - The stated objective is to protect pedestrians and this area is where the greatest number of 
pedestrians will be.  
 
Officer response: 

 
A full width, round top hump has been introduced close to the pedestrian access to St Marys church.  
 
Members also ask that the speed cushions are compliant for all road users – including those on tricycles. 
 
Officer response: 
 

For Tricycle considerations, LTN 1/20 Cycle Infrastructure Design states: 
 

P
age 431



                 
 

“Tricycles, quadricycles, and cycle trailers typically have an axle width of 0.8m (wider for passenger carrying 
rickshaws) and while they do not wobble, to maintain balance they still require adequate clearance to fixed and 
moving objects.” The clearance from the cushions to the edge of carriageway is increased to 800mm. 
Cyclists will require 1m clearance which may compromise the effectiveness of the cushions but may also serve to 
increase it if they were positioned closer to the buildouts.  
 
Rules for Class 3 Mobility Scooters states: 
 
“Class 3 are the only types of Mobility scooter or powered wheelchair that can be used on the road. They must have 
the following features: 
 
A maximum width of 0.85 metres” 
 
 
Witney Town Council – Traffic Advisory Committee 
Members of Witney Town Council Traffic Advisory Committee welcome improvements to pedestrian safety. Members 
raised the issue of spacing on either side of the speed cushions and whether the proposed measures would be 
inclusive for tricycle users. The scheme must ensure that tricycle users have enough space to traverse the cushions 
and not be any increased risk of trikes tipping over. Further, it was suggested that signage could be included 
encouraging motorists to ‘reverse in’ to the parking spaces as an additional safety measure – motorists would be 
forward facing as they exit the parking space and join the lane.  
 
Officer response: 
 
Such signs would be non-approved and unenforceable.  
 

(3) West Oxfordshire 
District Council 

 
No objection – We raise no objections to the proposals provided any signage and associated works are kept to a 
minimum. 
 

(4) County Cllr, (Witney 
North & East division) 

 
Support - Action is needed to reduce speeds along this stretch. I suggest if fewer features (humps) would do the trick 

as those further west are at a point where traffic is already much slower and lighter. The one at the eastern end would 
seem to do the trick.  
Officer response: 

P
age 432



                 
 

 
The number of cushions helps to ensure effective traffic calming when the car park is used less.  
 

(5) Member of public, 
(Witney, Blenheim Drive) 

 
Object - I have never seen any traffic traveling at excessive speed along this road and believe the money could be 

better spent elsewhere. 
 

(6) Member of public, 
(Carterton, Rose Close) 

Object - Anti car 

(7) Member of public, 
(Witney, Oxford Hill) 

 
Object - I do not support the proposals. Witney residents previously objected to speed limits of 20 mph and closure of 

High Street only to have our views not acknowledged or accepted by the Council coalition. Further deepening divide 
and feelings that decisions are more politically motivated rather than ethically thought out on what has worked for 
decades in our beautiful town which is now being ruined by money being wasted on nonsensical traffic measures 
including this one I am writing about now. Let me explain further relating to the consultation. 
 
There is no need for calming traffic features at the Leys because this would affect businesses, members of the public 
and commuters within the town where if the work (heaven forbid) is done, the traffic will be slowed, bunched up and 
would be unsafe. Cars would need to rev a bit after the bump meaning emission levels would make zero difference.  
 
This road is a major detour road away from High Street and clearly will create huge traffic issues for the locals, 
businesses and would have huge knock-on effects for our local economy (again fear that put into jeopardy again but 
yet more pointless future schemes). Speed bumps are not needed because motorists, cyclists and pedestrians have 
great awareness and responsibility as well as our road is wide enough to accommodate others. Other concerns are 
also what about our businesses relying on trade at the Leys? What about our leisure facilities are we just going to 
make it harder for people who cannot use public transport due to circumstances park other side of town?  
 
Please consider removing this policy and bring back our High Street, remove the pointless road signs we did not need, 
remove the 20 mph limits and invest on our road surfaces, reopening of youth facilities, campaign on opening a new 
GP surgery and let our town thrive like it did in 2019. If it ain't broke fix it policy has got to stop please. Thank you for 
taking the time to read my reasons for objecting this proposal.  
 
 
Officer response: 

 

P
age 433



                 
 

The comments appear to suggest an objection to traffic schemes in general and makes no specific reference to The 
Leys that can be addressed.  
 

(8) Member of public, 
(Minster Lovell, Wenrisc) 

 
Object - I have never seen an issue there with speeding cars. We go most Sunday mornings litter picking and coffee. 

More of a serious issue is the amount of filthy dirt and debris built up against the Cotswold stone wall along the entire 
length of the road and the collapsed walling at various points. That has never been looked at in my entire life. Much 
better use of our tax money.  
 
Officer response: 

 
These issues should be referred to the parking section. 
 

(9) Member of public, 
(Witney, Bourton Close) 

 
Object - Waste of our money! Time to mend the roads not put them in when the area is away from road traffic and has 

pedestrian activated lights you lot are so good at messing up our town making it die! Useless cycle lanes (never used) 
shutting off the high street, which mist able bodied citizens use to drive through. Sick of you bunch of idiots!  
 

(10) Member of public, 
(Bladon, Park Close) 

 
Object - This seems to be a complete waste of money. This has been a recreation area for so long, everyone must 

realise there are pedestrians using the area, and surely must drive accordingly. Traffic calming is this area is 
unnecessary and cannot be a priority for Witney. 
 

(11) Member of public, 
(Witney, Burwell Drive) 

 
Object - These humps will cause cars travelling eastwards to veer into the space between the white line & the car 

parking bays as they attempt to avoid them. This is obviously a danger to vehicles reversing from parking spaces & 
also the pedestrians who walk along this part of the road to & from the churchyard or school. I believe this area was 
once marked as a footway, but the paint has long since worn away. 
 
If you must have humps, then the 'sleeping policemen' type, the full width of the road and parking bays, would be 
more effective.  
 
Banning cycling on the north/south path across The Leys & through the churchyard would also make things much 
safer - there is a good quality  alternative route 50 yards to the east.  
Officer response: 

P
age 434



                 
 

 
The cushion dimensions shown on the drawing are nominal and to be optimised within the final design.  
 

(12) Member of public, 
(Witney, Vanner Road) 

 
Object - These "traffic calming measures" are completely inappropriate for the road and a total waste of taxpayers 

money. Absolutely nobody is speeding down a dead-end road which is used as a car park.  
 

(13) Member of public, 
(Witney, Larch Lane) 

Object - I have never seen someone speeding in this area so feel like it is a waste of public money 

(14) Member of public, 
(Witney, Oxfordshire, 
Thorney Leys) 

Object - speed humps unnecessary for this road, if you can call it a road money better spent elsewhere  

(15) Member of public, 
(North Leigh, Park Road) 

 
Object - This applies to all the consultations you are carrying out. The condition of many roads in Oxfordshire is very 

poor. Wasting resources on these trivial and pointless projects is a disgraceful waste of taxpayers money. If you are 
really determined to waste everyone’s time and money on this cr*p please do it after you have fulfilled your statutory 
duty of maintaining the road network. I can give you a long list of local roads in terrible condition if you need it. 
 

(16) Member of public, 
(Oxford, Banbury Road) 

 
Object - 'Speed cushions' or 'speed bumps' as they are known by anyone not trying to sneak them through planning 

permission should be illegal. They cause increased pollution as they force road users to slow down and speed up 
repeatedly, they cause increased noise pollution from engines, suspensions, and tyres, and they cause damage to 
vehicles. The proposal does not show why speed bumps are required or adequately justify them. They will be 
expensive to install and that money would be much better spent improving the road surface for all road users and 
making the road better not worse. 
 

(17) Online response  
Object - Why are you even considering spending OUR…not your money on this? It’s a dead end, already a 20MPH 
zone, no incidents as I am aware of? Main footpath is used via the Leys anyway, no where near the road! Absolute a 
waste of money! 
 

(18) Member of public, 
(Witney, Burwell Meadow) 

Concerns - What evidence is to warrant these expensive works.  

P
age 435



                 
 

(19) Member of public, 
(Witney, Springfield Oval) 

 
Concerns - I support more traffic calming but the proposal here is very underwhelming. I cycle here all the time and it 

seems to be a few speed bumps in an area already treated like a car park. People drive slowly here already because 
they are parking. Cars always speed around church green which seems much more in need of calming than this tiny 
stretch. 
 

(20) Member of public, 
(Witney, Station Lane) 

 
Concerns - I’d like to endorse the traffic calming measures you are planning on The Leys in Witney as being a good 

idea but it isn’t enough really. 
 
I live adjacent to The Leys and witness young people in their hotted up cars, with loud exhausts using The Leys as 
somewhat of a racetrack, often into the early hours of the morning, on many occasions disturbing what should be a 
peaceful area. They also use the Station Lane Road (from Church green, past The Leys down to Station lane main 
road) as a drag race road, reaching ridiculous speeds before slamming on their brakes at the junction.  Gods forbid 
anyone was crossing the road. There is a crossing for pedestrians on this road to allow access across the park 
towards Sainsburys supermarket used constantly by children from the Henry Box School at break times and with 
extended opening times, local residents in the evenings. 
 
Simply bearing in mind the children crossing the road, the speed some people go (despite it’s ignored new 20mph 
limit) is horrendous. Even during the day when the drag race activity is less so it is an accident in waiting. 
 
If you add into the mix the massive articulated lorries that often park on the double yellow lines along my part of 
Station Lane waiting to be allowed into Sainsburys goods yard and around the junction with Station Lane and The 
Leys, occasionally blocking the pedestrian walkway (we have photos if required) it will in my opinion only be a matter 
of time before a serious accident happens. 
 
Add to this those motorbikes, scooters and mopeds frequently flout the law and drive up Station Lane and through the 
No Entry sign towards Church Green at great speed I think this area of Witney needs a bit of your help please. 
 
I think what you’re doing is really great, but a bit more would be lovely to calm the traffic along Station Lane from 
Church Green past The Leys towards the main road.  
 
Officer response: 
 
Considerations to Station Lane are outside the scope of this scheme. 

P
age 436



                 
 

 

(21) Member of public, 
(Witney, Valence 
Crescent) 

Support - Fed up of reckless driving around Witney.  

(22) Member of public, 
(Oxford, Howard) 

 
Support - This is a location where low traffic speeds are important: pedestrian movements, cycle route.  It would be 

better to block it to through motor traffic and make it access only.  Also, why are the cushions only 75mm high instead 
of 100mm?  
 
Officer response: 
 
LTN 1/07 Traffic Calming states: 
 
“The height of a road hump must not exceed 100mm and it is generally recommended that it does not exceed 75mm 
regardless of the profile” (type).   
“Generally, humps of 75mm in height are recommended, as these minimise discomfort whilst maintaining 
effectiveness”. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

P
age 437



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected:  Charlbury and Wychwood  

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT – 23 MARCH 
2023 

 

CHARLBURY: VARIOUS LOCATIONS – PROPOSED EXTENSION OF 
EXISTING 30MPH SPEED LIMIT & ZEBRA CROSSING 

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve as advertised the following proposals: 

 
a. The extension of the existing 30mph speed limit on the B4026 Pound 

Hill/Charlbury Road northwards to beyond the access to the Camping & 
Caravan site, and  

b. a zebra crossing (a crossing for pedestrian use only) on The Slade, in 

the vicinity of the Charlbury Primary School. 
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on traffic 
proposals comprising an extension of the existing 30mph speed limit on the 

B4026 Pound Hill/Charlbury Road northwards to beyond the access to the 
Camping & Caravan site, replacing the existing 40mph speed limit in the 
process. This aspect supersedes the proposed extended limit which was 

previously consulted on in May 2022 (see details here), and seeks to improve 
road safety for vulnerable road-users, specifically the pedestrians walking to 

and from the camp site, bringing forward changes suggested over some years 
by local residents in the town. Additionally, a zebra crossing (a crossing for 
pedestrian use only) is also proposed for The Slade, which seeks to improve 

road safety by assisting vulnerable pedestrians cross the carriageway in the 
vicinity of the Charlbury Primary School 

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation on the proposals has been provided by Charlbury 

Town Council, who will also fund the implementation of the measures if 
approved. 

 

 

 
 

Page 439

Agenda Item 8



            

     
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help facilitate walking and cycling and the safe movement 
of traffic. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 2 February and 3 March 2023 . A 

notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper and an email sent to 
statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including: Thames Valley Police, the 
Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide 

transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Charlbury Town Council, 
West Oxfordshire District Council, local District Councillors, and the local 
County Councillor representing the Charlbury & Wychwood division. 

 
7. 97 responses were received during the formal consultation, and these are 

summarised in the table below: 
 

Proposal Object Concerns Support No opinion/ 
objection 

Total 

30mph speed limit 9 (9%) 6 (6%) 77 (79%) 5 97 

Zebra crossing  3 (3%) 2 (2%) 86 (89%) 6 97 

 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 

8. Thames Valley Police did not object to the proposed Zebra crossing providing 

that the necessary speed monitoring had taken place and that all current criteria 
for such a crossing has been fulfilled. They raised concerns about the speed 
limit extension, citing the potential need for a package of measures to help 

manage vehicle speeds and improve road safety. It was felt that changes to the 
highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-

aligning the road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to 
any change in the speed limit. 
 

9. The objections received stated that the proposed changes were unnecessary - 
citing a lack of need, potential impacts on journey times, the low number of 

accidents in the area, and the increased presence of road signage. 
 

10. It should be noted that the county council is changing its approach and 

acceptance of lower speed restrictions, which will enable a much greater 
coverage across Oxfordshire. 

Page 440



            

     
 

 

11. The proposal is aimed to make the road safer, encourage residents and visitors 
to the nearby campsite  to walk or cycle & reduce noise and pollution. Signing 

and other measures will as far as possible be sympathetically applied bearing 
in mind the aesthetic of the location. 
 

12. The Zebra crossing will facilitate safer crossing for young pedestrians attending 
the nearby school in the morning and afternoon arrival and departure periods 

and other vulnerable road users at all times.  
 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Speed limit consultation plan 
 Annex 2: Zebra crossing consultation plan 

 Annex 3: Consultation responses  
  

  
  
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    James Wright 07789 926984 
 
March 2023  

 

Page 441



          

  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 442



                 
 

 

ANNEX 2

P
age 443



                 
 

ANNEX 3 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
30mph speed limit – Concerns 

Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

P
age 444



                 
 

Zebra crossing – No objection 
Providing necessary speed monitoring has taken place and that all current criteria for such a crossing is fulfilled. 
 

(2) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 

I don’t think that even 10mph would make any difference. If someone drives over the limit no - they will do so in the 
future too. I don’t think speed limits make our roads safer. 
 
Zebra crossing – No opinion 

It’s not going to make more locals walking or cycling… 
 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Rise) 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 

it is unnecessary. 
 
Zebra crossing – No opinion 

No opinion either way. 
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Rise) 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 

I understand why reducing the speed is suggested, but in reality it will cause more pollution. Every car I have ever 
been in/owned/driven would need to be in a lower gear and higher RPM, which actually causes greater pollution, 
higher fuel consumption, and overall harm to the area. I see this benefitting absolutely no one and causing general 
frustration. 
 
Zebra crossing – Object 

I walk up and down the Slade regularly, and I do understand the want for a zebra crossing, as from some angles you 
cannot see oncoming traffic with ease. However, once again, I would understand the need to implement this if there 
was evidence of any harm/injury being caused withoutba zebra crossing. I live right by the Slade and drive along 
it/walk it very frequently. This would greatly impact the traffic flow through Charlbury and to no benefit whatsoever. 
However, I would rather a Zebra crossing placed on The Slade, than the entirety of Charlbury being restricted to a 
30mph zone. 
 
 

P
age 445



                 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 

See previous comments 
 
Zebra crossing – Object 

OK if it is an old style but not if a traffic light one. The latter are intrusive, create more light pollution and in the days of 
needing to be more energy efficient and Eco friendly are inappropriate. 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Bayliss 
Yard) 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 

The current 40mph speed limit is reasonable. The few houses in this area are set well back from the road. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
It’s a school, of course we should have that. 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough) 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 

It is not a built up area 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Safer for children having to cross the road 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lee 
Close) 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 

Again, the speed limit is only there to serve the campsite that isnt open all year round.  Surely it would be better to 
have safer paths, rather than slowing down traffic as pedestrians basically have to walk in the road. 
Considering how little the stretch is used by pedestrians what are we doing to protect pedestrians in the town where 
there are people all year round. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
No objection here 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 

Not necessary. There are verges for pedestrians and so no need to slow traffic down from 30mph. 

P
age 446



                 
 

public, (Charlbury, Market 
Street) 

 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It’s been needed for decades to protect children crossing. 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury) 

 
30mph speed limit – Object 
Because if people were taught to be AWARE of traffic, and to not be STUPID, none of this would be necessary. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

A sensible proposal, given the proximity of the school. 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Fulwell) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It’s a very twisty piece of road and 30 is a safe speed as going faster could end up with an accident. 
 
Zebra crossing – Object 

Already a island in road to enable pedestrians to cross. 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Elm 
Crescent) 

 
30mph speed limit – Concerns 

I agree in principle with the measure but in view of the nature of the road I think that most drivers will exceed the limit. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
This is a very well-used crossing point, including for children, and would be safer with a Zebra crossing. 
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Rochester Place) 

 
30mph speed limit – Concerns 

My concern is that the further out the 30mph limit is imposed, the more likely it is that it will be ignored; so it would 
need to be monitored, enforced and policed. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Pedestrians need a safe place to cross, and it simultaneously provides a means of enforcing a bit of traffic control. 
 

P
age 447



                 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Concerns 

The winding nature of this stretch of road, together with the frequent presence of equestrian traffic, make 30mph a 
suitable speed limit for this area. 
I am concerned, given the VERY winding nature of the B4022 south of Charlbury, that such an extension to the 
30mph limit out to the 'Welcome to Charlbury' sign has not been considered for that stretch of road. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
The area near Charlbury School sees major footfall twice a day during term time as well as frequent crossings at other 
times, due to the nature of Crawborough being the pedestrian thoroughfare to the town centre that it is. The increased 
obviousness of a Zebra crossing, together with the priority it gives to pedestrians, will go a long way to helping ensure 
their greater safety. 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Hixet 
Wood) 

 
30mph speed limit – Concerns 

This is a bit too fast for this road. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

That will slow down the traffic on the slade which currently is too fast 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Hughes Close) 

 
30mph speed limit – Concerns 

Again a main road is not a place for such restrictions. 40mph or 50mph is a reasonable speed limit 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
Useful 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Wychwood Paddocks) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Safety 
 
Zebra crossing – Concerns 

I broadly support this, but would not like it to be used as an excuse to stop having a crossing-supervisor outside the 
school. 
 

P
age 448



                 
 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ditchley Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – No opinion 

It's probably sensible, but I have no strong feelings about this matter. 
 
Zebra crossing – Concerns 

I'm generally in favour, although I think there will often be visibility issues when approaching from the Witney direction. 
I would hope that a lollipop person would continue to be employed for helping schoolchildren across the road at key 
school times. Illegal parking by parents picking up their children needs better enforcement. 
 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
Lane) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

it is the 20mph limit I object to on the side streets such as the lane i live in which it is impossible to speed down due to 
all the parked cars thank goodness.  I hate the necessary signage when new restrictions are imposed 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

always important to keep children safe 
 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
Street) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Lots of children going to school 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Children going to school along that road. 
 

(21) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

See Q2 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Safety is paramount 
 

(22) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Other extensions of 30 mph limit sections locally have already shown benefits 
 

P
age 449



                 
 

Zebra crossing – Support 
Pedestrians need to be given priority 
 

(23) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Safer for walkers 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Helps all pedestrians 
 

(24) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough Villas) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Same as for the crossing too much speeding on the Slade, help reduce speeding. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

because there is lost of speeding on the Slade and the crossing may help to protect children from traffic. 
 

(25) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ditchley Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It will make is safer for people using the campsite and slow traffic down before the 20mph zone. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It will make it much safer, in particular for schoolchildren, but if it is beside Crawborough, that's very good for the 
primary school, but the secondary children get dropped off/picked up elsewhere, so those crossing points should also 
be considered for crossings. Apart from children at school times, it will make it safer for all pedestrians. 
 

(26) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ditchley Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Pedestrian, cyclist, etc. safety 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Child and parent safety, making pedestrian movement easier 
 

P
age 450



                 
 

(27) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Dyers 
Hill) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Safety. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Safety 
 

(28) Local or County Cllr, 
(Charlbury, Hundley Way) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

The road is bendy and narrow and to be safe, cars need to go slower here 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

This road is fast and hard to cross even if you are able bodied. For kids and the elderly or infrim, it is a barrier to 
getting around. A zebra will be a real boon to the town. 
 

(29) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Hundley Way) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

I always drive slowly here anyway. I think it's a good thing to slow cars down where you can. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

A brilliant addition for the school and for people to cross safely. 
 

(30) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lee 
Close) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

I believe this will make this route in and out of Charlbury safer for pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

The Slade is a busy street at peak times and a crossing will help to make it safer for the children and parents of the 
primary school 
 

(31) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lee 
Close) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

This is a dangerous road that requires a speed limit as a start to improving its utility to all users. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

P
age 451



                 
 

This will improve pedestrian connectivity over a neglected part of Charlbury 
 

(32) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lees 
Heights) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Its a dangerous road with many blind spots 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Many children need to cross the road to reach the school as well as residents throughout the day and at present many 
vehicles travel faster than 30mph 
 

(33) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lees 
Heights) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

As long as the 20 mph limits are totally removed this is sensible 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

This will help to control the speed of traffic 
 

(34) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lees 
Heights) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

30mph is more appropriate for this road and its users. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It provides a useful crossing, especially handy for children and those less mobile pedestrians. 
 

(35) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Little 
Lees) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
It would make it safer for people who walk down this road 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Difficult or dangerous to cross this road at time particularly with children 
 

(36) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Safety of all road users, reduced pollution and noise 

P
age 452



                 
 

public, (Charlbury, Market 
Street) 

 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Safety of pedestrians 
 

(37) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Market 
Street) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Very strongly support - we are one of a few families who cycle along this road to Chadlington School and this will 
make a twisty section of road safer. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

This will be good for kids going to the play area on Ticknell Piece 
 

(38) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Nine 
Acres Lane) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

The speed of traffic in Charlbury is too fast too much of the time. The concerns are for the safety of pedestrians and 
other road users and the acceleration noise of powerful cars and motor bikes. While the 30mph, and higher, speeds 
may not always be reduced to 20mph they will hopefully be reduced somewhat making for a safer and quieter 
environment. Enforcement will certainly help. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Improves the safety of crossing the road especially for school children and the elderly. It will also contribute to slowing 
the cars that might otherwise exceed the speed limit. 
 

(39) Local or County Cllr, 
(Charlbury, Park Street) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

There are a number of houses on this road and a campsite which encourages people to walk into the town and a 
lower speed limit on this stretch of road would improve safety 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

This will make walking to and form the primary school safer and will encourage more active travel 
 

(40) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Pooles 
Lane) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It is the obvious thing to do. 
 

P
age 453



                 
 

Zebra crossing – Support 
It should have been installed when the new primary school was built. It is already late in the day that this is only now 
being proposed. 
 

(41) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Road safety - plus for most of this stretch it isn't feasible to drive 40 anyway. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Again, enhanced safety - plus it will indirectly help with reducing traffic speed 
 

(42) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

See my comments earlier 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

See my comments earlier - many of which refer to the Slade 
 

(43) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

1.  Vehicle safety - this is a narrow bendy road with vehicle access at various points. 
2.  Pedestrian safety - pedestrians take great risks walking between the campsite and the town. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It is difficult crossing the Slade during the day.  Traffic is constant and fast.  Most traffic exceeds the 30mph speed 
limit. 
 

(44) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It makes sense to calm the traffic here as there are hills that cause many vehicles to speed. There are also blind 
corners, which - as a cyclist - are very scary when  traffic whips by at 40 or more. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

This will improve safety, particularly for children going to and from school and school clubs. 
 

P
age 454



                 
 

(45) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Sheep 
Street) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Improved safety for all road users, particularly cyclists and pedestrians. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

The proposed Zebra crossing will support children to access their school safely, on what is the most frequently used 
route to the site. The Slade is a busy road, with lots of through traffic. I feel that the lollipop person would still be vital 
for peak school times, to supervise safe usage. 
 

(46) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Shilson 
Lane) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Agree that pedestrian safety to and from the campsite is important 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

if it helps with safer crossing of the road 
 

(47) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
There are young families who live on that section of road as well as numerous equestrians who hack their horses in 
the road.  Cars and motorcycles tend to accelerate through the curves and there have been numerous accidents and 
near misses near our home.  A 30mph limit would greatly add to safety. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Given the number of young children crossing the Slade with parents to get to school, I think the proposed zebra 
crossing is critical for safety. 
 

(48) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

I live on that road. We have used the OCC speed measurement kit a few years ago, and there is very excessive 
speeding. A real concern for residents, farmers and visitors to the campsite. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Obvious because of the local school. 
 

P
age 455



                 
 

(49) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Vehicles drive far too fast along the B4026 road 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Would help crossing 
 

(50) As a business, 
(Charlbury, Spelsbury 
Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

High speed motorcycles and speed mad motorists especially at the weekend 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Traffic is too fast along the Slade - it would slow things down 
 

(51) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

I assume this means the extension of the current limit and I strongly support this.  There is a camp site between 
Charlbury and Spelsbury and a stables.  Walkers and horse riders frequently use this road and the speed of the traffic 
is dangerous and intimidating - an accident waiting to happen. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

A frequently used crossing point which would be made much safer if there were a Zebra crossing. 
 

(52) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Sturt 
Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Safety of children cycling 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Children constantly cross there - not just at school open and close. They need to be a be able to do so safely 
 

(53) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Pedestrian safety 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

P
age 456



                 
 

Pedestrian safety: many people, including schoolchildren, cross here 
 

(54) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
A difficult bit of road to walk/cycle 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Zebra not pelican 
 

(55) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It is always good not to have a high speed limit and it might help prevent injures and death to local wildlife. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It will it easier to cross not only for adults but children who stay late after school 
 

(56) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

For safety 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
There aren’t many safe places to cross and lots of children on that route 
 

(57) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It's a dangerous road and would improve safety for all, especially those walking to/from the campsite on the main 
road, including young families. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

I have a 17-year-old son with special needs who is learning to become more independent. He is vulnerable in terms of 
road safety, finding his way, etc but is very keen to shop locally and run errands alone. This is important training for 
him, in a place where he knows people and therefore has more chance of support if he has issues. The direct route 
from our house (The Green, OX&amp; 3QB) to the centre of Charlbury/Co-op is far too dangerous for him to navigate 
(the cross roads of the Slade and Enstone road is treacherous for all) so he has to go the long way via Crawborough 

P
age 457



                 
 

and the Primary School, using the island in the middle of the main road. This is better, yet is still very dangerous, but 
currently is the only option. A zebra crossing (and a general 20mph limit) would make this SO much safer for him. I 
imagine the same is true of children and the elderly. Thank you. 
 

(58) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Playing Close) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
People drive into the town far too fast - it means that they are much less likely to follow the speed limit rules in the 
town itself and put people living on the edges of the town at greater risk from harm. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It will help drivers recognise that there are people who cross there and they need to adjust their speed accordingly 
(and of course stop if there is someone approaching/crossing using the zebra crossing) 
 

(59) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Playing Close/Pooles 
Lane) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

30 mph is too fast -- This should be 20 mph as far as possible 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
Frequent overly fast, dangerous and life-threatening driving makes this essential 
 

(600) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Safety 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Safety again - and an excellent way to reduce speeding on The Slade 
 

(61) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, the 
Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It will reduce the speed of vehicles entering the town 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

essential for childrens safety 
 

P
age 458



                 
 

(62) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

There are often pedestrians walking there. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Crucial to allow people to cross what can otherwise be a very difficult road to cross safely. Will also hopefully slow 
traffic in general. 
 

(63) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Dangerous road for people walking or cycling into Charlbury from the campsite. No footpath 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
Safety of children crossing to go to school. At the moment, the speed of traffic, some of which are travelling faster than 
the 30 mph  limit 
 

(64) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Reduce risk of accidents on a bendy stretch. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It can be very difficult crossing the road in the evening rush hour, especially with young children.  I would also feel 
more confident allowing my child to cross the road if there was a crossing. 
 

(65) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

This is a tight and twisting road where speed for cyclists is particularly dangerous 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Children cross this road from the primary school regularly outside school hours (when a lolly pop lady helps them 
across the road). The road is on a hill and there is a partially blind corner, so children cross just at the point cars are 
speeding and can’t see them. The addition of a zebra crossing would clearly indicate the particular need to look out for 
pedestrians to road users. 
 

P
age 459



                 
 

(66) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It would make it safer 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

This would make it a lot safer for children to cross the road. Those who live Ticknell Piece Lane side going to town 
and the town side going to the park, skate park, woodland, bowls club etc. 
 

(67) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Needs to be slower 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
Crossing for kids, and walkers, will be that much safer. As it is, traffice comes fast up the Slade and can be hard to 
see in time. 
 

(68) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
No problem with is being 30mph entering charlbury 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Most definitely need it for the safety of our children and elderly 
 

(69) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

We often walk towards Old Shed and this will improve safety. There’s also high pedestrian traffic from the camp site. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

We would welcome this and would request further safety support from the bus stop across to the football field. 
 

(70) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

I think it would make it safer for people walking from the campsite into Charlbury 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

P
age 460



                 
 

I fully support this. I want my youngest child to go to the park on her own and be able to safely cross The Slade. 
 

(71) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Fully support, no reason why not 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Absolutely critical. This is a crossing area with drivers regularly speeding and kids routinely crossing 
 

(72) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Woodfield Drive) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Anything to slow traffic around the town. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

See my first response but the Slade is a very fast and dangerous road, people have died on it and someone else will 
unless radical rethinking and road design is done soon. 
 

(73) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Woodstock Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Hopefully it will slow some of the speeding traffic. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It is a busy crossing point, which needs more than the present traffic island. 
 

(74) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
Street) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
The road is too fast. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Long overdue 
 

(75) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

It would be better if it was also 20 mph 

P
age 461



                 
 

public, (Charlbury, Church 
Street) 

 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Dangerous crossing there at the moment for infirm and children 
 

(76) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Enstone Road/The Green) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Slowing the speed of traffic as it approaches town is key, adding in chicanes  to provide a physical check to speed, 
requiring drivers to slow. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

This road is far too fast &amp; any pedestrian attempting to cross from the footpath to Crawborough risks speeding 
traffic, so a crossing will offer some comfort &amp; priority for walkers, as well as assisting the school pupils. 
 

(77) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Hixet 
Wood) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

This would make an already dangerous road much safer for walkers 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
This would make it much safer for children crossing each morning, and make even clearer to drivers that they needed 
to drive very carefully in proximity to school 
 

(78) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Hundley Way) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
This has already been consulted with considerable support. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

This is particularly important for wraparound care which goes beyond times when a crossing patrol is provided.  Ideally 
there would be a signalised crossing at this point but there aren’t the funds available. 
 

(79) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Nine 
Acres Close) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Good idea 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Good idea 

P
age 462



                 
 

 

(80) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Vehicle drivers need to slow down to make the roads safer for other users. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Fast-moving traffic makes crossing the Slade difficult and dangerous. I often have to wait quite a while before I can 
cross safely, and even then I often have to accelerate as another vehicle comes round the bend at high speed. 
 

(81) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Sturt 
Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Road safety improvement 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Road safety improvement.  Safer to cross. 
 

(82) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Increase safety for those walking along this part of the road. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It’s a busy road with the Primary School nearby and would increase the safety of those needing to cross.   
 
 

(83) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

People often walk or cycle (with little kids) from the campsite to the town and this can be dangerous with cars 
travelling at excessive speeds 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Given the primary school position it is a very sensible proposal - also people from Ticknell Piece etc cross The Slade 
at this point to go to the centre via Crawborough 
 

P
age 463



                 
 

(84) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

I support the proposed 30mph speed limit on the B4026 Charlbury road, as slowing the traffic would make things safer 
for horses, cyclists, walkers, &amp; farm vehicles. The road is busy, &amp; fairly narrow &amp; windy in places &amp; 
you never know what you might encounter around the next bend. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

I support the proposal for a Zebra Crossing on the Slade, wholeheartedly.  This had been long overdue. A Zebra 
Crossing would help to ensure the safety of children going to &amp; from the Primary school, &amp; indeed 
pedestrians from that part of Charlbury going to the town centre. 
 

(85) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Woodfield Drive) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
Safer access for walkers and those staying in the campsite. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Safer for school children and will signal to motorists that they need to drive more care 
 

(86) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Wychwood Close) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Support 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Support 
 

(87) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Wychwood Paddocks) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

To slow traffic before it gets to the residential areas. Currently motorists frequently fly into the centre going 45-50 mph. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
Outside of school hours there is no safe place to cross this road and motorists do not stop for pedestrians. 
 

(88) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

P
age 464



                 
 

public, (Charlbury, 
Dancers Hill) 

I feel strongly that traffic goes too fast. It shows a lack of respect for people who live in the area and is often 
dangerous. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

It's close to a school, people cross at that point a great deal and it would be much safer than it currently is. 
 

(89) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Fawler, Main 
Street) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Safer roads 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Safer for children going to school and will help to slow traffic speeds on the Slade. I welcome the wider pavement by 
the crossing too, as shown in the picture. 
 

(90) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sandford-on-
Thames, EiverView) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

Cycles and horse riders are vulnerable to fast vehicles. 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

A clear crossing place is safer 
 

(91) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, B4026 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
The B4026 has no pavement between Pound Hill and Cotswold Camping, so I support the plan to extend the 30 limit. 
The campsite generates a significant amount of pedestrian traffic to and from Charlbury during the tourist season to 
the nearest pubs and shops. 
 
Zebra crossing – No opinion 

There is already one pedestrian crossing on The Slade, but I can see  the case for another at the school if the lollipop 
person is no longer an option. 
 

(92) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 

There are a lot of walkers from the campsite that use this road to walk into town. 
The current 40mph is to fast considering the winding nature of the road. 30mph will improve this situation 

P
age 465



                 
 

 
Zebra crossing – No opinion 

Don't know this road well enough to comment 
 

(93) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Thames Street) 

 
30mph speed limit – Support 
to slow down dangerously fast traffic 
 
Zebra crossing – No opinion 

There is already a crossing person to help with the children, so I ma not sure if it will slow traffic down unnecessarily? 
 

(94) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
Lane) 

 
30mph speed limit – No opinion 

xx 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

xx 
 

(95) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Dancers Hill) 

 
30mph speed limit – No opinion 

I am unsure about the impact of 30 mph limit 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 
The Slade is a wide road and is sometimes challenging for older/slower people when crossing. 
 

(96) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Shilson 
Lane) 

 
30mph speed limit – No opinion 

No opinion 
 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Makes more sense that having s 20mph speed limit in this area. 
 

(97) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
30mph speed limit – No opinion 

No opinion 

P
age 466



                 
 

public, (Charlbury, Kendal 
Piece) 

 
Zebra crossing – Support 

Would improve safety around the school 
 

 

P
age 467



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected:  Sutton Courtenay and Marcham  

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT – 23 MARCH 
2023 

 
SUTTON COURTENAY: B4016 DRAYTON ROAD – PROPOSED 

TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES & EXTENSION OF 30MPH SPEED 
LIMIT 

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve as advertised the following: 
 

a. The extension of the existing 30mph speed limit on the B4016 Drayton 

Road, Sutton Courtenay westwards by approximately 70 metres, and 
b. a new kerbed traffic calming chicane on the B4016 Drayton Road (with 

buildouts) to be located approximately 20 metres & 40 metres west of 
the access to No. 9 Drayton Road. 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. This report presents responses to a consultation on a proposal to extend the 
existing 30mph speed limit and introduce a new traffic calming measure on 

B4016 Drayton Road, Sutton Courtenay. 
 

3. The aim of this proposed scheme is to address the concerns raised by Sutton 
Courtenay Parish Council on the speed of vehicles entering and going 
through the village. The proposal as shown in Annex 1 comprises of 

extension of the existing 30mph speed limit, and new chicane (buildouts) at 
approximately 20 metres and 40 metres west of the access to No. 9 Drayton 

Road.  
 

 

Financial Implications  
 

4. Funding for the proposal, including consultation and implementation if approved 
has, and will be met by the Local Member’s Councillor Priority Fund, Section 
106 funding, and Community Infrastructure Levy. 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

5. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 

Page 469

Agenda Item 9



            

     
 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 

6. The proposals would help facilitate reducing traffic speeds approaching, and 
going through, Sutton Courtenay village, therefore, improving road safety.  
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

7. Formal consultation was carried out between 18 January and 17 February 
2023. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series newspaper, and 

an email was sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police, the 
Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide 

transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Sutton Courtenay Parish 
Council, Vale of White Horse District Council, local district Councillors, and the 
local County Councillor representing the Sutton Courtenay & Marcham division. 

A letter was sent to approximately 10 adjacent premises, and street notices 
were placed on site in the immediate vicinity. 

 
8. Twenty responses were received during the formal consultation, and these are 

summarised in the table below: 

 

Proposal Object Concerns Support No opinion/ 
objection 

Total 

30mph speed limit - 2 16 2 20 

Traffic calming chicanes  1 - 16 3 20 

 
9. The responses are shown at Annex 2, and copies of the original responses are 

available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 

10. Thames Valley Police did not object to the proposals, and whilst not objecting, 

Stagecoach Bus Company did highlight concerns regarding the distance 
between the chicanes, suggesting that larger vehicles such as buses or 
school coaches could struggle to navigate through the feature. The proposal 

has already been trailed on-site with a temporary chicane at the proposed 
location. Video evidence suggests no issues regarding large vehicles 

navigating through the proposed chicanes with the proposed dimensions and 
distances. 
 

11. Two concerns and one objection were received from residents relating to the 
extension of the 30mph speed limit and the traffic calming chicanes.  

 
12. Extension of 30mph speed limit concerns - the extension of the existing 30mph 

speed limit is to introduce a new traffic calming feature. Any further speed limit 

reduction on Drayton Road is outside the scope of the works. No flashing signs 
are being introduced as part of this scheme. 

Page 470



            

     
 

 

13. Traffic calming chicanes objection - this proposal aims to reduce traffic speeds 
approaching and going through Sutton Courtenay village. The proposal has 

been trailed on site with temporary chicanes at the proposed location, video 
evidence suggests no issues with the flow of traffic and no serious concerns on 
traffic queues.  

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses  

  
   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Jankin Arsalan   
     

March 2023 

Page 471



          

  ANNEX 1

P
age 472



          

  

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

No objection 

(2) Local County Cllr, (SC 
and Marcham Division) 

Support - Sutton Courtenay have been wanting this for some time. I fully support the proposal. 

(3) Sutton Courtenay 
Parish Council 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

Sutton Courtenay Parish Council fully supports the proposal as it believes it will create a safer environment for road 
users.     
 
Traffic calming - Support     

Sutton Courtenay Parish Council fully supports the proposal as it believes it will create a safer environment for road 
users. 
 

(4) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
No objection – In line with our general practice we confirm that this proposal does not affect our services. 

 
In principle it presents no wider material issues to bus operations. However, we are a little concerned that the distance 
between the chicanes is such that larger vehicle such as buses or school coaches - which can be as long as 15m - 
could struggle to track through it. 
 
I would recommend that this is double checked before implementation. 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
B4016 Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Concerns     

I would rather support a speed reduction from the Milton Road junction all along the Drayton Road from 40mph to 
30mph, this would prevent accidents such as the numerous incidents which have been logged over the years, which 
in the main are caused by speed coupled with poor road layout and weather conditions. 

P
age 473



                 
 

The speed reduction would allow traffic to flow and should reduce speeding when entering the village. Especially so if 
calming measures , such as flashing speed signs , road hatching etc were installed. 
 
Traffic calming - Object     

I object because I believe that the traffic along the Drayton Rd is increasing due to large scale housing projects in the 
Didcot and Abingdon Districts, and the construction of width reducing chicanes will no doubt lead to heavy build-up of 
stationary vehicles. 
 
The eastern approaching traffic will be forced to build up creating tailbacks which would be dangerous due to the 
many blind bends on the road. 
 
I have great concern that the chicane proposal will lead to unacceptable build-up of traffic and delays during the 
busiest times of day, both for traffic coming out of the village and for traffic approaching from the east. 
 
I have concerns that the chicanes will cause traffic to back up coming from the east on the Drayton rd. There has been 
a noticeable increase in traffic in the last year or so on the B4016 , particularly at the rush hours between 7.30 to 9.00 
am and 4.00 to 6.00pm. 
 
If traffic builds up significantly it may cause rear end collisions due to the unsighted bends along the road. 
Also chicanes tend to encourage vehicles to speed up and make dangerous manoeuvres to avoid being held up 
between the chicanes.     
   

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Concerns     

Our primary school aged son catches the school bus (no.6) every morning where the bus pulls and stops over for him, 
and in the evening the bus drops him next to the footpath sign and entry on the other side of the road, where there is 
no footpath, so that he has to cross the road every day on his own at a busy time.   
 
We are concerned for his safety and any changes that might reduce it.  While the proposed new speed limit would 
help slow drivers down 100m further along, it would not help him or others using that public footpath, and it could 
actually make it worse, as any new flashing speed signs could distract their attention from noticing a small child 
crossing the road in front of them if poorly placed.  This is a concern.   
 

P
age 474



                 
 

To alleviate this concern and ensure this change does not inadvertently make it more dangerous for our child, we ask 
for the new proposed 30mph limit and signage for it to be extended to start at or beyond our driveway to make it safer 
for him.  You can see from the photo the location of the footpath and our driveway beyond.   
 
This would also make it safer for any other pedestrians crossing the road there to join that public footpath that starts 
on the other side of the road to the footpath along the B4016. 
 
We would also like to point out our house is within the parish boundary and therefore we would assume that normally 
the 30mph speed limit should start at the parish boundary to the village, so it is reasonable to request that if you are 
moving the limit, you move it to include our home.  
 
Finally, there is a turning next to our drive that goes down to the river Thames and is used frequently by various local 
fishing clubs and birdwatches with a surprisingly larger number of vehicles that drive up that road to fish at the lakes 
and different sites up there all the way along the river to Abingdon.   
 
Making it a 30mph to our house would make it safer for those people turning into and out of that road, as well as for 
us.   
 
Quite often, people ignore our indicators and accelerate, thinking they have left the village, to overtake us along that 
straight just when we are slowing down to turn into our drive or down that road to the river.    
 
In our opinion, making it a 30mph and having the speed indicator light to include our house would be sufficient to stop 
this and make it safer for us.   
 
Traffic calming – No objection     

We do not object to the planned location for the traffic calming chicane, or propose that the traffic calming chicane be 
moved, as we recognise that its main purpose is to slow people down before the main built-up area, however we do 
ask that the limit and associated signage is moved to include our home in recognition of our concerns listed here. 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

I would prefer a 20-mph limit. We have family members living in Aston, where a 20-mph limit has been introduced. We 
see a significant and positive change in the environment.     
 
Traffic calming - Support     

P
age 475



                 
 

'Please see notes below written in June 2022 when the trial for this traffic coming measure was in progress. The only 
thing I would add to update my notes is that, subjectively, the road is busier now and more vehicles are travelling at 
high (unsafe) speeds. 
--------------------------------- 
June 2022 
I have monitored the impact of the build out on Drayton Road at various times over the last 24 hours during both peak 
periods and off peak. It has been interesting to stand and actually watch the road for periods, I am usually walking in 
one direction or the other. 
 
Overall there is definitely a positive impact. I have observed the following: - 
 
Traffic flowed reasonably, in both directions, at all times I was observing. 
 
Cars entering the village are undoubtedly slowing for the start of the 30mph to a greater extent than previously. I did 
not observe any cars that appeared to be accelerating significantly into the village once past the build out although 
that is obviously a subjective opinion. I observed a particular safety benefit for cyclists, inbound to the village, who 
have to re-enter the road when reaching the Thames Water pumping station. 
 
Cars exiting the village were more interesting! I observed numerous cars braking fairly hard once they became aware 
of the build out. The obvious conclusion is that these individuals were accelerating out of the village and had 
commenced doing so well before passing the end of the 30mph area. This is a blind corner too! There were a small 
number of instances of drivers, when no other vehicles were visible, continuing at fairly high speed and choosing to 
weave aggressively to get through the build out. The point though, I think, is that once regular users of the road 
become aware of the build out most will regulate their speed more appropriately. 
 
It was quite common for drivers exiting the village to stop and give priority to vehicles entering the village. This, in spite 
of them stopping immediately in front of a sign showing they had priority themselves. Presumably this would sort itself 
out as drivers become more used to the build out. 
 
I observed one heavy goods vehicle entering the village who took the build out at far too great a speed and only 
belatedly realised this. He knocked down one of the buildout cones and broke one of the lights.  
 
Finally, I have noted less vehicle noise during the trial, another positive. 
 
In summary, I fully support making the build out permanent. Doing so will: - 

P
age 476



                 
 

Enhance safety for drivers, cyclists, and pedestrians 
Reduce noise 
 
These points are in addition to those made on the consolation website.  
 
Firstly, traffic calming measures of some sort are badly needed, and I broadly agree with the measures proposed. My 
only concerns, having observed the trial in July 2022 carefully, are that the proposed measures don’t go far enough. 
 
Traffic leaving the village (i.e., travelling west) is a significant issue for residents on the south side of Drayton Road. 
Cars start to accelerate very early and are frequently travelling at high speed well before passing the Thames Water 
Pumping Station. The pavement is on the north side of the road and pedestrians are forced to cross with very 
restricted visibility of oncoming traffic from the east due the curve in the road. Extremely dangerous for the children 
living on the road. My mother (Age 94, who lives with us) is now effectively trapped on our property as a direct result 
of high-speed traffic. A 20-mph speed limit would be the appropriate measure on this stretch of road. 
Note that eastbound cyclists on the Hanson Way also have to join the main carriageway at this point and are put at 
significant risk by speeding vehicles. 
 
My observation of the trial build-out in July 2022 was that many cars simply weaved through with minimal reduction, 
and in some cases no reduction, of speed. The build out needs to be further out towards the middle of the road to 
ensure traffic actually slows. If larger buildouts are not possible then a hump needs to be placed between them. In 
summary, the build out temporarily constructed last year was not adequate to ensure an appropriate reduction in 
traffic speed. 
 
Lastly, you should be aware of the significant increase in large vehicles travelling on Drayton Road. Many of these 
travel at ridiculous speeds. However, they also generate an additional problem. Due the width of the road, when 
vehicles of this size meet, they move aside to and beyond the edge of the road. This is breaking up the road edge and 
damaging the verges. I attach a photograph of some typical damage. Either the road needs to be rebuilt/repaired 
and/or made wider or there needs to be a restriction on larger vehicles using the road. 
 
To conclude, high speed and large vehicles cause numerous dangers/problems on Drayton Road. These include:- 
• Danger to other road users, and pedestrians. 
• Excessive noise 
• Damage to the road which will result in a requirement for costly repairs 
 

P
age 477



                 
 

I fully support the proposed measures, but I urge you to consider the above points and go further than the current 
plan. I would welcome the introduction of a 20-mph limit within Sutton Courtenay. 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Brook Street) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

There is no traffic calming in place on that road into the village. This means that vehicles arrive at excess speed in a 
village where families, children and cyclists are all using the roads. It's dangerous and there have been accidents and 
incidents previously.      
 
Traffic calming - Support     

There is no traffic calming in place on that road into the village. This means that vehicles arrive at excess speed in a 
village where families, children and cyclists are all using the roads. It's dangerous and there have been accidents and 
incidents previously.  
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Church Street) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

People driving way to fast on Drayton Road     
 
Traffic calming - Support     
People driving dangerously fast on Drayton Road 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtney, 
Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

The traffic drive extremely fast &amp; dangerously on this stretch of road.      
 
Traffic calming - Support     

Very fast traffic 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
High Street) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

Cars frequently breaking the speed limit unaware that the 30mins restriction has started as they enter the village. I 
have seen a car accident very close to children coming out of a birthday party standing by the road where a car lost 
control at high speed in that 30mph area. Unlike other roads around the village speeding vehicles remain a risk here 
for pedestrians and cyclists alike.      
 
Traffic calming - Support     

P
age 478



                 
 

Resident with a lot of experience of how people use that road and break the speeding limit.  
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Asquith Park) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

Fast drivers too frequently on this road      
 
Traffic calming - Support    

I run this Road frequently and drivers often speed  
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
High Street ) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

I am in favour of any traffic calming on the western approach to Sutton Courtenay. I cycle, sometimes with children, 
down the road and most drivers who enter Sutton Courtenay pass me by over the speed limit. If turning right onto the 
High Street from Drayton Road this means positioning oneself on the centre of the road at a blind corner, with 
speeding cars passing by on the inside. A positively hostile experience, especially with children. And this is on a 
“National Cycle Route”.     
 
Traffic calming - Support     
I wrote all reasons on the previous comment. It would be good if there was a filter for people on bikes. 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
B4016 Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

Anything that can be done to reduce speeds in and around Sutton Courtney is a positive step.     
 
Traffic calming - Support     

Anything that can be done to reduce speeds in and around Sutton Courtenay is a positive step. 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

Cars do speed through at this point and it is sometimes difficult to get out of the drive safely.  This change to speed 
limit will help as long as it is actually adhered to.  I see this as more likely to happen for traffic coming in from the West 
than for traffic going out from the East and this latter point should be considered in the overall proposals.        
 
Traffic calming - Support    

P
age 479



                 
 

I support but with concerns.  This proposal seems very helpful, particularly in respect of traffic from the West but I 
wonder if a bit more needs to be done to slow traffic from East (heading out the village) a bit sooner.  Cars travelling 
out of the village have often picked up speed before the bend at Brook Street so perhaps there needs to be something 
more around this point to discourage this.  It seems to me the traffic should be slowed throughout the 30mph limit not 
to speed up and then jam brakes on after they get round the bend before reaching the traffic calming chicanes.  I 
believe it would help current proposals if there was also something like they have in Milton that shows the speed of 
approaching traffic in green with a thank you when it is less than 30 - hopefully then as traffic goes round the bend it is 
already at a reasonable speed for approaching the chicanes. 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
All Saints Lane) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

Traffic uses the village as a rat run and dive fast.  We have young children and walk and cycle and it’s unsafe     
 
Traffic calming - Support     

To make it safer for residence and the public, especially as we cycle on the roads with children 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     
I have lived here for over 15 years and the road has become quite terrifying. There have been numerous accidents 
and near misses. I would support a 20mph actually and the chicane previously mentioned.     
 
Traffic calming - Support     

Traffic travels far above the speed limit so a chicane and digital speed travelling sign would be very much supported. 
 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

Hope this will slow down traffic entering the village      
 
Traffic calming - Support     

Hope this will slow down traffic entering and leaving the village as getting out of our drive (No 5) can be hazardous, 
especially with cars speeding out of the village as we cannot see around the corner looking towards Brook Street. 
Signage saying there is a chicane placed around No 1 Drayton Rd could also be considered as information to slow 
down cars accelerating out of the village. 
 

P
age 480



                 
 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Drayton Road) 

 
30mph speed limit - Support     

My wife and I have lived on B4016 Drayton Road, Sutton Courtenay. for more than thirty-four years now and seen 
many accidents along the way, some not even reported, most due to excessive speeding. As I sit here now, I hear 
cars going by exceeding the speed limit. I don't want to wait for someone to die to realise the very least we can do is 
put in place a 30mpg.     
 
Traffic calming - Support     
My wife and I have lived on B4016 Drayton Road, Sutton Courtenay. for more than thirty-four years now and seen 
many accidents along the way, some not even reported, most due to excessive speeding. As I sit here now, I hear 
cars going by exceeding the speed limit. I don't want to wait for someone to die to realise the very least we can do is 
put in place a 30mpg. 
 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton Courtenay, 
Drayton Road) 

 
 
30mph speed limit - Support     
Traffic calming - Support     

 
Firstly, let me start by stating that I am 100% in favour of any alterations to the B4016 which reduce traffic speeds.  
Cars frequently pass our property when entering/leaving the village as excess speeds (to a 'layman’s' eye). 
 
This is even more of a timely matter as this week a car drove into the back of me whilst I was in a queue of traffic 
(ironically caused from another accident) just outside 83 Drayton Road which is just a bit further up the road.   Had the 
driver of the third party been paying more attention perhaps this wouldn't of happened and any measures that can be 
taken to make people more aware/conscious on this stretch of road the better. 
 
Will the chicane be joined with a 'hump' across the road surface in the middle of the chicane, like the one on the South 
entrance to the village on Sutton Courtney Lane/Harwell Road?  Or will it be more like the chicane without a hump on 
the South entrance to Long Wittenham on Didcot Road?  The reason I ask, is that I have clearly experienced people 
barely slowing for the chicanes without a hump such as in Long Wittenham......therefore believe a hump is a 
necessary requirement to get people to properly slow down.  Please advise if a hump is being considered to slow the 
traffic? 
 
I also believe a hump may be required to stop 'pushy drivers' from the East, entering the village causing those leaving 
the village to have to stop, which could be dangerous and cause a queue of traffic outside our property.  This 

P
age 481



                 
 

happened during the trial, when lorries were coming from East and cars from the West had to wait for them to clear to 
claim their right of way.  We saw this first hand during the trial with queues forming multiple times in front of our 
property, despite them having a theoretical right of way. 
 
Is there any scope to add further 30mph signs along the road in the village?  There are currently no 30mps signs in 
the village on this road.  Could additional signs be erected to 'remind' careless drivers in both directions in the village?  
I realise signs can only have 'so much impact’ but feel there is a justification given the speeds many people drive 
through the village......which I assume is a justified statement by the fact this very chicane and speed limit extension is 
even being proposed. 
 
Was there any consideration given to putting humps on the road down to 'the triangle' to the west of the proposals?  
The High Street has humps all along it, which appear effective at keeping speeds down.  Without the humps or signs, I 
fear many will ignore the limits.  If the chicane has no hump, then it would be possible to see ahead of it when 
leaving/entering village and continue at a higher speed, as a hump-less chicane alone does not appear to slow many 
drivers. 
 
Long Wittenham has recently introduced a 20mph speed limit.  Is this in proposal for Sutton Courtenay too? as I 
believe it would be beneficial to both reduce risk and improve the quality of life of residents and visitors to the village. 
 
Thank you for your time reading this.  As mentioned in my opening sentences, I am 100% in favour of any measures 
that can be introduced to reduce speeds on the roads in and around Sutton Courtenay.  Please do not take any of the 
above as criticism of the plans.....if this is the best we can have at this moment in time, then great, we are all for it!  I 
merely ask the questions and suggestions of ways they could be improved to further calm traffic. I am sure that all the 
above questions & suggestions have been considered and there is sensible argument as to why they may not be 
considered.  It would be interesting to hear those thoughts. 
 

 

P
age 482



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Faringdon 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 

BUCKLAND MARSH: PROPOSED 40MPH SPEED LIMIT 

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of a 40mph speed limit at Buckland Marsh 
as advertised.  

 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on a proposal to 
introduce a 40mph speed limit at Buckland Marsh as shown in Annex 1. The 

restriction has been requested by the County Councillor and Parish Council.  
 

 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Councillor and by the Accessibility and Road Safety fund. 
 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 
 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Buckland Marsh 
by making the route safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Formal Consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 05 January and 03 February 
2023. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email 
sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 

Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 
countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 

Page 483

Agenda Item 10



            
     
 

Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Buckland, and Bampton Parish 
Councils, and the local County Councillors representing the Faringdon, and 

Witney West & Bampton divisions.  
 

7. Four responses were received during the course of the formal consultation, 
comprising of: one objection, one in support, one raising concerns, and one 
non-objection. 

 
8. The responses are shown at Annex 2, and copies of the original responses 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

9. Thames Valley Police – although not objecting – raised concerns about the 85th 
percentile speeds (i.e. the speed at or below which 85% of drivers travel), which 
were recorded at 46mph to 48mph. 

 
10. It is proposed to install extra signs and carriageway roundel markings to further 

bring drivers attention to the lower speed limit and mitigate the current 85 th 
percentile vehicle speeds. 
 

11. The only objection received relates to vehicle emissions being unchanged, a 
reduction in the speed limit has been promoted primarily to improve road safety, 

however the lower vehicle speeds will make walking more attractive which in 
itself should reduce vehicle journeys and therefore emissions.  
 

 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 

 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  

  
  
  

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
                                           Mark Francis 07730 926962 

 
March 2023 

Page 484



          
  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 485



                 
 

 
ANNEX 2 

 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic 
Management Officer, 
(Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Based upon the current speed data provide I do not object ,as mean speeds appear to support a 40mph 

speed limit. 85th percentile speeds are shown in the region of 46mph to 48mph so concern must not be ruled out . 
 
Compliance with new speed limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat of 
harm, risk and resourcing.. There should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement 
if a speed limit is set too low as this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there 
are no additional resources available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce 
need to be discouraged. Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden of 
constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 

P
age 486



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement through 
Community Speed Watch .  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the road) 
may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be more 
expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development and the 
Built Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

No objection 

(3) Local Cllr, 
(Buckland, Orchard 
Road) 

 
Support –  The road has a 60mph limit from A420 through Buckland Marsh to Bampton. This is wholly inappropriate as 

Buckland Marsh has several family houses on the road without pavement and of course vehicles need to come and go 
from these houses along with pedestrians. 
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, 
Oxford Hill) 

 
Object – No need for speed to be changed. No report has been shown to demonstrate need to amend the speed limit 

and personal responsibility has been successful so far. No need for this road to be amended. You can still drive qt 
40mph and have the same emissions as at 60mph for example so does not make the air cleaner. Why am I concerned 
about this propaganda? Because undoubtedly in many years to come our petrol and diesel cars that we can best afford 
could be also targeted showing that speed limit changes are an attack on the motorist. Undoubtedly the Council will 
ignore this message and run roughshod over local public opinion. My advice to locals is simple write to your MPs, 
Councillors and Council respectfully and civilly why these changes are not necessary. 
 

 

P
age 487



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Benson & Cholsey 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
BENSON: PROPOSED 20MPH & 50MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the following proposals as advertised: 

 

a. New 20mph speed limit throughout Benson, replacing the majority of the 
existing 30mph speed limit, and  

b. a new 50mph speed limit will on the westerly unnamed road to 
Rokemarsh, from its junction with the B4009 The Sands northwards for 
a distance of 195 metres. 

 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph and 50mph speed limits in Benson as shown in Annex 
1. 

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Benson by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

 
 

Page 489

Agenda Item 11



            
     
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 11 January 2023 and 03 
February. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series newspaper, 

and an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including 
Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus 
operators, countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, South 

Oxfordshire District Council, the local District Cllrs, Benson, Ewelme, and 
Berrick Salome parish councils, and the local County Councillor representing 

the Benson & Cholsey, and the Chalgrove & Watlington divisions.  
 

7. 83 responses were received via the online survey during the course of the 

consultation, and these are summarised in the table below:  
 

Proposal Object Concerns Support 
No opinion/ 
objection 

Total 

20mph speed 
limit 

7 (8%) 6 (7%) 69 (83%) 1 83 

50mph speed 
limit 

9 (11%) 10 (12%) 43 (52%) 21 83 

 

8. Those who responded online, were also asked whether if the 20mph speed limit 
proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a change to their mode 

of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below 
 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 27 (32%) 

Yes - cycle more 15 (18%) 

No 38 (46%) 

Other 3 (4%) 

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
9. Four responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 

re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection. Stagecoach had no objections as they do not operate in this 

area but urged us to consider the effect of 20mph speed limits on the viability 
of rural services; they also suggest a 30mph limit would be appropriate for the 
proposed Benson ring road as it will have no direct frontages. The Oxford Bus 

Company object to proposals for 20mph limits on High St, Brook St, Church 
Road, and Castle Square as they believe this total 0.9 mile section will add a 

minute to journey times in each direction. The Benson Neighbourhood Plan 
Delivery Team support the proposals but also seek a 20 limit on the main road 
through Preston Crowmarsh. 

 
 

Page 490



            
     
 

Other Responses: 

 

10. Four members of the public asked for Preston Crowmarsh to be included with 
a 20mph limit and one hoped that 20mph limits on Helens Avenue and Old 

London Road were in the proposals.  
 

20mph Speed Limit Proposals: 

 
11. Two members of the public were concerned that Preston Crowmarsh had been 

omitted, three that there would be no enforcement, and one that it would create 
driver frustration, bunching, and increased danger for pedestrians. Two 
objections centred around it not working and being an unnecessary waste of 

money. Other single objection concerns included it worsening congestion, 
worsening pollution, not being enforced, and driver frustration leading to 

increased danger.  
 

50 mph Speed Limit Proposal: 

 
12. Eight members of the public expressed concern believing the limit should be 

lower, one suggesting physical calming and one sought enforcement of the 
existing limit. Of the nine objectors, six thought it should be a lower limit, two 
thought it was not required and one believed it would not work. 

 
13. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original responses are 

available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

14. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 

15. The responses from members of the public show a strong level of support for 
both the 20mph and 50mph speed limit proposals. Objectors cite similar views 

to those expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes which were not 
then seen as warranting a change in those previous proposals given the explicit 
intention of the County Council’s 20mph limit policy. Preston Crowmarsh was 

omitted in error and a 20mph limit for that hamlet will be promoted soon. 
 

16. Oxford Bus Company raise the only statutory consultee objection and, while 
they provide specific figures, as their objection relates only to the central core 
of Benson where speeds are often compromised by traffic it is hard to justi fy 

amending the proposals.   
 

 
 

Page 491



            
     
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plans 

 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
March 2023

Page 492



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 493



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 

P
age 494



                 
 

 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
No objection – In line with our general practice, I am again happy to confirm that Stagecoach and offers no objection 

to these proposals. 
 
However, we should formally signal as follows: 
 
1. Other important commercial and supported bus services use roads affected by these proposals and we would urge 
the Council to consider feedback from these operators very carefully. 
 
2. Outside the scope of the current consultation is a proposed "Edge Road" through extensive residential 
development. Portions of this are complete but unadopted. Others are under construction. The function and design of 
this road, which intentionally eliminates direct frontage accesses and also makes provision for segregated pedestrian 
and cycle facilities with a standoff from the carriageway, means that the design intentionally seeks to avoid "mixing" of 
active travel modes with motorised traffic. Moreover, the road will run through a relatively low-density suburban built 
form, with no commercial activity whatever and minimal other facilities or uses that would generate significant intensity 
of conflict around this street associated with such facilities. Thus, the principles of the Stockholm Declaration and the 
Council's own resolution of December 2020 are in no ways met. It should be assumed then, that a 30 mph limit should 
apply to this road when it is complete and open to traffic. 
 

(3) Business Development 
and Partnerships 

 
Object – We have no problem with and support these proposals where they do not affect bus services. Benson has 

good bus service provision including buses up to every 30 minutes on the trunk route X39/X40 between Oxford and 

P
age 495



                 
 

Manager, (Thames Travel 
Bus Company) 

Reading serving the Marina stop on the main A4074 and the 136 service up to every 30 minutes at peak times 
between RAF Benson and Cholsey via Wallingford.  
  
The proposals as set out do not impact the Thames Travel X39/X40 service as the A4074 is to retain its existing 40 
mph limit through Benson. The proposals however will have a significant impact on the Thames Travel 136 service.  
  
We object to the proposed speed limit reduction from 30mph to 20 mph for Church Road, Castle Square, High Street 
and Brook Street. These roads form a core travel corridor through the centre of the village. The proposals for these 
roads would reduce the speed limit along 0.9 miles of bus route leading to almost two minutes of extra running time on 
a round trip (0.9 minutes each way).   
  
The Cholsey end of the 136 route operates as a loop and so there is no recovery time at this end of the route. There 
are generally just three minutes of recovery time at RAF Benson. Therefore, whilst adding almost two minutes to the 
round-trip time on the 136 initially may not seem like much it would lead to recovery time at RAF Benson reducing to 
around a minute. This is insufficient to be able to operate the service reliably as any delay on one trip would almost 
certainly result in the next trip departing late and delays mounting up with no opportunity to get buses back on time 
without failing to operate a trip. The 136 service already receives financial support from the County Council and it 
seems doubtful that additional funding would be available from the Council to add the extra bus and driver resource 
needed to maintain the existing route and frequency.  
  
In reality there are some sections of the route through Benson where buses are unable to operate at the current 
maximum 30mph limit and so this means that the journey time penalty will be slightly less than the worst-case 
described above. However, set against this is the fact that there is significant additional house building in Benson, 
Crowmarsh Gifford and Wallingford and this is highly likely to lead to additional motor traffic on the roads served by 
the 136 service leading to slower speeds on other sections of the route. It is therefore vital that buses are able to 
make progress where it is safe for them to do so. 
 

(4) Benson 
Neighbourhood Plan 
Delivery Team 

 
Support – I would like to express our Support for the Benson - proposed 20mph & 50mph speed limits. 

 
A majority of the village supported this proposal when a village poll was carried out in December 2021.   
The main reason being on the grounds of pedestrian and cyclist safety, as most of our village roads are narrow with 
limited footways in certain areas.  
 

P
age 496



                 
 

 As more and more people move to a sustainable form of travel, it is only right that this is not only encouraged but 
supported. The reduced 20mph speed limit is seen as positive move to more sustainable travel.  
 
We would like to see to Braze Lane speed limit reduced from a National Speed Limit (NSL) to a 30mph speed limit 
where it joins with the B4009.  And would wish to have the road through Preston Crowmarsh reduced to a 20mph 
speed limit. 
 

(5) Local Cllr, (Ewelme, 
The Street) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I am supportive of 20mph limits in residential areas as a matter of principle, and I believe that Benson needs this 
restriction due to the amount of traffic now experienced throughout the village and the potential danger to pedestrians 
and cyclists (and other motorists) from cars travelling at above 20mph. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

This is a short stretch of a quiet country road and it makes no sense for the limit to be 60mph if the adjoining roads will 
be 20mph or 30mph. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Green 
Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Object 

It will cause huge amounts of congestion throughout the village. 
It's hard enough to travel through the village with the amount of rogue cars parked on double yellows, increasing the 
amount of time people are driving through the village at 20 is going to make it an absolute nightmare. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

N/A 
 
Travel change: No 

 
(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Preston 
Crowmarsh, Preston 
Crowmarsh lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Object 

over use of 20 mph makes it less likely to be adhered to. Should be used in specific areas, i.e schools, shops 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

P
age 497



                 
 

i have no opinion 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Observatory Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Object 
'- Speed limits not enforced. New signage a waste of money. 
- Cars parked along the roads in the village act as traffic calming - it's almost impossible to drive over 20 mph in peak 
times. 
- Petrol and diesel engines less efficient at 20 mph, adding to pollution levels. 
- St. Helens Avenue already used as a quarter mile drag strip, 20 mph signs will be equally ignored. 
- Cars drive towards Watlington like hypersonic missiles with the national speed limit in place, what difference would 
50 mph signs make? Missile pilots more likely to get impatient behind someone obeying the new limit and overtake, 
risking their lives along with those of oncoming vehicle occupants. 
- Braking distance of modern cars far superior to that of the cars in production when the original speed limits were 
introduced. 
- Drivers more likely to get bored and distracted at the slower speeds. 
 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

No pedestrians nearby, new roundabout acts as traffic calming, national speed limit ignored so replacement 50 mph 
signs would make little difference. Modern car brakes far superior to those available when the National speed limit 
was set. As a former resident of Blacklands Road, a high proportion of cars are often over 50 mph before exiting the 
30 mph zone heading out of the village, so what hope is there for them to stick to 50 mph on the main B road? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
20mph speed limit – Object 

It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change the 
speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or Towns 
for example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody 
wants to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys because the Councillors 
cannot kick the habit, they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. There are other 

P
age 498



                 
 

ethical and more sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example increasing public path space to signal 
where a pedestrian and cyclist can have their own lane including encouragement notices on local notice boards. 
I visit the Village of Benson sometimes to have a walk and drive through within the current speed limits when safe to 
do so to get away from the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town that are as comparable as 
Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at home a utterly bitter 
and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political decision and not a road safety 
decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built residential resistance (civilly making the points 
why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I don't take it lightly to compare the Russian Z 
symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or Town and what it looks like with the Z symbol in 
that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown every 100 yards or less. It is regretful but the honest 
truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead end streets that have no through roads as well making it 
even more frustrating.   
Devastating to see Benson that despite seeing zero road incidents within the Village have such a change needlessly 
taking place that the Police cannot cope with enforcing especially when local Politicians pushing for these changes will 
undoubtedly carry on going past 20mph as will emergency service personnel (when not on emergency calls) including 
public transportation which of course, highlights a hidden hypocrisy that will take place when the consulation ignores 
public opinion. If its ok for them it is ok for the rest of us and I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come 
with me to make a stand and that is to say no. No to such depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our 
future generations common sense, personal responsibility and the basic human right to choose how we cycle, walk 
and drive to places. We will be ashamed of what horrid path this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public 
opinion and rule within minuit management by edict with no supportive evidence of this change and one that has no 
loyal compliance even after that. This will undoubtedly depress many residents psychologically seeing how needless 
this was, how robbed their community is of having common sense and a sense of personal responsibility as per the 
Highway code and is depressing for passionate motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to 
show that slower speeds don't reduce road incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management are 
interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this objection to the proposal but some I hope will take back these 
genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying to fight against this nonsenical anti-car movement. 
www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-20mph-
limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
Benson when visiting has great access for cycling and walking safely so does not make sense and urge all residents 
to write to MPs, maintain pressure on Councillors and the County Council that for as long as those in charge have one 
rule for themselves it is ok for the rest of us to decide to drive near to 30mph with competent common sense just as 
seen over the decades when even our Grandparents drove safely. No card can be played to ignore this as hope to 
explain further.  

P
age 499



                 
 

Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, "Traffic 
Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed or 
unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council and their staff 
should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust toward local 
authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as comparable as 
propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will see this for what it is. 
The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand this political movement 
against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in attack the Motorist? 
Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 20mph 
or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing down 
traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a straight road 
where somebody does not need to drive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even Councillors know that 
despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road surfacing improvements from 
what I been advised within the industry).  
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement but 
I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is ignored for 
political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like they did in other 
political national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when people 
working within their Council are not prepared to respect public opinion?" 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

Zero need to change this road limit. See previous answer. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Bell 
Weather Furlong) 

 
20mph speed limit – Object 

Believe it doesn’t change anything. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

I thought it was 50 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 500



                 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Horseshoes Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Object 

No evidence of incidents in the village due to speed. Finances could be diverted to safer parking and footpaths, 
particularly parking around the school and footpath crossing at Mac Donald’s/BP 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Road narrow and visibility often poor. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Didcot, 
Blackwater Way) 

 
20mph speed limit – Object 

30 is slow enough. Research shows 20 is not significantly safer. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

50 is fast enough for this road. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(13) Email response 

 
Concerns – I would like to see 20 limit in the whole of Benson including Old London Rd , and definitely St Helens Ave 

as the speeding is unbelievable, with all new builds the extra traffic treating it as a race track. 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Preston 
Crowmarsh) 

 
Concerns – As you will know it is signposted and indeed is a single track road and with houses right up to the lane it 

is essential on safety grounds that Preston Crowmarsh is included as part of the new 20 mph zone for Benson area. 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Preston 
Crowmarsh) 

 
Concerns – I understand that the proposal for a 20mph speed limit for Benson currently excludes Preston 

Crowmarsh. As a resident of Preston Crowmarsh , I am in favour of Inclusion in the 20mph zone and I cannot 
understand why it’s been excluded given the speeding trucks on our single track road . 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Concerns – I consider it extraordinary that the lane through Preston Crowmarsh has been excluded from the 20mph 

Speed Limit Proposal: 

P
age 501



                 
 

public, (Preston 
Crowmarsh) 

 
1. From the northbound Bus Stop to the footpath accessing Benson Lock, the THAMES PATH is officially routed along 
this lane. 
2. The whole of the lane and the Thames Path section in particular, attract very heavy walker and cyclist traffic – 
including children, people with mobility difficulty and dogs on leads. 
3. There is no footpath and over much of the length it is difficult or impossible to step off the surfaced carriageway to 
avoid vehicles. 
4. There are places where sight lines are inadequate. 
5. The surfaced carriageway is narrow, vans and lorries comprise a significant part of the vehicle traffic and take up 
much of the carriageway width.  Whilst speeds are mostly moderate, delivery vans especially (of which there are many 
now) are often travelling too fast for this lane. 
6. Electric vehicles cause particular concern in that walkers usually cannot hear them approaching from behind. 
 
I urge you to reconsideration the issue and include all or part of our lane in the 20mph schedule. 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Bell 
Weather Furlong) 

 
20mph speed limit – Concerns 

You don't enforced the existing speeds limits, so nothing will change.  People speed already within the 20mph zones.  
Enforced the existing speed limits first. 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 
Enforce the existing speed limit first 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Preston 
Crowmarsh) 

 
20mph speed limit – Concerns 

My wife and I are concerned that you intend to omit (what we understand to be called) "the Road Running through 
Preston Crowmarsh" from the proposed 20mph restrictions.  It cannot be regarded as just one single road.  The 
Benson end of this single track lane is also the route of the Thames Footpath.  It is a route that is increasingly used by 
Benson residents and by longer distance walkers.  Moreover, with the increasing interest in cycling, in particular its 
use for "sports cycling", this route is becoming unsafe for walkers.  Single sports cyclists and cycling clubs are 
travelling at well over 20mph along the road in a manner that endangers walkers. 
If the Council are considering the use of speed limits to protect safety, then the interests of walkers should not be 
ignored on The Thames Footpath in Preston Crowmarsh 

P
age 502



                 
 

 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

No Opinion 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Rumbolds Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Concerns 

Will any new speed limits be checked either by speed cameras (that work) and/or traffic enforcement? 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

I am in favour of any reduced speed limit through a built up area, however there needs to be enforcement of whatever 
is imposed. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, St 
Helens Ave) 

 
20mph speed limit – Concerns 
A 20 mph limit, I know reduces emissions. It also causes bunching of traffic, if cars close together, dangerous for 
pedestrians. Benson village already clogged up because of extra housing. A reduced speed limit will also cause 
frustration, lack of patience with some drivers, angry reactions, which can only exacerbate current problems. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Bend in road, cars travel at more than 60 so 50 safer 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(21) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Oxon, 
Old London Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Concerns 

No one to police them, the existing 30mph limits are often exceeded 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

this is not a dangerous stretch of road. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 503



                 
 

 

(22) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Preston 
Crowmarsh) 

 
20mph speed limit – Concerns 
Why isnt Preston Crowmarsh included in the 20mph area? I would support it being included 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

support 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(23) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Brook 
Street) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Speeding traffic is common in Benson 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 
Should the speed limit be slower 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(24) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Littleworth Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

People drive very fast and cut down residential streets. 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 

Too fast and a blind corner 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(25) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Passey 
Crescent) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Benson has a lot of traffic but narrow or non existent pavements so driving faster than 20 poses a risk to pedestrians 
particularly children, elderly and people crossing from the Coop to the chemists.In many stretches due to parked cars 
the road is effectively only a single track with limited visibility so driving faster than 20 poses a risk of collision. 

P
age 504



                 
 

 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 

Seems too fast 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(26) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, St Helen' 
Avenue) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I support this proposal as the pavements through the village are either narrow or non-exsistant and will hopefully make 
it safer for pedestrians . 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 

I think this should be reduced to 30mph when leaving the B4009. 
 
Travel change:  
Not really as I walk around the village already and thus support this proposal. 
 

(27) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, St 
Helen's Way) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

The increased traffic can do with calming. At present the traffic flows too fast and the crossing outside the tennis 
courts is dangerous as cars don't always stop when trying to cross. 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 

I believe that 50 is too fast 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(28) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Sunnyside) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Too much speeding in Benson. 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 

That's a bit too fast, especially for drivers who consistently ignore speed limits 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 505



                 
 

 

(29) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Walnut 
Acre) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
The village has become a lot more crowded with a lot of new large developments. The high street and Brook street 
are very narrow with an in adequate pavement along a long strip of Brook street protected by no kerb. Vehicles and 
drivers do not respect this and soon a serious accident will happen. Traffic needs to be calmed 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 

Again as per my answer above. Too much traffic following the old road that circles the village needs to be calmed 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(30) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Millar 
Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Reduction in speed makes for a safer outcome if pedestrians is hit by a vehicle 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 

I support a 40 mph 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(31) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Chalgrove, Berrick 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Narrow roads and pavements. 
Increasing population and cars. 
Traffic calming measures. 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns 

Short distance still close to residential area needs calming and controlling. Maybe even less than 50mph preferred. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 506



                 
 

(32) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Brook 
Street) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I support this proposal as the roads in Benson are busy and have many parked cars making it dangerous for 
pedestrians and motorists. I moved to Benson 8 months ago and have already witnessed 2 minor accidents and many 
near misses in the village. Reducing the speed limit will reduce this risk. Many motorists also speed down Brook 
Street, where there is insufficient protection on the pavement for pedestrians. These motorists come from Ewelme and 
although the speed limit is 30 many drive along the road at 50+ mph. Therefore reducing the speed limit to 20 and 
increasing the number of signs will help reduce speeding through the village. I also currently drive through the village 
at 20 due to all of the above and find it fine. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

I don't know which road this is 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(33) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Chapel 
Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Narrowness of the roads and footpaths in Benson. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

None 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(34) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Observatory Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

My children walk along brook street daily to school. There is not a proper pavement for part of the journey and 
reducing speed will increase safety.  
In addition the zebra crossing by zebra is in very regular use - especially by school children and cars come flying 
around the corner and often dont stop. Reducing speed is essential before the unthinkable happens. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

I have never experienced other drivers speeding here / felt the speed needs to be decreased - bit i dont object to 
lowering the speed either. 
 

P
age 507



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(35) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, One End 
Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
Benson, as with a number of local and parish councils, are increasingly experiencing traffic which is exceeding the 
existing 30 miles per hour speed limit on various roads through the village. As Oxfordshire is encouraging a reduction 
to 20 miles per hour on local roads, it seems appropriate to support the proposal. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

I do not know the road well enough to be able to comment further. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(36) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Oxford 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Benson is a historic village with small, bendy roads often with narrow or no footpaths on one side of the road, forcing 
pedestrians to cross at sometimes blind corners. It is very difficult and unsafe to do so when vehicles are driving fast 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

Not sure 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(37) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Preston 
Crowmarsh) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Due to an excessive number of new housing estates , traffic and parking have become much busier and driving 
through the Benson village requires great care 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

x 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 508



                 
 

(38) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Preston 
Crowmarsh Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

There are parts of Benson - eg near the school - which have a speeding problem. The 30 limit needs cutting to 20 in 
these areas. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

I have no strong feelings on this road 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(39) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, St 
Helen’s) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Safer for children. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

I’m not sure which road is being referred to, I thought it was currently a 50 mph road? 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(40) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, St 
Helen's Avenue) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Because of the ridiculous amount of new houses in Benson, with more being built, there are now many more vehicles 
on the roads within the village. A 20 mph limit would make the village a safer place. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 
No opinion on this particular proposal 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(41) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, The 
Moorlands) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Improved roads safety in and around the village. It is a residential area and roads are often lined with cars, so 20 mph 
is an appropriate limit. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

P
age 509



                 
 

NA 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(42) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Watlington Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
Speeding cars both on the High Street and passing Mill Lane, and speeding cars entering the village from Watlington 
and the 4074 present a constant danger to residents and pedestrians. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

not sure which road this is. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(43) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Watlington Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Cars and lorries travel at great speed through the village; certainly exceeding the current 30 mph limit. This is a 
significant safety concern, particularly for older adults and those with young children. A 20 mph limit would make the 
village a much safer place 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

I’m not sure of safety concerns on this road 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(44) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Westfield 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

As a pedestrian and cyclist, it will make things safer 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 
N/a 
 
Travel change:  
I already walk or cycle everywhere 
 

P
age 510



                 
 

(45) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Westfield 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Slowing down the speeds of drivers in built up areas will prevent accidents and any that do occur would be less 
serious 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

na 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(46) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Church 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Traffic currently moves too fast on some of the residential roads through the village despite the posted 30 mph limit. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

As this is less populated I do not have view as to whether the reduction will increase safety. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(47) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Old 
London Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Cars drive dangerously fast around Benson, especially on the high street, old London road, St Helen’s Avenue, oxford 
road, Church street, and Brook street. In these roads, there are often parked cars, dog walkers, children on bikes, lack 
of pavements etc. It isn’t safe to have pedestrian crossings on these roads so speed reduction is the best way to make 
it safer to cross, I think a reduction in speed will make Benson a safer place to walk, cycle and drive. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

N/A 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
(48) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Oxford 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

P
age 511



                 
 

I am concerned particularly with the speed of vehicles on Oxford Road outside the Primary School. I believe it is a 
national policy that the speed limit outside schools should be 20 mph. In addition speeding vehicles are regularly seen 
in Brook Street in the vicinity of the shops in central Benson. 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

No opinion 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(49) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Brook 
Street) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

A lower speed limit means fewer accidents and a better living environment for the villagers 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

It is still a fairly local road, used by people for daily trips, including more elderly drivers. A slower road would be 
“kinder” to the locals 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(50) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Brook 
Street) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Safer for pedestrians and cyclists 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

Far too fast 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(51) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Gravel 
Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
Vehicles are consistently travelling through the village too quickly. Additionally, there is not a safe crossing for school 
children needing to cross the main road through the village and school warning signs are inadequate. A child will be 
hit soon whist crossing the road if no action is taken. 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

P
age 512



                 
 

Speed limit is too high. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(52) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Mondays 
Field) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
Traffic speed is a great concern in Benson. With tight corners,  narrow roads and tricky junctions from when horse and 
carts were around around clear vision for pedestrians when crossing is often impossible. Drivers speeding over 30 
ends in tragedy over 20 (which is inevitable in some cases) can be less catastrophic. With the new development 
(where I live) has come more cars, and in turn more speeders and pedestrians. Nobody needs to rush through a 
village at 30. I have seen this on major cities such as Edinburgh and it slowed down the usual pace. If it’s working 
there why not Benson. 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

50 not appropriate for any country road. It’s a short distance. This would be too much change in short distance. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(53) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Oxford 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I live opposite the primary school - the volume and speed of traffic passing the school daily is very concerning as a 
parent - slowing down the speed (WITH CAMERAS) would be really helpful for pedestrian safety. 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

it's a very narrow road with many walkers, cyclists and cars - 50 mph is too much 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(54) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Westfield 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
A 20 mph zone will I believe reduce traffic speed from current levels for the benefit of all road users but especially 
pedestrians and children near the local school. 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

50 mph will often mean higher speeds in practice.  30 mph would be best . 

P
age 513



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(55) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Passey 
Crescent) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I support the proposal for a 20mph speed limit though Benson village and the roads running through residential areas. 
This is especially necessary along the length of Brook Street to improve pedestrian safety  and slow down vehicles 
which often exceed the current 30mph limit. 
 
50mph speed limit – Object 

The proposed 50mph speed limit is still to fast for a road that skirts the new residential area. A speed limit of 40mph is 
ample. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(56) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Mill lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

The village has narrow roads with many pedestrians, this will help protect especially the vulnerable such as elderly 
and children. Currently too many people speed through Benson well in excess of 30 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Support 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(57) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Brook 
Street) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Too much traffic driving too fast through village 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 
No footpath 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 514



                 
 

(58) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Castle 
Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Speeding through Benson Village NEEDS to be controlled  
 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Speed needs to be controlled 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(59) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Castle 
Square) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Many of Benson's roads are narrow and winding, with blind corners (eg Watlington Road as B4009 enters the village), 
no/very narrow pavements at many points and poor visibility.  Traffic, especially in rush hours, does not make 
sufficient allowance for this or for other road users - cyclists, children on the way to/from school, parents pushing 
prams, wheelchair users.  These issues are exacerbated by selfish/unsafe parking along roads, creating serious 
hazards - the High Street by the shops in the centre of the village and Oxford Road outside Benson School at drop-off 
and pick-up times are just two glaring examples. 
 
I fully support the proposed 20mph limit for Benson's roads, but feel this needs to be expanded to include Preston 
Crowmarsh Lane as this is also a narrow road with some very sharp bends, which encourages drivers to drive far too 
fast.  It is not clear to me why this road has not been included in this exercise. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

This road is too narrow and its bend at the 'Harrow' is far too sharp for 60mph to be safe.  I support the proposed 
50mph change but would prefer 30mph. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(60) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Castle 
Square) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Traffic coming through the middle of the village can be too fast, especially where the road bends from the Library 
through to the High Street. This raises very real safety concerns especially as children often cross to and from school 
in this area. 
 

P
age 515



                 
 

50mph speed limit – Support 
This limit seems suitable for this stretch of road. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(61) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Chapel 
Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I’m a Pedestrian with baby and toddler, we walk around the village every day, concerned for safety 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Slower limits much safer for everyone 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(62) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Chapel 
Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

It is clearly apparent that an increasing proportion of drivers are exceeding the 30MPH speed limits within the village. 
This is making it difficult and at times dangerous for pedestrians, particularly the elderly, mums with prams and young 
children and  people walking their dogs.  
We all hope that the 20MPH speed limit come into force before somebody gets seriously injured or killed. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Would prefer a 30 MPH limit. This road has no pavements and is frequently used by pedestrians and horses. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(63) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Cheneys 
Piece) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Need to control the traffic 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

It’s a narrow road 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 516



                 
 

(64) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Hale 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

More housing in Benson equals more cars. More housing in surrounding parish means more cars. Likely hood of 
increases vehicle / predestian conflicts 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Same reason as before 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(65) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Horseshoes Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Benson traffic and speed of traffic has increased substantially since new building began.  Crossing roads has become 
much more difficult - we are retired and need time to cross. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

brings into line with rest of the road to Watlington 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(66) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Mill 
Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I support this proposal as it will be safer for residents to have a reduced speed limit. Especially in Benson village 
centre there is a lot of traffic around the shops and no crossing for pedestrians. It is quite dangerous. Although 
reducing the speed limit won't elimonate this risk it will help it somewhat. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

This is a fairly narrow country road without many markings. Reducing the speed limit will be safer for other drivers, 
cyclists and equestrians, as well as wildlife. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(67) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Please could Preston Crowmarsh be included 

P
age 517



                 
 

public, (Benson, Mondays 
Field) 

 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Safety of the public, especially children 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(68) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Observatory Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Vehicles often go thought the village centre at speeds I. Excess of 30mph. The 20 limit will reduce the numbers doing 
this but it needs to be enforced! 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

A 60mph limit is too fast for the narrow country lanes where there are often horse riders and walkers. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(69) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Old Barn 
Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
Too many speeding vehicles already 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Inconsistencies 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(70) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Old 
London Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Traffic drives at excessive speed throughout the village of Benson and a lower speed limit of 20 mph needs to be 
enforced. I therefore support such a scheme. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

To help reduce excessive speed. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 518



                 
 

(71) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Old 
London Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Danger to pedestrians with the current excessive speed. Especially in the centre by the shops and on residential 
roads. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Dangerous narrow road. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(72) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Oxford 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I support the 20mph speed limit plan as one element in the movement to make our roads safer for all but particularly 
the young, old and infirm. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

I support the 50mph speed limit to both increase road safety and reduce emissions. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(73) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Oxford 
road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Cars and lorries go through the village too fast especially outside the school. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 
Appropriate speed 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(74) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Oxford 
Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Safety of children walking to school and reducing pollution in the village 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

This seems reasonable 

P
age 519



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(75) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Paddock 
Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Volume of traffic, public safety and safeguarding the envionment 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

volume of traffic and public safety 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(76) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Passey 
Crescent) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Over the years there has been an increase in the number of  vehicles travelling at unacceptable speeds through the  
village 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 
I've always thought that 60mph was too fast on this road 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(77) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, St 
Helen's Avenue) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Safety. The village streets would be safer with a lower than 30mph speed limit 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Safety 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(78) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, St 
Helens Way) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Roads are narrow in places, bumpy and low vis, so a low speed is better for other road users. 
 

P
age 520



                 
 

50mph speed limit – Support 
Too dangerous to drive faster. I'd never drive faster than that anyway. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(79) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Watlington Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Many cars drive very fast through the village and a 20 MPH speed limit is essential to keep residents old and young 
safe 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

I have no objection to this 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(80) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Watlington Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

As a resident of Benson I am very concerned regarding the large volume of traffic passing through the village.  In 
addition to the volume of traffic it is very noticeable that there is an increasing number of heavy haulage vehicles that 
pass through the village.  Even when the more mature drivers pass through the village at the current speed limit, then 
a fully loaded 30 tonne vehicle could easily demolish any of the buildings that overhang these narrow passing places.  
I would also like to highlight that I regularly cycle to and from work in Wallingford.  It is with increasing regularity that I 
encounter reckless drivers who attempt to overtake whilst I am approaching these very narrow sections of the road. 
I firmly believe that an enforced reduction in the speed limit will improve the overall environment of the village and 
reduce the risk of both vehicle accidents and accidents involving. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

By implementing this speed reduction it would also support the reasons I have provided for the Benson speed 
reduction. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(81) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Urgently required for safety and, in a small way, helping to save the planet 

P
age 521



                 
 

public, (Benson, 
Westfield) 

 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Safety 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(82) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Castle 
Square) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Lots of kids walk to benson school and to the buses to Wallingford it’s very dangerous around castle square and by 
benson school 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Cars drive very fast at the moment 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(83) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Chapel 
Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
Increased volume of traffic in the village due to new developments (which themselves have a lower speed limit than 
the test of the village). Safer roads are a critical element in encouraging active, non car based means of travel 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Increased volume in traffic due to new developments 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(84) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Churchfield Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Would like to see a reduction in speed on the roads in and around Benson. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Sensible 
 
Travel change:  
Run 

P
age 522



                 
 

 

(85) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Green 
Close) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 
In principle I support this but do have concerns that the on street parking in the village will worsen. Already some road 
junctions, ie between the B4009 and the High street by the old Castle hotel is often blocked by cars and vans parked 
on a permanent basis. Ewelme, which has recently introduced a 20 mph limit, is suffering the same effect. If through 
traffic doesn’t have a clear run even at the lower speed then more air pollution is the result. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

It was a ridiculous situation created when the B4009 was reduced to 50mph for financial rather than safety reasons, 
that then left it’s narrower link roads at 60 mph. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(86) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Littleworth Road) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

The centre of Benson is very busy with traffic which speeds through especially around the junction adjacent to the 
library, where crossing can be difficult and visibillity limited. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(87) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Williams 
Orchard) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

I am in support for safety reasons for myself and my children as a pedestrian and cyclist. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Lower speed limits are necessary for safety reasons 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 523



                 
 

(88) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, Maple 
Furlong) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

need lower speed for children and families in the village 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

seems appropriate speed 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(89) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Work in Benson) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Safety reasons 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Safety reasons 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(90) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (RAF Benson, 
Cross Avenue) 

 
20mph speed limit – Support 

Dangerous to walk through the village with current speed limits. Limited view when driving. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support 

Significant speeding making it dangerous to cycle along the road 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(91) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Benson, 
Churchfield Lane) 

 
20mph speed limit – No opinion 

I drive slowly anyhow through the village, not because of any speed limit but out of consideration for other people 
 
50mph speed limit – No opinion 

It is difficult and unsafe to go more than 50mph anyhow on that road!!  Also the road goes NW not W from the Sands!!! 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 524



                 
 

 

P
age 525



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Charlbury & Wychwood 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
CHARLBURY: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Charlbury as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Charlbury by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 02 February 2023 and 03 March 
2023. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email 

sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 
countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, West 

Oxfordshire District Council, the local District Cllrs, Charlbury town council, and 
the local County Councillor representing the Charlbury & Wychwood division.  

Page 527

Agenda Item 12



            
     
 

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Thames Valley Police re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and 

practice regarding 20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having 
concerns’ rather than an outright objection.  

 
Other Responses: 

 

8. 96 online responses were received from members of the public: the 78 in 
support included three listed as objections given they sought amendments to 
the proposals in single locations. One respondent thought the 20mph limit 

should be brought further in on Woodstock Road and another believed the 
steep gradient on the Slade dip would create problems with a 20mph limit. One 

respondent had no opinion and 6 expressed concerns.  
 
9. The remaining 11 were objectors, many of whom made surprisingly similar 

observations with ten comments that the proposals were unworkable, 
unnecessary, a waste of money, and indeed could compromise safety. Two 

commented that a blanket imposition was not the best solution and single 
comments concerned over sign clutter, pollution, and calling instead for the 
existing limits to be enforced. 

 
10. Those who responded online, were also asked whether if the 20mph speed limit 

proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a change to their mode 
of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below 
 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 25 (26%) 

Yes - cycle more 14 (15%) 

No 54 (56%) 

Other 3 (3%) 

 
11. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

12. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 

Page 528



            
     
 

13. There is clearly overwhelming support and while the two concerns regarding  
Woodstock Road and The Slade are reasonable, on balance the proposals as 

published offer the best solution. The objections cover similar views to those 
expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes which were not then seen 

as warranting a change in those previous proposals given the explicit intention 
of the County Council’s 20mph limit policy.  

 

 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 

 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
March 2023

Page 529



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 530



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 

P
age 531



                 
 

 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, B4026 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
Object - Extending the 20 limit so widely will cause it to fall into disrepute and be ignored. 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
lane) 

 
Object - unnecessary   it is difficult to exceed current speed limits except on The Slade which does need restrictions.  

I object to all the signage which damages the appearance and character of the beautiful old centre of a very small 
town/settlement 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
Lane) 

 
Object - Speed in areas deemed to be less safe are already restricted to 20mph. 

To impose 20mph on the whole town without reference to a specific need is overkill.  It is a waste of resources and tax 
payers money. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Object - I object only to the extension of the 20 mph limit to The Slade/Sturt Rd . I object for exactly the same reasons 

are objected in responding to the consultation in May 2022.  The road is very steep, including a substantial dip before 

P
age 532



                 
 

public, (Charlbury, 
Ditchley Road) 

the downhill section gives way to the uphill section. In snowy and icy conditions traction is difficult for cars without 4 
wheel drive. Moving at a slow speed increases the possibility of swerving onto the pavement or into the  path of 
oncoming cars. 
I don't object to the proposed zebra crossing or to the extension of the 20mph limit to the other roads marked on the 
plan. 
 
Travel change:  
More likely to drive through the centre of town in snowy or icy conditions, especially when heading towards Witney. 
This for reasons of safety. Like many older persons, I have fragile bones and health must come first. 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lees 
Heights) 

 
Object - The use of 20mph speed limits in charlbury is a complete waste of time and is totally  unneccessary 

The council should stopwasting money on useless initiatives like this 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Market 
Street) 

 
Object - It isn’t necessary and it won’t be observed. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury) 

 
Object - Because if people were taught to be AWARE of traffic, and to not be STUPID, none of this would be 
necessary. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Rochester Place) 

 
Object - I object to the blanket imposition of 20mph because this potentially demeans their value where they are most 

needed. The emphasis needs to be on careful, considerate and safe driving rather than an absolute speed; there are 
actually places where even 20mph is too fast - but there are other roads where, provided people are driving carefully 
and considerately, 30mph is fine. If a blanket 20mph rule were applied, I think people would generally ignore it - so it 
would require constant supervision, enforcement and policing. Given that most cars, buses and HGVs are petrol or 
diesel and will continue to be so for a long time yet, 20mph is actually a problematic speed, since it tends to fall 
between gears - which means that you are either uncomfortably, noisily and pollutingly in 2nd, or uncomfortably, 

P
age 533



                 
 

roughly and, yes, pollutingly in 3rd. Try driving up The Slade at 20mph in 3rd. Therefore, having particular places for 
20mph at least heightens drivers' awareness for additional care.  
 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Rise) 

 
Object - 20mph zones are frustrating, in the current 20mph zones most people do about 30mph anyway. There has 

been no pedestrian accidents since the area has been a 30mph zone, so I see no need for the 33% speed reduction. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (charlbury, 
sandford rise) 

 
Object - I consider much of extension of the twenty speed limit in Charlbury unnecessary. 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Shilson 
Lane) 

 
Object - The extent of the existing 20mph zone covers the narrow streets in Charlbury. These proposals cover the 

wide roads in Charlbury. It would better to enforce the 30mph limit in these areas. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
Object - Speed limits work best as a hierarchy. A blanket 20 means that this will be ignored on the main routes where 

20 is too slow and then no reminder when turning off onto smaller roads where 20 is appropriate 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
St) 

 
Object - 20mph will not be observed by drivers especially coming in from Woodstock. The limit should start at the 

bottom of the hill, not the top. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 534



                 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece Road) 

 
Object - The extension on road to Spelsbury is unworkable. It would not be adhered to. It would make more sense to 

open the campsite up to the close by bridleway/footpath network and improve signage so walkers from the campsite 
can confidently walk into Charlbury on a traffic free route. 
The rest of Charlbury it is a good idea but speed bumps and enforced narrowing of the road as recently installed on 
the road in from Enstone would be required for it to have any realistic effect. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Fulwell, Fulwell) 

 
Object - It is too slow and will prove dangerous when going up and down the slade for lorries. There is a good 

distance between footpath and road most of the way. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lee 
Close) 

 
Concerns - Its a terrible idea, the "practice run", has not worked, people do not follow the speed limits either 20 or 30. 

There is no way of enforcing the 20mph, this will also mean more cost replacing signage, and extra signage needed at 
more regular intervals as 20mphs needs. 
If anyone bothers to reads independent research on how changing speed limits to 20mph, you will see that most state 
that not only does it not work, in some cases it gets worse.  Unfortunately people cave in to peer pressure rather than 
hard facts. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 

Concerns - I have always felt very strongly about education instead of making enforcement’s stronger🤘 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Shilson 
Lane) 

 
Concerns - I am in favour of extending the 20mph limit on the additional roads proposed but not on the arterial roads 

around Charlbury, such as Nine Acres and The Slade 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 535



                 
 

 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
Concerns - I partly support the proposal but I think the proposed 20mph area is too big and will be ignored by most 
people.  It ought to be outside school and in the main town.  Approach roads like woodstock road are not suitable. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(21) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece Road) 

 
Concerns - I broadly support this proposal, because due to the width of most roads, as well as the location of parked 

vehicles, there are few places in Charlbury where a 30pmh limit does not regularly create circumstances that bring 
motor vehicles into conflict with pedestrians, cyclists, or other motor vehicles. Where there is sufficient space, it is of 
such short distance that it would not be worth having the limit change for that short time, making a blanket 20pmh limit 
for the town the simplest, most enforceable, and easily remembered means of promoting road safety. 
I am aware though that most older cars (meaning the problem will actually reduce with time) either do not have cruise 
control or a speed limiter, or if they do (like mine), ones that work down to 20mph, as the vehicles were designed 
when the usual lowest limit was 30mph. Having rigidly enforced 20mph limits on wide sections of road that do not also 
have measures in place to cause drivers to naturally slow down is likely, certainly in the initial short term, to lead to an 
increase in slower speed collisions, as drivers concentrate more on their speedometer than on the road outside. With 
this in mind, and as a full member of IAMRoadSmart, I fully support their policy that enforcement take the form of 
speed awareness training for those breaking the limit in such area, although with the caveat that speeds in excess of 
30mph be treated in the usual manner, which is not expressly stated by IAMRoadSmart. 
As a coach driver I am also very aware that the speed of the average cyclist is around 18mph on flat ground, meaning 
cyclists and motor vehicles spend more time in close proximity in 20mph zones. This, along with traffic calming 
measures that narrow the road, to encourage motor vehicles to naturally slow down, can lead to drivers not allowing 
the minimum distance of 1.5m between them and a cyclist when they seek to over take them. I would therefore like to 
see any traffic calming measures (which MUST NOT include road humps of any kind, due to the manner in which they 
increase emissions as motor vehicles slow down before them and speed up after them) include, wherever possible, 
measures for cyclists to be able to bypass them through a segregated area, thus keeping they and the motor vehicles 
apart. Those traffic calming measures ought also to not include whenever possible gateways that prioritise traffic from 
one way or the other (which would again increase emissions due to slowing down and speeding up), but ought to 
merely reduce the useable width of the road to the total width of a large car and an LGV/PCV. Where the width of the 
road is already less than such a measurement, prioritising gateways would be applicable. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 536



                 
 

 

(22) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Hughes Close) 

 
Concerns - There are places that justify it but we must be wary of not overdoing it like they did in Witney 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(23) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Bayliss 
Yard) 

 
Support - Seems reasonable 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(24) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
Street) 

 
Support - Safety. Lots of children in Charlburyb 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(25) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough) 

 
Support - Important to slow speeds for a number of reasons: to make roads safer in general, to encourage more 
people to walk and cycle, to make being out and about in the town more pleasant, to reduce emissions 
 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(26) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough) 

 
Support - Traffic, especially on The Slade, needs to be slowed down. This is for general safety and air pollution 

reasons. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
(27) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough) 

 
Support - Drivers need to get used to 20mph in all bult-up areas 

 
Travel change: No 

P
age 537



                 
 

 

(28) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough) 

 
Support - Safer roads 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(29) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Crawborough Villas) 

 
Support - There is currently lots of speeding on the Slade where children frequently are present, bring down the limit 
down to 20 may slow them further down 30 mph 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(30) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Dancers Hill) 

 
Support - (1) At the moment the 20 mph limit is patchy in the town. I believe that making it fully 20 mph will make 

compliance more likely. (2) Slower traffic would encourage more confidence in walking around town. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(31) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ditchley Road) 

 
Support - People drive far too fast! 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(32) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ditchley Road) 

 
Support - Pedestrian safety and traffic calming 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(33) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Dyers 
Hill) 

 
Support - Greater safety for pedestrians, cyclists. Encouraging non-motor vehicle transport methods. Safety for kids. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 538



                 
 

(34) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Elm 
Crescent) 

 
Support - At present motorists are dominant road users. A 20mph speed limit respects cyclists and pedestrians and 

helps make the roads safer for all 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(35) Local or County Cllr, 
(Charlbury, Hundley Way) 

 
Support - A consistent speed within the town is easier to follow/remember and 20mph is quieter/safer for residents. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(36) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Hundley Way) 

 
Support - Charlbury is a small town with narrow pavements in most areas. There are a large number of families and 

older people living here and having cars drive slower around the town will be a much more pleasant experience for all. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(37) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lee 
Close) 

 
Support - I believe the proposals will help to provide a safer, quieter and more pleasant environment for residents of 

Charlbury. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(38) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lee 
Close) 

 
Support - Because 20 mph speed limits are known to greatly improve road safety: all roads in and around Charlbury 

are residential. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(39) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lees 
Heights) 

 
Support - Safety, environmental benefits, social advantages (eg easier cyclling) 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

P
age 539



                 
 

(40) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Lees 
Heights) 

 
Support - The roads are more user friendly to walkers &amp; cyclists if vehicles travel at around 20mph instead of 

30mph. Also, the noise intrusion for nearby residents is less. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(41) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Little 
Lees) 

 
Support - Current 20mph scheme has gaps and should be consistent 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(42) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Market 
Street) 

 
Support - Safety of all road users, reduction in pollution and noise levels 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(43) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Market 
Street) 

 
Support - Will make walking and cycling safer around town 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(44) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Nine 
Acres Lane) 

 
Support - The speed of traffic in Charlbury is too fast too much of the time. The concerns are for the safety of 

pedestrians and other road users and the acceleration noise of powerful cars and motor bikes. While the 30mph, and 
higher, speeds may not always be reduced to 20mph they will hopefully be reduced somewhat making for a safer and 
quieter environment. Enforcement will certainly help. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(45) Local or County Cllr, 
(Charlbury, Park Street) 

 
Support - We have a 20 mph speed limit in the centre of Charlbury but on the roads which encourage the fastest 

traffic we do not have a 20 limit and this is badly needed 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 540



                 
 

(46) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Pooles 
Lane) 

 
Support - We live on what used to be a quiet lane. With the town now stretched to capacity (one hopes for no more)  

with new developments, there is a huge flow of traffic right past my cottage front door at rush hours, and in between 
those hours, the weekday traffic includes delivery vans, locals heading to the co-op at the top of the road and down to 
the station (we are a shortcut for those) and frequent trades vans. 
Regardless of us being in the centre of the  20mph zone, rarely does anyone ever drive at 20mph or less here. 
We open our door directly on to the road, there is no footpath. It feels dangerous, especially now with electric cars 
being so quiet. 
There are numbers of elderly residents who have to walk up and down the road to get their shopping, or go to the 
doctor or dentist surgery, etc. They are vulnerable to speeding vehicles. There are also children in buggies, and 
primary school children being walked down the road; they are all equally vulnerable. 
I want the 20mph to be consistent throughout the whole of the town so that all drivers entering the town can be notified 
and thus prepared for it, and by comparison they would also act to highlight the locals who currently ignore the 20mph 
zone, as it stands at present. 
 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(47) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
Support - Reducing the speed limit will make Charlbury safer for everyone, and will also reduce pollution and noise. It 

is important to emphasise that local roads are just for getting to your final destination - not for doing this as fast as 
possible. Priority in any locality should be given to pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(48) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
Support - 1. Fundamentally lower car speeds are safer for pedestrians, in any accident the pedestrian is likely to 

survive if the car is driving more slowly. So whilst there is a minor inconvenience (I'm a driver) that needs to be set 
alongside the far greater benefits to fellow citizens. 2. The current arrangement of some places (part of the Slate for 
example) at 30mph and other parts at 20mph is confusing for all, when I cross the road at Dancers Hill the cars are 
driving at 30mph. I'm fit and can cross quickly, other people are less mobile. Indeed there was an accident at the dip in 
the Slide when a dog was hit by a car, it could have been a child. 3. The plan to extend the 20mph to the cut-de-sacs 
around Sturt place make a lot of sense, there are loads of children and young families there - and I don't see why it 
was excluded in the first place. 4. The current 20mph covers some of the more affluent places in mainly in the centre 

P
age 541



                 
 

of town, we should have an equitable approach where ALL Charlbury residents are equally able to live/walk along safe 
streets. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(49) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
Support - 1. Safety of residents walking with buggies/wheelchairs from Charlbury's most populated streets to town 

centre shops, services and schools. 
2. Reduction of high levels of road noise on residential roads - accelerating heavy vehicles up and down steep hills. 
3.  Reduction of brake &amp; tyre particulate pollution on residential roads caused by driver behaviour - 
stop/start/speeding/stopping suddenly. 
4.  Understanding that Speedwatch schemes don't work.  I have been shouted at, laughed at, gesticulated at.  
Regulation is needed of driver behaviour on residential roads. 
5.  Drivers would not be inconvenienced or delayed, because of the stop/start nature of road traffic on these roads.  
Speed in one stretch is offset by stopped traffic in the next.  The proposals make sense. 
 
Travel change:  
I always walk because the town centre is so close.  It is actually frightening to walk down the Slade because of the 
speed of close, heavy traffic. 
 

(50) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Sandford Park) 

 
Support - Primarily, the 20 MPH limit will save lives and reduce the risks of serous injury. With more traffic in 

Charlbury and quieter - electric - vehicles, this is now urgent. And as we are all being encouraged to cycle more, safer 
roads, in the absence of cycle lanes, is critical. There is also the issue of noise: slower traffic in our neighbourhood will 
improve quality of live. There is also the issue of equity: why can't people living in the areas proposed benefit in the 
way people elsewhere in Charlbury do. There is also the issue of the school being one of the areas affected by the 
proposed improvement. It will also make it easier for drivers: there will be one speed limit. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(51) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Sheep 
Street) 

 
Support - Improved safety for pedestrians and cyclists, particularly children and those requiring mobility aids. Narrow 

pavements and parked cars can put these groups at particular risk, so reducing car speeds will reduce the risk of 
harm. 
 

P
age 542



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(52) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
Support - With the narrow sidewalks and streets, I think it is imperative that we slow down cars for safety reasons. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(53) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
Support - A good proposal 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(54) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
Support - Slowing traffic speeds in the town, makes a lot of sense 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(55) As a business, 
(Charlbury, Spelsbury 
Road) 

 
Support - Charlbury needs a 20mph speed limit 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(56) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
Support - Streets are narrow and negotiating around parked cars can be difficult for all road users.  Charlbury has a 
lot of pedestrians and no or very narrow pavements in many places.  Lower vehicle speeds make it safer for everyone. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(57) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Sturt 
Road) 

 
Support - Keeping my children safe. The 30mph area on the slade/Sturt, where pavements are narrow, is really 

unsafe for school run. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 543



                 
 

(58) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Thames Street) 

 
Support - We live at the top of Pound Hill and the traffic either speeds up hugely as it leaves Charlbury , or is 

speeding as it comes up the hill into Charlbury. It is very dangerous 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(59) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
Support - Pedestrian safety: winding roads often mean vehicles cannot be seen from far away, so the slower they are 

moving the better; pavements are also sometimes absent 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(60) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
Support - I am supporting a 20mph speed limit to prevent accidents as driving sppeeds are to fast for a small town. I 

am hoping it will also cut down on emissions. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(61) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
green) 

 
Support - Safety, there’s a lot of blind corners where pedestrians cross, lots of children as there’s nurseries and a 

primary school in the area 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(62) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
Support - In general, I believe the roads are dangerous for children and pedestrians. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(63) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Playing Close) 

 
Support - It is a town for living in, not driving in. People driving irresponsibly puts our children, elderly, and pets at 

risk, as well as causing unpleasant noise. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 544



                 
 

(64) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Playing Close/Pooles 
Lane) 

 
Support - Pedestrian safety; environmental protection &amp; fume reduction; noise; unnecessary speed of most 

vehicle users 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(65) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
Support - Safety 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(66) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, the 
Slade) 

 
Support - Excessive speeds on The Slade 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(67) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
Support - Making Charlbury safer, and making the roads quieter. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(68) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
Support - Traffic travelling too fast in places especially along The Slade by the school and Nine Acres Lane - both 

where the road is wider 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(69) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
Support - I feel a 20mph speed limit throughout the residential areas of Charlbury would help the safety of residents, 

particularly children. Living on the main road through Charlbury, we regularly experience traffic from Witney to 
Chipping Norton speeding at 40mph. A reduction to 20mph would not only give safety, but a sense of safety and 
possible reduction in traffic noise. Combined this would make the town a more pleasant place to live. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 545



                 
 

(70) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
Support - I cross the road regularly with young children some cars exceed the speed limit of 30. If it were twenty they 

would more likely move at an acceptable speed. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(71) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece) 

 
Support - Traffic, especially along the Slade, is too fast -often up to 60mph. Reducing it to 20, and adding a crossing, 

may help. So would speed bumps as on the Hailey-Witney road in Hailey. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(72) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece) 

 
Support - My children crossm the slade and would love to know it is same for them to do so.  Some people drive so 

fast.  If you could have a crossing and all 4 sides to ensure they get to the park safely that would be amazing. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(73) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece) 

 
Support - Significant pedestrian activity, especially children and elderly. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(74) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece Road) 

 
Support - As a mother of two children, working at the primary school and living in Ticknell Piece, it concerns me how 

fast vehicles drive on The Slade and past the school.  A 20mph speed limit would make it much safer for the children 
to cross. At the moment I am constantly waving at drivers to slow down. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(75) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece Road) 

 
Support - People have been killed on the slade previously and the road frequently has kids crossing it 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 546



                 
 

(76) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Woodfield Drive) 

 
Support - I have walked up the Slade to the school for 6 years or so. I also cross the Slade everyday to walk my dog 

in the fields above town - I can walk to the Slade and stand there, any time of the day or time of year and someone will 
speed past at some point! It is truly shocking the speed some people go - I once called a cab company as I caught the 
number flying past, upwards on 50mph! That was on the school run! The Slade is basically being treated as a ring 
road as it is wide in encourages speed. The junction into Dancers Hill is a fast turn rather than a sharp right angle, this 
slow traffic just there as someone turning into Dancers Hill would slow behind. Anything to slow the traffic would help; 
calming, crossings, cameras! Variable speed 20mph the whole Slade...???? They have it in Salisbury. 
2 people have been killed on the Slade over the years and what frightens me is that it feels like we're waiting for a 
3rd!?! I know when there's 3 something happens, like cameras etc.... why wait for someone to die when you can 
prevent that now! Please, please, please do something about the Slade before something horrible happens again. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(77) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Woodstock Road) 

 
Support - Many vehicles drive too fast on our roads and this might just slow some of them down. 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(78) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Wychwood Paddocks) 

 
Support - While the current 20mph limits have improved safety, cars frequently ignore it, and a broader 20mph limit 

would slow down traffic sooner. In addition, through traffic using the Slade to travel from the A44 via Enstone road to 
the Five Ways junction, and vice versa, travels considerably faster than 30mph. A 20mph limit might bring that top 
speed down to something closer to 30mph. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(79) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Church 
street) 

 
Support - Prevent accidents/pedestrians  being hurt 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(80) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support - Traffic speeds are far too high in the town although some improvement has been noted in the existing 20 

mph zones so further restrictions are welcome. 

P
age 547



                 
 

public, (Charlbury, 
Enstone Road/The Green) 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(81) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Hixet 
Wood) 

 
Support - Reducing the speed limit to 20mph on our narrow roads will increase the safety of the public. 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(82) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Hixet 
wood) 

 
Support - It makes no sense to have a 30mph area close to the school, and covering the dangerously fast Sturt Road, 

which children (including mine) use to get to school every day. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(83) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Hundley Way) 

 
Support - This is the best way of controlling the often excessive traffic speeds through Charlbury.  A clear 20mph limit 
removes any doubt or confusion.  The previous County Council refused to implement 20mph around Charlbury School 
- a major crossing point for residents at all times, but particularly dangerous for those in school wraparound care.  
Other peculiar anomalies will be addressed.  The terminal points have been designed to allow gradual deceleration.  
There is considerable evidence to show 20mph limits reduce both the frequency and severity of traffic accidents.  A 
Charlbury Town Council consultation showed overwhelming 76% support for this measure. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(84) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Kendal 
Piece) 

 
Support - It can be challenging to safely cross the road when cars are travelling greater than 20mph 

 
Travel change: No 
 

(85) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Nine 
Acres Close) 

 
Support - Good idea 

 
Travel change: No 
 

P
age 548



                 
 

(86) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Slade) 

 
Support - I often walk in Charlbury and the surrounding area, most days. I occasionally cycle and sometimes drive. I 

am of the view that many vehicles drive too fast. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(87) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, Sturt 
Road) 

 
Support - Road safety for pedestrians will be improved and reduction in pollution. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(88) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Green) 

 
Support - Some drivers ignore the 20 and 30 mph speed limits, speeding through residential streets such as Market 

Street which has narrow pavements and cars parked along one side.  Perhaps having the same limit throughout the 
town would have some effect.  Of course more monitoring and penalties would have even more effect. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(89) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, The 
Slade) 

 
Support - Charlbury’s current 20 mph area generally works very well - but in the 30 limits people often exceed the 

speed limit - eg on the Slade. Extending the 20 mph makes sense as there are areas where people cross the road eg 
by the primary school, by Londis, by Wigwell where 30mph is too fast. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(90) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Ticknell Piece) 

 
Support - I support the proposed 20mph speed limit for the whole town because, I feel it would make the roads safer 

for pedestrians &amp; cyclists. Being a cyclist myself, I am faced daily with speeding motorists who seemingly have 
no concern for the safety &amp; wellbeing of those not using motorised vehicles. Indeed there are times when I've 
thought I must be invisible, considering  some near misses I've had with inconsiderate, speeding drivers. A reduction 
in the speed limit for the whole town might help drivers to focus their attention &amp; give other, slower road users the 
consideration they deserve. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 549



                 
 

(91) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Woodfield Drive) 

 
Support - Since the pandemic speeding has become a bigger issue in Charlbury with fewer motorists driving carefully 

in residential areas. The town city is also becoming more densely populated with several recent housing 
developments contributing to the volume of traffic and no added pedestrian access. In several areas no pavements or 
safe pedestrian provision. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(92) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Wychwood Close) 

 
Support - As a pedestrian the roads are too dangerous at 30mph 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(93) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Wychwood Paddocks) 

 
Support - To make our community a safer and more pleasant place to walk and cycle, especially for children and 

those with mobility 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(94) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Dancers Hill) 

 
Support - Traffic goes through the town too fast, it shows lack of respect, is  unpleasant for residents and can be 

dangerous. 
 
Travel change:  
No I already walk in town a great deal 
 

(95) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Fawler, Main 
Street) 

 
Support - Safer for pedestrians and cyclists 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(96) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sandford-on-
Thames, EiverView) 

 
Support - I think I'm unitiesneedro besafe for pedestrians, car, bike and other users. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 550



                 
 

 

(97) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Charlbury, 
Spelsbury Road) 

 
No opinion - N/A 
 
Travel change: No 

 

   

P
age 551



                 
 

 

P
age 552



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Deddington 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
NORTH ASTON: PROPOSED 20MPH & 50MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph and 50mph speed limits in North 
Aston as advertised.  

 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in North Aston, and a new 50mph speed 
limit on the A4260 Oxford Road between Deddington & North Aston as shown 
in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within North Aston by 
making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 02 February 2023 and 03 March. 
A notice was published in the Bicester Advertiser newspaper, and an email sent 

to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley Police, the 
Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide 

Page 553

Agenda Item 13



            
     
 

transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Cherwell District Council, 
the local District Cllrs, North Aston and Middle Aston parish meetings, 

Deddington and Duns Tew parish councils, and the local County Councillor 
representing the Deddington division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 

7. Five statutory consultees responded. Thames Valley Police re-iterated their 
views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph speed limits; they 

consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an outright objection. 
Stagecoach Bus Company had no objections as they do not operate services 
in the area. North Aston Parish Meeting support both proposals and also seek 

a 40mph limit between the A4260 and village. Cherwell District Council have 
no observations or objections. Deddington Parish Council support the proposed 

50 limit on the A4260. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. 11 responses were received from members of the public. Nine supported the 

proposal for 20mph limits within the village, with two raising concerns. 
Additionally,  six supported the proposal for a 50mph limit on the A4260; with 
three raising concerns, and two objecting – one of which thought it 

unnecessary, so essentially an objection, and another considered it should be 
40mph. Six of the respondents also sought a 40mph limit on the short section 

between the main road and the village entrance. One person urged us to 
supplement the village 20mph limit with soft calming. 
 

9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 

 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 

that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  
 
11. The responses show clear support for both the 20mph and the 50mph speed 

limit proposals. The single objection to the proposed 50mph limit on the A4260 
is considered insufficient to prevent the proposal. While there is a strong call 

for a lower limit on the connecting road from the A4260, this a predominantly 
rural area without any specific mitigating factors to support a lower speed limit.  

 

 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Page 554



            
     
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

March 2023

Page 555



          
  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 556



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 557



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 
This response also applies to the 50 proposal on the A4260  .  Looking at the Collision  history it is mainly focused at 
the junction to North Aston  .Would it not be better to treat this junction in some way rather than  lowering the speed 
limit all the way to Deddington. 
 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

No objection – I can confirm that Stagecoach has no services operating on the affected roads, nor is it ever likely to. I 

therefore confirm we offer no objection. 

(3) North Aston Parish 
Meeting 

 
Support – I am the Treasurer of the Parish Meeting and the Transport Rep. 
 
As a village we have discussed this previously and we are in support of the 20mph limit as suggested. We are also in 
support of the 50mph limit from the Dual Carriageway all the way to Deddington. 
 
We would also like to request a 40mph limit from the Duns Tew Crossroads and into North Aston. You would be 
leaving the new 50mph and be able to do up to 60mph before having to be doing 20mph for the village. This is 
dangerous. This was suggested and agreed by the village. 
 

(4) Deddington Parish 
Council 

 

P
age 558



                 
 

Support – At its meeting last week, Deddington Parish Council voted unanimously to support the introduction of the 
new, lower speed limits.  
 
The 50mph limit on the A4260 will be particularly welcome since we are anticipating that Deddington village too will 
have a 20mph limit introduced in the years 2023/24. 
 
In light of this limit on the A4260, we very much hope that you will agree to our request, already forwarded to you, that 
you introduce a 50mph limit on the B4031 connecting Hempton to Deddington and Deddington to Clifton. Clifton and 
Hempton have also both been promised 20mph limits. 
 

(5) Cherwell District 
Council 

No objection 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston, 
Someton Road) 

 
20mph speed limit - Concerns  

The purpose of my response is that having lived on the A4260 / North Aston / Duns Tew junction since 1988, I have 
experience of both the changing trafic volumes and the type of Driver / road user. 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns  

I support the principal but have reservations as to the ability of all users to observe the limits. thus believe it to only do 
as intended if allied to further changes. 
 
Initially with the progressive opening of the M40, traffic volumes dropped and whilst there was a general observance 
of the speed limits enforced from time to time, accidents did happen at the junction in front of us. The northbound Bus 
shelter has been demolished on several occasions, once by a motor cyclist being propelled at it!  He was an off duty 
policeman. I am actually at my study window watching the junction as I write.  As to accidents, some serious, many 
not so and some even fatal. there have already been a couple this year. With the initial road speed bumps and 
subsequent speed Camera installation this has NOT changed for the better. All the more so given the "rat run" usage 
to overcome the local Bicester based A34 hold ups but more so now with the Housing expansion all around. eg; Upper 
Heyford, Deddington,  Banbury,  Bloxham etc. Again all the more so since "Lock down" and the use of the Somerton 
Road as a short cut to and from the population expansion in and around Bicester in both accommodation as well as 
employment. This has been further exasperated by the growth in traffic on the side roads through the "Astons" which 
include Middle Aston Road - Heavy Transport, Buses, Vans,  Lorries etc as well as School children deliveries in 
SUV's. The road edges are seriously collapsing and with the growth in Articulated lorry arrivals for deliveries and the 
width of the road not meeting current needs due to expansion in vehicle size, the surfaces are seriously eroded and 
breaking up. Thus slower speeds and greater driver reaction timing is desirable. Thus the imposition of multiple speed 

P
age 559



                 
 

levels over short lengths of road make little sense. Reduce the cost of installation of signage etc by going from the 
proposed 50mph on the A road to 30 / 20 in one sweep at the junction of the two roads. Keep this in place until exiting 
either North Aston on the way to Somerton and the same in the run to Middle Aston through to Steeple Aston's exit 
points. Time cost minimal, potential accident cost prevention, significant. Constant switching of speeds over a few 
hundred yards such as on the Bladon, Long Hanborough Witney road is laughable and not ecologically sensible. 
Constant gear changes and breaking cause greater fuel usage and thus pollution as well as frustration to Drivers. 
Thus less observance of the rules by them. Once again, time loss minimal, cost of signage much reduced and life 
dependency  improved. Resurfacing in a proper way - rather than the cheap spaying and graveling that has gone on in 
recent years - is probably out of the question given the paucity of funds in all pockets at present.  
  
As to the Main A4260 suggestion, the creation of a north / south lozenge shaped island with a long vehicle length bay 
across the centre for protection in the centre would both give crossing / turning vehicles as well as pedestrians a 
chance to a longer and better life. All the more so as now the traffic volume is higher than it has ever been. At the 
same time move the speed camera closer to the junction to further slow down approaching vehicles to the crossing.  
 
There are more vehicles passing along Somerton road than in all the 30+ years we have been here. Much more so 
since the considerable expansion of Nicholsons, a local business in the village with over 90 employees as well as a 
fleet of their own vehicles / trailers. This is added to by the use of Somerton Road to Duns Tew etc., as a cut through 
to Soho farm in Great Tew. The number of fast and inexperienced drivers on country lanes in Merc's, Bmw's. 
Porsches and a few Itallian super cars is unbelievable. All the more so as they hit the junction unexpectedly coming 
from North Aston. Several forced off the road outside our walls. One driving into our drive wall and their car being 
crushed as a result of low sun in their eyes in the opposite direction. What is more, there is no where for pedestrians 
to go other than on the road surface. Such are all country roads and long may they be so. Do not forget however that 
we have on the A road,  an under privileged girls support hostelry / school next door but one - past the Southbound 
Bus Stop - they walk their clients down these side roads as do villagers and school children from the bus stop! The 
churning up of the verges on both sides of the entry to Somerton road off the A 4260 is ample evidence of the size of 
vehicle now using the side road. 35 ton earth movers are regular visitors as are the large modern tractors used today.  
 
Thus to finish. A 4260. Move the speed camera closer to the road junction to stop accelerating cars impact levels at 
the cross over. Do impose the 50 mph limit on the A 4260. If cash available, build the safety reservation. Do impose a 
consistent limit of 20 or better 30mph across the collapsing narrow roadways in and through the Astons. Save long 
term lives, costs and emissions. All in one? 
 

P
age 560



                 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston) 

 
20mph speed limit - Support  

The strength of road that this relates to (the existing 30mph zone) is aligned by housing and this is a fair and 
reasonable approach which will make members of the community feel safer and reduce risk of accidents 
 
50mph speed limit – Object  

I believe this to be unnecessary. Other than the junction with Somerton Road (North Aston) and a couple of houses to 
the north there are no junctions that would benefit from such a long stretch of the A road having a reduced speed limit. 
What would benefit the Somerton Road (North Aston) junction is preventing local businesses from cluttering up the 
verges with advertisement signs and even a branded vehicle (which has been parked during business hours for a 
number of years) attempting to lure traffic into their out-of-town retail premise on Middle Aston Lane. These signs and 
vehicles block sight lines and create distractions. A branded marketing vehicle was recently hit by a distracted driver. 
Before these marketing campaigns took place on the verges around this junction I am unaware of any incidents 
occurring. 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston) 

 
20mph speed limit - Support  

Reducing the current 30mph speed limit to 20 mph through North Aston is welcome and sensible. I wish to support 
this. 
 
50mph speed limit – Object  
Regarding the proposals for a new 50 mph speed limit is proposed on the A4260 Oxford Road between the existing 
30 mph speed limit at Deddington and a point south of the junction with Somerton Road (North Aston). I believe this to 
be unnecessary. Other than the junction with Somerton Road (North Aston) and a couple of houses to the north there 
are no junctions that would benefit from such a long stretch of the A road having a reduced speed limit. 
 
What would benefit the Somerton Road (North Aston) junction is preventing local businesses from cluttering up the 
verges with advertisement signs and even a branded vehicle (which has been parked during business hours for a 
number of years) attempting to lure traffic into their out-of-town retail premise on Middle Aston Lane. These signs and 
vehicles block sight lines and create distractions. A branded marketing vehicle was recently hit by a distracted driver. 
Before these marketing campaigns took place on the verges around this junction I am unaware of any incidents 
occurring. 
 

P
age 561



                 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston) 

 
20mph speed limit - Support  

Very much support this idea, having seem many incidents in the village that could have caused serious injury or worse 
due to speeding. What measures will be in place to enforce this new speed - I assume a range of traffic calming 
measures? It would be good to know what is proposed 
 
50mph speed limit – Concerns  

I do not think a reduction to 50MPH is sufficient, especially as you approach the North Aston/Duns Tew junction. I 
think it should be 40MPH max and introduction of speed cameras that are in working order). 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston) 

 
Concerns – would like to express my general support for all the proposal made, as far as they go. This includes the 

reduction of the speed limit through the village from 30 mph to 20 mph, and  also the reduction in the limit to 50 mph 
along the A4260 from the dual-carriageway, northwards, into Deddington.  
 
However, while very welcome, these changes do not go as far as the agreement we had previously reached with OCC 
Highways, through George Gibb (since departed OCC) and David Catling, following various on-site meetings and 
discussions with them in 2021 and 2022. This specifically included the physical extension of the current demarcation 
of the village limits to include the entrance to Bee Cottage, a new residential development currently outside the 30 
mph zone, and the reduction in the speed limit between the Fox Crossroads (A4260, North Aston / Duns Tew) and the 
village from 60 mph to 40 mph.  
 
Through the efforts of Tony Buxton, our own Traffic Officer, now sadly deceased, we had established that the 
preferred position of the village sign, and the extent of the proposed 20 mph zone, would be moved to a point some 50 
yards (approximately) south-west of the entrance to Bee Cottage, some 100 yards or so south-west of the current 
position. It had also been discussed that the demarcation eastwards would also be extended, to include the entrance 
driveway into Coldharbour Farm and Manor Farm, and that a 40 mph limit would be introduced from there, eastwards, 
to include the Lodge and entrance to Manor drive.  
 
These discussions were still on-going in May last year, shortly before Tony's untimely death. I believe Kildare Bourke-
Borrowes has since taken over responsibilities as village Traffic Officer. 
 
While I appreciate that the changes eastwards along the Somerton Road might pose more of a challenge, I would 
urge you to adopt the proposal that the extent of the 20 mph zone should be extended south-west to include the 

P
age 562



                 
 

access to the Bee Cottage, and that the speed along that stretch from the Fox Crossroads into the village be reduced 
to 40 mph, as agreed. 
 
With regard to the crossroads themselves, I welcome the suggested modifications to the approaches for those turning 
off the A4260, either towards Duns Tew or North Aston, but fear they do not go far enough. The junction really 
requires a complete re-think, with either a roundabout (for which there is space) or traffic lights being the only long-
term solution. Removing the central turning space, while reducing the ambiguity of the current arrangement, may 
simply result in more rear-end accidents and, potentially, further fatalities. 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston, 
Somerton Road) 

 
20mph speed limit - Support  

I live alongside this road, and the current speed of traffic through the village is excessive. 
 
50mph speed limit – Support  

While a general reduction in speed is welcome anyway, this particular reduction will have a greater impact on the 
safety of the crossroads at The Fox, where the North Aston-Duns Tew road crosses the A4260. This is a notoriously 
dangerous junction, but heavily used, and accidents occur here far too frequently. Hopefully, reducing the speed of 
passing traffic will make this junction safer for local residents. 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston) 

 
Support – Along with most, if not all of the other residents of North Aston, I am delighted and 100% supportive of 

these proposed measures both in our village and on the main road to Deddington. 
My only concern is that whereas the proposed limits are excellent, it will be difficult to enforce them without any 
additional traffic calming measures? 
 
Somerton Road is a rat run nowadays for traffic wishing to cut across from Bicester to Chipping Norton, and certainly 
during rush hour periods, many drivers appear to be obviously oblivious to any form of existing restriction!!! 
I’m not a fan of speed bumps, but do favour the introduction of single line gates at either end of the village, as seen 
locally in Somerton and Bucknell? 
 
Perhaps worthy of consideration to make the new system work for everyone?!?! 
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support – I think it is an excellent idea to make the speed limit through North Aston village 20 mph. 

 

P
age 563



                 
 

public, (North Aston, 
Middle Aston Lane) 

And I would like to make two further recommendations. The single track lane between North Aston and Middle Aston, 
used by walkers, cyclists and horse riders, is currently 'unrestricted' - so potentially legally 60 mph. A restriction of this 
lane to 20 or 30 mph would not just be welcome to residents but sensible from the safety aspect. 
 
As would a restriction to 40 mph for the road from North Aston to the Duns Tew crossroad at the A4260. 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston) 

 
Support – I am emailing to confirm my very strong support for a reduction in the speed limit through North Aston to 20 

miles per hour.  I live along the Green and am only too aware of how fast some cars drive through the village. This is 
both extremely dangerous as there are often pedestrians walking along the road, some of whom are elderly or 
children, and also very noisy. 
 
I would also very much welcome a reduction in the speed limit along the road to Deddington to 50 miles per hour.  
There are so many accidents at the Fox crossroads it is important to introduce any measures which would make this 
less dangerous. 
 
Finally, I am strongly in favour of a reduction in speed limit from the crossroads until the village to 40 miles an hour.  
This would both be safer and encourage drivers to go more slowly through the village itself. 
 
I feel very strongly that these speed restrictions should be introduced as soon as possible.  The volume of traffic 
through the village and along the road between Steeple Aston and Deddington has increased hugely over the last few 
years and is likely to increase further with proposed nearby developments.  Any measures which will help mitigate the 
impact of this on local residents should be brought in as soon as possible. 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston) 

 
Support – I would like to express my total support to the proposed reduction in speed limit for the village of North 

Aston from 30 to 20 miles an hour.  It is of grave concern that cars and heavy vehicles pass through the village at 
excessive speeds when children are walking up to catch the bus to school.  The pavements are narrow and vision 
poor and is an accident waiting to happen.  The added developments at Heyford Park and Soho Farm House traffic 
have resulted in a “rat run” between Somerton and the A4260, which brings me on to support the proposal to reduce 
the speed to 40 miles an hour from the main A4260 crossroads into the village.  There is no footpath from the village 
to the main road to get the bus and both young and old have to risk their lives walking this distance.  Why are our lives 
of no value?  I’m not anti car but I am opposed to antisocial drivers who care nothing for the residents or the 
environment and it seems that tighter restrictions are the only solution. 
 

P
age 564



                 
 

I understand there is also a proposal to reduce the speed limit between the Duns Tew and North Aston crossroads on 
the A4260 to Deddington.  Long overdue.  To road is not designed to take the volume of traffic travelling at excessive 
speeds with poor visibility and roads exposed to the elements resulting in icy conditions. 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Aston) 

 
Support – I write as someone who has been involved with traffic problems through our village for many years dating 
back to when the Upper Heyford Air Base was operational and with the volume of traffic through the village it created. 
We may be up to those  numbers again. At that time in a bid to have some small impact  on the speed of vehicles 
through the village the Parish purchased and installed a Pair of "North Aston Please Drive Slowly "signs from The 
Royal Sign Factory Witney for just £144! These remained in place until we achieved a 30 mph limit through the village. 
Our original signs were then replaced with rather inappropriate and over sized 30mph signs and our old signs were 
taken away and lost . Over many months there have been meetings  on site with council officials and the suggestion 
of an official 20mph limit through the village was met with full approval . What also seemed a very practical 
requirement was the plan for 40mph limit preceding  the 20mph limit rather than the National Speed limit of 60mph . 
Without the 40mph limit before the village an area of sudden braking would be found necessary. While in dry fine 
weather that maybe acceptable in wet icy conditions it certainly has the potential for creating an accident . Surly the 
40mph limit before the 20mph limit would give drivers time to adjust to the slower speed necessary through the village. 
Another benefit of the 40mph limit would occur when  leaving the village in a westerly direction i.e the Parkfarm 
entrance is situated just beyond a bend and in the Summer months is obscured by verge-side vegetation. Tractors 
with their long trailer loads make an exit from here all the year round but it is an area that is particular accident prone 
in the busy Summer months. The fact is,the most modest of small cars ( ignoring the  Soho House Traffic ) can now 
quickly accelerate to 60mph when leaving the village, and they do! 
 
Please look again at introducing the 40mph before the village limit of 20mph    The 50mph limit on the A4260 would be 
a welcome upgrade.    
 
The reordering  of the Duns Tew / North Aston crossroad marking to prevent vehicles finding themselves nose to nose 
, their vision obscured , while waiting to take a right hand turn to either village can only be seen as an improvement 
 

 

P
age 565



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Thame & Chinnor 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
SYDENHAM: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Sydenham as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Sydenham by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 09 February 2023 and 10 March. 
A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email sent to 

statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley Police, the 
Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide 
transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, South Oxfordshire District 

Council, the local District Cllrs, Sydenham, Chinnor, and Aston Rowant parish 

Page 567

Agenda Item 14



            
     
 

councils, and the local County Councillor representing the Thame & Chinnor 
division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Thames Valley Police re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and 

practice regarding 20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having 

concerns’ rather than an outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company had no 
objections as they do not operate services within the village. Sydenham Parish 

Council confirmed their support for the scheme as requested. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. Nine online responses were received from members of the public with eight in 

support, one expressing a concern, and one objection. The concern was over 
the enforceability of the proposals, whilst the objector considered it 
unnecessary, a waste of money, and creating undue sign clutter. 

 
9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 

11. The objector expresses similar views to those outlined and considered in earlier 
similar schemes which were not then seen as warranting a change in those 

previous proposals given the explicit intention of the County Council’s 20mph 
limit policy. 

 

 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 

 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
March 2023

Page 568



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 569



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits – GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 570



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Sydenham Parish 
Council 

 
Support – This response comes from Sydenham Parish Council, and having applied for the proposed 20mph limit we 

are in full support. 
 

(3) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

No objection – I can confirm that Stagecoach has no services operating on the affected roads, nor is it ever likely to. I 

therefore confirm we offer no objection. 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sydenham,  
Sydenham  
Road) 

 
Object – There have been many initiatives to reduce speeds e.g warning signs, 2 pinch points, speed cameras which 

have had no effect. 
 
The last time there was a speed check in the centre of the village the average speed was barely over 20mph. 
A 20mph speed limit will only lead to more pointless signage. 
A waste of time. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

P
age 571



                 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sydenham, 
Thame Road) 

 
Concerns – How do you propose to enforce the reduced speed limit? You've already installed a pinch point along the 

road from the Inn at Emmington to the main part of the village, for which many vehicles speed up in order to get 
through it first - I have had this happen to me countless times now - so that hasn't worked very well. The drivers who 
already did 30mph or less through the village (me included) will continue to observe the limit, and those who didn't will 
continue to ignore it, unless you can enforce it. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sydenham, 
Brookstones) 

 
Support – Sydenham has increasingly been used as a 'rat run' by traffic and this is likely to increase given the 

restrictions to 20mph being put in place in Chinnor. This will add to the safety of all road users in the village - being a 
rural village with a variety of road users. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sydenham, The 
Green) 

 
Support – 20mph is urgently needed in the village. There is a high pedestrian footfall here with many children, cyclists 
, ramblers and dog walkers on our narrow roads and it is crucial to reduce the risk to all including vehicles on the 
narrow roads. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sydenham, 
Sydenham Road) 

 
Support – The village is used as a cut through to the M40, and during commuter hours, vehicles don't slow down 

entering the village, and between the Emmington end and the Playing Fields. The width restrictor has helped, but if a 
car sees nothing is coming, or a car is a distance away, they often accelerate to get passed it. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sydenham, 
Sydenham Road) 

 
Support – The roads can get very dangerous with speeding cars and as there are no pavements one has to walk on 

the road. A 20mph limit will make things safer. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 572



                 
 

 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sydenham, Park 
View) 

 
Support – The speed data taken from the VAR sign and local speed watch clearly demonstrate an issue with 
excessive speed in this area. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sydenham, 
Round Close Road) 

 
Support – For the safety of pedestrians and cyclists. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kingston Blount, 
Stert Road) 

 
Support – Although I don't live in the village, I do sing in their church choir. I attend practice every Tuesday and have 

to park on the road nearby. As is common these days there are too many drivers ignoring the speed limit and putting 
others at risk. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

 

 

P
age 573



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Shrivenham 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
UFFINGTON: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Uffington as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Uffington by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 08 February 2023 and 10 March. 
A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald newspaper, and an email sent 

to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley Police, the 
Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide 
transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White Horse District 

Council, the local District Cllrs, Uffington parish councils, and the local County 
Councillor representing the Shrivenham division.  

Page 575

Agenda Item 15



            
     
 

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Thames Valley Police were the only statutory consultee respondent; they re-

iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 
speed limits and consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection. The parish council confirmed their support, having carried 

out an informal survey in September/October 2022 which received 
approximately 170 responses. Of those who responded, 83% were in favour of 

either a whole or partial 20mph limit within the village. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. 15 online responses were received from members of the public: nine in support,  

five voicing objections, and one concerned that, while supporting the principle, 
the proposals were too extensive and unnecessary in places. Objections 
focussed on the proposals being a waste of money and not tackling the real 

problems. 
 

9. Notably, one objector complained that while this consultation process enabled 
objections to be registered, the Parish Council consultation was flawed in that 
it offered no option to support the status quo, effectively objecting to the 

proposals. Consequently the objector believed the omission provided this 
process with an inaccurate picture given the higher participation level in the 

local engagement. 
 

10. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

11. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
12. Objections questioned the principle and effectiveness of the initiative with views 

that in essence challenge much of the philosophy behind the democratically 

agreed policy to promote 20mph speed limits in communities; as such they 
merit no further consideration. However the concerns outlined in paragraph 9 

should be considered when gauging local acceptance to the proposals. 
 

 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

 

Page 576



            
     
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

March 2023

Page 577



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 578



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 579



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Uffington Parish 
Council 

 
Support - The Parish Council (of which I am Chair) carried out an informal survey in Sep/Oct 2022 which received 

approximately 170 responses. Of those who responded, 83% were in favour of either a wholly or partial 20mph limit. 
As a result the Parish Council resolved to request OCC to include Uffington in their programme and to move to the 
next stage and carry out their survey.     
 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, High 
Street) 

 
Object - Everyone should drive sensibly in the village without the need of imposing a 20mile an hour limit.      

 
Travel change: No 

 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, Green 
Lane) 

 
Object - High speeds in Uffington are simply not the big problem the Parish Council is claiming. The top issues 

affecting road safety in the village are caused by: 
(1) Severely reduced visilbility as a result of inconsiderate and illegal parking (e.g. blocking junctions / on zigzag lines 
outside the school / on the bend by the church etc.) This issue is a big problem along Broad Street and High Street in 
particular. 
All near misses I have ever experienced as a driver have been caused at very low speeds (much less than 20mph) 
and have been caused by poor visibility. 
(2) Potholes and the poor road quality which presents a persistant risk to road users, especially cyclists. 
The Parish Council chooses to ignore advocating ways to improve these very real problems whilst wishing to waste 

P
age 580



                 
 

money on a scheme which will provide no real benefit. I have raised these concerns with the parish council and have 
been ignored. 
 
I also consider the consultation undertaken by the Parish Council to be fundamentally flawed and the results of it 
should be disregarded.     
 
Travel change: No 

 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, Green 
Lane) 

 
Object - The Parish Council consultation is invalid. The question asked only provided options for additional speed 

restrictions or additional monitoring and enforcement. There was no option on the questionnaire for ‘no further action 
required’. This means that anyone who was content with the existing arrangements had no way of responding to the 
survey.  
 
No one has been able to provide evidence that a lower speed restriction in Uffington (specifically) will improve safety. 
General statistics that accidents are reduced with lower speeds have been provided but it is not clear that this would 
be true in Uffington. Many of the roads over which the restriction will apply are too narrow or congested for even 
20mph to be achievable. Existing restrictions already apply near the school at start and end of school day. Examples 
of dangerous driving I observe in Uffington happen at more than the existing 30mph limit so are unlikely to be 
prevented by a different restriction. Poor parking is a more significant risk on many of the village roads. The case for 
change has not been demonstrated.  
 
There are other more important road safety measures that should be prioritised given the shortage of money in the 
County. Road surface quality being the best example.  
 
Travel change: No 

 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, Craven 
Common) 

 
Object - There have been no accidents due to speeding. It will not make any difference to the FEW who want to 

speed and it will be a waste of OCC money better spent on repairs to extremely bad road surfaces which could cause 
more accidents to cars pedestrians and cyclists      
 
Travel change: No 
 

P
age 581



                 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, Craven 
Commented) 

 
Object - I do not believe that the speed of traffic will be reduced. I believe that those that speed though the village will 

continue to do so.     
 
Travel change: No 

 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Woolstone Road) 

 
Concerns - I am not fully objecting to the proposal.  I just think that the 20mph zone should be made slightly smaller 

and not expect people to slow down where there is little reason to.  I am also worried that it is the people who do 40 in 
the 30 who are the issue not people doing 30.  A 20 will not stop people doing 40 and so we impact law abiding 
people who are already going slowly with no effect on the real problem, drivers.       
 
Travel change: No 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Woolstone Road) 

 
Support - Traffic goes far too fast. There are children chickens. Ponies they use uffington as a cut through     

 
Travel change: No 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Jacksmeadow ) 

 
Support - We need a lower speed limit as the amount of children that have nearly been run over by people doing stup 

speeds through the village and the amount of animals mainly cats that have been killed especially down the main road 
is heart breaking. Something needs to be done.    
 
Travel change: No 

 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Woolstone Road) 

 
Support - For safety and air quality     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Woolstone Road) 

 
Support - Support this proposal to make the road safer and to encourage walking and cycling     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

P
age 582



                 
 

 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Shotover Corner) 

 
Support - Cars travel too fast on the current 30mph limit sections of road where there are no pavements.     

 
Travel change: No 

 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Jacksmeadow) 

 
Support - Too many people drive way to fast through the village so I believe having it changed to 20mph will deter 

them from speeding.      
 
Travel change: No 

 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, Craven 
common) 

 
Support - Constant speeding within our small village, risk of safety for children &amp; many walkers, cyclists, horse 

riders etc      
 
Travel change: No 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Jacksmeadow) 

 
Support - 30mph is too fast for a small village     

 
Travel change: No 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Uffington, 
Woolstone Road) 

 
Support - I believe that it would contribute to safety around the village.  Some of the roads within the current 30 mph 

limit are well known for speeding vehicles.      
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

 

P
age 583



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Chalgrove & Watlington 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
WATLINGTON: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits, but with the 
amendments in Britwell Road as outlined in paragraphs 11 and 12.  

 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in Watlington, including Christmas Common 
as shown in Annexes 1 & 2 

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Watlington by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 02 February 2023 and 03 March. 
A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email sent to 
statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley Police, the 

Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide 
transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, South Oxfordshire District 

Page 585

Agenda Item 16



            
     
 

Council, the local District Cllrs, Watlington, Pyrton, and Pishill with Stonor parish 
councils, and the local County Councillor representing the Chalgrove & 

Watlington division.  
 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Three responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley 

Police re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 
20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather 

than an outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company had no objections as they 
do not operate within Watlington but asked that we take any concerns from 
other operators regarding the effect of the proposals on the viability of rural bus 

services seriously. Thames Travel Bus Company – whilst raising some 
concerns that further reductions in speeds could make bus services even less 

attractive to potential passengers – supported the 20mph proposals due to the 
nature of the roads in the area. 

 
Other Responses: 

 

8. Eleven online responses and one email were received from members of the 
public plus one online reply from a local councillor who while supporting the 
principle of the proposals expressed a concern that they were too universal. 

Nine people expressed support, two had concerns, and there was a single 
objection. One supporter believed the proposed 20mph limit should extend 

further out along Shirburn Road to meet the existing 50mph limit so avoid the 
proposed 30mph buffer adjacent to the recreation ground. Similarly the two 
people who expressed concerns support the proposals but seek lower limits 

further out along the Britwell Road. The single objector supports the proposals 
in principle but petitions for Harmans Way (not currently on these proposals) to 

become a 20mph limit.  
 
9. The responses are shown in Annex 3, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
11. Harmans Way will form part of Watlington Edge Road and is being designed to 

be at 30mph to encourage use of the bypass for through traffic which makes up 

a high percentage of the flow. It is understood that this has the support of the 
Cabinet Member following earlier discussions which also agreed that the Edge 

Road 30mph limit should meet the existing 50mph limit on Britwell Road. This 
would result in the section of Britwell Road from the Harman Road junction to 

Page 586



            
     
 

the 50mph limit terminal, approximately 300m, currently proposed as 20mph to 
remain at 30mph in preparation for the Edge Road due to open in Spring 2025. 

 
12. It is considered that the proposals generally strike the correct balance for speed 

limits on the approach roads but in the case of Britwell Road that the proposed 
20mph limit stops at Harman Road in preparation for the Edge Road 
construction. 

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1-2: Consultation plans 
 Annex 3: Consultation responses   

  
   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

March 2023

Page 587



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 588



                 
 

  

ANNEX 2

P
age 589



                 
 

ANNEX 3 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 590



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
No objection – Stagecoach does not operate services in the settlements covered. We offer no formal objection. 

 
However, there are other operators in Watlington and the proposals are likely to have some effect on these services, 
especially when considered cumulatively with those in other settlements along the line of significant rural services. 
 
We would therefore urge the Council to pay particular attention to other operator responses. Material increases in 
service running time in rural areas can have a disproportionate impact on bus operating economics.  
 

(3) Business Development 
and Partnerships 
Manager, (Thames Travel 
Bus Company) 

 
Support (with concerns) – Watlington is served by the 11 service between Watlington and Oxford via Chalgrove and 
Garsington. A number of traffic measures have been put in place recently that have impacted the 11 service resulting 
in buses operating at slower speeds. The cumulativel impact of these schemes is necessitating a revised timetable 
with buses allocated more running time to make the same journey. In order to not add any additional buses (and so 
extra cost) on to the route this will result in a reduction of service with two fewer journeys per day in each direction 
Monday to Saturday. This reduced level of service will make taking the bus less attractive and result in modal shift 
away from buses resulting in less revenue to cover a similar cost.  
  
We therefore have concerns that further reductions in speeds will make bus services even less attractive to potential 
passengers and so make it harder for the council to achieve its goals to reduce car journeys. Given the distances 
involved and the nature of the B480 corridor it is unlikely that cycling or walking will make up significant mode share 

P
age 591



                 
 

for journeys on this corridor. Therefore the council should be seeking to maximise support for public transport on this 
corridor to help achieve our decarbonisation aims.    
  
Having set out the challengers that reduced speeds are having on the 11 service overall we believe that the nature of 
the roads in Watlington is such that we support the 20mph proposals in this particular instance.   
 

(4) Email response 

 
Support – I would like to argue that T1 on map 4/6 ought to be 20 mph as the road passes the rec and play areas as 

well as the new housing that is for seniors as these would be well used by adolescents and seniors and when the 
Edge Road is in place it would need to be 20 mph from the new roundabout proposed for Station Rd/Pyrton Lane 
Junction with the understanding that the aforementioned Edge Road would be 30 mph and the alternative route along 
Shirburn Rd at 20 mph would be a deterrent for taking the route through town. 
Otherwise these look fine to me, looking forward to it being implemented. 
 

(5) Local Cllr, (Watlington, 
Couching Street) 

 
Watlington - Concerns     

Reason's for supporting 20mph:  For much of the town the pedestrian pavements are narrow, very narrow or non-
existent.  Most drivers recognise this, but that is not universally the case.  In particular, those on the routes through the 
town, especially heavy vehicles, pass very close to pedestrians.   
Lack of enforcement:  The experience of Cuxham was that the 20mph limit did lead to significant reduction in speed 
through the village.  My concern is that in parts of the parish such as Christmas Common where the roads are clearer 
and with less housing directly on the road the 20mph will be largely ignored.   Other places where this might be the 
case are Brook Street, Howe Road as far as Ingham Lane, Hill Road from the icknield Way into town, as well as the 
entrances into town along Shirburn Road, Cuxham Road and Britwell Road.      
 
Christmas Common - Support     

The route through Christmas Common is used by drivers going to or from the M40, many of whom do not respect the 
narrowness of the road and lack of roadside pedestrian paths through the village.     
 
Travel change: No 

 
(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cuxham, 
Unnamed road) 

 
Watlington - Object     

Residential roads through new housing developments should be treated the same as Watlington and have 20mph by 
default. OCC's officers previously considered new residential roads in Watlington and concluded  “12.Noting the 

P
age 592



                 
 

above, and following discussions with the councils Road Agreement Team, it is agreed that the Edge Road is 
considered to be appropriate for a 20mph speed limit, in line with the current OCC guidelines. It is therefore proposed 
that the speed limit be re-considered when plans for the proposed wider 20mph speed limit scheme is designed for 
Watlington. This forms part of the initial phase of OCC’s countywide programme of 20mph speed limits that seeks to 
deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’ for the residents of Oxfordshire.” This is in reference to this consultation being 
held on 20mph "throughout" Watlington, but new roads have not been included, for example Harmans Way. OCC's 
cabinet member Cllr Pete Sudbury was also promised by OCC officers that 20mph would apply to proposed new 
roads through housing estates.      
 
Christmas Common - No opinion     

No experience     
 
Travel change: No 

 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington, 
Britwell Road) 

 
Watlington - Concerns     

I would like to support the 20mph speed limit but want the 50mph limit on Britwell Rd to White House Farm area 
reduced. I live in White House Farm, Britwell Rd, Watlington, OX49 5JY and often walk into the town. I have a 3 year 
old and a 6 year old who like to walk with me and a dog and husband. We need a footpath to get into town as the 
roadside is often overgrown and unwalkable and the 50mph limit here is extremely dangerous when walking. Cars 
speed up as soon as they hit the 50mph sign after the red kite development and they go past our house and past us 
walking at dangerous speeds. My neighbours and the people working in the White House Farm units also often walk 
into Watlington town and the 50mph limit here is putting everyone in danger. Please reduce the speed limit on this 
section of the road and do not increase to 50mph until past the houses and businesses.     
 
Christmas Common - Support    

agree with this     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington, 
Britwell Road) 

 
Watlington - Concerns     

I live on the Britwell road Whitehouse Farm which at present is 50 mph , I believe that the 30 mph should be moved 
from present location a further 400 yards passed the entrances for industrial 
estate and the two house entrances, for health and safety  and environmental reasons.. As you know this is going to 

P
age 593



                 
 

be a very busy road and there are many people walking into Watlington and back on a hourly basis from the 2  
residential  and 6 industrial property's . Minimum 30mph ,best 30mph, cycle lane and foot path. There is plenty of 
room for the later as you see above the property's pay a lot of tax and rates collectively so funding is not a problem by 
the council.     
 
Christmas Common - Support     

Reducing speed limits is a safe idea.     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Howard) 

 
Watlington - Support     

I am an occasional but regular visitor to Watlington.  The streets inside the town are narrow and in many places have 
impaired visibility, and would benefit immensely from slower speeds. 
 
20mph limits will not be entirely complied with, of course, but if they resulted in average speeds even 4-5mph lower 
that would be a significant improvement.     
 
Christmas Common - Support     

I come to Christmas Common several times a year for walking.  Walking routes from/to or through the area often 
require crossing, or walking along, roads that lack footways or any kind of marked crossings, and this would be 
significantly safer and less stressful - especially when with young children - if motor traffic were moving more slowly.     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington, 
Couching Street) 

 
Watlington - Support     

Watlington has appalling traffic. It is a blight that makes life in the middle of Watlington miserable. Road are 
particularly bad.      
 
Christmas Common - Support     

Christmas common is lovely, or at least it is when cars aren't charging through it. Really hazardous.     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 594



                 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington, Howe 
Road) 

 
Watlington - Support     

Have lived in Watlington for over 20 years and experience huge increase in traffic volume, traffic pollution and noise. 
Walking around the main roads through town is very dangerous due to excessive speed of traffic.     
 
Christmas Common - Support     

This is an area of beauty with great walks; dangerous at times due to traffic volume and speed     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington , 
Britwell Road) 

 
Watlington - Support     

My wife and I live on Britwell Road with our two children. Cars drive far too quickly down our road and even overtake 
at certain points making it dangerous for us to walk down to the town with our children and dog into Watlington. 
 
We fully support this speed limit change and it would make residents, cyclists, runners and everyone who uses the 
road lives far far safer. It will also reduce noise pollution when we are outside playing in our garden, 
 
Everybody in the village will support this change. 
 
Please make this change happen as it will have a big impact on the community. 
 
Christmas Common - Support     

Same reasons as previously mentioned it will make the community safer     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington , 
Britwell Road) 

 
Watlington - Support     

I live in watlington on the britwell road. I have children and dogs the road is very fast outside my property and 
dangerous. The 20 mile an hour needs to extend to the extent of the village as the new builds and us, like to use our 
beautiful town and countryside safely. Bringing the overall area to a slower pace would make a difference to the town 
as a whole.       
 
Christmas Common - Support     

P
age 595



                 
 

The area is beautiful and lots of walkers use the roads. There’s little or no footpaths at the side of the roads so the 
traffic being bought down to 20 mph makes for a safer road system.     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington, 
Shirburn Road) 

 
Watlington - Support     

support as safer in built environment.     
 
Christmas Common - Support     

support as safer in built environment     
 
Travel change: No 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington, Hill 
Road ) 

 
Watlington - Support     

Excessive speed on Hill Road also requires traffic calming  measures     
 
Christmas Common - Support     

Again excessive speeds need reducing      
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Watlington , Hill 
Road) 

 
Watlington - Support     

Excessive speeds already at 30 mph limit  
20 mph help reduce speeds provided enforcement traffic calming measures  excessive speeds along this straight road 
with no enforcement of existing speed limit would suggest average speed cameras along stretch of road or physical 
calming measures     
 
Christmas Common - Support     

Again need reduce excessive speeds     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 596



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Shrivenham 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
WEST CHALLOW: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in West Challow as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within West Challow 

by making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 01 February 2023 and 03 March. 
A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series newspaper, and an 

email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 
countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 

Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, West Challow parish council, and 
the local County Councillor representing the Shrivenham division.  

Page 597

Agenda Item 17



            
     
 

Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 

7. Two responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 
re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company had no objections as they do not 
operate services within the village. 

 
Other Responses: 

 
8. Five online responses were received from members of the public with three in 

support, and two voicing objections. Both objections centred around the 

principle of the 20mph initiative with claims it is ineffective and undemocratic. 
 

9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
11. Both objections centred around the principle of the initiative with views that in 

essence challenges much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed 
policy to promote 20mph speed limits in communities; as such they merit no 
further consideration. 

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

March 2023

Page 598



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 599



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 600



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
No objection – I can confirm that Stagecoach does not operate on roads affected by this proposal, nor is it ever likely 

to. In line with our general practice, I am again happy to confirm that Stagecoach has no comments or observations to 
make and offers no objection to these proposals.  
 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Challow, 
Road through West 
Challow) 

 
Object – The imposition of a 20mph speed limit in the village is not necessary. The current policy of OCC in trying to 

unilaterally reduce speed limits is undemocratic and ill conceived. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Challow, 
Road through West 
Challow) 

 
Object – As there is no general misuse of the existing speed limit through the village, any reduction of limit would only 

serve to strengthen the (misguided) political will of the Council and have no tangible benefit to the residents. It is the 
thin end of the wedge to further and unnessessary limits on driver's and resident's freedoms 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support – I support a 20mph limit through West Challow for safety reasons.  I also believe the limit should be 

extended beyond the extent of the current 30mph zone.  There are blind bends beyond the current limit which would 

P
age 601



                 
 

public, (West Challow, 
Silver Lane) 

benefit from a much lower limit for safety reasons.  In fact the whole of Silver Lane would.  The lane is narrow 
throughout its entire length and the road is used by walkers with and without dogs, children and horse riders, being 
adjacent to two bridle paths.  The many walkers and riders who use the route along Silver Lane come from the 
adjacent villages as well as from West Challow itself .  In addition to a 20mph zone it would also be helpful to have 
warning signs for pedestrians and horses.   
 
I both rode and walk the route through West Challow regularly and it can be a very dangerous and frightening 
experience when drivers approach me too fast.  My ponies have been startled by the too fast traffic on more than one 
occasion which is not only dangerous for us but is also dangerous for the drivers themselves.  It is also important that 
the revised limit is enforced.  
 
Travel change: Other 

Yes I would feel safer walking, cycling  and horse riding and would likely do more of it.   
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Challow, 
Silver Lane) 

 
Support – I live on Silver Lane in West Challow which is narrow in places and has blind corners. Traffic drives too fast 

and recently there was an accident on one of the bends. The debris is still there. I have had some near misses on 
occasion. Silver Lane is used by delivery vans and lorries and farm vehicles as well as residents. It is also used as a 
diversion route when the A417 is closed as it has been twice recently following car accidents and it is not a suitable 
road for that use. A 20mph limit would be a very good idea. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Challow, 
Silver Lane) 

 
Support – I live in West Challow and cars regularly cut through the village and drive too fast where Silver Lane bends 
around the canal and beyond where there is a right angled bend and down towards the A417. There are no 
pavements along these sections but locals often walk here with and without dogs and it is dangerous. There are also 
children who live in the village and horse riders. I believe the speed limit should also be extended past the sharp right 
angled bend beyond the canal. This is where a footpath across a field meets the road on this sharp and dangerous 
corner with no pavement and hedges so you cannot see when driving if there are any pedestrians on or around the 
bend. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

 

P
age 602



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Kingston & Cumnor 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
WEST HANNEY: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in West Hanney as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within West Hanney 

by making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 01 February 2023 and 03 March. 
A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald newspaper, and an email sent 

to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley Police, the 
Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide 
transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White Horse District 

Council, the local District Cllrs, West Hanney, and East Hanney parish councils, 
and the local County Councillor representing the Kingston & Cumnor division.  

Page 603

Agenda Item 18



            
     
 

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Thames Valley Police re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and 

practice regarding 20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having 
concerns’ rather than an outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company had no 
objections as they do not operate services within the village. 

 
Other Responses: 

 
8. Eight online responses were received from members of the public: three in 

support, four voicing objections, and one concern that blanket limits were 

unnecessary and focused calming was a better option. All objections 
questioned the principle of the 20mph limit initiative believing it ineffective, 

unnecessary, and a waste of money. 
 

9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
11. All objections centred around the principle of the 20 Project with views that in 

essence challenge much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed 

policy to promote 20mph speed limits in communities; as such they merit no 
further consideration. 

 
 

Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 
March 2023

Page 604



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 605



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 606



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

No objection – I can confirm that Stagecoach does not operate on roads affected by this proposal, nor is it ever likely 

to. In line with our general practice, I am again happy to confirm that Stagecoach has no comments or observations to 
make and offers no objection to these proposals. 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (East Hanney, 
Ebbs Lane) 

 
Object - Wont reduce speed. Drivers dont abide by current 30mph limit. What makes you think they will abide by a 

20mph. Also limit wont apply to cyclist who i have followed cycling in excess of 20mph along that road. Suggest 
money would be better spent introducing a chicane to slow traffic down 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Hanney, 
Church Street) 

 
Object - Unnecessary  

 
Travel change: No 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Hanney, 
Church Street) 

 
Object - I don’t think changing the speed limit will have any effect on methods of transport.  There are no public bus 

services and not everyone in the village is able to walk/cycle as an alternative method.  I don’t feel this is being done 
for the reasons stated. 

P
age 607



                 
 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Hanney, 
Winter Lane) 

 
Object - There are to many areas were the council is interfering with the rights of individuals , on checking the data 

there appears to have only been one crash in West Hanney in the last 5 years. Its is about time that parents and 
individuals took responsibility for their or actions and the actions of their children, when I was young we were all taught 
to cross the road and ride sensibly and safely.  It would be better to spend the money fixing roads so cyclists do not 
have to ride in the center of the roads rather than introducing limit which TVP openly say they cannot in force.  We 
need to stop being a nanny state and always blaming motor vehicles for problems, perhaps come and see the idiots 
on bikes in packs that regularly cut corners out side my house or take bends on the wrong side of the road and shout 
at people on the correct side of the ( mostly cycle clubs) 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Hanney, 
Main Street ) 

 
Concerns - Simply putting a blanket speed limit in place is ill-considered. Only certain areas should be 20 and other 

more effective measures such as chicanes should be used for main entry/exit points  
 
Travel change: No 

 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Hanney, 
Rectory Farm Close) 

 
Support - The roads in the village are narrow at various points which can be compounded by parked vehicles. 20 mph 
is an appropriate speed for the nature of the roads, 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Hanney, 
Winter Lane) 

 
Support - West Hanney is a small rural village with relatively narrow roads, with steep roadside banks and walls, 

parked cars and concealed entrances to residential properties; a 20mph speed limit will help improve road safety 
throughout West Hanney. 
 
The centre of West Hanney is a conservation area more befitting of a 20mph limit. 
At peak times, Winter Lane and School 

P
age 608



                 
 

l Road is used as a 'rat run' from the A420 to the A338, a 20mph speed limit will help to reduce the risk of accidents. 
At peak times, Main Street and School Road is used as a 'rat run' from the A417 to the A338, a 20mph speed limit will 
help to reduce the risk of accidents. 
 
Vehicles exiting Meadow Way onto School Road are partially obscured by a high roadside bank, a 20mph speed limit 
will help to reduce the risk of accidents involving vehicles exiting this new development and traffic on School Road. 
In West Hanney, footpaths and footways tend to only be only on one side of the road and often on the top of a bank. 
Pedestrians are therefore obliged to walk along the road to access a footpath or footway on the other side of the road. 
This is particularly a problem when crossing over the roads at West Hanney Green and crossing from the south side 
of School Road to access Meadow Way or St James Primary School. Likewise when crossing School Road from the 
north and south of Footpath No 5. 
 
A 20mph speed limit will help to improve the road safety of pedestrians and particularly school children when crossing 
all of these roads. 
 
There is no pavement for pedestrians to use on Winter Lane north of Rectory Farm Close. A 20mph limit will improve 
the road safety of pedestrians walking along this road. 
 
The lowland vale is popular with cyclists. Motorists overtaking cyclists in West Hanney endangers the cyclist, 
particularly as cyclists are prone to swerve to avoid potholes. A 20mph speed limit will reduce the need for motorists to 
overtake cyclists when driving through West Hanney and so improve road safety. 
 
West Hanney has a large number of horse riders using the roads to access the restricted byways and bridleways. A 
20mph speed limit will help to reduce the risk of injury to horses and horse riders. Some years ago a horse was fatally 
injured by a vehicle on School Road outside St James Primary School. 
 
Parking restrictions are being considered along School Road to improve the road safety of schoolchildren crossing 
School Road at St James Primary School. A 20mph speed limit will also help to improve road safety at this location. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Hanney, 
Winter Lane) 

 
Support - I strongly support this proposal. West Hanney is a small rural village with a primary school. There is no 
street lighting. 

P
age 609



                 
 

 
A 20mph limit should be introduced for the safety of pedestrians, and the safety of children during drop off and 
collection times at school. 
 
The current limit of 30mph is exceeded by some drivers, particularly on the road past the primary school. A reduction 
to 20mph would significantly increase safety, and reduce the amount of cars using the village as a speedy short cut. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

  

P
age 610



                 
 

 

P
age 611



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Kingston & Cumnor 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
EAST HANNEY: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposals as advertised, but to note comments in paragraph 12. 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed in East Hanney as shown in Annex 1. 

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identi fied in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within East Hanney 

by making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 04 January 2023 and 03 
February. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series newspaper, 

and an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including 
Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus 
operators, countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale 

of White Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, East Hanney, and West 

Page 613

Agenda Item 19



            
     
 

Hanney parish councils, and the local County Councillor representing the 
Kingston & Cumnor division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Four responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 

re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection. Stagecoach and Thames Travel/Oxford bus companies both 

consider a 20mph limit is not justified on the A338; Stagecoach do not object 
as the effect on their services will be modest. Oxford Bus Company do object 
due to the greater effect on their services. East Hanney Parish Council support 

the proposals. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. Eleven online responses were received from members of the public with 5 

expressing support, one with concerns, and five objectors. One objection was 
from a member of the public from Witney who railed against the proposal in 

principle suggesting it was a dark day for democracy and the start of a dystopian 
future with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign displayed universally across Russia. 
Two objectors thought 20mph limits were acceptable elsewhere but not on the 

A338 and other negative comments included 20mph limits not being required, 
worsening pollution, a waste of money and compromising safety as drivers 

focussed more on their speedometers than the road ahead.  
 

9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original responses are 

available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
11. The responses from members of the public, albeit in relatively low number, 

indicate around 50% support. The unfocussed objection raised no new 

pertinent points and challenges much of the philosophy behind the 
democratically agreed policy to promote 20 mph speed limits in communities, 

as such there is no obligation to consider it further. The remaining objections 
cite similar views to those expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes 
and were not seen as warranting a change in those previous proposals given 

the explicit intention of the County Council’s 20mph limit policy.  
 

12. The bus companies’ objection and concerns mirror their recognised recent view 
of believing reduced speed limits compromise service viability and may lead to 

Page 614



            
     
 

modal shift away from buses. There appears to be no immediate threat to 
services but recent discussions with Oxford Bus Company regarding proposals 

for reduced limits in Abingdon suggest their concerns over the A338 proposals 
should be considered seriously.   

 
 

Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 
March 2023

Page 615



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 616



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 617



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 
This response also applies to the 50 proposal on the A4260  .  Looking at the Collision  history it is mainly focused at 
the junction to North Aston  .Would it not be better to treat this junction in some way rather than  lowering the speed 
limit all the way to Deddington. 
 

(2) East Hanney Parish 
Council 

Support – it is most welcome that our village campaign is now bearing fruit. 

(3) Business Development 
and Partnerships 
Manager, (Thames Travel 
Bus Company) 

 
Concerns – We have no problem with and support these proposals where they do not affect bus services. East 

Hanney has excellent bus service provision in terms of frequency, spread of the day/week and destinations available. 
These routes are provided by ourselves (Oxford Bus Company and Thames Travel) and Stagecoach.  
  
The proposals as set out do not impact the Thames Travel X36 service as Steventon Road and the southern section 
of the A338 are to retain their existing 30 mph limit. The proposals do however impact on the Oxford Bus Company X1 
service and on Stagecoach service S9.  
  
We have concerns about the 20mph to be applied to the A338 between Steventon Road and the north of the village. 
There are minimal direct frontage access and minimal commercial activity on this section of road. The main junction at 
The Green is one that has to be negotiated by buses turning on and off the A338 as well as pedestrians from the new 
developments off Steventon Road trying to get to the main village centre and St James C of E Primary School. 
However, whilst doubting that a 20mph limit will be self-enforcing we do not object to a 20 mph speed limit on this 
section of the A338.  

P
age 618



                 
 

  
We believe the introduction of a 20 mph speed limit on Main Street is a sensible suggestion, given the road widths, 
frontages and the fact that it is unlikely buses are able to operate much faster than 20 mph currently. We therefore do 
not object to a 20 mph speed limit on Main Street.  
  
We see no justification for a reduced 20mph speed limit on the section of Summertown from the junction of the A338 
to just before the right-hand bend into the village and so object to the proposed speed limit for this section of road. 
This section of road has no frontages whatsoever and so there will be no planned mixing between vulnerable road 
users and motorised traffic. Extending the 30mph from the A338 along Summertown to just before the bend will help 
provide a buffer for traffic leaving the main A road at 50mph and before entering the village and the proposed 20 mph 
area.  
  
It is important that buses are able to make progress where it is safe for them to do so. Whilst the section of road we 
propose remains at 30mph is modest, unlike a private motorist that may typically go along the road once in each 
direction in a day our buses operate along Summertown up to 34 times a day in each direction and so the impact is 
that much greater. Slowing journeys makes services less attractive to passengers and would serve to encourage 
negative modal shift from public transport to private motor vehicles, which is contrary to the council's policies. 
Ultimately if journey times become too great, either, extra bus and driver resource needs to be added to maintain the 
same level of service (i.e. increased cost for no increased revenue) or alternatively timetables need to be trimmed so 
that they can be operated with the existing resource (i.e. reduced revenue from the same operating cost). This could 
lead to services becoming financially unsustainable and so could lead to service reductions.    
   
Given the nature of the A338 and the distance involved it is unlikely that cycling or walking will make up significant 
mode share on this corridor. Therefore the council should be seeking to maximise support for public transport on this 
corridor to help achieve our decarbonisation aims.  
  

(4) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
Concerns – In response to the consultation Stagecoach makes the following observations: 
 
• There are a number of bus services operating both through the village using the High Street, and using the A338 and 
Steventon Road. In fact, for its size, this village benefits from a quite exceptional level of bus service frequency, 
timetable coverage and destination connectivity.  
• These routes are run by ourselves and Thames Travel. Our service S9 uses the A338 and does not use Steventon 
Road or the High Street. We nevertheless urge that the Council also has very clear regard, and gives appropriate 
weight, to the responses of Thames Travel. 

P
age 619



                 
 

Stagecoach has concerns that a 20mph limit will be applied to the A338 itself between Steventon Road and the north 
edge of the village. There is minimal direct frontage access. There is minimal commercial activity, though the main 
junction at The Green is one that feeds pedestrian traffic from recent development to the east, accounting for several 
hundred homes, towards the primary school to the west. We note no attempt is being made to improve pedestrian 
crossing facilities at or near this point. 
 
The road is not a busy cycle corridor - in no small measure because it is very lengthy and the nature of the road, 
which cannot accommodate dedicated cycling provision, is especially intimidating to cyclists on its whole length south 
of Frilford in particular. Remedying this would require a highly engineered off-line solution. 
 
We do not see that the proposals in respect of the A338, or for that matter Steventon Road, are well justified, 
proportional or are likely to be effective, as we do not see that they are readily self-enforcing. 
 
The impact of the proposals on our S9 service are nevertheless anticipated to be modest, sufficient that we do not 
consider that an objection should be maintained by Stagecoach.  
 
Notwithstanding this, we have substantial concerns that the Steventon Road proposals are even less justifiable, and 
were we the operator of the routes in question, we would object to this element. 
 
We once again emphasise to the Council that the cumulative effect of a blanket application of 20mph on an extensive 
basis in multiple settlements on a route corridor can be expected to materially undermine the efficiency, attractiveness 
and longer-term viability of inter-urban and rural bus services.  
 
The Council as a matter of policy does not provide revenue support to bus services from mainstream funds. If the 
Council is intent on protecting bus services coverage, frequency and timetable coverage, in line with a range of 
LTCP5 policy objectives, it is off the essence that it does not pursue its policies in such a way, that have the effect of 
making buses less relevant, less attractive and costlier to run. 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Wantage, Sedge 
Smith Way) 

 
Object - The objection is to having the 20 mph limit on the A338. This is a through 'A' road with no residential 

properties with driveways directly accessing the road. There is already a pedestrian crossing to allow residents to 
cross this road, and there are no other places where residents would be likely to want to cross the road, since there is 
no footpath along this road on either side. The 20 mph speed limit is for such a short stretch that there would be no 
particular benefits in terms of a reduction in braking and acceleration, and in any case, there is no particular 
congestion on any of that stretch. It seems like the 20 mph speed limit is being added here purely on principle since 

P
age 620



                 
 

none of the listed benefits would apply, and no account is taken of the increased likelihood of accidents as some 
drivers get impatient with a pointless speed limit (yes, that is the fault of those drivers, but we live in the real world 
where this happens and impatient drivers cause accidents for patient drivers too). 
 
I don't object to the 20 mph speed limit in the rest of the village if that is what the village residents want.     
 
Travel change: No     

 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Object - East Hanney has reasonable distance of the road and paths. Showing no need for a speed limit change but 

again sadly this is being ignored as well. It has been a pleasure to drive through East Hanney and visiting its 
surroundings. Community has a great place here. 
 
t is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change the speed 
limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or Towns for 
example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody wants 
to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys because the Councillors cannot 
kick the habit, they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. There are other ethical 
and more sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example increasing public path space to signal where a 
pedestrian and cyclist can have their own lane including encouragement notices on local notice boards. 
 
20mph limits are as depressing as the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town that are as 
comparable as Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at home 
a utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political decision and not 
a road safety decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built residential resistance (civilly 
making the points why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I don't take it lightly to compare 
the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or Town and what it looks like with the 
Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown every 100 yards or less. It is regretful but 
the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead end streets that have no through roads as well 
making it even more frustrating. Remember this when the staff doing these consultations visit, they were not 
concerned and volunteered to drive at 20mph in a road they are doing this consultation for and whys that? Because 
they know there is no need to change the speed limits because they felt safe driving at 30mph or near that at 28 for 
example. Does that not tell you why all this is unnecessary?  
 
I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a stand and that is to say no. No to such 

P
age 621



                 
 

depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations common sense, personal responsibility 
and the basic human right to choose how we cycle, walk and drive to places. We will be ashamed of what horrid path 
this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion and rule within minuit management by edict with no 
supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal compliance even after that. This will undoubtedly 
depress many residents psychologically seeing how needless this was, how robbed their community is of having 
common sense and a sense of personal responsibility as per the Highway code and is depressing for passionate 
motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce road 
incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management are interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this 
objection to the proposal but some I hope will take back these genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying to 
fight against this nonsenical anti-car movement. www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-
today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, "Traffic 
Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed or 
unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council and their staff 
should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust toward local 
authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as comparable as 
propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will see this for what it is. 
The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand this political movement 
against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in to attack the Motorist? If this is because of a 
personal experience then we are living in very dangerous territory democratically.  
 
Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 20mph 
or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing down 
traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a straight road 
where somebody does not need to drive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even Councillors know that 
despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road surfacing improvements from 
what I been advised within the industry). Road accidents will not be eradicated so the ideology thinking we will 
eradicate road incidents/fatalities I am afraid are kidding themselves. 
 
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement but 
I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is ignored for 
political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like they did in other 
national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when people working 
within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?” 

P
age 622



                 
 

 
Travel change: No     

 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Grove, Woodhill 
Drive) 

 
Object - On the local village roads I have no issue. Please not on any part of the A338, the clue is in the name it's an 

A road!     
 
Travel change: No   

   

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Wantage, 
Segsbury Road) 

 
Object - I don't believe these do anything to make the roads safer. Drivers spent more time looking at the 
speedometer worrying about speedlimit than they do keeping their eyes on the road where they belong.     
 
Travel change: Other      

Drive more. This question makes it clear that the real objective isn't safety but to make private vehicle ownership as 
inconvenient as possible under the disguise of safety and environment. 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Grove, Glebe 
Gardens) 

 
Object - You should look to Wales. They had plans and trials for 20 mph in large parts of Wales, but most have now 

been scrapped, so save money and get their research. Improve the infrastructure properly rather than by taking the 
cheap option of road signs. Most cars on the road will generate more pollution by reducing the speed, then the extra 
acceleration out of the 20 mph zone back to 50 mph.      
 
Travel change: No   

   

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (East Hanney, 
Berry Lane) 

 
Concerns - Another speed limit is unnecessary the existing limit needs enforcing     

 
Travel change: No  

    

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (East Hanney, 
Main Street) 

 
Support - I support the proposals as they will make cycling, riding and walking in the village a more pleasant and safe 

experience for all.     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more    

P
age 623



                 
 

  

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (East Hanney, The 
Medway) 

 
Support - A child was hit by a car outside the school. Safety during school drop off is terrible and a real risk to life.     

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more     

 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (East Hanney, The 
Medway) 

 
Support - To make our village safer.     

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more     

 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (East Hanney, 
Alfreds Place) 

 
Support - The roads through E Hanney, particularly the A338, are treated by many drivers like a race track.  With the 

new limit we also need enforcement.     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

     

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Wantage, 
Warmans Close) 

 
Support - East Hanney seems to be on a main route for a lot of car and van drivers on their way to and from work.  As 

with usual rush hour traffic they are in a hurry to get from A to B and disregard the speed limit as a result.  Lowering it 
even further would provide a safer environment for residents, children and animals in what is otherwise a peaceful 
village but which happens to have a main route through the middle of it.     
 
Travel change: No   

   

  

P
age 624



                 
 

 

P
age 625



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Goring 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 MARCH 2023 

 
WOODCOTE: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Woodcote as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Woodcote by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 03 February 2023 and 03 March. 
A notice was published in the Henley Standard newspaper, and an email sent 

to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley Police, the 
Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide 
transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, South Oxfordshire District 

Council, the local District Cllrs, Woodcote, and Goring Heath parish councils, 
and the local County Councillor representing the Goring division.  

Page 627

Agenda Item 20



            
     
 

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Three responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley 

Police re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 
20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather 
than an outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company had no objections as they 

do not operate services within the village. Thames Travel Bus Company 
objected to the introduction of 20mph speed limits on the B471 Oxford Road, 

and on Reading Road from the east of the village to its junction with Greenmore  
– citing the lack of active frontages on these sections that would encourage, or 
lead to frequent and planned mixing between vulnerable road users and 

motorised traffic. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. 53 online responses were received from members of the public: 40 in support, 

six with concerns, and seven expressing objections. Most objections 
considered the proposals a waste of money and not tackling the real problems. 

Problems of drivers breaking the law and being less focussed together with 
higher journey costs were also raised. Notably, one objector feared it leading 
to the loss of bus services. 

 
9. Those who responded online, were also asked whether if the 20mph speed limit 

proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a change to their mode 
of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below 
 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 16 (30%) 

Yes - cycle more 11 (21%) 

No 24 (45%) 

Other 2 (4%) 

 
10. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

11. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 

Page 628



            
     
 

12. The objections are comparable to those expressed and considered in earlier 
similar schemes and, given the explicit intention of the County Council’s 

democratically agreed 20mph limit policy, were not considered to warrant a 
change in those previous proposals; as such they merit no further 

consideration. 
 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

March 2023 
 

 
 
 

Page 629



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 630



                 
 

 ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 

P
age 631



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
No objection – Stagecoach does not operate services in the settlements covered. We thus offer no formal objection. 

 
However, there are other bus operators in Woodcote. The proposals are likely to have some effect on these services, 
especially when considered cumulatively with those in other settlements along the line of what is a strategically 
significant and lengthy interurban route group. 
 
We would therefore urge the Council to pay particular attention to other operator responses. Material increases in 
service running time in rural areas can have a disproportionate impact on bus operating economics. 
 

(3) Business Development 
and Partnerships 
Manager, (Thames Travel 
Bus Company) 

 
Object – Woodcote is served by the trunk X40 service between Oxford and Reading and also by the school-day only 

service BB3. Both services have recently had extra running time added with yet further additional running time due to 
be added to the X40 shortly.  
  
The new X40 timetable will require an extra bus to be added to the cycle in order to maintain the current frequency. 
Whilst there will be extra driver and bus costs it is highly unlikely that there will be any additional passenger revenue 
as the service frequency will remain the same. The longer journey times is actually likely to see a reduction in 
patronage as the service becomes less attractive compared to making the journey by car. In order to minimise the 
increase in bus and driver costs which result from this we had proposed to withdraw certain evening journeys when 
fewer people travel. We are grateful that the County Council is to temporarily provide funding to keep these journeys 
operating.  
  

P
age 632



                 
 

We therefore have concerns that further reductions in speeds will make bus services even more unattractive to 
potential passengers. We have no problem with and support these proposals where they do not affect bus services. 
Given the nature of the roads we do not object to the proposals for Bridle Path, Whitehouse Road, Goring Road and 
for Reading Road between its junction with Goring Road to its junction with Greenmore.  
  
We object to the introduction of a 20mph speed limit on B471 Oxford Road, from the north of the village to just before 
its junction with Reading Road. There are minimal active frontages that would encourage or lead to frequent and 
planned mixing between vulnerable road users and motorised traffic and maintaining the existing 30mph limit would 
provide a buffer between the national speed limit and the 20mph limit. The bends along this section of road mean that 
buses and other traffic are unlikely to be traveling at 30mph but it is still possible to travel faster than 20mph.  
  
We object to the introduction of a 20mph speed limit on Reading Road from the east of the village to its junction with 
Greenmore. There are no active frontages that would encourage or lead to frequent and planned mixing between 
vulnerable road users and motorised traffic on this section of road. The new Darnell Place development rather than 
providing a footway along the Reading Road has been required to close off an existing entrance from the Reading 
Road and install and new fence line, hedge and with the grass verge and ditch to be reinstated. Therefore it is planned 
that pedestrians rather than walking along the Reading Road should walk through the new development coming out 
onto the Reading Road, on a section where we do not object to the proposals, near the east-bound Langtree School 
bus stop.  
  
Given its rural location just of the A4074 and the distances involved on the Oxford – Wallingford – Woodcote – 
Reading corridor it is unlikely that cycling or walking will make up significant mode share for journeys on this corridor. 
Therefore the council should be seeking to maximise support for public transport on this corridor to help achieve our 
decarbonisation aims.    
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Station 
Lane) 

 
Object - Unnecessary big government bs 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Beech 
Lane) 

 
Object - I object to the proposal because: 

I spend more time cycling than driving in Woodcote, and the most danger comes from pedestrians walking out across 
the road in front of you and not cars driving at 30mph, let alone 20mph.  And as I cycle along at between 15 and 

P
age 633



                 
 

20mph, I would much rather cars overtake me at 30mph rather than stay in the overtaking danger zone next to me for 
3 to 5 times longer while travelling at 20mph. 
 
The study by Queens University after 5 years of a 20mph limit in Belfast stated that "Analysis of all the data showed 
that when compared with the sites that had retained their speed limits, a 20 mph speed limit was associated with little 
change in short- or long-term outcomes for road traffic collisions, casualties, or driver speed". 
So why on earth does the council rely on forecasts of impact to justify this project rather than use findings from a real 
life situation after the event.  The Queens University findings are real evidence rather than fanciful predictions that are 
currently being used to back up the councils position on this. 
 
After the ridiculously widespread imposition of a 20mph limit in nearby Checkendon we now have the situation where 
vehicles travelling at 20mph or less are being overtaken by other vehicles - this has reduced safety rather than 
increased it. 
 
Fuel consumption rises - for cars, the optimum constant speed for fuel consumption is around 40mph, once under this 
speed, the slower you travel the less fuel efficient the vehicle. 
 
Journeys take longer - more time = higher costs to business, which is invariably passed onto the consumer.  If all 
30mph were changed to 20mph throughout the country this would have a definite impact on costs to the consumer. 
More drivers will break the speed limit - this is widely acknowledged as a consequence.  The more unjust restrictions 
that are brought in, respect for the law will decrease. 
 
Roadusers will become less vigilant - In practice the average speed of vehicles is not reduced by 10mph - but 
because of the perception that it is, all road users are less vigilant than they otherwise would be. 
 
This is one of those Vanity projects from highways dept (a few years ago we had the rash of pink tarmac across the 
county) and the money would be better spent on the numerous potholes that are mostly ignored by the highways dept 
now - when driving I have to constantly scan the road surface 10 to 15 metres ahead looking for for potholes to 
swerve around rather than focusing primarily on the medium distance and other types of potential hazard. This would 
be a much bigger contribution to road safety. 
 
Travel change: Other 

I would cycle less because it will become more dangerous 
 

P
age 634



                 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Bridle 
Path) 

 
Object - 1. I can understand city center 20mph zones from an environmental point of view but the pollution concerns 

are not the same in Woodcote. 
2. Driving at 20 mph makes you complacent, looking around at the scenery / houses is far easier therefore more 
dangerous. 
3. Speed limits are usually adjusted when there has been a series of accidents - there have been none, or minimal, in 
Woodcote.  What is the justification for this? 
4. This would have a knock-on effect on our bus service which we may lose. 
5. Money would be far better spent repairing the pavements to make walking safer for children, the elderly, and those 
with pushchairs, wheelchairs or other walking aids (not to mention those wearing high heels).  The pavements are in a 
dangerous state in parts of the village. 
6. In the Project Consultation run last summer, a reduction in speed limit came 4th out of the 10 projects asked about.  
 
Travel change: No 

 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, South 
Stoke Road) 

 
Object - Too expensive. Not genuinely aimed at the perceived problem of bike and pedestrian safety. Safety actually 

requires SODC to maintain the road surface and pavements. Removing and filling in potholes and reinstating 
pavements. Given the sight lines and the poor road surface most drivers keep well below the speed limit and those 
few that don’t won’t if you change the speed limits. The real hazard is cyclist who are forced to weave around potholes 
and pedestrians obliged to walk along steep grassed verges or uneven pavements 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Summit House Close) 

 
Object - Need to work on peoples common sense instead of lowering the speed limit, 30 is fine for the majority of 

Woodcote, people just need to think when it would be better to go slower…fog, snow, school at pick up/drop off… 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Bensgrove Close) 

 
Object - The present 30 mph is sufficient if it were observed   and enforced. Making it 20 mph is unfair on those who 

already observe the present speed limit and would make no difference to those who ignore it. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 635



                 
 

 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Bridle 
Path) 

 
Object - 1. There have been relatively few accidents in Woodcote, a rarity since I’ve been a resident here since 2004.  
Why waste time and money doing this 
2. Restricting the speed is likely to have those drivers who do slow down become more complacent and distracted, 
increasing the likelihood of an accident  
3. There are far more important things that money needs to be spent on … most importantly for Woodcote, our 
schools.  With inadequate funding for education as is, this is a way more deserving cause. 
Please do not waste my money putting 20mpb signs up.  This is utterly ludicrous. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Emmer Green, 
Blaenant) 

 
Concerns - Tidmore Lane is still showing as NSL even though it's single track, I feel this should be included in the 

plans. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Goring 
Road) 

 
Concerns - More important would be to enforce the existing limits. Reducing the limit without enforcement will 
encourage drivers to break the limit, which then becomes a habit. Install average speef cameras at each entrace to 
the village -- this will be much more effective. 20 limit may be good where roads are culdesacs and kids liable to be 
playing outside. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Grimmer Way) 

 
Concerns - The current 30 mph limit is not enforced and therefore ignored by many individuals. Why would a 20 mph 

limit improve safety if also not enforced and consequently ignored by those that ignore the 30 mph limit? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 636



                 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Reading Road) 

 
Concerns - I support the proposals but have concerns that Tidmore Lane has not been included within the area. 

Tidmore Lane is currently has a national speed limit but is an unlit single track, technically bridleway, with no 
pavement on either side. Many people walk and cycle along this route and the fact that it remains 60mph and does not 
come down to 20mph along with other roads within the village is a huge oversight and lacks common sense. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Reading Road) 

 
Concerns - I support the introduction of 20mph for the areas shown on the map. However, I am extremely 

disappointed that Tidmore Lane has not been included. As a regular walker I have been nearly mown down in this 
lane but vehicles doing excessive speeds - with no pavements to walk along. It is part of the footpath network with 
people directed to walk here. The fact that this single track 'road' without any pavement or lighting is designated as 
national speed limit is absolute madness. This is the ideal opportunity to lower the speed limit on Tidmore Lane to 
match the speeds of the roads it adjoins on Oxford Road. I also understand the 30mph speed limit is/was proposed to 
be extended further out on Reading Road, to be nearer the A4074 as a result of the new housing development at 
Chiltern Rise / Darnell Place. This would mean that the speed limit would be lower at both roads that Tidmore Lane 
connects. It should not be that an accident, injury or fatal accident has to take place BEFORE action is taken. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Tidmore Lane) 

 
Concerns - Support this in principle but am concerned that Tidmore Lane is not included.  It has a tarmac surface and 

is sometimes driven along too fast or as a cut through even though it is a restricted byway which is used by walkers 
and cyclists. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cray's Pond, 
Beechwood Close) 

 
Support - The roads in Woodcote are often busy and are used as a through route, with so many children living and 
going to school in the village it makes sense to make it as safe as possible. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 637



                 
 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Ashlee 
Walk) 

 
Support - Woodcote if often used as a rat run for business drivers. We have both a primary and secondary school in 

the village and I often see motorists speeding through the village. If we reduce the speed limit I hope that will slow 
them down! 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Beech 
Lane) 

 
Support - 30mph, which is often ignored, is not slow enough. The route from A4074 is used as a 'run' to Oratory Prep 

and Pangbourne/further by non residents who frequently speed. Need calming measures, too. Speed bumps/min-
roundabouts etc. to reinforce this, particularly at the pedestrian crossing which has seen many a near miss. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Behoes Lane) 

 
Support - Because I wish to visit should become a safer and more pleasant place for people to be to walk and/or 

cycle around about the danger posed by vehicles going at up to 30 mph and, at times, more. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(21) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Bridle 
Path) 

 
Support - Safety reasons 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(22) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Croft 
Way) 

 
Support - I walk around the streets of Woodcote and its environs every day, as a dog walker, the speed of many of 

the cars is often so dangerous and quite frightening. I often do not feel safe. Higher speeds generate more noise and 
more pollution. The problem is exacerbated by cars swerving to avoid the increasing number of pot holes and loosing 
traction during icy weather. Walking along the B471 to access a friends house and to access Dean Woods is 
extremely treacherous. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 638



                 
 

(23) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Folly 
Green) 

 
Support - Living in the village, I feel traffic needs to be slowed considerably. 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(24) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Folly 
Green) 

 
Support - We need to take action to slow drivers down on roads. They are fast and dangerous when walking my little 

girls to school and walking the dog 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(25) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Goring 
Road) 

 
Support - I live on Goring Road in Woodcote and frequently walk down the road with my 3 year old son and the 

speeding on this road is concerning. At every time of the day there are speeding cars which make walking as a 
pedestrian on the pavement dangerous and on multiple occasions cars have hit the curb when travelling too fast and 
meeting wide oncoming traffic whilst I have been walking with my son. If the speed was dropped to 20 mph I believe it 
would make it a safer environment for people to walk around the village and it would feel less dangerous as a parent 
walking with young children. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(26) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Greenmore) 

 
Support - Unless the speed limit is reduced, someone is going to be killed. I live on Greenmore and observe that 
some motorists and motorbike riders race along the straight stretches at speeds well in excess of 30 mph. Some of 
them have no hope of stopping in time if they need to. Failure to reduce the speed limit to 20 mph will cost lives. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(27) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Greenmore) 

 
Support - I think the speed people drive through the village is dangerous so a 20 mph limit will be beneficial for 

pedestrians and villagers. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 639



                 
 

(28) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Grimmer Way) 

 
Support - To help stop excess speeding. Needs extending to Long Toll as this is a busy area for walkers and riders. 

At 60mph this is dangerously high and rediculous given the high volume use crossing or walking along the road. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(29) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Hagbourne Close) 

 
Support - Safer for pedestrians (especially children) 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(30) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Hagbourne Close) 

 
Support - Child safety 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(31) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Hagbourne Close) 

 
Support - I have young children 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(32) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Long 
Toll) 

 
Support - Cars pass my house much faster than the 30mph limit, there are lots of children living here and it shouldn't 

be this dangerous 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(33) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Long 
Toll) 

 
Support - Lots of fast driving through the village with lots of young children walking to and from school. Some of the 

paths are so narrow or cars are parked over the path that you have to step into the road. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 640



                 
 

(34) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Support - Woodcote is seen as a rat run for some car, where they want to cut through as quick as possible. They are 

in tunnel mode, and switched off to village driving and aren’t prepared for unexpected things like kids falling off kerbs, 
balls being kicked into the road, families cycling around the village. At the moment goring rd, Oxford Rd and reading rd 
are very dangerous with cars edging 40mph next to families walking on pavements. This shouldn’t be the case in a 
village, especially where there is a viable alternative route along the B4526 to the B4074. Efforts to  divert traffic on 
the route would be an all round positive. I live on a section of road that doesn’t have a pavement so according to the 
Highway Code I can walk in the main carriageway, I do this especially when I’m walking with the kids. This is effective 
as slowing cars down, some however never break and swerve abruptly around me. Most cars are happy with my 
actions and smile and wave, some aren’t! I grew up in a village where cars and pedestrians share the roads and when 
clearly marked this works very well. The 20mph limit is a good start, I would like to see the roads clearly designated as 
shared spaces for cars, cycles and pedestrians. This would help make Woodcote a better more forgiving place to 
raise children, and therefore better for the community and county 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(35) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Support - I live on Oxford road and have 3 young children who my husband and I walk to school every day. There is 

no safe path for us and we have to walk along the road. The road  currently has a 30 mph speed limit, and the cars fly 
past us driving either 30 mph or over. In the last few months there have already been 2 car crashes near our house 
and thank goodness no pedestrians were involved, but I’m worried that one day there will be. A 20 mph speed limit will 
definitely make the road safer for pedestrians and cyclists. Woodcote is a village with a lot of school age children as 
well as elderly and a lower speed limit will make it safer for all. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(36) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Potkiln 
Lane) 

 
Support - We live in Woodcote by the woods and speeding cars are regular despite walkers, horses etc. 

 
Travel change: No 

 
(37) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, South 
Stoke Road) 

 
Support - I support this. Our roads are used by lots of users not just cars and 30mph is too fast. Our road we live on 

in woodcote does not have a footpath. Myself, and my children have to share the road with drivers going to fast along 
it.  

P
age 641



                 
 

The change will need signage and enforcement though. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(38) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, South 
Stoke Road) 

 
Support - Traffic drives through the village at speeds that risk the safety of pedestrians.  As a village with two schools, 
it is often children most at risk.  I live on South Stoke Road which is narrow and has no footpaths for most of its length.  
Traffic frequently drives too fast putting children at risk. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(39) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, The 
Close) 

 
Support - Happy to support any proposal that will improve the safety of the roads in our village 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(40) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, The 
Oratory Drive) 

 
Support - The village can become very busy at times with traffic, and also cars parked along the roads, and there are 

some narrow pathways or even no pathways at times. I walk the village very frequently- multiple times a day and often 
with my four young children, and so i would welcome a 20mph speed limit for the safety of myself and family and for 
the benefit of the whole village! Thank you. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(41) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Wayside Green) 

 
Support - Anything that makes the roads through Woodcote safer for other road users I.e cyclists, runners, 

pedestrians etc,  is of benefit to the safety and health of people. I offer wholehearted support for the proposed 
reduction of speed to 20mph. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(42) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, West 
Chiltern) 

 
Support - There are areas in Woodcote where the current 30mph limit is unsafe, e.g. outside the primary and 
secondary schools on Reading Road and in the environs of the zebra crossing on Goring Road. There was a fatality 
due to a RTA recently in South Stoke Road where a 20mph limit might have prevented this. 

P
age 642



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(43) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Wittenham Close) 

 
Support - Woodcote is a rural village with a lot of foot traffic but is often used as a cut-through for other communities 

to get too and from the adjacent A4074. This reduction in speed limit across the village will help support the foot traffic 
within our community. 
However it is extremely disappointing that OCC is not including Tidmore Lane in this proposal. Tidmore Lane is a 
single-track lane without footpaths and is very popular with pedestrians and cyclists. There are very few houses along 
this road, and no businesses that I am aware of, however cars travel at high speed along it with some using it as a rat-
run to bypass the front of the schools on Reading Road during peak times. It is currently labelled as a national 
speedlimit road which is completely unsuitable for the type of road and the way it is currently used, having no 
protection for non-vehicular users. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(44) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Woodgreen) 

 
Support - There are a lot of children, pets, wild animals and older people using our roads. We have just one 
designated road crossing in the village. Everywhere else   Crossing the road is hazardous as many drivers do not 
appear to stick to the speed limit or know the highway code. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(45) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Beech 
Lane) 

 
Support - Busy residential area with children, elderly amongst the population. School, zebra crossing, shops, bendy 

roads, driveways onto the roads. 20mph is sensible. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(46) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Beech 
Lane) 

 
Support - Speeding traffic 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 643



                 
 

(47) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Bridle 
Path) 

 
Support - To make the village safer for pedestrians. 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(48) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Folly 
Green) 

 
Support - Having lived in the lovely village of Woodcote for 41 years, I do have increasing concerns for the safety of 

the village residents, given that both the volume of traffic and the speed with which vehicles pass through the village, 
has very much risen over these years.  I would therefore be very grateful if a 20mph speed limit could be put into 
place, please. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(49) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Folly 
Green) 

 
Support - Something needs to show the traffic down through the village 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(50) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Grimmerway) 

 
Support - I heavily support this - well overdue hopefully it happens 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(51) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Hagbourne Close) 

 
Support - I have two young children who attend Woodcote primary. At both ends of the school drop off, it’s not 

unusual to see drivers exceeding the 30mph limit. Sooner or later, this could end badly; prevention is always better 
than cure. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(52) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Reading Road) 

 
Support - With 2 secondaries, a, primary and two preschools we have lots of children and cars in Woodcote. The two 

don’t mix. People often drive faster than 30mph so reducing to 20 might save lives and make it safer for all.. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 644



                 
 

 

(53) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, South 
Stoke Road) 

 
Support - I support this so that hopefully it will be safer walking and driving in and around the village. But any speed 
limits need to be enforced. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(54) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, The 
Close) 

 
Support - People drive too fast though the village. I am concerned for my family 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(55) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, 
Wayside) 

 
Support - Children's safety 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(56) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Woodcote, Wood 
Green) 

 
Support - Fast cars on roads with lots of families walking and cycling is so dangerous. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

 

P
age 645



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	 Statements submitted for 23rd February 2023

	5 Witney Local Cycling and Walking Plan (LCWIP)
	Annex A - Witney LCWIP Report
	Witney LCWIP Appendix A - Background information
	Witney LCWIP Appendix B - Audit Output Report
	Witney LCWIP Appendix C - Scheme Drawings
	106416-PEL-XX-FW-DR-D-0001 - Fiveways Dutch-Style Roundabout Concept Design
	Sheets and Views
	106416-PEL-XX-FW-DR-D-0001


	106416-PEL-XX-WR-DR-D-0001 - Woodstock Road Parallel Crossing Concept Design
	Sheets and Views
	106416-PEL-XX-WR-DR-D-0001



	Witney LCWIP Appendix D - Detailed packages table
	Witney LCWIP Appendix E - Witney cycle parking report 2023
	Annex B - Witney LCWIPLCWIP_EIA
	Annex C -Witney LCWIP_Climate impact
	Annex D - Witney LCWIP Consultation Report

	6 Wantage - Market Place west - proposed permanent amendment to vehicle access and parking places
	7 Witney: The Leys proposed traffic calming measures
	8 Charlbury - B4022 The Slade proposed zebra crossing and B4026 Spelsbury Road proposed extension of 30mph speed limit
	9 Sutton Courtenay - B4016 Drayton Road - proposed traffic calming measures and extension of 30mph speed limit
	10 Buckland - Buckland Road at Buckland Marsh - proposed 40mph speed limit
	11 Benson: Proposed 20mph and 50mph Speed Limits
	12 Charlbury: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits
	13 North Aston: Proposed 20mph and 50mph Speed Limits
	14 Sydenham: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits
	15 Uffington: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits
	16 Watlington: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limit
	17 West Challow: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits
	18 West Hanney: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits
	19 East Hanney: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits
	20 Woodcote: Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits

